STOREY COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY

COMMISSIONERS MEETING
10/16/2018 10:00 A.M.

26 SOUTH B STREET, VIRGINIA CITY, NEVADA

AGENDA

MARSHALL MCBRIDE ANNE LANGER
CHAIRMAN DISTRICT ATTORNEY
JACK MCGUFFEY

VICE-CHAIRMAN

LANCE GILMAN VANESSA STEPHENS
COMMISSIONER CLERK-TREASURER

Members of the Board of County Commissioners also serve as the Board of Fire Commissioners for
the Storey County Fire Protection District, Storey County Brothel License Board, Storey County
Water and Sewer System Board and the Storey County Liquor and Gaming Board and during this
meeting may convene as any of those boards as indicated on this or a separately posted agenda.

All matters listed under the consent agenda are considered routine, and may be acted upon by the
Board of County Commissioners with one action, and without an extensive hearing. Pursuant to
NRS 241.020 (2)(d)(6) Items on the agenda may be taken out of order, the public body may combine
two or more agenda items for consideration, and the public body may remove an item from the
agenda or delay discussion relating to an item on the agenda at any time. Any member of the Board
or any citizen may request that an item be taken from the consent agenda, discussed, and acted
upon separately during this meeting. The Commission Chair reserves the right to limit the time
allotted for each individual to speak.

All items include discussion and possible action to approve, modify, deny, or continue unless
marked otherwise.
1. CALL TO ORDER REGULAR MEETING AT 10:00 A.M.
2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
3. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:
Approval of the Agenda for October 16, 2018.

4. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:




Approval of the Minutes for September 18, 2018.
DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:

Approval of the Minutes for October 2, 2018.

CONSENT AGENDA

I For possible action, approval of business license first readings:
A. OXFORD INSTRUMENTS AMERICA INC - Gen/ 300 Baker Ave ~ Concord, MA
B. CALIBER HOME LOANS INC - General / 1525 S. Belt Line Rd ~ Coppell, TX
C. COMPLETE CONCRETE - Contractor / 7481 Deveron Dr ~ Reno, NV
D. ENLIGHTED INC - General / 930 Benecia Ave ~ Sunnyvale, CA
E.JAG BROADCAST VIDEO - General / 2051 Canal Rd ~ Sparks, NV
F. FREEDOM HOME HEALTH L1LC - General / 3680 Grant Dr ~ Reno, NV

II For possible action, approval of resolution 18-514, a resolution to direct the County
Assessor to prepare a list of all the taxpayers on the secured roll in the County
pursuant to NRS 361.300(3).

Il For possible action, approval of claims in the amount of, payroll $522,207.85 and
accounts payable in the amount of $287,012.01.

IV For possible action, approval of Resolution no. 18-499, granting Historic Fourth
Ward School Foundation a sum not to exceed $120,000.00 for the purpose of
preserving the Fourth Ward School Building and promoting the history of the
Comstock and Storey County history.

V For possible action, approval of Resolution no. 18-500, granting Community Chest
Inc., a sum not to exceed $234,492.00 for the purpose of funding health and human
services programs.

VI For possible action, approval of Resolution no. 18-504, granting Liberty Engine
Company No. 1 Inc. a sum not to exceed $10,000.00 for the purpose of preserving
the Comstock Firemen's Museum and its historic contents.

VII For possible action, approval of Resolution no. 18-505, granting the Mark Twain
Community Center a sum not to exceed $25,000.00 for the purpose of preserving
the Mark Twain Community Center and for community outreach and
improvement.

VIII For possible action, approval of Resolution no. 18-506, granting the Nevada Rural
Counties RSVP Program Inc., a sum not to exceed $7,050.00 for the purpose of
providing essential programs for Storey County seniors, veterans, adults with
disabilities and caregivers.

IX For possible action, approval of Resolution no. 18-507, granting the Storey County
Senior Citizens Center the sum of $135,000.00 for the purpose of maintaining the




10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

Storey County Senior Center for providing programs and serviced to seniors to
promote independent and healthy lifestyles.

X For possible action, approval of Resolution no. 18-508, granting the St. Mary's Art
Center, a non-profit entity, a sum not to exceed $60,000.00 for the purpose of
preserving the St. Mary's Art Center, a County-owned building and supporting arts
and culture through education and cultural offerings.

DISCUSSION ONLY (No Action - No Public Comment): Committee/Staff Reports
BOARD COMMENT (No Action - No Public Comment)

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:

Approval of Resolution 18-513 approving Notice of Completion and Acceptance of
the Virginia City Sewer Improvement Project.

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:

Discussion and possible action on Bill 102, the second reading of Ordinance No. 18-
293, an ordinance amending chapter 15.04 Buildings and Construction to adopt the
2018 International Codes for Building, Residential, Existing Building, Energy
Conservation, Fuel Gas, Mechanical, the 2018 Uniform Codes for Mechanical and
Plumbing, and the 2017 National Electric Code, the 2018 International Fire Code, the
2018 International Wildland Urban Interface Code, the 2017 National Fire Protection
Association Standards (NFPA) and the 2018 Northern Nevada Amendments, and
providing for other properly related matters.

RECESS TO CONVENE AS THE 474 FIRE DISTRICT BOARD
DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:

Discussion and possible action on Resolution No. 18-515 adopting regulations
consistent with ordinance 18-293 amending chapter 15.04 Buildings and Construction
to adopt the 2018 International Fire Code, the 2018 International Wildland Urban
Interface Code, the 2017 National Fire Protection Association Standards (NFPA) and
the 2018 Northern Nevada Amendments, and providing for other properly related
matters.

AJOURN TO RECONVENE AS THE STOREY COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:

Consideration and possible approval of agreement issuing license to Switch Business
Solutions LLC (Switch) by which the County authorizes Switch to install a data
communications line in the County's right of way within a portion of the Tahoe Reno
Industrial Center.

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:




16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

21.

22,

2018-036 Special Use Permit by applicant Dylan Li. The applicant requests a Special
Use Permit to operate an outdoor establishment promoting tourism and local
activities. The establishment will consist of a small movable stand that will act as a
table and be located within the front patio area of an existing commercial
establishment (Firehouse Grill, BBQ & Saloon). The property is located at171S5. C
Street, Virginia City, Nevada, Assessor’s Parcel Number (APN) 001-073-28.

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:

Variance 2018-037 request to the front and side yard setbacks for the construction of a
detached garage, to allow for a front yard setback of 20-feet (versus the required 30-
feet) and side yard setback of 8-feet (versus the required 15-feet). The property is
located at 1930 Applegate Road, Virginia City Highlands, Storey County, Nevada,
Assessor’s Parcel Number (APN) 003-101-05.

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:

Special Use Permit 2018-038 is a request by the applicant to allow for an accessory
dwelling unit on an existing developed residential property. The applicant requests
an accessory dwelling unit be approved within a previously constructed garage. The
subject property is located at 1931 Lousetown Road, Virginia City Highlands, Storey
County, Nevada, Assessor’s Parcel Number (APN) 003-123-07.

DISCUSSION ONLY (No Action):
Outline tentative process to select the next County Manager.
DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:

Approval of business license second readings:

A. HERITAGE CONSTRUCTION & DEVELOPMENT - Contractor / 2351 Sunset
Blvd ~ Rocklin, CA

B. UNITED HERITAGE FINANCIAL GROUP, INC - General/707 E. United Heritage
Ct ~ Meridian, ID

C. AXINE USA INC - General / 108-2386 East Mall ~ Vancouver, Canada

D. LIBERTY INTERACTIVE CORP, dba: ZULILY - General / 2555 USA Pkwy ~
McCarran, NV

CORRESPONDENCE:
Denial of agenda item request from Druscilla Thyssen.
PUBLIC COMMENT (No Action)

ADJOURNMENT

NOTICE:

Anyone interested may request personal notice of the meetings.




Agenda items must be received in writing by 12:00 noon on the Monday of the week preceding
the regular meeting. For information call (775) 847-0969.

Items may not necessarily be heard in the order that they appear.

Public Comment will be allowed at the end of each meeting (this comment should be limited
to matters not on the agenda). Public Comment will also be allowed during each item upon
which action will be taken on the agenda (this comment should be limited to the item on the
agenda). Time limits on Public Comment will be at the discretion of the Chairman of the
Board. Please limit your comments to three minutes.

Storey County recognizes the needs and civil rights of all persons regardless of race, color,
religion, gender, disability, family status, or nation origin.

Pursuant to NRS 241.020(c) a member of the public may request the supporting material for
the meeting from Vanessa Stephens, Storey County Clerk, at (775) 847-0969. Additionally, the
supporting materials may be found at www.storeycounty.org.

In accordance with Federal civil rights law and U.S. Department of Agriculture (USDA) civil
rights regulations and policies, the USDA, its Agencies, offices, and employees, and
institutions participating in or administering USDA programs are prohibited from
discriminating based on race, color, national origin, religion, sex, gender identity (including
gender expression), sexual orientation, disability, age, marital status, family/ parental status,
income derived from a public assistance program, political beliefs, or reprisal or retaliation for
prior civil rights activity, in any program or activity conducted or funded by USDA (not all
bases apply to all programs). Remedies and complaint filing deadlines vary by program or
incident.

Persons with disabilities who require alternative means of communication for program
information (e.g., Braille, large print, audiotape, American Sign Language, etc.) should contact
the responsible Agency or USDA’s TARGET Center at (202) 720-2600 (voice and TTY) or
contact USDA through the Federal Relay Service at (800) 877-8339. Additionally, program
information may be made available in languages other than English.

To file a program discrimination complaint, complete the USDA Program Discrimination
Complaint Form, AD-3027, found online at

http:/ /www.ascr.usda.gov/complaint_filing cust.html and at any USDA office or write a
letter addressed to USDA and provide in the letter all of the information requested in the form.
To request a copy of the complaint form, call (866} 632-9992. Submit your completed form or
letter to USDA by:

(1) mail: U.S. Department of Agriculture
Office of the Assistant Secretary for Civil Rights
1400 Independence Avenue, SW
Washington, D.C. 20250-9410;

(2) fax: (202) 690-7442; or

(3) email: program.intake@usda.gov.

USDA is an equal opportunity provider, employer, and lender.




Notice to persons with disabilities: Members of the public who are disabled and require special
assistance or accommodations at the meeting are requested to notify the Commissioners’ Office in
writing at PO Box 176, Virginia City, Nevada 89440.

CERTIFICATION OF POSTING
I, Vanessa Stephens , Clerk to the Board of Commissioners, do hereby certify that I posted, or caused
to be posted, a copy of this agenda at the following locations on or before 10/10/2018; Virginia City
Post Office at 132 S C St, Virginia City, NV, the Storey County Courthouse located at 26 S B S, Virginia
City, NV, the Virginia City Fire Department located at 145 N C St, Virginia City, NV, the Virginia City
Highlands Fire Department located a 2610 Cartwright Rd, VC Highlands, NV and Lockwood Fire
Department located at 431 Canyon Way, Lockwood, NV.

By ‘@Mdﬁ&b}\uq

Vanessa Stephens Clerk-Treasurer




Meeting date: October 16, 2018 Estimate of Time Required: 0-5 min.

Storey County Board of County

Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Agenda Item Type: Regular Agenda

i.

2.

Title: Approval of the minutes for September 18, 2018.

Recommended motion: Approve as submitted.

Prepared by: Vanessa Stephens

Department: Clerk Contact Number: 775.847.0969
Staff Summary: Minutes are attached.

Supporting Materials: See attached

Fiscal Impact: 0

Legal review required: No

Reviewed by:

@ Department Head Department Name: Clerk
County Manager Other Agency Review:

Board Action:

[ 1 Approved [ ] Approved with Modification

[ ] Denied [ ] Continued




STOREY COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY

COMMISSIONERS MEETING
TUESDAY, SEPTEMBER 18, 2018 10:00 A.M.
DISTRICT COURTROOM
26 SOUTH B STREET, VIRGINIA CITY, NEVADA
MINUTES

MARSHALL MCBRIDE ANNE LANGER
CHAIRMAN DISTRICT ATTORNEY
LANCE GILMAN

VICE-CHAIRMAN

JACK MCGUFFEY VANESSA STEPHENS
COMMISSIONER CLERK-TREASURER

ROLL CALL: Chairman McBride, Vice-Chairman McGuffey, Commissioner Gilman, County
Manager Pat Whitten, Clerk/Treasurer Vanessa Stephens, Deputy District Attorney Keith Loomis,
Fire Chief Jeff Nevin, Planning Director/ Administrative Officer Austin Osborne, Public Works
Director Jason Weizrbicki, Fire Marshal Martin Azevedo, Emergency Management Director Joe
Curtis, Project Coordinator Mike Northan, Chief Deputy Tony Dosen, Community Relations
Director Cherie Nevin, Community Development Director Gary Hames, Tourism Director Deny
Dotson, Wastewater Project Manager Mike Nevin

1. CALL TO ORDER REGULAR MEETING AT 10:00 A.M.
Meeting was called to order by Chairman McBride at 10:00 A M.

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
Chairman McBride led those present in the Pledge of Allegiance.

3. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of Agenda for September 18, 2018.

County Manager Whitten asked that the following items under the Consent Agenda items I1, IV, V,
V1, VII, VIII and IX be continued to a date not set; item 11 to be continued to a date not set. Items 12,
14, and 15 will be heard but no action will be taken.

Public Comment:
None

Motion: Approve Agenda for September 18, 2018 with changes noted above, Action: Approve,
Moved by: Vice Chairman McGuffey, Seconded by: Commissioner Gilman, Vote: Motion
carried by unanimous vote, (Summary: Yes=3)




4. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of the minutes for August 7, 2018.
Public Comment:
None

Motion: Approve Minutes for August 7”, 2018, Action: Approve, Moved by: Vice Chairman
McGuffey, Seconded by: Commissioner Gilman, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote,
(Summary: Yes=3)

5. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of the minutes for August 21, 2018.
Public Comment:
None

Motion: Approve Minutes for August 21, 2018, Action: Approve, Moved by: Vice Chairman
McGuffey, Seconded by: Commissioner Gilman, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote,
(Summary: Yes=3)

6. CONSENT AGENDA:
1. For possible action, approval of business license first readings:
A. COLEMAN ELECTRICAL CO / Contractor - 2665 Billys Rd ~ Minden, NV
B. NW HOLDING & RECOVERY, LLC / General - 4900 Meadows Rd ~ Lake Oswego, OR
C. GLOBAL RISK CONSULTANTS CORP / General - 100 Walnut Ave ~ Clark, NJ
D. SAVANAH LEE, DBA: ACCESS TRANSFORMATION / MT - 4255 Wedekind Rd ~ Sparks,
NV
E. MEN WIELDING FIRE INC / General - 1485 W. 4th 5t. ~ Reno, NV
F. ZUNESIS INC / General - 8375 S. Willow St ~ Lonetree, Co
G. LARSON DESIGN GROUP, INC / General - 1000 Commerce Park Dr ~ Williamsport, P

I For possible action, approval of payroll claims in the amount of $566,375.43 and
accounts payable claims in the amount of $278,382.93.

I For possible action, consideration and possible approval of resolution no. 18-499
granting Historic Fourth Ward School Foundation $120,000.00 for the purpose of
preserving the Fourth Ward School Building and promoting the history of the
Comstock and Storey County history. CONTINUED

IV For possible action, consideration and possible approval of resolution no. 18-500
granting Community Chest, Inc $234,492.00 for the purpose of funding health and
human services programs. CONTINUED

V  For possible action, consideration and possible approval of resolution no. 18-504
granting Liberty Engine Company No. 1 Inc. the sum of $10,000.00 for the pupose of
preserving the Comstock Fireman's Museum and its historic contents. CONTINUED

VI For possible action, consideration and possible approval of resolution no. 18-505
granting the Mark Twain Community Center the sum of $25,000.00 for the purpose
of preserving the Mark Twain Community Center for the community outreach and
improvement. CONTINUED




VII For possible action, consideration and possible approval of resolution no. 18-506
grantng the Nevada Rural Counties RSVP Program Inc. the sum of $7,050.00 for the
purpose of providing essential programs for Storey County seniors, veterans,
adults with disabilities and caregivers. CONTINUED

VIII For possible action, consideration and possible approval of resolution no. 18-307
granting the Storey County Senior Citizens Center the of sum of $135,000.00 for
the purpose of maintaining the Storey County Senior Center and for providing
programs and services to seniors to promote independent and healthy lifestyles.
CONTINUED

Public Comment:

None

Motion: Approve Consent Agenda for September 18, 2018, Action: Approve, Moved by: Vice
Chairman McGuffey, Seconded by: Commissioner Gilman, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous

vote,

{Summary: Yes=3)

7. DISCUSSION ONLY (No Action - No Public Comment): Committee/Staff Reports
Mike Northan, Project Coordinator:

All 2017 flood event repair work has been completed.

The traffic signal at USA Parkway and Electric Avenue has been installed and is working well.
An application has been made and accepted for attachment to NVEnergy poles behind the
Courthouse enabling data connection from the Courthouse to Pipers.

A universal car charger has been installed at the Courthouse parking lot.

Stacey Gilbert, Senior Center Director:

Work has begun on a strategic plan for all of the Storey County Senior Centers. This should
help in applications for grant funding and foundation money.

Lasagna Cookoff will be held Friday, October 5t at 6PM at the Senior Center.

The transportation grant funded program is up and running providing transportation for
seniors 60 and over.

Erik Schoen, Community Chest/Library Director:

The “before and after school program” has been extended to Hillside. We are working with
the School District to have a counselor in every school at least one day a week to partner with
the school counselors.

The 6t annual statewide Thrive Conference was held at the Community Center last Friday.
The center was full with attendees from all over Nevada.

The annual Halloween show - “No Brainer Zombie Bash” - will be held Friday, October 26%,
at Pipers featuring Lydia Pence and Cold Blood.

Deny Dotson, VCTC Director:

During special events and with the new fairgrounds, there are always congested areas. We are
working with Public Works to address these issues, including “no parking” signs in the
congested areas.




The camel races last weekend were very successful. The traffic pattern with the train was
almost flawless. Having I Street as egress from the fairgrounds was beneficial.

Demolition of the Black & Howell building north wall will begin in the fall, after Street
Vibrations.

A merchant/ resident workshop will be held October 18th at Pipers. Results of a survey being
sent to residents will be discussed. The intent is to work towards a 2019 event calendar that is
beneficial to everyone.

Cherie Nevin, Community Relations Director:

*

Ophir Grade Road will be closed until further notice due to construction on the Five Mile
Reservoir. Heavy equipment will be working and there will be open trenches. Project signage
will be posted this week.

Open House will be held at the Slarnmer /County Museum on QOctober 4th, 5 to 7 PM, to
showrcase the mural. Refreshments will be served and there will be a scavenger hunt.

Flu shot clinics are set for October 17 - 10am to 12pm, at Mark Twain Community Center, and
4:30pm to 6pm at the Virginia Highlands Fire Station.

Busy with grants. We received notification of an emergency, back-up generator for the high
school that had been applied for.

September is National Preparedness Month. A time to look at everything - insurance, etc. Go
to ready.gov for more information.

The Thrive Conference was well attended. Senior Center Director Stacey Gilbert was awarded
the Social Justice Super Hero award. She has made a huge difference in the two years at the
Senior Center.

Joe Curtis, Emergency Management Director:

October is Earthquake Awareness Month. October 18t at 10:18 AM the County will
participate in an earthquake exercise.

Storey County’s Hazardous Materials exercise will be held on October 6%, at Aqua Metals in
TRI.

Local Emergency Planning Committee meeting is October 10t at the VCCC.

Jeff Nevin, Fire Chief:

The fire last week in the Industrial Park was 800 acres, smaller than reported by news agencies.
There was no threat to buildings and no impact to businesses.

Martin Azevedo, Fire Marshal:

Two inspectors are in Denver updating their training.

Mike Nevin, Project Manager:

Ophir Grade Road is being graded, prep work, and clean-up is being done. Pipe for the
project is scheduled for delivery next week. The road will be closed from the sewer plant to
the top of the summit. It may be difficult at times for fire and emergency services - the best
access will be through Gold Hill, through the mine, and up the back side. The closed section is
about 2.3 miles in length.

Signs will be posted regarding the closure.

The Gold Hill septic project is in regulatory review by NDEP and USEPA.

The wastewater project is 100% complete by pipe with over 53,000 linear feet of pipe.

4




e There has been some savings with the original contract and contingencies.

o Total contractor amount to date is $11,213,021. There are some contingent funds remaining
and USDA has approved use of those funds to purchase updated equipment for Public Works,
This includes new GPS equipment, trailer mounted vacuum suction unit, and locating
equipment. Some funds will go toward billing from Broadbent (archaeological companyy).

» A sub-contractor is working on raising manhole covers.

95% of the punch list has been done before substantial completion.
* Substantial completion should be one month early - the final will coincide with that date.

Hugh Gallagher, Comptroller:
Recently attended the County Fiscal Officers Association convention along with the County
Clerk and County Recorder. Discussions were held regarding the up-coming Legislation.
¢ County Recorder Jen Chapman and County Clerk Vanessa Stephens were both selected as
officers of the CFOA.
e The County’s new Tyler software infrastructure will be in place in about 40 days.
Departments will go through a lot of in-user training.

Austin Osborne, Administrative Officer/Planning Director:
e A satellite dish will be installed on the mono-pine in the Highlands in about a week. This
should go live in mid-October.
» People are asking whether or not to switch to AT&T - it probably would not be recommended
at this at this point until it the tree is “live” and everyone is comfortable that it is okay.
e AT&T does consider this an emergency management priority connection to that
neighborhood.

Pat Whitten, County Manager:
« Thank you to the entire team working on the wastewater project has been amazing and great
to work with.
e Thank you to Cherie Nevin for all of the detailed accounting and working with all agencies on
this project. Thank you to Jason Weizrbicki for taking care of changes and always being at
meetings.

8. BOARD COMMENT (No Action-No Public Comment):
Chairman McBride: Longtime resident and former District Attorney Harold Swafford recently

passed away.

9. DISCUSSION ONLY: Candace Wheeler with the Comstock Cemetery Foundation - Update on
Cemetery Projects and other matters properly related.

Ms. Wheeler, Executive Director for Comstock Cemetery Foundation, explained she is here to
recognize Cherie Nevin. Ms. Nevin recently helped the Foundation in obtaining a grant for a new
porch and stairway. Ms. Wheeler presented Ms. Nevin with a letter and certificate of recognition.

10. DISCUSSION ONLY (No Action): Representatives from Fourth Ward School, St. Mary's Art
Center, Community Chest, and the Storey County Senior Center provide an update on planning and
marketing efforts on behalf of Storey County nonprofits.




Stacey Gilbert, Director of Fourth Ward School, said these groups got to together to form a Storey
County non-profit group - the non-profits working together.

Erik Schoen explained this resulted in a draft brochure that can be used to explain what is being done
by these non-profits. The groups are open to all feedback and suggestions.

11. DISCUSSION ONLY (No Action): Honorable United States Congressman Mark Amodei
discussing updates on federal matters of interest in general and specific to Storey County.
This item continued.

12. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Consideration and possible approval of resolution 18-512
approving the form of the financing agreement among the County, TRI General Improvement
District and all owners of assessable property in Storey County Special Assessment District No. 01
(Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center).

Commissioner Gilman recused himself due to a pecuniary interest.
Chairman McBride reminded this will be discussion only.

County Manager Whitten explained there will be no action due to difficulty obtaining consistent and
acceptable documents based on the number of participants and attorneys involved in this issue.
There is no presentation - hopefully there will be approval on October 2nd. The same goes for items
14 and 15.

Public Comment:

Nicole Barde, Storey County resident read this statement into the record:

I would like to once again ask that you not go forward to the conclusion of this process and
approve the diverting of future TRI tax revenue from the general fund in order to fund and
purchase a private pipeline which will then be given to private parties.

In the capitalist system, people and companies are free to promote their business ideas, invest
their funds and take the risk of failure for the possibility of future profits. The state of Nevada

and Storey County have already invested in future "profits" and tax revenues thru the

incentives and abatements given to many of the companies at TRI. One day this investment

will pay off big....just not today.

[ think that residents understand that the use of public funds for the incentives and abatements is a
cost of doing business and are willing to do that in order to secure future county revenues. The
expectation, however, is that once those companies are here they need to fund their own
development and expansion

I don't think that residents are willing to continue to forego receiving needed services today or in
the future for the sake of continuing to "help” big business. Qur own C street merchants use their
own money and bear the full weight of risk as they run and expand their businesses. They don't
ask for, nor do they expect, handouts from the County.

Why would they approve of your handing out public money to other businesses?




In going door to door in our communities in the last several weeks people are expressing
concern and opposition to giving away our future revenues for these private companies when
they see needs going unmet in their community.

Why would they approve of your putting the needs of big business before their needs?
Lockwood points to portions of their roads and easements that need repair, they point to the 180
onramp that needs reconfiguring, and they cite continuing water issues for some of its residents.
Mark Twain needs flood and speeding mitigation on many of their roads, a couple of 4 way stop
signs, and some street lighting for safety. The Highlands is still waiting for a community center.
Virginia City residents wait for their water and sewer bills to go back down and some flood
mitigation on their roads to be done after this years "big dig".

We have current and future needs in the county that are going unaddressed today while you
think about giving away future revenues. $60 million dollars of future revenues, $60 million
dollars of debt.

You are thinking of giving away future revenues and taking on debt at a time when the abatements
are still in force and at a time when we still have to pay Roger Norman 35% of TRI revenues in
order to repay our $47 million infrastructure debt to him.

While the economy is booming now, given how long it has been roaring wouldn't it be more
prudent to look at preserving our future revenue streams for the eventual and obligatory slow
down that always follows rapid growth? Now is not the time to take on more debt.

The Pipeline is needed by the 6 companies at TRI and our residents understand that ... let us help
those companies get the pipeline by selling the bond at the reduced cost for them to finance it,
let's have them pay us back thru the SAD.

But thats it. Enough is enough.

Mr. Whitten commented 100 signatures - in part obtained on misinformation. Statements like “this is
a private pipeline being given to private companies” are false. When built, the pipeline will be
dedicated to the TRI GID, a local government.

Ms, Barde said she will correct that.

13. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Consideration and possible approval of agreement
between Storey County and TRI Center LLC (TRI) by which should County have to utilize the
uncommitted portion of its general fund to make payments on the bond secured by the Storey
County Special Assessment District No. 01 (SAD) TRI agrees that the amounts so provided will be
credited against the vouchers issued by County to reimburse TRI for the costs of providing public
infrastructure at the rate of 1.5 to 1.

Commissioner Gilman recused himself due to a pecuniary interest.

Deputy District Attorney Keith Loomis reviewed the County’s obligation to cover payments on the
bonds if the initial sources of revenue were not available. There are several sources, the final source
would be the County’s general fund - a fairly remote risk. This agreement provides for the amount
of any funds used out of the general fund to be credited against the vouchers owed to TRIC, LLC at a
rate of 1.5 to 1. The principle of TRIC, Roger Norman, will hold off signing this agreement until the
SAD and TIA are created.




Mr. Whitten commented that recommendation for approval of anything will be withheld unless this
agreement is executed.

Public Comment:
None

Motion: I make a motion to continue this item to October 2, 2018, Action: Approve, Moved by:
Vice Chairman McGuffey, Seconded by: Chairman McBride, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous
vote, (Summary: Yes=2)

14. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Second reading of ordinance 18-289 creating Storey
County, Nevada, Special Assessment District No. 01 {Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center); ordering a
water project within Storey County, Nevada

Commissioner Gilman recused himself due to a pecuniary interest.

County Manager Whitten: There are certain core documents to be agreed to which are being
discussed and worked on. It is recommended to continue this item to October 2nd.

Public Comment:
None

Motion: I make a motion to move this item to October 2, 2018, Action: Approve, Moved by: Vice
Chairman McGuffey, Seconded by: Chairman McBride, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous
vote, (Summary: Yes=2)

15. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Second reading of ordinance 18-290 concerning Storey
County, Nevada, Special Assessment District No. 01 (Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center) and assessing
the cost of local improvements against the assessable property benefited by the local improvements.

Commissioner Gilman recused himself due to a pecuniary interest.

Mr. Whitten said this is the same situation as the previous items. The actual language in the
ordinance has not changed, however key documents integrated into this are still in review. This item
is also recommended to be continued to October 2nd.

Public Comment:
None

Motion: move to approve this item to October 2, 2018, Action: Approve, Moved by: Vice
Chairman McGuffey, Seconded by: Chairman McBride, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous
vote, (Summary: Yes=2)

16. DISCUSSION ONLY (No Action): Carson Water Subconservancy District (CWSD) Director Ed
James to provide input and receive comments from the Board of Storey County Commissioners
regarding CWSD submitting an amicus brief opposing the use of the public trust doctrine to be
applied to water rights already adjudicated and settled under the doctrine of prior appropriation.




Ed James, Director of Carson Water Subconservancy District discussed the public trust doctrine and
the impact it would have on Nevada law. CWSD has been asked to participate in an amicus brief
regarding the public trust doctrine dealing with the prior appropriation of water rights. Comments
from the various counties will be provided to the CWSD Board prior to submission of the brief. This
case is currently being heard before the 9th Circuit Court of Appeals.

Mr, James reviewed the background of the case and questions being raised by the Court. He
explained the public trust doctrine and the concerns and effects if use of the public trust doctrine was
approved. Mr. James discussed the situation at Walker Lake.

Based on the concerns expressed, CWSD will be filing an amicus brief opposing the use of the public
trust doctrine.

Chair McBride asked Mr. James what he is asking from this Board.

Mr. James said the County may want their attorney to look at this and/or may want to file its own
amicus brief or join with other counties. This is something that should be considered - if it goes
through it could affect the Truckee River and groundwater rights.

Commissioner Gilman asked if the State Water Master had taken a position.
Mr. James; Not at this point. But they may be discussing this internally looking at concerns.
Commissioner Gilman: What about the Federal Water Master? TMWA?

Mr. James: They (Federal Water Master) have not taken a position and does not know where TMWA
stands. Lyon County is participating and Carson/ Truckee Irrigation District is filing an amicus brief.
Douglas County is considering it. This presentation will be given to Churchill County and Carson

City.
Vice Chairman McGuffey: Will bring this up at the next NACO meeting.

Mr. Loomis said this is more of a legislative solution - is this being pursued through legislation?

Mr. James: Right now, this is before the Courts and depending on the ruling, something may go to
the Legislature. There are already programs in place. If this was a situation where they could use the
public trust, that program would be thrown out. This is a “taking”, and if so, who will end up paying
for it?

Public Comment:
None

17. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: A presentation of a Flood Insurance Assessment for Storey
County. The base information has been provided by FEMA to give an overview of the flood
insurance coverage present in the County. This presentation is a part of the information prepared by
Storey County for the Community Rating System (CRS) audit conducted by FEMA.

9




Planner Kathy Canfield explained this item is brought to the Board as part of the FEMA audit. There
are 214 (insurance) policies, most located in the Lockwood area. These are only policies in effect
through the NFIP (National Flood Insurance Program) located in the Flood Hazard Areas. Ms.
Canfield reviewed the policies.

Vice Chairman McGuffey: Asked if someone purchasing a home is advised if they need flood
insurance? Surprised there is only 214 policies - there are over 800 homes in the area.

Ms. Canfield: Lenders will normally advise the need for flood insurance if the property is in a flood
hazard area. The FEMA representative has been very helpful in reviewing this (audit) information.
The whole area is not in the flood plain. There could be one policy covering more than one building.
The audit talks about discounts received with the different ratings. Storey County is currently rated
“8” meaning the people included are getting an average $51 rebate per year. Rebates are higher for
lower ratings.

Mr. Whitten thanked and complimented Ms. Canfield. The community rating system and the audit is
a huge undertaking with high quality staff work.

Ms. Canfield commented that belonging to this program also helps the community -not just those in
the flood plain - with any flooding disasters, in that we are eligible for some disaster relief funds.

Public Comment:
None

18. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Action on Bill No. 102, first reading of Ordinance No. 18-
293, an ordinance amending chapter 15.04 Buildings and Construction to adopt the 2018 International
Codes for Building, Residential, Existing Building, Energy Conservation, Fuel Gas, Mechanical, the
2018 Uniform Codes for Mechanical and Plumbing, and the 2017 National Electric Code, the 2018
International Fire Code, the 2018 International Wildland Urban Interface Code, the 2017 National Fire
Protection Association Standards (NFPA) and the 2018 Northern Nevada Amendments, and
providing for other properly related matters.

Deputy District Attorney Loomis said this a periodic update adopting new Codes developed by the
International Code Commission.

Gary Hames explained we are on the same process and schedule as the State, who has agreed to skip
every other code iteration. Mr. Hames reviewed the process. After first reading, this goes out for a
30 day public review period. It is proposed that companies can submit under the previous (2012)
ordinance or the revised 2018 as some companies have been in planning stages for the last year or so.
Mr. Hames discussed a few of the changes.

Chairman McBride: In the past, every code was not adopted as some may have been problematic.

Mr. Hames said that was primarily in the Fire Code residential fire sprinkler sections. It is again
proposed not to adopt that section.

10




The amendments have been sent out to all licensed contractors and design professionals in the
County for suggestion. Most of them have set on technical committees and provided input. This was
vetted through and heard by the Builders Association of Northern Nevada.

Mr. Loomis read the title: Ordinance No. 18-293, an ordinance amending chapter 15.04 Buildings and
Construction to adopt the 2018 International Codes for Building, Residential, Existing Building,
Energy Conservation, Fuel Gas, Mechanical, the 2018 Uniform Codes for Mechanical and Plumbing,
and the 2017 National Electric Code, the 2018 International Fire Code, the 2018 International
Wildland Urban Interface Code, the 2017 National Fire Protection Association Standards (NFPA) and
the 2018 Northern Nevada Amendments, and providing for other properly related matters.

Vice Chairman McGuffey: Do “old” and “new” have to comply?

Mr. Hames replied if it was a remodel with substantial improvements, or change to residential or
commercial building - yes, the most current codes and amendments must be complied with.

Motion: [ make a motion to approve first reading of Ordinance No. 18-293, Action: Approve,
Moved by: Vice Chairman McGuffey, Seconded by: Commissioner Gilman, Vote: Motion
carried by unanimous vote, (Summary: Yes=3)

19. RECESS TO CONVENE AS THE 474 FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT BOARD

Chairman McBride called for recess at 11:44 A.M.
Meeting reconvened at 11:56 A.M. as the 474 Fire Protection District Board

20. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Action on Bill No. 103, first reading of Ordinance No. 18-
294, an ordinance amending chapter 15.04 Buildings and Construction to adopt the 2018 International
Fire Code, the 2018 International Wildland Urban Interface Code, the 2017 National Fire Protection
Association Standards (NFPA) and the 2018 Northern Nevada Amendments, and providing for other
properly related matters.

Mr. Loomis said this is same as the previous item but applies to the Fire Code Provisions.
Fire Marshal Martin Azevedo asked if there were any questions. None.

Mr. Loomis read the title: Ordinance No. 18-294, an ordinance amending chapter 15.04 Buildings and
Construction to adopt the 2018 International Fire Code, the 2018 International Wildland Urban
Interface Code, the 2017 National Fire Protection Association Standards (NFPA) and the 2018
Northern Nevada Amendments, and providing for other properly related matters.

Public Comment:
None

Motion: [ make a motion to approve the first reading of Ordinance No. 18-294, Action: Approve,
Moved by: Vice Chairman McGuffey, Seconded by: Commissioner Gilman, Vote: Motion
carried by unanimous vote, (Summary: Yes=3)

11




21. ADJOURN TO RECONVENE AS THE BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS

22. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Consideration and possible approval of interlocal
agreement with NDOT regarding maintenance and repairs of traffic signal at Electric Avenue and
State Route 439.

Mr. Loomis said this agreement with NDOT is for maintenance and repairs of the referenced traffic
signal. Currently, Carson City is contracted for the maintenance/repairs. Carson City will bill the
County - in turn, the County will bill NDOT.

Public Comment:
None

Motion: I, Commissioner Jack McGuffey, move to approve interlocal agreement between Storey
County and NDOT regarding maintenance and repairs of traffic signal at Electric Avenue and SR 439
and approve the Public Works Director to sign, Action: Approve, Moved by: Vice Chairman
McGuffey, Seconded by: Commissioner Gilman, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote,
(Summary: Yes=3)

23. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Board of County Commissioners (board) to appoint two
members of the board to serve on the Storey County Regional Transportation Commission {RTC) in
accordance with Storey County Codes 2.44 and 3.80. The term will be until December 31 of the next
even numbered year, that being 2020.

M. Osborne indicated that at the last meeting the Board approved an Ordinance establishing the
Storey County Regional Transportation Commission (RTC). This is the first action in putting the
Commission together. There will be three members - two Board Commissioners, and one
“community at large” member. There will be a posting for the third Commissioner. Two terms will
be concurrent, one will be alternating.

Public Comment:
Sam Toll: What is the function of this Board?

Chairman McBride: Since this is the beginning of the Board, this probably cannot be answered yet.
Mr. Toll said he has heard talk of a light-rail system being planned from Sparks to the industrial park.
Chair McBride: Let's hold off until the Board is formed.

Motion: [, Commissioner Gilman, nominate Commissioner Marshall McBride to serve on the Storey
County Regional Transportation Commission as Commissioner No.1, for a term lasting until
December 31, 2020, Action: Approve, Moved by: Commissioner Gilman, Seconded by: Vice

Chairman McGuffey, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote, (Summary: Yes=2)

Motion: 1, Commissioner Jack McGuffey, nominate Commissioner Lance Gilman to serve on the
Storey County Regional Transportation Commission as Commissioner No.2, for a term lasting until

12




December 31, 2020, Action: Approve, Moved by: Commissioner Gilman, Seconded by: Vice
Chairman McGuffey, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote, (Summary: Yes=2)

Mr. Osborne: Staff will proceed with posting per policy for the third Commissioner. Anyone in
Storey County that is eligible would be able to apply - it does not have to be from any particular
precinct or district.

24. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Abandonment Request 2018-032, a request to abandon a
portion of K Street right-of-way, located within Virginia City. The right-of-way abandonment would
be approximately 16-feet wide by approximately 140 linear feet south of the Union Street right-of-
way. The right-of-way abandonment is located adjacent to a vacant parcel owned by the applicant at
25 South K Street, the southeast corner of Union and K Street, Virginia City, Storey County, Nevada
and borders Assessor’s Parcel Number (APN) 001-243-05.

Chairman McBride will abstain from voting as the applicant is a family member.

Planner Kathy Canfield reviewed the description of this property and the area requested to be
abandoned - which has been landscaped and fenced since the mid-80’s. This area is not paved and is
not used as an access way. County departments were contacted and expressed no concerns in
needing the area as a roadway. Neighbors did not object. At the Planning Comimission, one
community member had an objection. If the abandonment is approved, it is recommended that a
public utility easement still remain in the area, including the abandoned portion.

Vice Chairman McGuffey asked for clarification on the photos of the area in question and where K
Street would go through if it ever went through.

Ms. Canfield: The area is steep and to put in a road would require significant engineering.

Public Comment:
Nick Lazzarino: Suggested the road be abandoned. The homeowner has utilized the property for a
number of years making significant improvements to the property and is not usable for anything else.

Sam Toll: Submitted a letter opposing the motion which is in the packet. This effort benefits a single
person at the expense of future use for citizens. There is no financial transaction, a give-away, setting
a dangerous precedent. Mr. Toll questioned the width of the abandonment and whether or not there
would be enough right-of-way left if the County ever wanted to put the road through.

Ms. Canfield said with the abandonment, there would be 44 feet of right-of-way left. The County’s
minimum (road) width requirement is 24 feet.

Mr. Toll: Reviewed a similar situation on Sutton Street. This sets a dangerous precedent allowing
others the footing to do the same thing. Mr. Toll recommends that this not be approved.

Nicole Barde: Why isn’t (applicant) paying for this? How does this serve the best interests of
residents? Who gives away land where it’'s worth something - assess it to get value.

13




Vice Chairman McGuffey asked if this becomes the property of the owner? Will there be additional
tax? I understand this is pretty much unusable land.

County Manager Whitten believes this will put it back on the tax roll - going from public to private
ownership.

Ms. Barde commented that she would have to pay if she went into a neighbor’s lot-why give public
land to a private person. The land given to TRI had a token $10 payment.

Chairman McBride: The County has historically abandoned streets with no money exchanged. Some
of the old streets were unusable and would never be utilized. It was better for the County to abandon
them and put them on the tax rolls. Chair McBride reviewed many properties that were abandoned
with the same process. The K Street property map shows the street going through - in 90 years it has
not gone through. With the 44 feet the street could still go through - it would be an awkward, very
steep street. Chair McBride reviewed locations of other houses on K Street.

Ms. Barde: Where in our ordinance, the Master Plan, is there authorization giving it away without
compensation. Where is the authority as a Board to give land away - no money.

Commissioner Gilman: When this was heard at the Planning Commission, it was understood the
(owner) was allowed to use the property for years ~ plant it and improve it. This was not a surprise.
The Planning Commission voted to approve it.

Ms. Barde: Still asking the question - where is the authority to give away land? In an ordinance,
NRS, or a Master Plan? Understands abandonment - but how are we authorized to give away public
land?

Mr. Loomis: NRS 278.480 has a provision for abandonment or vacating a street. Subsection 7 states,
“in the event of a partial vacation of a street where the vacated portion is separated from the property
in which it was acquired by the un-vacated portion of it, the governing body may sell the vacated
portion upon such terms and conditions as it deems desirable, and in the best interests of the city or
county”. It is discretionary whether or not an abandoned piece of property will be sold or given
away.

Mr. Whitten: Having ordered many appraisals and having knowledge of the area, as a layman and
owning land in Storey County - the cost of an appraisal would far exceed the value of property being
given up.

Austin Osborne as said on many applications in the past, Virginia City is very unique. Unlike the
Highlands where roads were intentionally, and with logic, set out - in Virginia City that wasn’t the
case. A lot of the roads were platted and never developed or otherwise. Whether an abandonment
or variance, the findings have looked at the uniqueness of the community in the above regard, to
support things that may not be supported in other communities. Mr. Osborne requests this finding to
be included.

Ms. Canfield read the Findings:
14




The following Findings of Fact are the minimum to be cited for a recommendation of approval or
approval with conditions. The following Findings are evident with regard to the requested
Abandonment when the recommended conditions in Section 4 are applied. At a minimum, an
approval or conditional approval must be based on the following Findings:

This approval is to abandon a portion of K Street right-of-way, located within Virginia City. The
right-of-way abandonment is approximately 16-feet wide by approximately 140 linear feet south of
the Union Street right-of-way. The right-of-way abandonment is located adjacent to a vacant parcel
owned by the applicant at 25 South K Street, the southeast corner of Union and K Street, Virginia
City, Storey County, Nevada and borders Assessor’s Parcel Number (APN) 001-243-05.

The Abandonment complies with NRS 278.480 relating to Abandonment of a street or easement.

The Abandonment complies with all Federal, State, and County regulations pertaining to vacation or
abandonment of streets or easements, including NRS 278.240.

The Abandonment will not impose substantial adverse impacts or safety hazards on the abutting
properties or the surrounding vicinity.

The Abandonment will not cause the public to be materially injured by the proposed abandonment.

The conditions of approval for the requested Abandonment do not conflict with the minimum
requirements in Storey County Code Chapters 17.12.090, General Provision - Access and Right-of-
Ways, or any other Federal, State, or County regulations.

Motion: In accordance with the recommendation by staff and the Planning Commission, the
Findings under section 3.A of the Staff Report, and in compliance with all Conditions of Approval, 1
Commissioner Jack McGuffey, hereby move to approve the abandonment of a portion of K Street
right-of-way, located within Virginia City. The right-of-way abandonment is approximately 16-feet
wide by approximately 140 linear feet south of the Union Street right-of-way. The right-of-way
abandonment is located adjacent to a vacant parcel owned by the applicant at 25 South K Street, the
southeast corner of Union and K Street, Virginia City, Storey County, Nevada and borders Assessor’s
Parcel Number (APN) 001-243-05, Action: Approve, Moved by: Vice Chairman McGuffey,
Seconded by: Commissioner Gilman, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote, (Summary:
Yes=2)

Mr. Osborne commented if the (Board) finds his previous statement to be useful as a finding, he
recommends it be included in the motion as a finding.

Mr. Osborne: In this case, the Commission would also find:

“Under the unique circumstances of the Virginia City community, in which case this road was never
developed, or known to have been developed, and under the topographic and other geographic
situation of the area being abandoned, this will be another reason to abandon this portion of the
roadway and right-of-way”.

25. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of business license second readings:
A. CHEEK CONSTRUCTION, LLC / Contractor - 3303 Reno Hwy ~ Fallon, NV

15




B. LASCO PROCESS SYSTEMS, LLC / Contractor - 18601 LBJ Fwy ~ Mesquite, TX

C. MCA MECHANICAL, INC / Contractor ~ 2190 Fish Springs Rd ~ Gardnerville, NV

D. MOBILE TRUCK WASH LLC / General - 75 Bank St #8 ~ Sparks, NV

E. FTM CORPORATION / Contractor - 460 N. Geneva Rd ~ Lindon, UT

F. VERDI ENERGY INC / General - 2104 Lytham Ct ~ Wilmington, NC

G. ROTO-ROOTER / Contractor - 200 B Coney Island Dr ~ Sparks, NV

H. KINETIC SAFETY LLC, DBA: 3M SAFETY TRAINING / General - 3M Center Bldg. ~ St Paul,
MN

On behalf of Community Development, County Manager Whitten, recommends approval of all items
A. through H.

Public Comment:
None

Motion: Imove to approve Items A. through H., Action: Approve, Moved by: Vice Chairman
McGuffey, Seconded by: Commissioner Gilman, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote,
(Summary: Yes=3)

26. PUBLIC COMMENT (No Action}
Sam Toll: Urged the Commissioners to include Public Comment at the beginning and end of
meeting. Has been at other public meetings where the public can speak at a reasonable time.

Mr. Toll provided feedback regarding the Special Assessment District - the pipeline is important to
future growth. However, the Tax Increment Area will divert $61 million of future tax revenue which
would otherwise be enjoyed by the residents. Mr. Toll has gone door-to-door in Mark Twain and not
one person is excited about the use/diversion of future tax revenue to reimburse these global
companies. The notion that this is a good idea is not shared by the residents in Mark Twain.

Mr. Whitten: Once again, we're being informed of people’s feelings when there is a certain level of
miscommunication. For the record, the County and this Commission, did not approve the Special
Assessment District today- it was continued. Also, for the record, there was no action other than
accepting public input on assessing the costs of the local improvements against the assessable
property. The only accurate statement is we did not do anything with the Tax Increment Area.

27. ADJOURNMENT
Chairman McBride adjourned the meeting at 12:36 P.M.

Respectfully submitted,

By:M@ZzJMA
Vanessa Stephens Clekk-Treasurer

16




Storey County Board of County

Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meetin;g\)d\éte: October 16,2018 Estimate of Time Required: 0-5 min.
Agenda Item Type: Regular Agenda

1. Title: Approval of the Minutes for October 2, 2018.

2. Recommended motion: Approve as submitted.

3. Prepared by: Vanessa Stephens

Department: Clerk Contact Number: 775.847.0969
4, Staff Summary: Minutes are attached.
5. Supporting Materials: See attached

6. Fiscal Impact: 0

7. Legal review required: No

8. Reviewed by:
@ Department Head Department Name: Clerk

County Manager Other Agency Review:

9. Board Action:

[ ] Approved { 1 Approved with Modification

| [ ] Denied [ ] Continued




STOREY COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY

COMMISSIONERS MEETING

TUESDAY, OCTOBER 2, 2018 10:00 A.M.

DISTRICT COURTROOM
26 SOUTH B STREET, VIRGINJA CITY, NEVADA

MINUTES
MARSHALL MCBRIDE ANNE LANGER
CHAIRMAN DISTRICT ATTORNEY
LANCE GILMAN
VICE-CHAIRMAN
JACK MCGUFFEY VANESSA STEPHENS
COMMISSIONER CLERK-TREASURER

ROLL CALL: Chairman McBride, Vice-Chairman McGuffey, Commissioner Gilman, County
Manager Pat Whitten, Clerk/Treasurer Vanessa Stephens, Comptroller Hugh Gallagher, District
Attorney Anne Langer, Sheriff Gerald Antinoro, Project Manager Mike Northan, Building Inspector
Pete Renaud, Community Relations Director Cherie Nevin

1. CALL TO ORDER MEETING AT 10:00 A.M.
Meeting was called to order by Chairman McBride at 10:00 A.M.

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
Chairman McBride led those present in the Pledge of Allegiance.

3. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of Agenda for October 2, 2018,
County Manager Whitten: Staff recommends combining items 12-21, there will be no presentation
and no action taken.

Public Comment:
None

Motion: Approve Agenda for October 2, 2018, Action: Approve, Moved by: Vice Chairman
McGuffey, Seconded by: Commissioner Gilman, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote,
(Summary: Yes=3)

4. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of Minutes for September 4, 2018.
Public Comment:
None




Motion: Approve Minutes for September 4, 2018, Action: Approve, Moved by: Vice Chairman
McGuffey, Seconded by: Commissioner Gilman, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote,
(Summary: Yes=3)

5. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of Minutes for September 6, 2018.
Public Comment:
None

Motion: Approve Minutes for September 6, 2018, Action: Approve, Moved by: Vice Chairman
McGuffey, Seconded by: Commissioner Gilman, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote,
(Summary: Yes=3)

6. CONSENT AGENDA
I For possible action, approval of payroll claims in the amount of $629,867.24 and accounts

payable claims in the amount of $2,489,987.18.

II For possible action, approval of assessor's recommended corrections to secured and
unsecured tax rolls for errors.

III For possible action, approval of business license first readings:

A. HERITAGE CONSTRUCTION & DEVELOPMENT - Contractor / 2351 Sunset Blvd ~
Rocklin, CA

B. UNITED HERITAGE FINANCIAL GROUP, INC - General/707 E. United Heritage Ct ~
Meridian, ID

C. AXINE USA INC - General / 108-2386 East Mall ~ Vancouver, Canada

D. LIBERTY INTERACTIVE CORP, dba: ZULILY - General / 2555 USA Pkwy ~ McCarran,
NV

Motion: Approve Consent Agenda for October 2, 2018, Action: Approve, Moved by: Vice
Chairman McGuffey, Seconded by: Commissioner Gilman, Vete: Motion carried by unanimous
vote, (Summary: Yes=3)

7. DISCUSSION ONLY (No Action - No Public Comment): Committee/Staff Reports
Sheriff Antinoro:
e Street Vibrations was uneventful and successful. There were four arrests and one crash.
¢ One of the new vehicles ordered has been received, a transport van - and a patrol vehicle is
coming. There was a glitch with the dealer and we are still trying to find three vehicles.

Congressman Jon Porter, for the Porter Group:
+ Reported on local, State, and Federal races for the November election.
e His team’s goal is to make it work no matter who wins.
e Discussed how many people are eligible to vote but are not registered.
o Partisanship is at an all-time high.

The new County zip code is coming any day.

Working close with the Senate to make sure the Lands Bill gets done.

» Paying close attention to the new Opportunity Zones.

» Willing to help with RTC transportation issues.

2




Mike Northan, Operations/Project Coordinator:
e Slurry seal is currently being done on streets throughout the town - weather permitting.
¢ The parking lot at the Highlands mailboxes will be paved October 23, also weather permitting.
» Work is on-going on storm drains.

Pete Renaud, Building Inspector:
» Along with Building Inspector Ashley Mead, attended training for electrical, plumbing, and
mechanical certifications.
» Community Development conducted 252 inspections last month.
o 88 permits were issued for the (Tesla) gigafactory.
¢ 19 plan reviews were done last month.

Cherie Nevin, Community Relations Director:

e Ophir Grade Road is still closed for construction of the Five Mile Waterline Replacement
Project. Groundbreaking for this project will be held October 3 at the water treatment plant.

e Open House will be held at the County Museum on Thursday, October 6, to showcase the
mural.

e Flu shot clinics will be held October 17th at the Mark Twain Community Center, 10AM to 12
PM; and at Virginia City Highlands Fire Station, 430 PM to 6PM.

e USDA Rural Development did a walk-through for substantial completion of the sewer project.
Closing documents will be presented to the Board at the October 16t meeting.

8. BOARD COMMENT (No Action-No Public Comment):
Vice Chairman McGuffey:
+ Attended recent NACO meeting. Next year's State Convention will be on September 25,
NACO will not take a position on Ballot Question 3 on this year’s election. Supreme Court
Justice Hardy was present to discuss “evidence based pre-trial release” issue.

Chairman McBride:

o Last weekend was Street Vibrations - Virginia City is a sponsor of this event. There was a lot
of people in town. Hats off to the Sheriff’'s Office and staff for a fantastic job of traffic and
crowd control, there were no incidents or fights. Saturday is the largest day of the year in
Virginia City - it is good for the economy.

9. DISCUSSION ONLY (No Action): Presentation from Ben Sehy with Moreton Asset
Management, regarding Storey County's investment portfolio.

Mr. Sehy reviewed the County’s investment portfolio. A copy of the presentation report is attached.
Mr. Sehy said that items such as the low unemployment rates, increase in full-time employment, and
high consumer confidence are strong. Rising interest rates mean the County’s returns go up.

Mr. Sehy commented that he is satisfied with the County’s portfolio. Currently the portfolio is over
2% and they are working to get it between 2 and 3%.

Mr. Sehy thanked County staff -~ Vanessa Stephens, Dore Nevin, and Hugh Gallagher.

Mr. Whitten also complimented the staff, Vanesa Stephens, and Mr. Sehy for the very progressive but
conservative approach regarding reimbursements to Tesla.

3




Public Comment:
None

10. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval and acceptance of a Federal Emergency
Management Agency (FEMA) Hazard Mitigation Grant award for $73,489.00 to assist the Storey
County School District with an Emergency Backup Generator at the Virginia City High School.

Community Relations Director Cherie Nevin said the County applied for and received a FEMA
Hazard Mitigation Grant to assist the School District with an emergency backup generator for the
high school, which is a sheltering location. The $73,489 grant has a $24,496 match from the School
District. Highland Electric provided the lowest quote for the project. The work should be able to be
done while children are out of school for winter break.

Ms. Nevin commented that working with Todd Hess has been great, they work really well together
on opportunities such as this that come up. The “single point of entry” at the schools is another they
worked on together. Ms. Nevin foresees more opportunities in the future and is working with the
District Attorney’s Office on a MOU to have in place for these grant opportunities.

Public Comment:
None

Motion: 1 move to approve and accept the Emergency Management Agency, known as FEMA,
Hazard Mitigation Grant administered through the State of Nevada, Department of Public Safety
Division of Emergency Management in the amount of $73,489.000 to assist the Storey County School
District with an Emergency Backup Generator at The Virginia City High School and authorization for
Cherie Nevin and/ or Pat Whitten to sign all associated grant documentation, Action: Approve,
Moved by: Vice Chairman McGuffey, Seconded by: Commissioner Gilman, Vote: Motion
carried by unanimous vote, (Summary: Yes=3)

11. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Review and Possible Approval of Agreed-Upon
Procedures presented by Grant Thorton LLP Certified Public Accounting Firm pertaining to audit
engagement with Tesla.

Comptroller Hugh Gallagher said this is an agreement between Tesla and Grant Thorton CPA’s, who
audit the sales taxes remittances from Tesla to the State - basically stating Grant Thorton CPA’s have
no liability. Mr. Gallagher read portions of the agreement and explained the procedures.

Mr. Whitten said this is a three-party agreement between the State, the County, and Tesla.
Public Comment:

Steve Ayer, Virginia City resident: Asked if Grant Thorton, CPA’s are verifying everything that
Tesla has agreed to - the number of Nevada residents hired, that sort of thing.

Mr. Gallagher: All they are doing is sales tax numbers.

Mr. Whitten: The Governor’s office (GOED) verifies the numbers (residents hired, etc.).




Motion: [ hereby approve the Agreed-Upon Procedures presented by Grant Thorton, LLP, with
regard to sales tax audits of Tesla for reimbursement by Storey County to Tesla and allow the
Comptroller of Storey County to sign such document, Action: Approve, Moved by: Vice
Chairman McGuffey, Seconded by: Commissioner Gilman, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous
vote, (Summary: Yes=3)

12. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Consideration and possibie action on first reading of
ordinance no. 18-295 creating the Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center Tax Increment Area pursuant to
Nevada Revised Statutes Chapter 278C; ordering an undertaking relating to the tax increment area;
creating the tax increment account for the undertaking; and ratifying action taken by County officers
toward the undertaking and the tax increment area.

Commissioner Gilman holding a pecuniary interest, recused himself from items 12-21.

Mr. Whitten read the following statement:
Late last week one of the 6 participants withdrew from the financing structure. This
significantly changes the proposal on many levels and there are now a multitude of
questions needing to be answered.
Accordingly, we are heading back to square one and everything will need to be
restructured and redone IF this project is going to move forward. Again, at this point
with so many questions outstanding, staff will not be able to provide much detail.
However, with that being said, we will still allow for public comment as some of the
audience may have come today specifically for these items.

Chairman McBride: Until the stakeholders come back to the County with a new or revised plan,
these items are taken off (the agenda) with no action.

Public Comment:
None

13. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Discussion and possible action on second reading of
ordinance 18-289 creating Storey County, Nevada, Special Assessment District No. 01 (Tahoe-Reno
Industrial Center); ordering a water project, within Storey County, Nevada

No action taken.

14. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Consideration and possible adoption of Ordinance No. 18
— 2894, as if on an emergency basis, creating Storey County, Nevada Special Assessment District No.
01 (Tahoe Reno Industrial Center) ordering a water project, i.e., an effluent pipeline from Truckee
Meadows Reclamation Facility to the Tahoe Reno Industrial Center in Storey County , Nevada.

No action taken.

15. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Discussion and possible action on second reading of
ordinance 18-290 concerning Storey County, Nevada, Special Assessment District No. 01 (Tahoe-Reno
Industrial Center) and assessing the cost of local improvements against the assessable property
benefited by the local improvements.




No action taken.

16. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Discussion and possible adoption of Ordinance No. 18-
290A, as if on an emergency basis, concerning Storey County, Nevada Special Assessment District
No. 01 (Tahoe Reno Industrial Center) levying the assessment of the cost of building the off-site
portion of the effluent pipeline from the Truckee Meadows Water Reclamation Facility to the Tahoe
Reno Industrial Center against the assessable property benefitted by the pipeline.

No Action taken.

17. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Discussion and possible action on resolution 18-510
directing the engineer of behalf of Storey County, Nevada to prepare and file with the County Clerk
preliminary plans and an assessment plat in connection with a proposed water project in Storey
County, Nevada, Special Assessment District No. 01 (Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center).

No action taken.

18. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Discussion and possible action on resolution 18-511
directing the county's engineer to prepare preliminary plans, cost estimates and related items to
reimburse the costs of an undertaking for a tax increment area formed pursuant to Nevada Revised
Statutes chapter 278C.

No action taken.

19. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Consideration and and possible approval of resolution 18-
512 approving the form of the financing agreement among the County, TRI General Improvement
District and all owners of assessable property in Storey County Special Assessment District No. 01
(Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center).

No action taken.

20. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Discussion and possible action on resolution 18-513
provisionally ordering an undertaking for a tax increment area formed pursuant to Nevada Revised
Statutes chapter 278C; setting a time and place for a hearing on the undertaking; and providing other
matters related thereto.

No action taken.

21. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Consideration and possible approval of agreement
between Storey County and TRI Center LLC (TRI) by which, should County have to utilize the
uncommitted portion of its general fund to make payments on the bond secured by the Storey
County Special Assessment District No. 01 (SAD), TRI agrees that the amounts so provided will be
credited against the vouchers issued by County to reimburse TRI for the costs of providing public
infrastructure at the rate of 1.5to 1.

No action taken.

22. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of business license second readings:
6




A.COLEMAN ELECTRICAL CO / Contractor - 2665 Billys Rd ~ Minden, NV

B. NW HOLDING & RECOVERY, LLC / General - 4900 Meadows Rd ~ Lake Oswego, OR

C. GLOBAL RISK CONSULTANTS CORP / General - 100 Walnut Ave ~ Clark, N]J

D. SAVANAH LEE, DBA: ACCESS TRANSFORMATION / MT ~ 4255 Wedekind Rd ~ Sparks, NV
E. MEN WIELDING FIRE INC / General - 1485 W. 4th St. ~ Reno, NV

F. ZUNESIS INC / General - 8375 5. Willow St ~ Lonetree, Co

G. LARSON DESIGN GROUP, INC / General - 1000 Commerce Park Dr ~ Williamsport, PA

H. SNVRE, INC / General - 440 USA Pkwy ~ McCarran, NV

I. CEMEX CONSTRUCTION MATERIALS PACIFIC / General ~ 1000 Peru Dr ~ Sparks, NV
County Manager Whitten, on behalf of Community Development, recommended approval of items A
Through 1.

Motion: Approve Items A, throughl, Action: Approve, Moved by: Vice Chairman McGulffey,
Seconded by: Commissioner Gilman, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote, (Summary:
Yes=3)

23. PUBLIC COMMENT (No Action)
Pat Whitten: The Open House in the Slammer, announced earlier, set for Thursday afterncon, will be

rescheduled to another date due to the unavailability of one of the artists.

24. ADJOURNMENT
Chairman McBride adjourned the meeting at 11:00 A.M.

Respectfully submitted,
—~

Byzw&l&fl&mﬁ_
Vanessa Stephens Clerk-Treasurer




41 343quoo|g 2unos,

AN pIRIA Adnseau ZN%HM%OQZ




3oy lahue ! spung paq panaw]

et



pans2ay 4 INIRA Tawmy @ef AJ paenoeD peus
Auniey e 4 0y sieel @ GuUNIBW SAloaN] O) s1ee) @ s A e i o )
(siugog) BT S A < A«
- ' _o. n._ ‘ 3 2
a2 a OO/ | > |
o | Y @
@ 92" nnv,o!. [
il mzs.n nooono e B
¥ =
(%ei0ez) B3 005809962 @
aNag A9V 5 2
(%9 e} LT = ZEGIE'LIBE ! W
QNN - du0d = ES
(%6594} m W
do A AN
- b NG 4G9 g
| {mzwo's-) 2 g
' HSw2 =l og'#E 'L ©
] o
Wyl 000 UG 8
adA)] Aundeg AlJney o] awi] uoneing
%000°001 -
ey Guney wpai Bhg
9€0'Z PRIA j00g
%B96° | 1811 SYORS UBWPRIRS m_m”N PIRIA
LEYE b uoplodien Bupung syueg Npa1D Wik [e1apa, Fevl Auniely 8andayg o) BIB3A
%uena'y Aserg velopy BEF'L Runjew leuls o) sreep
%B0Z'9 S3UEH UEOT AW |Ridpad 1o FuNoy azr'L A
%S95'9 ueneloding efebpay ueo oo |esepad 0500 Kyxgauog
%l “ou| ‘uoneroossy ebefiuoy l|ucyey 2rapay Uzl uogeIng
RIPOZE Frn ey L9281 'ES8'04 SWodu) paxty 9G'SEE'Z6H'91 [SrUODY + BNIBA JHUERN
%P FE 157U, SJUBLLISAAY| Wi | JHOUS GLEIE'PLLY PUNAWIA 2oL el FSOTUIED PaZRSIUN 19N
RHUIY & BIEA ZL959'5L1- ysed 86'5E5'686'0) paniady + anjep yoog
1Ry BFa O % UOREYUSIUCT) JONSS! anjed Hgop ¥8ey
uaiediiaiua] Janssy Aeuuing Do) paXi4 PUe yseD 18ayg aoueeg
L0Z/9E/60 ‘PAEQ 810Z/92/60 - £102/51/80
(59.€£01) 66y Ajuno) Aa.i0)S-uojalo L EmEE:w ysiy aseg
FNFWADOVANVIN L 488y

NOLTIOW \X/



89°864'SPL- 0%'0C6'E08'S ZE'0T5'0FE #0"859'866'S
000 g To0e 100D
BY'HEL'SPL- 0% 986'E08'S 02'¥91'0pE 2¥'Z0C'966'S
[oo000'Go0's S9°06L0PLS (2991565 [P T95Z6901
ZOLLE'ETS" 000 27 66T 0L $3'0pL'TVE'0)-
00°000'022 (L] 00°000'S66 00°000'GLE'L
0o 000 000 000
000 000 06'SER'GRY'L 00°568'68Y' L
62'602'6" poo £5° 16T % Z8°005'E}-
£0°202'5bF'5 00°0 69'9E8'481'8- Z0'LPS'CEYEL-
15°28F'Li~ 89°0 06'P09' LE- 62°BR0'6P
000 | 890 79'55¢E- S6'PSE-
000 00°0 vSEZL) PEESL'L
61EVT0L- po'e 2E'1L0L'62- 1§ EPE'BE-
2oV L- 000 85 LLZ'6 8F'LLS'0L-
S+'555'001 90'6EL'E8 LLBEZ'EEL 29ZL6'96T
BLOZ/IZ/60 Bjeg pul 8102192160 8}6Q puz RLOZ/IE/G0 #j2q pu3 8L0Z/92/60 aleq puz
2t0zmL/90 6jeq uilieg LHOZ/91190 ejeg uie L30ZIGLED omg wheg 2102/64/90 ejeg uieg
AN Anog Aessg-uoieion OosaAUl AJLN0S AQIOIS-LOTRION ST U003 Auna] Aeio)g-uciaiow By QUNCY Asuolg-umaiop
64587'19 890 6€'999'GL- 05°0p1'2EL-
D0°000°'000'S 99°'964'DFL'S 14'994'156'S £b'£95'269°9L
SH585'00) 90'6€1'E9 LLBEZ'EEL TO'TL6'962
[ 9z'162'8- (D] 05'9.5'F - 92°/98'9)-
an'd 00'0 DE'SZLE- DE'GZLE-
000 00Q 000 009
00’0 000 200 800
o ov'a LE52LE- LUGTLE
+eLZF 0L 90'6EL'EY 9t PO9'ZEL 9L L1'E0E
00'0 000 000 oo
0 000 ] 100
000 0o'e 000 00a
000 oo 000 [l
¥ 22t 201 90°6E1'CO SFPONTEL BV LIVEDE
L0°85%'1 aco SPSES'TL TG PEE'PL
BLOZAZB0 BjEQ pu SLOZ/92/50 e puz 8L0Z/92/60 28] pu3 210279260 aed pu3
LLO2Z/51/90 ajeg wbag LLOZS 1RO o6 ubag 2L02/54/80 B e 210275180 sjeq whag
AN RAUNos ABICIS-UCIBION oosaAtl AHnoD ABIOIS -LoaIoN SiY w093 AIUNGD ASIOIG-LOIRICH! B8y Qunon AcS-LoNeIoN
95'601'BE0'S 000 0F9E6'C0B'S 000 | 6+ BPE'BO0'D 000 95'G6E'258'9) 0’0
B GO 15 000 EERY 000 [RIE T o TrOPLIEL- 000
S+'665'001'S 00°0 ZTLGEB'E0R'S 00°0 \_ 08'#00'5R0'9 00°0 86°'5E5°6860L 000
TI59% B [ 6085 . 000 T L0SFE 000 02 ¥EB 10 000
ER'BZL'LB0'S 000 £2726'96L'S 000 _ £T'L6Y'050'9 00’0 84'L09'/26'9L 000
BLOZRZGD 240211180 BLOT/OZIBG LL0Z/¥IBG BLOT/SEBD 2LOZHL0 8102/92/60 £40L/PL80
AN RN Aaims-uoleson oosanul AINCD AeTiS-Uo1e 10N i L0 AUNDD ASIGLOIRICH BBy Aumog ABs0lS-uoleion

g0 9y

32 % yse) Buipuy
35 % yseD Bunuiag
39 7 usen uj Buwyn oy
37 ¥ YSeD JO Siaysuel]
e EaTRYIRg N
SH jo saunieny
SN 10 PaNITYY PIDS
S jo seleg
S |0 PNy paseyding
S JO ISBYDING
Eoang
30 ua D pezieeiun ) sbueyD
SW uD SE0ANES JaN
S Uo paruzy ur abueyn
SA U0 UonBRIyAIRIeZILoUNS
B0au) JoN

8MO1d UYSB JO JUslueIRS

8807/ED) pezieaIUN W BBuBYD
INO;U| SIa)SUR)]

LR TR Y]
asusdxg
S507/UIED JaN
$507 Juawiedw)|
ssojuie9 BuproH 19N
S20TAUBD PORIESY 19N
[ejeIqng aurooy)
esuadxy souemo|y
awoou| I
asuadx3 playynm ¥oy ubtaiogy
awoau| puBPING
SWoay| JsaueU)

1 uon YORFTIOWY 10N

Weweeg eLioIu}

PONIAOY « BRHEA 1IN
50Uty peZiearun 19N
peniosy + enjep yoog
SIUE[EY pENIDY
anjep, yoog

leeys Bouereg

210Z/9¢/60 ‘pajeq

(592€01) 66y Alunon Asloijg-uojaiopn

B810&/92/60 - 210¢/51/80

sleloueuld dvvO

INAWIDVNYIN SN

NOLTIOW \X/



‘PONIOTY + aNjBA 19X a58Q Ag PaBIEM ,

‘uogein(] 'AqQ peKDE sUNciny . uoneing A padnoig ,

%0000l 9S'SEE'TSR'SI Y 0500 “wi' £IT Bl86'CY - OZOZEE0 asn le'8s0'yze'a) - - - —
UBLLUE SHSRLOPSL WY EB00- SEY'S 08T LBVE L6 - ZZOZRTM0 asn 00'000'528'} - - - 00 -00E
%BYZEE 25BLELLETE vevY 9gL0- 64V'Z £26'Z 6895726 - 1202Mm2IL0 asn 00'000'EEE'E - - - 00'E- 002
%ZIOLL 00'890'996'Z vY 10070 1451 5507 £0€9'68 —  DIOTGHSD OSN 00'00D'RER'Z - - - oz-00t
AN
%9P6'T 9T G896k +9 £100 LL60 vLL'L BESHBR a2 6L0ZHERD asn  00'000'asr -_ - Aunay Aaumg-uoteion arL-gL0
%IDYL ZELITERY ¥N 2000 ¥5€0 vEg') 0000°004 aD  GLOZEMLL qsn  00°000'sk - - - 050520
%OSE'rF O BEE'TIPL ¥Y 0000 £Loo 0902 S6bG0Z —  sLozmENL GSN  L6'830'0bF L - - - SZ0-00D
peruaay
+ oNyEA
wuB)y  penoy e Ayepy
OSEG O, + GMEA JOWEN 6sey  Buney Apeavcy  wogsmg  PrerA P AL Araog g Asueund s jeenng sseg uogduasen HUNLED; Wineady vonena
00y - 008 006 - 007 037 -007: RO -S40 051 - G600 , G2 0-000
| L. ._\||I|"\~|'\I\|\_JI‘ S 0
9Z'ser'o6y ZE LT
DOOON0 L
Pryai] vy
SoShL'ONS't @
coo'Go0 ¢ @
=
S U — R S —— SDV— S . - w
00000LC R
@
@
e S _ . -
TSI LIE'E 000000 v mu.w
)
_ i ) 0000005 X
- r
O
(%]
. R -
0000009 5
o
00000 L
09'856°ELY'L
a0 0oo's
uoneing

810Z/92/60 ‘Paleq

(g92£01) BBY AlJunos) A8101S-U0}BI0N

8102/92/60 0 SY SN ‘Avuaung aseq
uonelng - ainsodxgy aseq

PN YNV LAY

NOLTYOW \X/



Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 10-16-18 Fstimate of time required: 0 -5

Agenda: Consent [X] Regular agenda{] Public hearing required | )

1. Title: Rusiness License First Readings -~ Approval

2. Recommended mation: None required (if approved as part of the Consent Agenda) I move to
approve all first readings (if removed from consent agenda by request).

3. Prepared by: Melissa Field
artment: Community Development Telegphone:
C y lop: 347-0966

4. Staff summayy: First readings of submitted business license applications are normally
approved on the consent agenda. The applications are then submitted at the next
- Commissioners’ meeting for approval.

S. Supporting materialy: See attached Agenda Letter

6. Fisgal impact:

Funds Available: Fund: __._. Comptroller

7. Legal review required:

District Attorney

8. Reviewed by h
ent Héad

x_ Deya Department Name:

W’Q
County’Mam}er Other agency review:

0. Board action:
[1] Approved
(1 Denied

Approved with Modifications
Continued

— —y
—

Agenda ltem No. (0 'I_




P O Box 526 - Virginia City NV 89440 » (775) 847-0966 « Fax (775} 847-0935 mfield@storeycounty.org

To: Vanessa Stephens, Clerk’s Office October 3, 2018
Pat Whitten, County Manager Via email

Fr; Melissa Field

Please add the following item(s) to the October 16, 2018, COMMISSIONERS Consent Agenda:
LICENSING BOARD

FIRST READINGS:

OXFORD INSTRUMENTS AMERICA INC ~ General / 300 Baker Ave ~ Concord, MA
CALIBER HOME LOANS INC - General / 1525 S. Belt Line Rd ~ Coppell, TX
COMPLETE CONCRETE - Contractor / 7481 Deveron Dr ~ Reno, NV

ENLIGHTED INC - General / 930 Benecia Ave ~ Sunnyvale, CA

JAG BROADCAST VIDEQO - General / 2051 Canal Rd ~ Sparks, NV

FREEDOM HOME HEALTH LLC - General / 3680 Grant Dr ~ Reno, NV

ARTORP

Ec: Community Development Planning Department Sheriff's Office
Commissioners’ Office Comptroller’s Office




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: October 16, 2018 Estimate of time required: 5 minutes

Agenda: Consent (X ] Regular agenda[] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: Approval of Resolution 18-514, a resolution to direct the County Assessor to prepare a
list of all the taxpayers on the secured roll in the County pursuant to NRS 361.300 (3)

2. Recommended motion - Approval
3. Prepared by: Tobi Whitten

Department: Assessor’s Office Telephone: 847-0961
4. Staff summary: Please see attached proposed resolution. There are significant cost savings in

providing the tax roll per NRS 361.300(3) via an internet website vs. publication of the list
in a local newspaper or mailing the list to each taxpayer in the County.

5. Supporting materials: NRS 361.300 Time and manner for completion of secured tax roll; list
of taxpayers and valuations; notice of assessed valuation.

8. Figcal impact:

Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller
7. Legal review required:
: District Attorney
8. Reviewed by:
. D ent Head Department Name: Assessor’s Office
T ReM— Departgent Head ep
w&mty Manager Other agency review:
9. Board action:
[] Approved [1 Approved with Modifications
[1  Denied (1 Continued

Agenda Item No. LU_E




RESOLUTION 18-514

A RESOLUTION REQUIRING THE COUNTY ASSESSOR TO PREPARE A LIST OF ALL TAXPAYERS ON THE
SECURED ROLL IN STOREY COUNTY AND THE TOTAL VALUATION OF PRCPERTY ON WHICH THEY
SEVERALLY PAY TAXES

WHEREAS, pursuant to NRS 361.300, each board of county commissioners shall by resolution,
before December 1 of any fiscal year in which assessment is made, require the county assessor to prepare
a list of all taxpayers on the secured roll in the County and the total valuation of property on which they
severally pay taxes and direct the county assessor to cause, on or before January 1 of the fiscal year in
which assessment is made, such list and valuations to be: printed and delivered by the county assessor or
mailed by him or her to each taxpayer in the county; or published once in 2 newspaper of general
circulation in the county; or published on an internet website that is maintained by the county assessor
or, if the county assessor does not maintain an internet website, on an internet website that is maintained
by the county; and to cause such iist and valuations to be posted in a public area of the public libraries
and branch libraries located in the county, to be posted at the office of the county assessor; and, if the list
and valuations are printed and delivered or mailed to each taxpayer in the county or published in a
newspaper of general circulation in the county, then the list and valuations must be published on an
internet website that is maintained by the county assessor or, if the county assessor does not maintain an
internet website, on an internet website that is maintained by the county. The county assessor shall
further be directed, in a county whose population is iess than 100,000, to make not fewer than 10 copies
of such list and valuations available to the public free of charge during normal business hours at the main
administrative office of the county for at teast 60 days after the date on which the list and valuations are
made available to the public as provided above; and if the county assessor publishes the Iist and valuations
on an internet website that is maintained by the county assessor or the county, to provide notice in a
newspaper of general circulation in the county, which:

1. Indicates that the list and valuations have been made available to the public on the Internet
website maintained by the county assessor or the county;
2. Provides the address of the internet website on which the list and valuations may be accessed or

retrieved; and
3. Is displayed in the format used for advertisements and printed in at least 10-point bold type or

font.

NOW, THEREFORE, be it resolved by the Board of County Commissioners of Storey County as
follows: That the County Assessor prepare a list of all taxpayers on the secured roll in the County and the
total valuation of property on which they severally pay taxes and cause such list and vaiuations 1o be
printed and delivered by the County Assessor or mailed by her on or before January 1, 2018, to each
taxpayer in the County; or published once on or before January 1, 2018, in a newspaper of general
circulation in the County; or published on the Storey County website; and to cause such list and valuations
to be posted in a public area of the public libraries and branch iibraries located in Storey County, to be
posted at the office of the County Assessor; and if the list and valuations are printed and delivered or
mailed or published in a newspaper of general circulation, to be published on the Starey County website.
The Assessor is further directed to make not fewer than 10 copies of such list and valuations available to
the public free of charge during normal business hours at the main administrative office of the County,
i.e., the Storey County Courthouse located at 26 S. B Street in Virginia City, Nevada for at least 60 days
after the date on which the list and valuations are made available to the public; and if the county assessor




publishes the list and valuations on the Storey County website, te provide notice in a newspaper ofgeneral
circulation in the County, on or before January 1, 2019 which:

1. indicates that the list and valuations have been made available to the public on the Internet
website maintained by Storey County;

2. Provides the address of the Internet website on which the list and valuations may be accessed
or retrieved; and

3. Is displayed in the format used for advertisements and printed in at least 10-point bold type or

font.
ADOPTED this day of ,2018
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF STOREY COUNTY
By:
Marshall McBride, Chairman
ATTEST:

Vanessa Stephens, County Clerk/Treasurer




NRS 361.300 Time and manner for completion of secured tax roll; list of taxpayers and valuations; notice
of assessed valuation.

1. On or before January 1 of each year, the county assessor shall transmit to the county clerk, post at the front
door of the courthouse and publish in a newspaper published in the county a notice to the effect that the secured tax
roil is completed and open for inspection by interested persons of the county. A notice issued pursuant to this
subseciion must include a statement that the secured tax rolt is available for inspection as specified in paragraph {b)
of subsection 3. The statement published in the newspaper must be displayed in the format used for advertisements
and printed in at least 10-point bold type or font,

2. If the county assessor fails to complete the assessment roll in the manner and at the time specified in this
section, the board of county commissioners shail not allow the county assessor a salary or other compensation for any
day after January 1 during which the roll is not completed, unless excused by the board of county commissioners.

3. Except as otherwise provided in subsection 4, each board of county commissioners shall by resclution, before
December 1 of any fiscal year in which assessment is made, require the county assessor to prepare a list of all the
taxpayers on the secured roll in the county and the total valuation of property on which they severally pay taxes and
direct the county assessor;

(a) To cause, on or before January 1 of the fiscal year in which assessment is made, such list and veluations to be:

(1) Printed and delivered by the county assessor or mailed by him or her to each taxpayer in the county;

(2) Published once in a newspaper of general circulation in the county; or

(3) Published on an Internet website that is maintained by the county assessor or, if the county assessor docs
not maintain an Internet website, on an Internet website that {s maintained by the county; and

{(b) To cause, on or before January 1 of the fiscal year in which assessment is made, such list and valuations to be;

(1) Posted in a public area of the public librari¢s and branch libraries located in the county;

(2) Posted at the office of the county assessor; and

(3) If the list and valuations are printed and delivered or mailed pursuant to subparagraph (1) of paragraph
(a) or published in a newspaper of general circulation pursuant to subparagraph (2} of paragraph (a), published on an
Internet website that is maintained by the county assessor or, if the county assessor does not maintain an Internet
website, on an Internet website that is maintained by the county;

(c) Ina county whose population is less than 100,000, to make not fewer than 10 copies of such list and valuations
available to the public free of charge during normal business hours at the main administrative office of the county for
at least 60 days after the date on which the list and valuations are made available to the public pursuant to paragraph
{b); and

(d) If the county assessor publishes the list and valuations on an Internet website that is maintained by the county
assessor or the county pursuant to subparagraph (3) of paragraph (a), to provide notice in a newspaper of general
circulation in the county, on or before January 1 of the fiscal year in which assessment is made, which:

(1) Indicates that the list and valuations have been made available to the public on the Internet website
maintained by the county assessor ot the county;

(2) Provides the address of the Internet website on which the list and valuations may be accessed or retrieved;
and

(3) Is displayed in the format used for advertisements and printed in at least 10-point bold type or font.

4, A board of county commissioners may, in the resolution required by subsection 3, authorize the county
assessor not to deliver or mail the list, as provided in subparagraph (1} of paragraph (a) of subsection 3, to taxpayers
whose property is assessed at $1,000 or less and direct the county assessor to mail to each such taxpayer a statement
of the amount of his or her assessment. Failure by a taxpayer to receive such a mailed statement does not invalidate
any assessment.

5. The several boards of county commissioners in the State may allow the bill contracted with their approval by
the county assessor under this section on a claim to be allowed and paid as are other claims against the county.

6. Whenever:

(a) Any property on the secured tax roil is appraised or reappraised pursuant to NRS 161.260, the county assessor
shall, on or before December 18 of the fiscal year in which the appraisal or reappraisal is made, deliver or mail to each
owner of such property a written notice stating the assessed valuation of the property as determined from the appraisal
or reappraisal. A notice issued pursuant to this paragraph must include a statement that the secured tax roll will be
available for inspection on or before Januaty 1 as specified in paragraph (b) of subsection 3 and subparagraph (3) of
paragraph (a) of subsection 3, if applicable, and must specify the locations at which the secured tax roll will be
available for inspection, including the address of the Internet website on which the secured tax role may be accessed
or retrieved. If such & statement is published in a newspaper, the statement must be displayed in the format used for
advertisements and printed in at least 10-point bold type or font.

NRS 361.300 Page 1 of 2




(b) Any personal property billed on the unsecured tax roll is appraised or reappraised pursuant to NRS 361.260,
the delivery or mailing to the owner of such property of an individual tax bill or individual tax notice for the property
shall be deemed to constitute adequate notice to the owner of the assessed valuation of the property as determined
from the appraisal or reappraisal.

7. If the secured tax roll is changed pursuant to NRS 361.310, the county assessor shall mail an amended notice
of assessed valuation to each affected taxpayer. The notice must include:

{a2) The information set forth in subsection 6 for the new assessed valuation.

() The dates for appealing the new assessed valuation.

8. Failure by the taxpayer to receive a notice required by this section does not invalidate the appraisal or
reappraisal.

9. In addition to complying with subsections 6 and 7, a county assessor shali:

(a) Provide without cherge a copy of a notice of assessed valuation to the owner of the property upon request.

(b) Post the information included in & notice of assessed valuation on a website or other Internet site, if any, that
is operated or administered by or on behalf of the county or the county assessor.

[13:344:1953; A 1955, 327] — (NRS A 1967, 957; 1975, 67; 1981, 701 199], 1425; 2003, 2762, 2005,
1506; 2009, 1218; 2011, 3522; 2015, 2711, 2714)

NRS 361.300 Page 2 of 2




Storey County Board of County

Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: October 16, 20138 Estimate of Time Required: 0-5 min.
Agenda Item Type: Consent Agenda

1. Title: For possible action, approval of claims in the amount of, payroll $522,207.85and
accounts payable $287,012.01.

2. Recommended motion; Approve as part of the Consent Agenda.

3. Prepared by: Vanessa Stephens

Department: Treasurer Contact Number: 775.847.0969

4. Staff Summary: Claims are attached.

5. Supporting Materials: See attached

6. Fiscal Impact: 0

7. Legal review required: No

8. Reviewed by:
@ Department Head Department Name: Treasurer

County Manager Other Agency Review:

9, Board Action:

[ ] Approved [ ] Approved with Modification

[ ] Denied [ ] Continued




HIANSYFEL

AATTIOILIWOD

HANQISSTHRHOD HANDISSIWUWOD NYWHIVHD

{SIPUOTSSTWWO) JO paevod Aluno) Aaiolg ayl Ag paasoxddy

§8°L0OT'TLS ipegaIndsIa [elol
0F BEL'E 1I03onpag ©3 iajsuei] Ias) TeIoLl
E6°299°ST ia1Td doa atg ue paxezxX spag 9akoldud [eior
LT ZPQ ELE :aisedag 1o211g a3doTdud {elol
g% 698 rsanayy ssdoTdud Te3oL
ZS PLE'EETL 1g)oaUn Iojoanpad Te3ICL
SE ¥LB'SS ‘54149 203 A9JSURIL A3ISN TEI0OL
Juncwy asdeg § paa # aa

/# duwg  /yoaud

& B8 L 9% § v € g 1 :sdnoig 110afed
8I/0€/60 :o38d pua-poTIag 8T/s0/01 f@3eg Yosuyn aeinboyd :edil Troaled

AUVYNTHITAYd T339T6sYy yoad ET HETET YI/ED/0T :uny
H abeg WALSAS TIQUAYd ALNNQOD ATHOLS YOTISO0dd :adsy



1

THLOL
qav0

abed

897398
T1°8%
Zg"10¢
06" %S
Ly 1oe
£6°62¢2
CO'0ET
667621
66°65¢
0z’ 9
56°6ET
EF 0¥

LHOCOHWN

£¥51
£¥ST
[35-4-2
E¥ST
E¥ST
£PST
€¥ST
£FST
£PST
€¥ST
£¥ST
evsT
0¥stT
¥¥S1
¥PST
CEST
0€S5T
0EST
0EST
¥¥s1
6EST
SPST
¥rS1
PYSIT
0¥sT
TPsT
TPST
TPST
0EST
0EST
0EST
0EST
0EST
0€sT
0EST
0vsST
SEST
JEST
8€EST
S¥ST
¥PST
TF#ST
0PST
La Rt
r¥ST
¥PST
LEST
PEST
S€51
SEST
4857
0EST
0851
9€8T
BEST

#SHVHL

81/82/6
81/82/6
81/8C/6
a1/82/6
81/8¢/6
8T/82/6
91/82/6
81/82/6
g1/ez/s
81/82/6
81/82/6
a1/8¢/6
8T/8T/6
g1/8z/6
81/8¢/6
g1/82/8
¢1/8e/6
81/BZ/6
81/82/¢
B1/8BZ/6
81/82/6
B1/8Z/6
B1/82/6
81/82/86
81/8Z/6
BI/8E/6
g1/82/8
8T/8Z/6
8i/8z/é
81/82/6
8t/8z/6
81/82/6
81/82/6
81/8¢/6
81/82/¢6
8t/8z/6
81/82/6
gl/8z/6
81/82/6
81/82/6
BT/BZ/6
B1/BZ/6
§1/82/6
8L/82/6
81/8Z/¢
BT/82/6
BRI/BZ/6
81/82/6
81/82/¢6
81/8BZ/6
B1/82/6
§1/8Z/6
a1/8Z/6
81/8e/6
81/82/6

ALV

LINYALINI TISd 232A L3IV
T1I9 ADYENAAN SVHWS

¥YHD TELOH SNINIVIL WIL
M20L8 LI

INEWIDYNYN ILSTYM DVWKS
INTY DdAWCIOD QOOMNIOT
{(LITdS) WOLINOW dHLVM
(LI7d5) HOLINCW ¥IMIS
YOLINOW NYHLHUCN HXIKW
JHHD TLI OHNIMDVH] 5480
N FOVHOLS ALID NOSHAYD
ADIAYES LINMALNI
JOVLECd

LIMOYD JELNIM

AL EDNYSINN
JOSSHUdHOD HIV

gT00L

LIS 00L

SHIdTINS ALAAVS

Q004 ONINYML DHTE SEd

SA¥vD ¥XEANI
LIADND HALNIM
Q04 BNINIVHL 2371d/9W1d

12 ¥OILSIA SLANOYW DOD
ONIHAOGT LS ITYNHNOL

¥LD ¥OLISIA SEINELHOIT
FENIXIL LHOIT -1&4 LS
(a3 II¥ HO¥OL S¥9
/1 LI¥ HO¥OL S¥S
SMEYDS -ANS M1

SIVA 300714

seINg

T 1SIQ ¥aicH

SETYRLLYE

MIED WOA qo0d A¥Id DY
WAENSYAW BASYT ¥oIdT
ANOD ¥OSAN/VVYNIFZ
Y042 ONIDIOT NYHIYHO
W IO¥D/d9WHD ¥AC WOOY
SHOVE TIAVD

9914 D¥EY WOdd ¥Ivasd
FW/ALdUd /ONINZ © $A00H
JINVHDEW TINJISAY LSHEL
SAI40D GAHEX

IAD NIAAN ANV SNEHJILS
1IGNY 597 d03d HDYLS0A
89229Xd HSYM €YD
421340 OdHS OL TIvW
Y45IQ NV W3 INCHd IVS
ONIJJAIHS QLJAMD
SHIT84NS

AH JISHNAWIZN O7d ZAd
ANDD ¥04 DNISOIOT

HOIidI¥WO8EQ

HALSIDIY JYVY> FSYHOHENG

ALNNOD AH¥OLS

XMZOE0A6MANLEZS
0vZ¥SLy
TI96EZEEFEEEY
T0¥5085d-05¢E
L-LITT-0FEZ6LIE
8I0ZTT60

O0TESO

GoTESO

GOTESD

SEBYY

GTPE0000

A¥d TIT€ LIV €M
L0760 ILLIEIIL"L
SANUY.LS

SENEY.LS

dns ¥OLOVEL -YILIUAS
OL NUAHL¥ON -~VILIEAS
aH ~YLIAUNS

aH -YIIAYAS
ANYNAH

ASN0H SNILSYOH M4
9EBIPES " " "H dAQ
avaK

avaw

6T/60 NOXIU "W
LNIddYISIA I

NNI ONYTHEATIS A

NOZYWY OX
aH -H4ddar
dH -HA43D
dH -HIJ3D
dH -H444dr

HOIFEd YOHYVH -HAddr
NYWE11E -HAJIL
FIYLS J¥S -MNOSY[D
0Z/60 dVONOT O
AVMENS-SIINND O
L0dAd FWOH

0S50S ~WaNIAYD
YSSA0IADYHE CITTO4
avaW,/a1d1d
ONILEAEVH €4

Z1/60 MITANS U
ONIVHL HYHYS/SILAND
STLAND

SI1d02

SHOCH Y04
dTATINYD

SHENNIM -NIAAN™ O
5450 -NIAAN"D
LSO4a¥0od -NIAZN' D
54N -AHd¥d

10430 BDILAO -AFHE
S400T¥) YHOLO"
0535 -CYONLLNY

INAWAYS JHYD TYIDUIWWCD INC STTdM 9r1

# BOIOANI

Ld3J-aNNg

YOANIA HAAWNN
od

8T/LZ/60 @ 23e( uny

1S08%5SEd :CGN Ioday -~



€0 ¥EB LT

£E0°PEE LT

THLOL
YD

z abed

FL¥d

HANCTSS TWWOD

NOTIVZIHOHIAOV ONY MATATY

€951
€¥ST
EFST
EVST

#ONTEL

B1/BZ/6
g1/82/6
81/8Z/6
81/82/86

aL¥a

ONINIVEL NICEANIT 2004
SN¥E ONY SYITI0H INIW4
LEINHILNTI TST OSoA LILY
NEZINI TS ASTROS L3IV

HOILATdOSEa

HILSIDAY JH¥D FEVHOUND
ALNAOD AGYHOLS

40 INZKWIDTITMONAIV

»TBIOL PIARDs

9ZP6TBSEL
6262859
NMPDEOIEMANLIES
[WSHEQAGMANLEZS

# A2IOANI LAId-aNN4G

HOANAA HHIWNRN
ad
8T/LE/60 * 33BQ Uny
LE08bPGHd oN uuonvm\ -



T

08° 3¢
¥T 85T
[+h=mra §
e¥ L8O g
gL 9
00°S¥
L6TLBS T
00 ¥SETT
Q066
18 2LL
Q0" 0TE
-TAR a4
0Z'VIT
607 €99
£E'EEZ
00°08S
00 0ShH’¢
T¢.LOL
MIEHD
abeg

00" 0T
0B 9L

00" 8V
LTSS
LT°S5S

a0 0gy
0572

87 LBO'CT
QL"9
Q0" s¥

86 'LEEZ
66695
00 08F
00°00€E

GO FSETY
00766

007032
L€' 9F
SE°CT
L6 kS
91°6
-Z8°0T
98" ¥ZE
LB EE
Sy E2

00°0TE
BT LT
0Z P11

60°88Z
00°S§LE

05 S¥
[ A ]
€128
LL™B

08 €T

00" 00¢E
00° 08T

00°06% ¢

LNOOWY

cZeas
00198

LBD98
Leo9g
L8098

0sS198
05198

28098
EET98
&6%198

1TZ98
TiZ98
11238
11298

£8098
£EE€198

g0e9g
S0Z98
90298
20Z928
90E98
30298
Q238
90€98
90298

Ze19g
6LOYG
BTZ98

TET98
1et98

58098
58098
a98098
Tv198
1v1ise

[AvrA-1:]
Zogoe

1L7398

H#SNTIL

81/82/6
BI/82/6

BT/8Z/6
81/82/6
8T1/8Z/6

BI/8Z/6
B1/82/6

BT/BCZ/&
BT/BZ/6
BL/BT/E

81/82Z/6
B1/BZ/6
8t1/82/6
81/82/6

81/8Z/6
BL/8BZ/6

81/8Z/6
81/8z2/6
81/8z/e
BL/BEZ/6
BT/BZ/6
BT/BEZ/6
81/8Z/6
81/82/6
BI/8E/6

BT/82/6
81/B2/6
BT/BT/6

BL/BZ/6
BI/BZ/6

8L/8Z/6
BT/8¢/6
BI/8Z/6
B1/8Z/6
8L/4Z/¢

8L/ez/e
BI/8Z/6

81/8Z/6

aLvd

81/82/6

HIZZON ISOH -SONYDHEd

I¥SD SLL/T1LTd
LIX HATVA SL-L
LIX HATYA SiL-L

BT/pE/6 - BIfL/6

NCW AYYHOIWIL OL dEMOd
SAIOYINY
gijoe/6 - B1/L/6

NOILONJOWd AJHWOD AQHMOD
WOHY'T NIVIL YWYHAoTaW
SHITIANSFEONYNILNIVH
ALIHNDJFS dWIL IHOIN

IHOISHIAD dOTIAZA WWO2
SEIYELLYE ATT

YOEY'T TWHENED

SLSAND 4dIA HO0d SHIINIANOCS
NIYHEL ¥0d4 5400 ANINA
NIVYIL LNIAT d04d SANIAd
NIVIL INZAd HO4 DI

WILI INIVW JINANLEY
S1OAL0Ed LO4EC ¥od INVId
SYINOISSIWWOD HLIM HONOT
SHINd4NS LOJAd

SAOVd AMELLYY
SEOIA¥ES HONHYZANOOITHL
SX SSETIEUIM

SAHd dWd J¥d ZIYIWVH
SNOOZ ¥ded T¥AE HDASd

HD
dOHS
dOHS

AYONNYT 2L 18
REQNOYT TL 1S

SOVIA/NOTS ONIM
SYALSOd AIINYM JIININd

NOILVOTISEANI INIONAdITNI

NOILdTdDS3d ADI0ANI

WALSINEY ADIHD
ALNOCD) ATE0LS

02 NOILVIINYS T¥LIAVD

TYIMLSNONT ¥YINEOAITVD

ONI 3¥1d S/ NCLINA

SIMIET LLODS 'TI3¥dng
ONI “JIY123TE S2DIud
ONI ANVAWOD d3Advd HOd

HYNOgEQ “9IaNEg

SHEWYD 'NYEE
H5 SNILINSNOD NHOH€ ATILLIVE

{ONAH) S0T1d SITYHLLYH

ENIVIE “YEDNEAS-TINANAVvH
ONI 'dSTHdYIINT NOXY
IAYES BONINFANOIATIL L3IV

2TT ITI ALITIIHOW LRIV

SSENTTIEM ONV HLTYEH D¥Y

ONI 035’1V

ONI SNOIS ENTdTV
UL "EIZNEADYH "NOSITIY
dOANEA

BL/LE/GO
STETED

33zZ¢6

S9¢E6

b4 A

£9¢Eq
[4:k4%
A

09ZE6

65TE6
8526

LSZtB

95Z¢t6
S5Ct6
LATAA

£6Z€6

ZSTES

T5Zt6

[HF A
6¥Ztn

TIFWNAN

MOAHD
t Ijeq unyg
iON 1I0day



g0 06
[*LER ) 54 Gorove

ie8'3te'1 6E"Z2¢E
¥3°562
BE BEE
GETBET

15668 SLLET
9LTTLL

00 S¥¥ 00°SYv
PETETT PETELT
aF ' b St¥'PeC

TE LBS'® LE"Z6
LE'TE
L5759
L8759
LE'Z6
LEE&
¥ L¥E
BL"9S5T
Le’Z6
STOLT
FPTTET
LA
LT 00Z
0Z'661
£E°89%
ZR'68Y%
1F°0%
v ov
L' 26
LE"C6
Ze7901
Z1°30T
59799¢
96°'90%
[oh -2 4
0g oe
PSTVOT

00°000°ST 0o 000°ST
00°0LD"T 0o QLo’e

DE"Z08 087 20¢
007005

00 0T
TYLOL LNOOWY
MJIHD

F-4 abeg

Z5198 B1/82/6
TST98 81/82/6
SET198 8t/ge/e
S€T98 8T1/82/6
SET98 81/8€/6
9€£198 81/8C/6
68098 89T/82/6
68098 81/82/6
$TZ98 81/8Z/8
£1298 41/82/6
BBOSE 81/82/6
SZEIE B1/BZ/6
52298 B1/8T/6
5ZE98 81/82/6
STE2 91/8z /6
SZZIB BI/BE/6
=¥44:1:1 BL/8E/6
SZZIF 81/8Z/6
STTIB 81/8E/6
SZZ98 81/8¢/6
S5Zg98 B1/82/6
52Z98 81/82/6
5ZZ98 BI/8Z/6
STTIE BT/BE/E
SZEZ9R  B1/BZ/6
52298 B1/8E/6
52298 8T/8E/6
52298 81/8Z/6
STTIB 8LT/8E2/6
SgzeR  BL/82/6
SCEIB 81/8E/6
SZZ98 81/8Z/8
SZEZ9B BT/BE/6
SZTTIB BL/BE/E
44T §1/8BZ/6
52T98 81/8E/6
SZZ98 81/8e¢/6
5TTI8  BIfBZ/6
44T} BI/8E/6
szzge  €1/8Z/6
SZE98 81/8E/6
£2298 B1/82/6
0TZ9%  81/BZ/6
8198 81/82/6
18198 8T/8E/6
#SNVEL 21vd

BL/82/6

YALSIDEY ADAHD
ALNNOS AHEOLS

81/0g/6 - 81/L/&

SHTLLOE 0%2

JISHUNESIA INIWHS INHYD
AASENESId LNIWHS INAYD
JISENESIA LNIAWHSINEYD
qISENESIQ INIWHS INYYD

d¥IL -0009%508
SHAIL

10dad Iv¥ Y¥¥CoM ¥04 LIWYEd

10430 EI¥D JISWH LV ¥ILVM

A¥EIS LIM IV 1814

TO0000-Z90£9ZZLL
TO000-Z90ESZELL
T0000-Z30€922LL
T0000-290€E92TLL
T0000-ZI0E3EELL
TO000-Z90E9E2LL
TO00Q-Z90E9EZLL
T0000-Z90E92ELL
TO000-Z90E9Z2LL
T0000-€20E5E€TLL
TO000-250€9Z2LL
TO000-Z90E922LL
T0000-Z90E922ZLL
TOOOO-TIDEIETLLL
TO0000-TI0EBETLL
TO000-€90%9Z2LL
10000-250¢9ZZLL
T0000-Z90€E9ETLL
TO0000-Z90E9ETLL
T0000-ZTI0E9EELL
T3000-~290€9Z8LL
T0000-E30€9TTLL
TO0000-Z50€922LL
10000 -290€9gTLl
T0000-Z90E9ECLL
T0000-290E9€ZLL
10000-230E32Z2LL
TO000-Z90E9ZELL
TO000-290€9ETLL

T10000-Z20E322ZLL

S-8T0E# INIWITAOW

NIVE]L LINHAH ¥0d4d ONI¥ILYD

NOILAIYSSdd ADIOANT

271 TIIW QT0D AD0LSWOD

LIVAINNOS AJALAWNED ADOLSWOS

AN 40 HOIAMES NOILDITIOD

DONI HAIL ORWO
ALID NOS¥VD 40 ALID
A11ID HOSWYD A0 ALID

€ ‘ON NOTIIWVHOJHOD SYINID

dIHSHANLYYd CDTTID
NVAYASNCOENS WILYM NOSHYD

277 'VEIVId ALID NOSHVD

SHIIMO4dEY TQLIdYD
HOANEA

81/LE/60
STETEd

LLEES

9LZE6

SLZED

PLZEG
ELZEE
ZLZEE

8 AAN

OLZEs
69Zt6

BIZEG

L3TLE

HIIHNN
ADAHD
i @3eg uny
roN Jacdsy



£

PLLELE

00°030°'9

0BT 9L

£0°8BL'T
TL'6L6°T

0oT090'g

[ AAA €17 Z2C

9%’ oz 9% 32

99°LSY
80 LI T
807 LTZT
-99°LS5¥

06781 0687

St'e8 SB0¢g
09719

057 L95'T
QS 9Ly’

9E€° 889 T ZE'SL
1€ 91T
SPTOFL
28°9L
86 9%
28 L6T
QL' &F
29 'BEE
SE"€E
BE" TV
-98 Q8
¥Z°0¢€
-16°86
55" 11
9078
£€°981
GG ETT
ZE VIt
-9%°'809
LA 0
6% "00%
96" E6
€8 6t
LO"6SE

LB'BBT LB 68
t0'Le €0 LE
og-TEt 08121
00" 201 go-2t

TYL0L LNNOWY
ADHHED

sbea

06°L9S"1T

08 SLY'Y

¥6098

56098
56098

9L098
gttag

£6098
£6098
£609E
t6098
€609%

Za098

16098
T6098

L6198
S6198

06038
060358
06098
te098
06098
060%8
06098
06098
06098
n60s8
06098
06098
06098
Ce09%
06038
06098
06098
C6098
06098
06058
06098
06098
060958
06098

rozge
<2198
9ETS8
€5198

#SNVHEL

BI/BE/6

B1/BE/6
B1/82/6

BT/BE/E
BT/RZ/G

B1/8EZ/6
BT/BEZ/6
81/8¢/6
81/82/6
at1/8e/6

81/8E/6

81/82/6
B1/82Z/¢

81/8E/6
81/et/e

81/8Z/6
81/82/6
BI/BE/6
BT/8Z/%
81/62/6
8T/82/6
BL/BE/6
81/8Z/6
81/82/6
8T/8%/(6
BT/BE/6
81/8¢/6
8T/8Z/6
BLI/8Z/6
BT/BE/6
BT/8Z/6
81/82/6
81/8%/6
BTI/8Z/6
81/82/6
§1/8E/6
B1/8E/6
BT/BE/E
8T/82/6

8T/8E/6
BT/8E/6
81/8Z/6
81/82/6

HL¥a

BL/82/8

HISNASSIA Y085

£ZEe 1ISA / £E€E TINO IHML
Q0E TISA fO0¥F MO MT

aa

NIWOY HOISIa ddd4ILd¥ 120

aIT 43avad
HIV4ddy ANIT AVMIH
dIYdEY IANIT AVMIH
YIVdAY dNIT AYMIH
HIVdEY INIT AWMIH

AYEMIAE -SAVod

OI¥¥I NY¥dd SOLT
OI¥AT -0¥dEd SOLT

NIWQY wdos
8102 495 SDAS DISNEH0A

LNIOW H0LOW Z2TZEZ908
ONI¥ARLS ¥IM0d Z1ZE9CS
JNOD ¥IV¥ SST8TLI

dOLOd ¥TZEZ908

YELTId ¥IYT ZLT18

WYY 'INIOC TIIVE ZTZZ90S
SAQYIE Z1ZZ2908

ASEY LNWLE 122905
SHAVIE ZICZ9CS

¥ELTTL IV $%8-15 H3
HoLCYW aXvdd 0S

NYAT) FAVEE LIZLZ908
WJ¥ ‘INIOr TIVE -0S
d3lnlg JanTl ZLZE90s
ANIT ¥¥H AWMS 2122908
SYILTIId ‘dWnd ¥L1M ZIZE90S
MOTd ¥I¥ SEWW Z0LD
5avd ‘9NH ZTZZ90S
SENYEd -50%935AHES

aNCD ¥IV¥ FPEZVPSIS

ONOD HIV ¥EZ¥SOS
YALTIL dWIv ZLTH
SYILTIA ETZEI0T

AWEZW -HTHL HYaAwA

YdL ¥04d INIM 1ITIOC "D0¥D
I¥ddd008 ¥€ILINID JOOMMO0T

SIAQTD IDYVTIA

NOTLATEDSEd IDICANT

YALSIDEY ADTHD
ALNNCD ATEOCLS

YIDNITHD

WNETOUIAd LHS/JLVD NIATOD
‘¥ qQUYMAE CONIAQVTIO

O SNI H4IT DdS ALITAAIA

ONI SISIAEd¥IINE NOSNOdId

ANVAWOZ TYNALSV

SLONJ0Ud NOILVODIYHI ONIME
LSNIVMS ¥ IJMOHL NOSADIHA

SIFINSNOD JISNIAOd ITHITONA

ONI AT1ddDS O4OY LLOTITTTE
T AANYZ 'NYDNNQ
NOILv¥0d¥0D §dd HSIO

ONI SMIAOTO TY3IIJAW HS¥WA

HOONAA

a1/LZ/60
s1ETdd

06Zt6

6BZta

geZte

LBEZEGR

98ZE6E

S8ZE6

¥BZES

tB8TEL

TBEES

1BZES

0gZES

ELEZEE

8LTES

HAHWNN
AJEHOD

273eqg uny
toN 3rodsy



Z€°'ST 61198 B1/82/¢6 NIWQY HAIT FEHILAY

0D SNI BAIT ALID SYSNTY LOEES
00°0ZT Q0" 0TT SLT98 BT1/8Z/6
OdWYD0 YAVYZOT ZITAr 90€ES
Z5 €6 Z5'E6 £6098 81/8BE/6 ONIHSNH 'ONILIA B835£944
2711 gErp S0EE6
YLOEYERT ZE'BST 96138 BL/BZ/6 ¥31d¥a¥ OIAIA AD0LS LI
¥T E£0E 96198 81/8¢/6 DU THLEYD HENOL M¥dATD
SE'LBE 9698 81/82/6 HIIAA0 NYHLION ANIW
SETLBE 96 TY9R BI/BZ/6 (1I1d5) H2IAJ40 YALWM
0T LY 96T98 g1/8Z/6 dIN0E YIANES LEdd1v¥
78 957 96198 BI/BZ/6 HOWH 1I
L5 891’8 96138 BI/BE/6 dIn0d YEAUES IuHdIY
9£°9%6°E 96198 B1/BZ/6 TYMANZE FYYMWA LI
96729 96198 BT/BZ/6 YATHEYT OWAd LI
9£"LBE 96198 B1/8BZ/6 AIYE OLTY QTYd
857089 6198 81/8Z/8 AOLINCW DOAHGLIVWM HDWE 1T
TL' LS LET98 81/8¢/6 SqY¥D dl ANwIg
277 FJUROS TII POEEG
06 LS6 p8 - 08B¢E SYT98 BI/BE/6 2/1 9T10SNQD NIE QadHS
9% STT 55198 BI/8Z/% Z2/1 dTOSNCD NIE JIHHS
£0°LE [4d4-T:] BT/8Z/6 ONISOTD AFHOLS/L¥PTIN
QT 652 [ 44411 81/88/5 BT 495 ZTUOLS/L¥TIN
L¥ " STT SET98 81/8Z/6 Z/T TTOSNOZ NI9 aI¥HS
NI 1DW CANI NIVINNOW NOAI EOEEE
00 59¢ 00°59¢€ 98098 8T/8Z/6 ONILSEL QIdA¥D
"ONI HITYHH AN " ISNI TOELEE
BL BE 8L 6T 860938 81/8%/% UNA ASOH -d0addh
A¥ES TYIHLSNANT JITNVHAAH T0E£€6
ns°z8 e A EE198 81/82/¢ IITANIS LANYIINI ZLLS
ONI ANVEa¥Odd LodS IOH 0QEEs
v0' S ¥0'2Y L6098 8L/BZ/6 SONILLIA SSwvdg -GSl
D13 SONILLIL % H50H G6ZE6
£Z2°96Z°51 33°598°¥ Y1198 81/82/6 £5000-T¥06009T
LG 0EY 0T F1T198 BT/BE/E £5000-T¥060D9T
HITYEH NMOIIWOH BEZEE
25 Z6T 16" €91 Z6T98 BI/BZ/6 IMVD ¥IV ¥ 4IN0E ¥IMOL
197821 76198 g81/82/¢ AV AVOMLAN ONIXOOT ZL15
ADINEES 110340 104Ed EWOH LGEZEE
00" ST¥ Q¢ 96E £35198 81/82/6 81/02/6-8T/L/6
00°'01 £5198 81/82¢/8
006 £5T198 81/82/4
OHDS QY¥M HLYNCd JTHOLSIH 96ELR
00°0ST 00°0ST 98198 BT/BZ/6 NVOIW GNY
NEETIZ ‘HOLONId¥AH SEZEE
05252 05°Zse FOT9R 81/82/6 SIIN LSHL -YIMES
al1 LMIVW TIDWd ATddnS dH VEEER
88 ¥IL'Z PPILSE’T 96098 8T/82/6 SUYoH
PEOLSE'T 96098 BT/BZ/6 Sav¥oyd
Gl ' IdH £RZEE
BY 002 8 00z SGEZ98 81/BZ/6 TANSSIIY ADTHD
HAIHET NILSOL “WWTHD TEEEE
05’ Z6E 0S"ETT 51Z398 RL/8Z/6 S¥5 X §5°¢C
00" 08T S1Z98 BT/BZ/6 SPS X ¥
WOL ' ANHHSNYYHD T6ZEG
LOBBZ T LEEIZ'T Y6098 81/82/6 SEITddNS TYIHOLINYD
TYLOL LNNOWY #SNWHEL AL9d # 0/d NOILII¥DSHd HDI0ANT HOANTA HIEWIN
¥IHHD ADIHD
81/8¢/6 MWEBLSIDEW XDIHD B1/LE/60 ¢ ®3eq uny

abed AINNOY AHMOLS gT1e1Ea oR 3zodsd



S

00°SEE’ST

00 59¥° 02
SE'TE6’T
949°919'1

0T TBT'9

OT %BT
[ lo A
82 EST'T

L BLY

6676

002t
06 6E
Q0 0zt

GG E0L

007009 'ZE

g T11E° 1

LTAA ]
TL°92
00 00576
SL°'65T°'¢
Z6 ST
TYLOL
h felcizte]

abea

LETELT
61°6FL

00°00T
00" SEE’ST

00°s9v’'0Z
SZ°TE6°T
99°'919°'T

£0°95% ‘€
L0°9EL'E
01" %81
00 egg

82 EST'T
R 1:]
Ze'L1E
23785
289
EEREANY
666

00" 2¢
06'6¢
007021
45701
00'TT
00°¢gg9
aprgoo e
UG G006 "¢
Q0 00E 9T
00°'00€°'2

25'9¢€¢
00 ste

SL'Z%9
L°9¢
0070058
SLTES9 T

00009

LROOWT

SET98
SZ158

61298
¥ZZ98

0ETI8
12198
L2198

Z0198
z0198

62198
£BTY9B
10198
82198
Li098
6ETZE
SBTS98
S8T98
Liz98
Z8T98
TLT98
80238
95198
35798
95198
¥a198
¥s198
¥ST98
va198

£ELT98
£LT98

geT98
LBT9E
8v138
10298
T0Z98

FONTEL

BI/8Z/6
BI/EC/6

BI/BEZ/6
g1/8e/6

81/82/6
BI/BEZ/6
BL/BZ/6

BL/82/6
81/8BZ/6

g1/8¢/6
BI/BZ/6
BL/BZ/¢€
81/8€/6
81/8%/§
B1/892/6
81/82/¢
81/82/6
81/8Z/6
81/82/¢
81/8¢/6
8I/BE/6
BT/HZ/E
81/82/6
81/8Z/6
BI/82/6
81/8Z/6
BI/BZ/6
81/82/¢6

at/8z/6
BT/8C/6

81/82/6
BT/8z/6
81/82/6
81/82/6
eI/8z/¢

HING

at/8e/6

XYL ALUEACHd LNEWAYIYIAC
XYWL ALUE4dCHd LNIAWAYIHZAC

TY¥LACd ATHLNOW 5440
UALNIAd S59€ JAVMIOCTd dIC

Sd4d ad
SONI¥NdS ¥NIHD dH1D aNZ
NOILONAO¥d 18d

qaLIArodd €102 INAL
HOLVW ALNNOD SN¥

PI/6 PTELEZSBUHUI IWd

SAWYT -S8SSIATTNOD
SEITddNS

SHIATOd ® S¥ATdVIS

NIJ ON¥L WNTd/HDIW @ do0d

SAITAANS GWY

S334d HATLVHISINIWAY

8T1/08/6 - 81/L/6
dTHSUOSNOAS NNJIATH
ANVE ZSNOHLNO
SASNAIXE FSONOHLAD
¥ANIVITY XTHLINOW

SEITI4NS HWY
S1a1ddng gwv

qasungsId INIWHSINIYD
8

Add

SEDIANHS ONIHFANIONA

SEZIAYIS ONIHTANIONT

NOILATE053d 3ADI0ANT

JALSIDAE XOHHD
ALNNOD AF¥OLS

SANYTdN YOYAIN

(ONY) LT dn18 vaIvAaN
YAGNIIFA DHITENd AHN
AT ' SEDHNOSTY NWWOH AEN

ALTZAYS 217N 0 ILd=Zd AEN

SHOAUNOSHE NVWNH Ldd3d AZN
YONZTS “SWTAN
YAYWYL ‘NYSIH

02 d0LOW THOH TIVHOIW

NI SNOIJNTIOS HDIAAQ OULINW
ASTTHSY °UYHAW

INVLILI¥E “LLANDW

NIZHOS AUNEH

ONILINSNGD JUYHNVH

NOISNYW AVIDWYH

D11 SLNIAE 3018 gIindit

ONI LSISSY-d4IT
HAEIHO v 4N
NI SHQIAYES FENIT JDHVNONYT

SNGS ¥ SILdND N 1

W ETOS €0 M¥0d T HLANNIX
WOANTA

BT/LE/GD
STETdd

BTELE

LZELE
2TEES
SEZEEG

¥ZLES

EZEES
2EEES
TZEES

0ZEE6

6IEEH
BIELE
LICES
9TEES

STEER

PIELE

ETEEE

ZIEES
TTIEES
QTEESE

60EED

BOELE

AAHWIN

ADIHD
:o@jeqg uny
roN 3aedey



00" ¥8 c¥198 41/BE/6 ATIN JLVKWNI

DO'ETT eP198 BT/8EZ/6 ATIN TLYWNI
DNI SEOLN8IFLSIC AUVWHIAHS LYEEE
0Z €6%'Z 19°€02°1 12z98 8T/BZ/6 aced NIVHL ENIM 2z ~1d3S
65°682°1 1z298 8L/82/6 qood NIVHL INIM 5S¢ 90V
271 ‘¥a¥AdIN SIS 9PEES
09 ¥I0‘T 09'%10°T 21z98 8T/9¢/6 OOMADT HILNOE 00PHFTSSSS
ONI SADIAYIS TYHOTD DHES SYEEE
POTELE'T 05’85 Z9198 8T/8Z/6 ONIAVHEONT ONW NIL
PSS FTE T za198 BT /RE/E SNI4 13d¥l
SOIHAVYED ® €ZM Q¥VYNOAIVS YYEEE
6% 0S¢€ 6% 052 YET9R B1/8Z/6 QISANESIA INIWHS INIYD
NVAL I€d08 ‘SI1YTE0d EVEEE
007819 00819 E0Z98 8T/9Z/6 140ddns L0
ONI 'SWHLSAS ONIL¥OdHH ZYEEE
z5 8E z25°82 91298 81/82/6 NIA/ONINIVAL TIELIETI SYD
Al8d anYNITy 17€E6
67°2Z¢T 05°0T Y8198 B1/82/6
6L 11z ¥8198 81/82/6
NI'@V¥T ADOTOIIXOL TOOMTHN 0¥EEE
LZ ES 20" %2 B6T98 81/8Z/6 YALNIEd NONYD LI
52782 86198 BT/8E/6 YEINIAd NONVD HDLYdSIa
{¥D) ONI OD NVDMOW AWY 6ELER
06 6TL 00614 95198 81/8Z/6 TIYLSNI aN¥ OIavy F¥Id
DNI SH2IAEC NOILOILOHd 8EEEE
00°S6T 00°50T 0¥198 8T/82/6 35V¥ET ANIHOVW FO¥L50d
00°06 6198 8L/82/6 TYLNEY INAWIINO"
ONI SIMOH AINLIL LEEEE
00'ET 00'ET 66198  BI/8EZ/6 SNENIT TE
HSN0H YHE4O 5,¥3dId SEEEE
05 6EE 06" 6EE 65198 8T/8BZ/6 . BT/0Z/6 - 81/L/6
Q OTIONY “INIHLIL SEEEG
00°00E 00 00§ ZIT9%  81/8L/6 HOWE SL°€ 099SEL ISND
ONI LHOISNIWNLEO FECEE
00°00T 007 00T L5798 a1/82/86 SASNCHLAO AdINS
IS 3 SOIHAVED HAIS FHL NO EEEEE
gz 05E T£°LE 0T198 s1/8e/6 gAY auOoEd’ ANIAITEA
L6 ZTIZ 01198 81/82/6 ADIAI0 ANITD
2711 CLDJEA ¥IVA A1ISdE0 ZEEES
66" FE 66" %€ 68198 BT/82/(6 INW HOQTI WIWHD
ONI 10dEd 3DTJ40 TEEEE
0E"2€8 66 6ZT £0798 81/82/6 0€-¥FETH £Z09908
zE" 82 £0198 8T/8E/6 9¥II0OVd -ZLY
06°ZT £0T98 BI/82/6 SANVTO ZEIm 899FLMd
9y " ZE £0T98 81/82/6 WHY 4EIdM EVLEPHI
9T°'6% £0198 81/82/6 INIVE AWHdS -€552%Ed
05°0¢ E0T98 at/ez/e WOOT ZdIM 859FLmd
99°0TT £0T98 BL/82/6 ¥ILS0CE €/d -SST8ZLI
€E€'6 £0198 81/82/6 INIWIFOSSY §99%LMd
S6°¥E £0T98 8T/8E/6 SYANNVE O¥1d -LEOdSNYEL
86 66E £0T98 81/82/6 TEEY HIV dOHS
6€ LT EOT98 81/82/6 HHLITS TE0d -HOHMOVHE
SASTHAWALNA OIOV ATIISY.0 DEEE6
00°4E 00°S¢€ 6798 81/82/6
HaasOL ANOHINY ‘YIIDON 6ZEEE
Y6 EEY BL'TIT 52198 BT/82/6 XV ALYEdO¥d INTWAVIITAO
TYLOL LNNOWY HSNWAL FIvd # 0/8 NOILEI¥2ISHA ADTOANI HOUNTA HATWON
ADIHD AIRHD
8T/82/6 WALSIDEH NDTHD BT/LE/60 81BI UNE

£ abed ALNOCD AEHOLS STETEd ON 3Iiodey




L

00 8s¢

91" LES
05" L

009671
TYLOL
A3AHD

sbedq

4 5
ZEZE
98 1¢
¥9°PE
¥BGE
0T €91
60 BLL
TLBT
BT goeE’l
2 9ET
L6 BB
LLTTE
59°'¥9¢
00 ¥6T
LE'ZY
BT T®
SB Y9
ZETEET
LL VYT
zE'eg
TE 60T
LS ¥R
8 90T

00'8%T
0009
00" 0%

417 LES

LROOWT

LOLos
L0198
L0128
L0148
LOTS8
L0198
L0198
LOT9B
L0Tag
L0138
LOT98
0198
L0198
L0198
L0198
L0198
L0138
L0T98
L0T98
L0198
L0198
[Ae-]:)
L0198
107198
L0198
L0198
L0198
L0198
L0198
LOT98
LOT98
L0798
L0798
107198
L0198
L0198
L0T98
L0T98
L0T98
L0T98
L0T98
L0198
L0198
L0798
L0798
Lo198
[AA-))

90198
907198
90198
S0T98

19798

#SNWHL

81/82/6
81/82/6
81/82/6
81/82/6
B1/BE/6
BT/BE/E
B1/8E€/6
BI/8Z/6
81/8E/6
BRI/BZ/6
BT/82/6
81/82/6
BI/8E/6
B1/82/6
81/82/6
81/92/6
81/8¢/6
81/8Z/6
BI/8E/6
B1/BZ/A
BT/8C/6
B1/8Z/6
8I/BE/6
a1/8¢/6
B1/8%/6
BI/8Z/6
81/82/6
8T/8E/6
BT/8Z/6
81/8T/6
8T/8E/6
81/82/6
81/8Z/6
81/82/6
81/8Z/6
BT/8E/6
81/82/6
81/82/6
81/8¢g/6
8T/8Z/6
BI/8Z/6
81/8E/6
BT/8T/6
81/8E/6
BI/BZ/6
81/82/6
B1/8E/6

Bi/8z/6
81/82/6
BT/RZ/6E
BI/BZ/6

81/BE/6

ZI¥d

B1/8E/6

ASHIA1I  IHDIUMIAYD 0192
(NIVLNNOJ)add Q¥ 1701 00T
SILHDIT 4LS HO 40 NMCL

¥ A0 8 /L8 ROIND 091

H N ZT s¥ddId

L5 NOINN -dDYILOD

Muwd M HONWY TdEd 00071
¥d¥d HOA Q¥ FEIAWE T¥712
¥ LING AM NOANVD 0ZF

g LINO A¥M NOANVD 0TV

1S O N §8T

4O N¥EE4 S0LT

a¥ HONWY I¥d3d 008

SLHOIT 1S O § TES
SLHOIT IS D § 2%t
SIHDIT LS O N 9L1T
ASNCHLENCD 1S 8 § %%
NOANYD ETIW XIS 0222
LOdAG HO LINR 15 NIVK
(ONINIWEL} IS O N 191
SHE¥Id 15 2 N

AAYATIVE IS NOSHYD

DA LINQ 1S O 8

LHDI'T T¥d/¥0eqrlne 1s O §
15 2 ZLE/DA LIND 1S D §
dOVHYD LS 9 § ¥0T

LS NOLLNS

qEvd DA IS A N §0¢C

whu (¥ ANTAVY IVINVAS 00S
OWISYD IS 2 S 1

INId ¥IM IS HINOS MOOT
Ad¥d  SNIWATD WYS 06¥F
1INe  IvE AMH SD 116

0§ 1S O 5 so0g

05 1S D § £0¢

¥d 1§ 0 § 102

Z/1 dOHS Q¥ T70L 00T
901 Q¥ TIOL CTT

9g78 ¥ TICL 0ET
dOLS1SEY 1S 3 N T1BE
LINO 1S D N SPI

SEY Q¥ LHDINMIYYD Z19Z
¥ 1S AUYM NOANYD €V
ISHAWNG LHOTYMLEYD 01982
IHOIT LS SHIANOISSIWNWOD IS
SLHEDIT 1S5 ALID VINIDAIA
TaIg¥Md 05 AMH 0TO0CT

SATICE 48NS TLL'HE “GA0E
SWEOJAITOD -NIYW HD
SWMOJITOD -dTYE¥" LS O
HATHA (TEVH

BT/0T/6 - 8TI/L/6

NOIIJATYOEHd dDI0ANI

YALSIDEY XDFHD
Ady¥OLE

YIMOE JIJAIOVd VHHIIS

TYLNAWNCHIANE wHHdls

SHWALSAS TOUINOZ VHYIIS

NITTY NYI¥E ‘AYOHS
JOANIA

BI/LE/GD
SIeTdd

TSE€s

05¢te
6¥LtE
2VEES
HAEWON
ADIHD

: 93e@ uny
:oN Jaoday



a

LS 660" T

56°ELS"S

1 ¥ A

00" %08

60" 8%
00°'0gT’e

00-8¥%L

QS 981 €
LE ZCd
ES° €91
81°GZ¥

00°6TE°T

00 00T

sz 958

00°00T
0¥ Z81

CI 8ET'T

00°0%
T6 ZE0'ET
TYLOL
ADFHD

abea

TL"ZPT'T
LS EBB0T
55°89F
8z 'S€0 '€
Z10L0’E
9€ ' E£EE

00" B¥F
00 9SL

608V
o0 0zTT'E

Q0" RBZ
ao'ozL

05'981°€
LE'CEY
£ Z9T
BT Q¥

0g-vZ
00" 08¢
a0 ge
Q4 LBs

0g-oeT

Sg 9%
SE' 9%
S2°9%
SE° 9%
SE'§¥
SZ'9v
Sg°9¥%
T 4
S 9%
00 oLE
[N T

Q0'oQtT
0F 281

oL 2cL¥
LR AT AS

00 g%

LNACHY

LTIT1SH
SVI98
ETT198
ETT98
1198
FP¥198

L9198
L9198

09198
02198

39198
99798

18098
60198
80728
S91s%

¥9198
v919%
¥9198
79198

&4198

8L098
8L02B
8L098
8L098
8L098
8L098
8L098B
gL098
84098
vLTI8
LL19g

SLT98
gLTIIB

£9128
€9T98

£EvT198

#SNVHL

BT/BE/E
8T/82/6
81/82/6
8T/82/6
81/982/%
81/82/6

81/82/6
81/8¢/6

8T/492/8
BL/8E/6

81/8%/46
81/82/6

a1/82/8
81/8Z/¢
81/8Z/6
81/8BZ/6

81/82/6
B1/BEZ/6
§1/82/6
e1/8T/E

81/62/6

B1/82/6
81/82/6
B1/82/6
BL/BE/E
81/82/6
B1/82/6
81/82/6
81/8%/6
B1/BE/6
81/82/6
81/8t/6

81/82/6
81/8Z/6

8T/8C/6
81/8Z/6

81/82/6

JI¥a

NIKAY TRINEZQC TEAILAH
a38UNESId LNIWHSINAYS
¥6 TS / L9 DFY -HOA
00L IS / 00v DT -Md
ort "1sa / 013 934 -Md
HOQE TOELNOD NI LITIOL

BI/0E/6 - BT/L/6

81/0%/6 - BI/L/E

NOILDEMNO) ¥STA-¥aD
SHAHD d3LNIM -T100d
N¥Yd DNITOCD £55ZPHd

YALNED HOLISIA ¥03 $300d

8T/02/6 - BI/L/E

0Z0Z/L0-81L/0E/L0 1YEADTY

dNNCHINOVE
QNOOUEDVE
ANNOUDADYH
aNNQRDADTE
[adiinlet.Cobdmy {28
dNNCUDADYE
ANNQ¥DAOVH
CROOYUSADYS
ANOCHONOVE
SMDIHD CNIOYUDADVH

20

SAITddNE DNINVATO

NID AYILIWED F5¥0 1
NIZ AUIIWID SISYD T

qoOMID0T TTOWLNOD L1S3d

NOILAIdDS30 HOI0ANI

81/82/6 dELSIDEAE ADIAHD

ALNNGD AEZHOLE

QD SNT FUVOHLIVIHJZILING

TETYLSNANT FONVYNIA gALTIND

0717 WIITONLId SYWCHL

dWIILVNEIHL

DT SAQOHMOD ENOLSHWOL dJHL
4s5N0H DHILSVOd FHL

ONI g00¥D Hgnd JHL

ATTIIHS 'A¥EEL

d¥0D MVl dNOVH NOLLOS
SI2N30¥d TCOd HOIHAANS
IMIWAINDE d0I¥ddns

DNI ‘SNOILVDITENd ITIENNS

SIS INdHELNE Avdd NNSs

TIINVA “HIVID "1S

AJIYIARS 02 1S5
SM¥OM JTTENG Q2 LS

IIT p JINIWOd ENOTIVAS

S B ANIM SHAZYTS NHIHIOCS
ONI TIOUINOD L5dd ¥HH4dIS
HOONIA

BT/LE/GO
SIETEd

QLEEE

69EE6

89¢c€6

LIEEE

99tEe
59tttk

¥ITEG

EIEER
cIttLe
TSEE6
Q9L

6SEEE

BSELEG

LSEES

SEEE6
§a€E6

¥GEEE

£5TT6
ZHEL6

HIHWNN

ADAHD
: 3jed uny
icN 3xoday



[

86 LLT'69E

00" 6BE"CT

007 05T

S6°'91S 1

L9986

¥ 0TS'T
0P 599°¢
0 L9912

o0'gg

D0TE0F'ST

G0 00T
05 zge
00 sgE
TLERl’Y
TYLOL
ADIHD

abeg

TYLOL SMDIEHD

D0 FFE’L
00 5¥9°S

o0’ 0SsT

£V 967’1
z2s 0z

L2986
¥8 0TS
0% 599°¢
QL3172

op 9t
gdrze

o0 oET’el
GO'LTT
0070¢g

00 BT
ge'918° %
00°B6T

G0 00T
06 TEE

o0’ see

LNOCHY

HONVNILNIVW AJVdL
SA0IAYES NOILOEASNI AOVYL

60298 BT/82/6
60298 B1/8C/6
91198 aT/82/6 INAWAZYOY ¥dd

51158 81/8e/6
51798 81/82/%6

OI¥dI nNy¥ad SCet
DITYYI NUEA SOLT

¥Z198 81/82/6 SIND COQ¥ DIidad HD

48198 BI/8Z/6 BTOZLSNONY STYAN TOOMIDOT

L¥T98 BT/BE/G VATY 'STND ‘NOLIVHELS-XOL

08098 B1/BT/6E Sd0IAE3T LETAHG0T

0LT98 81/8¢/6 81/0e/6 - 81/L/6
QLTY98 81/RZ/¢
00298 BL/BZ/6 81/6 ¥ ST/6 SNIVYL
89198 R1/RE/6
89798 BT/8T/6
29198 8T/82/6
89198 81/82/6
89198 81/82/6

81/028/6 - BL/L/6

69158 BT/BT/6 BI/GT/6 ONIMZ T

3¥IS8 81 /BZ/6 JISENESTIT INIWHS INYYD

08198 BL/8Z/6 T# ILIW¥dd

HENVHEL AL¥a # C/d NOIL4dI¥DSIA EOICANI

BT/8E/6 MALSIDAR NDIHI
ALNNCD AdAOLS

TITHEVD ‘'NYWYTTIM

NYHI¥N *HLIHM

02 A1ddNS vUOYAAN NIHLSIM
YHO AS ANVL JTLdHS SHILTM
A¥HS HOINIS ALNNOD AOHSWM

HEANCHOD 0J HDHSYM

SHIV¥IOCSSY 2 AIATVM

ONI S¥NOL ALIO YINIODYIA

02 ¥ FEMONEL ¥ YINIDYIA
LA

ONI LOW SIDIAMIS HSYD wSO
(DA}  H#DIAICLEOA 8N
HOaNdA

BL/LZ /60
STETEd

CREEH

T8EES

0BEES
6LEER
BLEEG
LLEEG

SLEEEH

SLEEE

bLEEE
ELECEH
TLEes
TLEES
HIGWON
ADEHD

: @jeg uny
ioN 1xoday



81/82/6

dANOISS IWWOD

ZLYU ADEHD 8E LLT 692 TYLOL SHOEHD

NOTLVZI¥OHLOY NV MAIATY A0 LNIWHIDIITMONAOY



Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: October 16, 2018 Estimate of time required: 15
minutes

Agenda: Consent [ | Regular agenda { X] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: Discussion/Possible Action regarding Resolution No. 18-499 granting Historic Fourth
Ward School Foundation a sum not to exceed $120,000 for the purpose of preserving the
Fourth Ward School Building and promoting the history of the Comstock and Storey County
history.

2.

2. Recommended motion: [ move to approve Resolution 18-499 granting the Historic Fourth

Ward School Foundation a sum not to exceed $120,000 for preservation of the Fourth
Ward School Building and to promote the history of the Comstock and Storey County.

3. Prepared by: Keith Loomis
Department: District Attorney’s Office Telephone: 847-0964
4. Staff summary: Under NRS 244.1505 a grant of money to a non-profit organization must be
made by resolution of the Board of County Commissioners which specifies the purpose of
the grant and any conditions imposed on the expenditure of the granted money. The
proposed Resolution meets the requirements of the statute

5. Supporting materials: Grant Application of Historic Fourth Ward School Foundation;
Resolution No. 18-499; NRS 244.1505 NRS 372.3261

6. Fiscal impact:
Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller

7. Legal review required:

KL  District Attorney

8. Reviewed by:

Department Head Department Name:
County Manager Other agency review:

9, Board action:
(] Approved [
[ Denied [

Approved with Modifications
Continued

[




RESOLUTION NO. 18-499

RESOLUTION Authorizing Grant of Money to the HISTORIC FOURTH WARD
SCHOOL FOUNDATION for the purpose of preserving the
Fourth Ward School Building and for promoting the history of the
Comstock and Storey County.

WHEREAS, NRS 244.1505 authorizes a Board of County Commissioners to grant
money to a nonprofit organization created for religious, charitable or educational purposes to be

expended for an authorized purpose; and

WHEREAS, a grant to a non-profit organization must be made by a resolution of the
board of county commissioners which must specify the purpose of the grant and any conditions

imposed upon the expenditure of the granted moneys; and,

WHEREAS, an organization qualifies as an organization for charitable purposes if the
sole or primary purpose of the organization is to advance a public purpose or provide services
that are otherwise required to be provided by a local government and the organization is

operating in this state, See NRS 372.3261; and,
WHEREAS, an organization qualifies as an organization for educational purposes if

the sole or primary purpose of the organization is to (1) provide athletic, cultural or social
activities for children, (2) provide displays or performances of the visual or performing arts to
members of the general public, or (3) provide instruction and disseminate information on

subjects beneficial to the community; and,




WHEREAS, an organization that qualifies as an organization for charitable purposes or

for educational purposes must also meet the requirements that:

(a) No part of the net earnings of any such organization inures to the benefit of a private
shareholder, individual or entity;

(b) The business of the organization is not conducted for profit;

(¢) No substantial part of the business of the organization is devoted to the advocacy of
any political principle or the defeat or passage of any state or federal legislation;

(d) The organization does not participate or intervene in any political campaign on behalf
of or in opposition to any candidate for public office; and,

(e} Any property sold to the organization for which an exemption is claimed is used by
the organization in this State in furtherance of the religious, charitable or educational

purposes of the organization. See NRS 372.3261(5); and,

WHEREAS, the HISTORIC FOURTH WARD SCHOOL FOUNDATION is a Nevada
domestic non-profit corporation operating in the State of Nevada which qualifies as a charitable
and/or educational organization authorized to receive grants from the County for a public

purpose; and,

WHEREAS, the HISTORIC FOURTH WARD SCHOOL FOUNDATION desires to
obtain a grant from Storey County in the amount of ONE HUNDRED TWENTY THOUSAND
DOLLARS ($120,000.00) for the purpose of preserving the Fourth Ward School Building, a

County-owned building, and for promoting the history of the Comstock and Storey County; and,

WHEREAS, the use of the money for the purposes identified does serve a public

purpose; and,




WHEREAS, the HISTORIC FOURTH WARD SCHOOL FOUNDATION does provide
cultural or social activities for children, does provide displays of visual arts to members of the
general public and does provide instruction and information on subjects beneficial to the

community, and

WHEREAS, the Board of County Commissioners of Storey County has previously

appropriated funds for the requested grant by approval of the County budget;
NOW THEREFORE IS IT HEREBY RESOLVED AS FOLLOWS;

The Board of County Commissioners of Storey County does hereby grant to the Historic
Fourth Ward School Foundation a sum not to exceed ONE HUNDRED TWENTY THOUSAND
DOLLARS ($120,000.00) to be expended for the specific purpose of preserving the Fourth Ward

School Building and for promoting the history of the Comstock and Storey County.

ADOPTED this 18 day of SEPTEMBER, 2018.

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF STOREY COUNTY

By:

MARSHALL McBRIDE, Chairman

ATTEST:

VANESSA STEPHENS
Storey County Clerk/Treasurer




4™ WARD SCHOOL

APPLICATION FOR GRANT FUNDS

Pursuant to NRS 244.1505, a board of county commissioners is authorized to provide
money to non-profit organizations created for religious, charitable or educational purposes. The
organizations requesting grant funds must meet the requirements set forth below.

1. REQUIREMENTS FOR ALL ORGANIZATIONS

In order to qualify as a religious, charitable or educational organization authorized to
receive moneys from the boards of county commissioners, the organization must meet all of the
following requirements:

(a) No part of the net earnings of any such organization inures to the
benefit of a private shareholder, individual or entity;

(b) The business of the organization is not conducted for profit;

{c) No substantial part of the business of the organization is devoted
to the advocacy of any political principle or the defeat or passage of any
state or federal legislation;

(d) The organization does not participate or intervene in any
political campaign on behalf of or in opposition to any candidate for public
office; and

(e) Any property sold to the organization for which an exemption is
claimed is used by the organization in this State in furtherance of the
religious, charitable or educational purposes of the organization. See NRS
372.3261(5).

2. CHARITABLE ORGANIZATIONS
A qualifying charitable organization is one for which:
(a) The sole or primary purpose of the organization is to:

(1} Advance a public purpose, donate or render gratuitously
or at a reduced rate a substantial portion of its services to the persons who
are the subjects of its charitable services, and benefit a substantial and
indefinite class of persons who are the legitimate subjects of charity;

(2) Provide services that are otherwise required to be
provided by a local government, this State or the Federal Government; or




(3) Operate a hospital or medical facility licensed pursuant
to chapter 449 or 450 of NRS; and

(c) The organization is operating in this State.
3. EDUCATIONAL ORGANIZATIONS
A qualifying educational organization is one for which:
(a) The sole or primary purpose of the organization is to:
(1) Provide athletic, cultural or social activities for children;

(2) Provide displays or performances of the visual or
performing arts to members of the general public;

(3) Provide instruction and disseminate information on
subjects beneficial to the community;

(4) Operate a school, college or university located in this
State that conducts regular classes and provides courses of study required
for accreditation or licensing by the State Board of Education or the
Commission on Postsecondary Education, or for membership in the
Northwest Association of Schools and of Colleges and Universities;

(5) Serve as a local or state apprenticeship committee to
advance programs of apprenticeship in this State; or

{6) Sponsor programs of apprenticeship in this State through
a trust created pursuant to 29 U.S.C. § 186.

4. RELIGIOUS ORGANIZATIONS,
A qualifying religious organization is one for which:

(a) The sole or primary purpose of the organization is the operation of a church,
synagogue or other place of religious worship at which nonprofit religious
services and activities are regularly conducted. Such an organization includes,
without limitation, an integrated auxiliary or affiliate of the organization,
men's, women's or youth groups established by the organization, a school or
mission society operated by the organization, an organization of local units of a
church and a convention or association of churches.




APPLICANT INFORMATION:
Name of Organization; Historic Fourth Ward School Foundation

Place of Incorporation: Storey County, Nevada

Attach a copy of your Articles of Incorporation or other document demonstrating compliance
with requirements applicable to all organizations.

Explain the purpose of your organization and how it meets the requirements for a charitable,
educational or religious purpose.

Built in 1876, the doors to this 24,000 square foot school opened to the first class in January of
1877. The Fourth Ward School was Virginia City’s gift to Nevada in celebration of America’s
centennial. Eager to rebuild Virginia City after the great fire of 1875, residents chose the
fashionable Second Empire architectural style that conveved permanence, dignity, and
prosperity. State-of-the-art for its time, the school included indoor flush toilets, a drinking

fountain on each floor, forced-air heat, interior gas lights and a fire suppression system. The
Fourth Ward School is home to the first two graduates from a Nevada school, Anna Herrullben
and Mary O’Farrell, in the class of 1878. Built to accommodate 1,000 students, the four story,
16 classroom building had a high count of approximately 860 students in the early 1880s. A

diploma from the Fourth Ward High School Department was a commeodity, and its graduates
were sought after for teaching positions throughout northern Nevada and California.

Due to the decline of the population in Virginia City and new federal regulations governing the

construction of school buildings, the school closed in 1936. Although attempts at restoration

began in the 1960s, the building remained vacant and deteriorating unti! it became a museum in
1986. The Fourth Ward School building has been recognized by the state and local community as

a significant historic site. QOver the past 30 years, over 4 million dollars in local. state, and federal
funds including a Save Americas Treasures grant, has allowed for extensive stabilization and

restoration of the building bringing it back to its original grand appearance. In 2004, the National

Trust for Historic Preservation awarded the Historic Fourth Ward School the National
Preservation Honor Award for its restoration and recognized it as a Distinctive Destination.
Since becoming a non-profit 501(c)3 foundation in 2000, we have hosted over 300,000 visitors.

The Fourth Ward School Museum has also become a destination for school children as part of 4th
and 7% grade Nevada history curriculum.

The mission of the Histori¢ Fourth Ward School Foundation is to connect people to the relevance

and importance of the Comstock story through its authentic preservation. interactive exhibits,
interpretive programs and archival resources. The current collections and records held in the
Historic Fourth Ward School Museum & Archives document life on the Comstock from 1875 to
current day. The collection includes photos, correspondence, maps. business records and three
dimensional artifacts significant to the Fourth Ward School, life on the Comstock and their
relationship to the nation. The story of the Fourth Ward School, its role as a public school in the
west, its closure, the vears of neglect and the public process of its preservation are records that
are vital to the heritage of Nevada and to all that visit and want to learn about the west.




Identify the amount of grant funds you are requesting. One hundred and Twenty Thousand
Dollars ($120,000.)

Explain the purposes for which you will use the grant funds if awarded.

In addition to securing monies for the preservation of the county's building, we have also been
successful in finding support for our programs and exhibits. During our 2017 season, we hosted
over 1,800 school children, over 9,000 museum visitors and 4 facility rentals. Our membership
base of 148 members highlights our broad support. Our first annual “Steppin® Back in Time”
fundraising event was a huge success in both raising funds and bringing new visitors to the
Fourth Ward School Museum. Qur Archives & Research Center collection continues to grow

with wonderful donations including over 2,000 digital photographs of the Comstock and
surrounding areas. five guest books from the 1940s and 1950 that belonged to the Storey County
Justice of the Peace, three wall maps that are original to the Fourth Ward School, and six original

letters from teachers in the 1870s and 1880s.

During the calendar vear of 2017, we secured grants and donations which will assist in the
installation of seventeen {17) roof anchors around the perimeter of the upper main roof. These
anchors will accomplish two main goals. First, the anchors will allow workers to safely tie-off
and work around the mansard part of the roof. This section of the buiiding requires almost
constant repair work. Second, the anchors will allow work to be done without the expense of
installing and removing scaffolding each time a project is done on this area.

Storey County owns the Fourth Ward School building. The Foundation has a lease with Storey
County, which specifies the county will provide for the maintenance of the building. In return,

the Foundation will continue the restoration and use of the building, including the museum and

archives.

The building and the security of everyone's investment, now totaling over 4.5 million dollars,

requires the county's continued support as specified in the lease. We could not meet the
requirements of our lease without Storey County fulfilling its part.

During calendar year 2017, the Foundation administered the county’s support ($95,000) for the
following: Repaired and installed drainage to the north/east corner of the parking lot, replaced
and repaired wiring to the fire alarm system in the north tower, replaced the roof hatch and
repaired damage to the roof when the old roof hatch blew off during a wind storm. Serviced both
heating boilers and replaced relief valve and tested the glycol in the boiler that heats the Wiegand
Room. Replaced parts in the emergency exit signs, installed new toilet fill valves, installed a

temporary drainage system at the north side of the building, replaced a damaged cover in the

floor of the Historic Classroom. continued with the replacement of all building lights with LED
lighting and replaced damaged boards in the boardwalk.

Ongoing repairs and maintenance included maintenance and inspection of the elevator, fire and
security systems: painting and staining of balconies, doors, boardwalks. railings: oiling all
wooden interior surfaces; servicing museum models: general cleaning; desk repairs; maintaining
portable heaters, ceiling fans, storm windows, kitchen appliances, roller shades, toilets;
application of window sill preservatives: siriping parking lot; scraping and painting of shingles,

exterior trim, and siding. These expenses are some of the basic operating expenses. not including




staffing the museum while open to the public.

We are now faced with repainting and restoring the exterior siding of the entire building. It was
last completely painted in 1999. At that time, instead of replacing the rotting wooden siding, a
bonding substance was used to hold the siding together. Now, that bonding is pulling the wood it
wag adhered to off and/or more rotting is occurring behind that “fix.” In addition, there are
nuriterous leaks on the third and fourth floors. During rain or snowmelt, water runs through the
wall and into the interior of one of the windows in the north/west third floor classroom. Because
of the multiple angles of the mansard roof, there are scveral leaks in the fourth floor. The gaps in
the roof are substantial enough to allow snow to blow inside the building. Because part of the fix
for the interior leaks will be done with the restoration of the exterior of the building, the repairs
are being considered as one project. A minimum of three estimates will be sought, However, the
first estimate for the entirety of the work is for $548.763.60 from Reyman Bros. Construction,

Because of the extensive cost for this restoration, I am requesting perspective contractors to

provide an estimate for the work to be done in stages. The most efficient method appears to be in

quarters, one side of the building at a time.

The railing on the interior staircases is pulling away from the stairs. The interior finishes
throughout the building require re-sheilacking, especially the windowsills and frames. Because
of the historical status of the building, the Secretary of Interior's Standards restrict and guide how
the shellacking must be conducted. A prior verbal estimate for repair of the interior stairs was
$40.000 and a prior verbal estimate for the interior shellacking was $60.000.

Storey County currently grants the Historic Fourth Ward School $95.000 per vear ($23,750.00
per quarter.) We are requesting an increase in support for the next vear with an annual request of

$120.000 ($30.000 per quarter.)

An award of grant funds must be by the adoption of a resolution of the boards of county
commissioners. NRS 244.1505 Attached is a form of such a resolution. Please prepare a

resolution in accordance with the attached form which grants the funds requested and submit the
resolution along with this application.




ARTICLES OF INCORPORATION

The undersigned incorporato(s), in order to form a Bon-profit corporation under the laws of the state of
Nevada, adopt the following Articles of Incorporation:

ONE: The name of this corporation is The Histacic Fourth Ward Schoo! Foundation,
TWO: The name and address of the registered agent of this corporarion are:
Vs lene Cobbey, President
337 South C Street, P. 0. Box 4

Yirginia City, Nevada 89440

support the Historic Fourth Ward School including the restoration of the building, administration,
Programs, events, or activities reasonably related thereto, all within the purview of Section 501{c)3) of the
Internal Revenue of 1954 as it may be amended from time to time.,

THREE: Th specific purposes for which this corporaticn i urgazized wed operated are to finaacially

3. The genera) purpose for which this corporation is formed is (o operate exclusively for zencral,
charitable, and educational purposes.

b.  This corporanen shall have and exercise all rights and powers conferred on corporations under the
laws of the State of Nevada, provided. however, that this corporation is rot empowered to engage
in any activity which, in itself, is not in fustherance of its purposes as set forth in sub-paracaphs a
and b of this Article Three.

L]

No part of the ner CAIMiNgs, properties, or assets of this corporation, on dissolution or otherwise,
shall iure to the benefit of any private person and individual or any member or director of this
corporation and, on fiquidation or dissoludon, all properties and assets of this corporation
remaintng after ~aying or providing for al! debts and obligations shall be distributed and paid over
to such fund, foundation, or corporation organized and operated for charitable or educarional
purposes as defined in the Internal Revenue Code of 1954, 25 amended. as the Foundation shall
determine, or, in the event of their failure 10 do 50, to such fund, foundation, or corporation as
determined by Decree of the District Courts of the State ot Nevada in and for the County of
Carson City, upon petition of any member or direcior,

d Az a substantial pant of its actwities, this corporation shall not camry on propaganda or otherwise
aitempt ta influence iegislation. This corporation shall not participate 1n, or wntervene in

{including the publishing or Jistributing of stalements), any politcal campaign on behalf of any
candidate for public office,

¢.  This corporation shall not ©ngage, at any wme, in any activities which shall violate the Intemal
Revenue Code of 1954, Sections 4941 through 4945, as they may exist from time to time.

FOUR. This corporanon s organized pursuant 1o the General Nen-prefit Corperation Laws of the Stare of
Nevada and, specifically, the Charitable Corporation Act of 1971,

Fen #1452 C0

OF MAY 2 4 2000
HISTORIC FOURTH WARD SCHOOL FOUNDATION i 00 TWE OFTXE OF
A NON-PROFIT CORPORATION DO MELLEN STCRETANY OF TR0,

ar 56 SSBEL 20k soses




3. The powers of this corporation shall be exercised, its properties controlied, and its affairs
conducted by a board o be know as the Board of Directors. The number of Directors hercin
provided for may be changed by a By-Law duly adopted by the members. Untii so change, there
shall be five (5) Directors. The method of selection of the Directors shall be set forth in the By-
Laws. Directors, other than the first and second year Directors, shail serve for a term of three (3)
years provided in the By-Laws.

b.  The names and addresses of the persons who are appointed to act as the first Directors for the first
year are:

Darlene Cobbey, P.O. Box 13, Silver City, NV 39428
Ed Gladding, 530 California Ave, Reno, NV 89509
Pete Leonard, P.0. Box 348, Virginia Ciry, Nv 39440
Ine Curtis. P 0. Box 342, Virzipia Ciry, NV 39440
Peggy Whitten, P.O, Box 846, Virginia City, NV 89440

The Board of Directors tay, by twa-thirds votc of that body, appoint as honorary, Don-voting
directors as the Board may see fit provided, however, that such honorary trustees shail be of
Prominent status in their commmunity or possess a high degree of expertise in a2 arva deemed
important by the Board.

o

TN WITNESS WHEREOF, for the purpese of forming this non-profit corporation under the laws
of the State of Nevada, we, the undersigned, constiruting the incorporators of this corporation and
inclading ail of the persons named herein as the first Directors, have executed these Anicles of
[ncorporatian this 2<% day of s 2000,

STATE OF NEVADA )
) 58
CARSON CITY )
ON THIS day of » 2000, before me, the undersigned, a Notary Public in and

for said County and State, personally appeared <names of trustees> » known ta me to be the persons
described in and who execuzed the foregoing instrument, and they acknowledged te me that they executed
the same freely and voluatarily and for the uses and purposes therein mentioned.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF. [ have hereur.o set my hand and affixed my Otficial Seal the day and
year heremabave wrirten,

NOTARY PUBLIC {SEAL)
SIX: The period af duration of this <orporation is perpenal.

SEVEN: The classes, rights, privileges. qualifications, and vbligations of members of this corporation are
as follows:

This corporation shail have one class of membership. Aay person shall be qualitied to become a member
Upon payment ol the initial dues. if any, tixed by the board of directors and shail continue as a member
upon paying the annual dues, if anv, fixed by the board of directors. The method and Kme of payment of
dues shall be determined. and may be changed, from time to time, by the board of dircctors. Additonal
provisions specilying the rights and obligations of members shall be contained in the Bylaws of this
v0rporation pursuant 10, and in accordance with, the laws of this state.




EIGHT: Any additional provisions for the operation of the corporation are as follows:

Upon the dissolution of this corporation, its nssets remaining after payment, or provision for payment, of
all debts and liabilities of this corporation shall be distributed for one of MOre CXCMpt purposes within the
meaning of Scction 501(cX3) of the Internal Revenue Code or shall be distributed to the federal :
government, or to a state or local government, for a public purpose.

No substantial part of the activities of this corporation shall consist of carrying on propaganda, or otherwise
ttempting to influence legislation (except as otherwise provided by Section 501(h) of the Interna] Revenue
Code), and this corporation shail not participate in, or intervene in (including the publishing or distribusion
of statements), any political campaign on behalf of, or in opposition to, any candidate for public office.

No part of the net eamnings of this corporation shall inure to the benefit of, or be distributable fo, its
members, directors, officers, or other private persons, except that this corporation shall be authorized and
empowerert t pay reasonable compeasation for services rendered and to make paymnents and distributions
in furtherance of the purposes set forth in these Articles.

Notwithstanding any other provision of these Artic les, this corporation shall not carry on any other
activitics not permitted to be carried on (1) by a corporation exenpt from federal income tax under Section
301(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code or {2} by a corporation contributions to whick are deductible under
Section 170(cX2) of the Internal Revenue Code.

In any taxable year in which this corporation is a private foundation as described in Section 509%(a) of the
[ntemal Revenue Code, the corporstion 1) shall distribute its income for said period at such time and
MANDET a3 nof to subject it 10 tax under Section 4942 of the Internal Revenue Code; 2) shall not engage in
any act of self-dealing as defined in Section 4341(d) of the Internai Revepue Code; 3) shall not retain any
excess business holdings as defined in Section 4943(c} of the Internal Revenue Code; 4) shall not make
any investments io such manner as 1o subject the corporation to tax under Section 4944 of the Interpal
Revenue Code; and 5) shall nut make any laxable expenditures as defined in Section 4945(d) of the
Internal Revenue Code.

The undersigned incorporators hereby declare under penalty of perjury that the statements made in the
foregoing Articles of Incorporation are true.

B S, 2oso

» Incorperator




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: October 16, 2018 Estimate of time required: 15
minutes

Agenda: Consent [ ] Regular agenda [ X ] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: Discussion/Possible Action regarding Resolution No. 18-500 granting Community
Chest Inc., a sum not to exceed $234,492.00 for the purpose of funding health and human
services programs.

2.

2. Recommended motion: 1 move to approve Resolution 18-500 granting Community Chest Inc. a

sum not to exceed $234,492.00 for health and human services programs.

3. Prepared by: Keith Loomis
Department: District Attorney’s Office Telephone: 847-0964
4. Staff summary: Under NRS 244.1505 a grant of money to a non-profit organization must be
made by resolution of the Board of County Commissioners which specifies the purpose of

the grant and any conditions imposed on the expenditure of the granted money. The
proposed Resolution meets the requirements of the statute

5. Supporting materials: Grant Application of Community Chest Inc.; Resolution No. 18-500;
NRS 244.1505; NRS 372.3261

6. Fiscal impact:

Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller

7. Legal review required:

KL District Attorney

8. Reviewed by:

Department Head Department Name:
County Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[1] Approved [1 Approved with Modifications
[] Denied [] Continued

Agenda Item No.

L




RESOLUTION NO. 18-500

RESOLUTION Authorizing Grant of Money to COMMUNITY CHEST INC. for
the purpose of funding health and human services programs.

WHEREAS, NRS 244.1505 authorizes a Board of County Commissioners to grant
money to a nonprofit organization created for religious, charitable or educational purposes to be

expended for an authorized purpose; and

WHEREAS, a grant to a non-profit organization must be made by a resolution of the
board of county commissioners which must specify the purpose of the grant and any conditions

imposed upon the expenditure of the granted moneys; and,

WHEREAS, an organization qualifies as an organization for charitable purposes if the
sole or primary purpose of the organization is to advance a public purpose or provide services
that are otherwise required to be provided by a local government and the organization is

operating in this state, See NRS 372.3261; and,

WHEREAS, an organization that qualifies as an organization for charitable purposes

must also meet the requirements that:

(a) No part of the net earnings of any such organization inures to the benefit of a private
shareholder, individual or entity;

(b) The business of the organization is not conducted for profit;

(¢} No substantial part of the business of the organization is devoted to the advocacy of

any political principle or the defeat or passage of any state or federal legislation;




(d) The organization does not participate or intervene in any political campaign on behalf
of or in opposition to any candidate for public office; and,

(e) Any property sold to the organization for which an exemption is claimed is used by
the organization in this State in furtherance of the religious, charitable or educational

purposes of the organization.

See NRS 372.3261(5); and,

WHEREAS, COMMUNITY CHEST INC. is a Nevada domestic non-profit corporation
operating in the State of Nevada which otherwise qualifies as a charitable organization

authorized to receive grants from the County for a public purpose; and,

WHEREAS, COMMUNITY CHEST INC. desires to obtain a grant from Storey County
in the amount of TWO HUNDRED THIRTY FOUR THOUSAND FOUR HUNDRED NINETY
TWO DOLLARS ($234,492.000) for the purpose of funding health and human services

programs ; and,

WHEREAS, the use of the money for the purposes identified does serve a public

purposc; and,

WHEREAS, the Board of County Commissioners of Storey County has previously

appropriated funds for the requested grant by approval of the County budget;




NOW THEREFORE IS IT HEREBY RESOLVED AS FOLLOWS;

The Board of County Commissioners of Storey County does hereby grant to COMMUNITY
CHEST INC. a sum not to exceed TWO HUNDRED THIRTY FOUR THOUSAND FOUR
HUNDRED NINETY TWO DOLLARS ($234,492.00) for the specific purpose of funding

health and human services programs.

ADOPTED this 18 day of SEPTEMBER, 2018.

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF STOREY COUNTY

By:

MARSHALL McBRIDE, Chairman

ATTEST:

VANESSA STEPHENS
Storey County Clerk/Treasurer




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: October 16, 2018 Estimate of time required: 15
minutes

Agenda: Consent | ] Regular agenda[ X ] Public hearing required [ }

1. Title: Discussion/Possible Action regarding Resolution No. 18-504 granting Liberty Engine
Company No. 1 Inc. a sum not to exceed $10,000.00 for the purpose of preserving the
Comstock Firemen’s Museum. and its historic contents.

2. Recommended motion: I move to approve Resolution 18-504 granting the Liberty Engine
Company No. 1 Inc., a sum not to exceed $10,000.00 for the purpose of preserving the
Comstock Fireman’s Museum. and its historic contents.

3. Prepared by: Keith Loomis
Department: District Attorney’s Office Telephone: 847-0964
4. Staff syummary: Under NRS 244.1505 a grant of money to a non-profit organization must be
made by resolution of the Board of County Commissioners which specifies the purpose of

the grant and any conditions imposed on the expenditure of the granted money. The
proposed Resolution meets the requirements of the statute

3. 5. Supporting materials: Grant Application of Liberty Engine Company No. 1 Inc.;
Resolution No. 18-504; NRS 244.1505 NRS 372.3261

6. Fiscal impact:

Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller

7. Legal review required:

KL  District Attorney

8. Reviewed by:

Department Head Department Name:
County Manager Other agency review:
9. Board action:
L1 Approved [] Approved with Modifications
[1 Denied [] Continued

VAVASE




RESOLUTION NO. 18-504

RESOLUTION Authorizing Grant of Money to LIBERTY ENGINE COMPANY
NO 1INC. for the purpose of preserving the Comstock Firemen’s
Museum, county owned building while protecting, preserving and
displaying the original fire-fighting equipment of Virginia City and
Storey County.

WHEREAS, NRS 244.1505 authorizes a Board of County Commissioners to grant
money to a nonprofit organization created for religious, charitable or educational purposes to be

expended for an authorized purpose; and

- WHEREAS, a grant to a non-profit organization must be made by a resolution of the
board of county commissioners which must specify the purpose of the grant and any conditions

imposed upon the expenditure of the granted moneys; and,

WHEREAS, an organization qualifies as an organization for charitable purposes if the
sole or primary purpose of the organization is to advance a public purpose or provide services
that are otherwise required to be provided by a local government and the organization is

operating in this state, See NRS 372.3261; and,

WHEREAS, an organization that qualifies as an organization for charitable purposes

must also meet the requirements that:

(a) No part of the net earnings of any such organization inures to the benefit of a private
shareholder, individual or entity; |

(b) The business of the organization is not conducted for profit;

(c) No substantial part of the business of the organization is devoted to the advocacy of
any political principle or the defeat or passage of any state or federal legislation;

1




(d) The organization does not participate or intervene in any political campaign on behalf
of or in opposition to any candidate for public office; and,

(e) Any property sold to the organization for which an exemption is claimed is used by
the organization in this State in furtherance of the religious, charitable or educational

purposes of the organization.
See NRS 372.3261(5); and,

WHEREAS, LIBERTY ENGINE COMPANY NO 1 INC. is a Nevada domestic hon-
profit corporation operating in the State of Nevada which otherwise qualifies as a charitable

organization authorized to receive grants from the County for a public purpose; and,

WHEREAS, LIBERTY ENGINE COMPANY NO 1 INC. desires to obtain a grant from
Storey County in the amount of TEN THOUSAND DOLLARS ($10,000.00) for the purpose of
preserving the Comstock Firemen’s Museum, a county owned building while protecting,
preserving and displaying the original fire-fighting equipment of Virginia City and Storey

County.; and,

WHEREAS, the use of the money for the purposes identified does serve a public

purpose; and,

WHEREAS, the Board of County Commissioners of Storey County has previously

appropriated funds for the requested grant by approval of the County budget;
NOW THEREFORE IS IT HEREBY RESOLVED AS FOLLOWS;

The Board of County Commissioners of Storey County does hereby grant to LIBERTY ENGINE

COMPANY NO 1 INC. a sum not to exceed TEN THOUSAND DOLLARS ($10,000.00) for




the specific purpose preserving the Comstock Firemen’s Museum and for the purpose of

protecling, preserving and displaying the original fire-fighting equipment of Virginia City and

Storey County.

ADOPTED this 18th day of SEFTEMBER, 2018.

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF STOREY COUNTY

By:

MARSHALL McBRIDE, Chairman

ATTEST:

VANESSA STEPHENS
Storey County Clerk/Treasurer




LIBERTY ENGINE COMPANY NO. 1 INC.

APPLICATION FOR GRANT FUNDS

Pursuant to NRS 244.1505, a board of county commissioners is authorized to
provide money to non-profit organizations created for religious, charitable or
educational purposes. The organizations requesting grant funds must meet the
requirements set forth below.

1. REQUIREMENTS FOR ALL ORGANIZATIONS

In order to qualify as a religious, charitable or educational organization
authorized to receive moneys from the boards of county commissioners, the organization
must meet all of the following requirements:

(a) No part of the net earnings of any such organization
inures to the benefit of a private shareholder, individual or entity;

{b) The business of the organization is not conducted for
profit;

{c) No substantial part of the business of the organization is
devoted to the advocacy of any political principle or the defeat or
passage of any state or federal legislation;

(d) The organization does not participate or intervene in
any political campaign on behalf of or in opposition to any
candidate for public office; and

(e) Any property sold to the organization for which an
exemption is claimed is used by the organization in this State in
furtherance of the religious, charitable or educational purposes of
the organization. See NRS 372.3261(5).

2. CHARITABLE ORGANIZATIONS
A qualifying charitable organization is one for which:
(a) The sole or primary purpose of the organization is to:

(1) Advance a public purpose, donate or render
gratuitously or at a reduced rate a substantial portion of its services
to the persons who are the subjects of its charitable services, and
benefit a substantial and indefinite class of persons who are the
legitimate subjects of charity;




(2) Provide services that are otherwise required to
be provided by a local government, this State or the Federal
Government; or

(3) Operate a hospital or medical facility licensed
pursuant to chapter 449 or 450 of NRS; and

(c) The organization is operating in this State.
3. EDUCATIONAL ORGANIZATIONS
A qualifying educational organization is one for which:
(a) The sole or primary purpose of the organization is to:

(1) Provide athletic, cultural or social activities for
children;

(2) Provide displays or performances of the visual
or performing arts to members of the general public;

(3) Provide instruction and disseminate information
on subjects beneficial to the community;

(4) Operate a school, college or university located
in this State that conducts regular classes and provides courses of
study required for accreditation or licensing by the State Board of
Education or the Commission on Postsecondary Education, or for
membership in the Northwest Association of Schools and of
Colleges and Universities;

(5) Serve as a local or state apprenticeship
committee to advance programs of apprenticeship in this State; or

(6) Sponsor programs of apprenticeship in this State
through a trust created pursuant to 29 U.S.C. § 186.

4. RELIGIOUS ORGANIZATIONS.
A qualifying religious organization is one for which:

(a) The sole or primary purpose of the organization is the operation of a
church, synagogue or other place of religious worship at which nonprofit
religious services and activities are regularly conducted. Such an
organization includes, without limitation, an integrated auxiliary or
affiliate of the organization, men's, women's or youth groups established




S

by the organization, a school or mission society operated by the
organization, an organization of local units of a church and a convention
or association of churches.

APPLICANT INFORMATION:

Name of Organization: Liberty Eng. Co. No. 1 / Comstock Firemen’s Museum

Place of Incorporation: Nevada, 501¢3

Attach a copy of your Articies of Incorporation or other document demonstrating
compliance with requirements applicable to all organizations.

| Explain the purpose of your organization and how it meets the requirements for a
charitable, educational or religious purpose.

The Comstock Firemen’s Museum was founded to protect, preserve and display

the original fire-fighting equipment of Virginia City. It was rescued from a

burning county building in 1976. The Fire Museum, since 1976, has collected and
1 preserved general Comstock fire history of Storey County and Virginia City. The

building housing the museum is owned by Storey County and leased to the
Museum. We conduct visits for school children and off historical lectures on the
subjects. It is a 501c3 non-profit, Nevada Corporation. It was founded as a sub-
corp. of the Storev County Volunteer Fire Department. There are no paid
administrative staff that oversee the Museum. We do hire part-time persons in the
summer open months to keep the museum open for visits and to sell our fire related
‘ gifts to help fund the continued operation of the museum. There is a nine member
board of directors that oversees the museum and a volunteer staff of two that do

maintenance and bookkeeping.

Identify the amount of grant funds you are requesting. $10,000.00

Explain the purposes for which you will use the grant funds if awarded.

Grant funding is used for maintenance and upkeep of the county owned building.
We also maintain a building fund in the hope of a future expansion of the structure

for additional artifacts and equipment that are currently in storage.

An award of grant funds must be by the adoption of a resolution of the boards of county
commissioners. NRS 244.1505 Attached is a form of such a resolution. Please prepare a
resolution in accordance with the attached form which grants the funds requested and
submit the resolution along with this application.




INTERNAL REVENUE SERVICE
DISTRICT DIRECTOR

P. O. BOX 2508
CINCINHATI, OH 45201

Date. MAR 27 1958

LIBERTY ENGINE COMPANY NO 1 INC
PO BOX 466
VIRGINIA CITY, NV 89440-0466

DEPARTMENT OF THE TREASURY

Employer Identification Number:
88-0156146

DLN:; ,
318057324

Contact Person:
PATRICE WHANG

Contact Telephone Number:

(415) 522-6053
Addendum Applies:
Yes

Dear Applicant:

Based on the information you recently submitted, we have classified
your organization as one that is not a private foundation within the meaning
of section 509(a) of the Internal Revenue Code because you are described in
sections 509 (a) (1) and 170 (b) (1} (A) {vi) . .

Your exempt status under section 50i{a) of the Intermal Revenue Code as
an organizaticm described in 501 (c) (3) is still in effect.

This classification is based on the assumption that your operations will
continue as you have stated. If your sourcee of support, Or your purposes,
character, or method of operation change, please let us know s0 we can consider
the effect of the change on your exempt status and foundation status.

This supersedes our letter dated 7/29/97 and 1/28/98.

Grantors and contributors may rely on this determination unless the
Internal Revenue Service publishes notice to the contrary. However, if you
lose your section 509({a) {1) status, a grantor or contributor may not rely on
this determination if he or she was in part respongible for, or was aware of,
the act or failure to act, or the substantial or material change on the part of
the organization that resulted in your loss of such status, or if he or she
acquired knowledge that the Intermal Reverue Service had given notice that you
would no longer be classified as a section 509(a) (1) organization.

2p of Jamuary 1, 1984, you are liable for taxes under the Federal Insur-
ance Contributions Act (social security taxes) on remuneration of 5100 or more
you pay to each of your employees during a calandar year. You are not liable
for the tax imposed under the Federal Unemployment Tax Act (FUTA).

You are required to file Form 990 only if your gross receipts each year
are normally more than $25,000. For guidance in determining whether your gross
receipts are "normally" more than $25,000, see the instructicons for Form $30.
I1f a return is required, it must be filed by the 15th day of the fifth month
after the end of your annual accounting period. A penalty of 520 a day is
charged when a return is filed late, unless there is reasonable cause for the
delay. However, the maximum penalty charged cannot exceed $10,000 or 5 percent
of your gross receipts for the year, whichever is less. For organizations with
gross receipts exceeding $1,000,000 in any year, the penalty ig 5100 per day
per return, unless there is reasonable cause for the delay. The maximum
penalty for an organization with gross receipts exceeding $1,000,000 shall not

Letter 1078 (DO/CG)




LIBERTY ENGINE COMPANY NO 1 INC
exceed $50,000. This penalty may alsc be charged if a return is not complete,
80 please be gure your return is complete before you file it.

If we have indicated in the heading of this letter that an addendum
applies, the addendum enclosed is an integral part of this letterx.

Because this letter could help resolve any questions about your private
foundation status, you should keep it in your permanent records.

if you have any gquestions, please contact the person whose name and
telephone number are shown above.

Sincerely vours,

Pistrict Director

Letter 1078 (DO/CG)




LIBERTY ENGINE COMPANY NO 1 INC

We have determined that you are a publicly supported organizaticn of the
type described in Section 509 (a) (1) and 170(b) (1} (3) (vi) as oppomed to Section
509 {a) {2) of the Code. This change doseg not affect your exempt status as an
organirzation desgcribed in section 501{c) (2) of the Code, your non-private
foundation status, or your filing requirements.

Letter 1078 (DO/CG)




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: October 16, 2018 Estimate of time required: 15
minutes

Agenda: Consent [ | Regular agenda [ X] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: Discussion/Possible Action regarding Resolution No. 18-505 granting the Mark Twain
Community Center a sum not to exceed $25,000.00 for the purpose of preserving the Mark
Twain Community Center and for community outreach and improvement.

2. Recommended motion: I move to approve Resolution 18-505 granting the Mark Twain
Community Center a sum not to exceed $25,000.00 for the purpose of preserving the Mark
Twain Community Center and for community outreach and improvement.

3.
3. Prepared by: Keith Loomis

Department: District Attorney’s Office Telephone: 847-0964

4. Staff summary: Under NRS 244.1505 a grant of money to a non-profit organization must be
made by resolution of the Board of County Commissioners which specifies the purpose of
the grant and any conditions imposed on the expenditure of the granted money. The
proposed Resolution meets the requirements of the statute

4. 5. Supporting materials: Grant Application of Mark Twain Community Center;
Resolution No. 18-505; NRS 244.1505 NRS 372.3261

6. Fiscal impact:

Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller

7. Legal review required:

KL District Attorney

8. Reviewed by:

Department Head Department Name:
County Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action;
[1 Approved

[ Approved with Modifications
[] Denied [

Continued

Al b




RESOLUTION NO. 18-505

RESOLUTION Authorizing Grant of Money to MARK TWAIN COMMUNITY
CENTER for the purpose of maintaining the Mark Twain
Community Center, a county owned building while providing
community outreach and enhancement.

WHEREAS, NRS 244.1505 authorizes a Board of County Commissioners to grant
money to a nonprofit organization created for religious, charitable or educational purposes to be

expended for an authorized purpose; and

WHEREAS, a grant to a non-profit organization must be made by a resolution of the
board of county commissioners which must specify the purpose of the grant and any conditions

imposed upon the expenditure of the granted moneys; and,

WHEREAS, an organization qualifies as an organization for charitable purposes if the
sole or primary purpose of the organization is to advance a public purpose or provide services
that are otherwise required to be provided by a local government and the organization is

operating in this state, See NRS 372.3261; and,

WHEREAS, an organization that qualifies as an organization for charitable purposes

must also meet the requirements that:

(a) No part of the net earnings of any such organization inures to the benefit of a private
shareholder, individual or entity;

{b) The business of the organization is not conducted for profit;

(c) No substantial part of the business of the organization is devoted to the advocacy of

any political principle or the defeat or passage of any state or federal legislation;




(d) The organization does not participate or intervene in any political campaign on behalf
of or in opposition to any candidate for public office; and,

{(e) Any property sold to the organization for which an exemption is claimed is used by
the organization in this State in furtherance of the religious, charitable or educational

purposes of the organization.
NRS 372.3261(5); and,

WHEREAS, the MARK TWAIN COMMUNITY CENTER is a Nevada domestic non-
profit corporation operating in the State of Nevada which otherwise qualifies as a charitable

organization authorized to receive grants from the County for a public purpose; and,

WHEREAS, MARK TWAIN COMMUNITY CENTER desires to obtain a grant from
Storey County in the amount of TWENTY FIVE THOUSAND DOLLARS ($25,000.00) for the
purpose of maintaining the Mark Twain Community Center, a county owned building, while

providing community outreach and enhancement ; and,

WHEREAS, the use of the money for the purposes identified does serve a public

purpose; and,

WHEREAS, the Board of County Commissioners of Storey County has previously

appropriated funds for the requested grant by approval of the County budget;




NOW THEREFORE IS IT HEREBY RESOLVED AS FOLLOWS;

The Board of County Commissioners of Storey County does hereby grant to MARK TWAIN
COMMUNITY CENTER a sum not to exceed TWENTY-FIVE THOUSAND DOLLARS
($25,000.00) for the specific purpose preserving the Mark Twain Community Center and for

community outreach and enhancement.

ADOQOPTED this 18 day of SEPTEMBER, 2018.

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF STOREY COUNTY

By:

MARSHALL McBRIDE, Chairman

ATTEST:

VANESSA STEPHENS
Storey County Clerk/Treasurer




MARK TWAIN COMMUNITY CENTER

APPLICATION FOR GRANT FUNDS

Pursuant to NRS 244.1505, a board of county commissioners is authorized to
provide money to non-profit organizations created for religious, charitable or
educational purposes. The organizations requesting grant funds must meet the
requirements set forth below.

1. REQUIREMENTS FOR ALL ORGANIZATIONS

In order to qualify as a religious, charitable or educational organization
authorized to receive moneys from the boards of county commissioners, the organization
must meet all of the following requirements:

(a) No part of the net earnings of any such organization
inures to the benefit of a private shareholder, individual or entity;

(b) The business of the organization is not conducted for
profit;

{c) No substantial part of the business of the organization is
devoted to the advocacy of any political principle or the defeat or
passage of any state or federal legislation;

{d) The organization does not participate or intervene in
any political campaign on behalf of or in opposition to any
candidate for public office; and

(e) Any property sold to the organization for which an
exemption is claimed is used by the organization in this State in
furtherance of the religious, charitable or educational purposes of
the organization. See NRS 372.3261(5).

2. CHARITABLE ORGANIZATIONS
A qualifying charitable organization is one for which:
(a) The sole or primary purpose of the organization is to:

(1) Advance a public purpose, donate or render
gratuitously or at a reduced rate a substantial portion of its services
to the persons who are the subjects of its charitable services, and
benefit a substantial and indefinite class of persons who are the
legitimate subjects of charity;




(2) Provide services that are otherwise required to
be provided by a local government, this State or the Federal
Government; or

(3) Operate a hospital or medical facility licensed
pursuant to chapter 449 or 450 of NRS; and

(c) The organization is operating in this State.
3. EDUCATIONAL ORGANIZATIONS
A qualifying educational organization is one for which:
(a) The sole or primary purpose of the organization is to:

(1) Provide athletic, cultural or social activities for
children;

(2) Provide displays or performances of the visual
or performing arts to members of the general public;

(3) Provide instruction and disseminate information
on subjects beneficial to the community;

(4) Operate a school, college or university located
in this State that conducts regular classes and provides courses of
study required for accreditation or licensing by the State Board of
Education or the Commission on Postsecondary Education, or for
membership in the Northwest Association of Schools and of
Colleges and Universities;

(5) Serve as a local or state apprenticeship
committee to advance programs of apprenticeship in this State; or

(6) Sponsor programs of apprenticeship in this State
through a trust created pursuant to 29 U.S.C. § 186.

4. RELIGIOUS ORGANIZATIONS.
A qualifying religious organization is one for which:

(a) The sole or primary purpose of the organization is the operation of a
church, synagogue or other place of religious worship at which nonprofit
religious services and activities are regularly conducted. Such an
organization includes, without limitation, an integrated auxiliary or
affiliate of the organization, men's, women's or youth groups established




by the organization, a school or mission society operated by the
organization, an organization of local units of a church and a convention
or association of churches.

APPLICANT INFORMATION:

Name of Organization: __Mark Twain Community Center

Place of Incorporation: _Mark Twain Estates, Storey County, Nevada

Attach a copy of your Articles of Incorporation or other document demonstrating
compliance with requirements applicable to all organizations.

Explain the purpose of your organization and how it meets the requirements for a
charitable, educational or religious purpose.

The Mark Twain Community Center is a non-profit organization supported by
volunteer community members who are dedicated to the enhancement and increase
the use and a full functioning center to improve the quality of life for the small

community which is distanced from the county center.

Identify the amount of grant funds you are requesting. $25,000.00

Explain the purposes for which you will use the grant funds if awarded.

The goal of the MTCC is to become a community outreach and a liaison to the
county for the purpose of promoting and enhancing the quality of life in Mark
Twain. Our distance from Virginia City and Dayton proper, often leads to an
isolated pocket for help and services. The goal this year is to make the citizens

aware of services and to prepare for an emergency.

Programs we would like to consider:

1. Plan disaster preparedness
2. Health clinic 1 —2x a2 month

3. How lunch meal program 3 — 5 days a week to work with the food delivery
of Mustang Cares.

4. Dietary and food preparing programs for seniors and children.

5. To have an after school programs for students.

6. Clean up the basketball court for an outdoor program.

7. Clean up the park updating the equipment for the children

8. Continue to have our on-going programs the GS, BS, NA, AA

9. Introduce a senior program

10. Also perhaps introduce a Veterans Program
11. Also to continue mainfenance and enhancement our Veterans Memorial.




12. Also improvements to the community center, such as our flooring, and look
for mechanical ways to improve the access to the upper level for seniors to
expand our programs.

An award of grant funds must be by the adoption of a resolution of the boards of county
commissioners. NRS 244.1505 Attached is a form of such a resolution. Please prepare a
resolution in accordance with the attached form which grants the funds requested and
submit the resolution along with this application.







Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: October 16, 2018 Estimate of time required: 15
minutes

Agenda: Consent [ | Regular agenda[ X ] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: Discussion/Possible Action regarding Resolution No. 18-506 granting the Nevada Rural
Counties RSVP Program Inc. a sum not to exceed $7,050.00 for the purpose of providing
essential programs for Storey County seniors, veterans, adults with disabilities and caregivers.

2. Recommended motion: | move to approve Resolution 18-506 granting the Nevada Rural
Counties RSVP Program Inc. a sum not to exceed $7,050.00 for the purpose of providing
essential programs for Storey County seniors, veterans, adults with disabilities and caregivers

3

3: Prepared by: Keith Loomis

Department: District Attorney’s Office Telephone: 847-0964

4. Staff summary: Under NRS 244.1505 a grant of money to a non-profit organization must be
made by resolution of the Board of County Commissioners which specifies the purpose of
the grant and any conditions imposed on the expenditure of the granted money. The
proposed Resolution meets the requirements of the statute

4. 5. Supperting materials: Grant Application of Nevada Rural Counties RSVP Program Inc.;
Resolution No. 18-506; NRS 244.1505 NRS 372.3261

6. Fiscal impact:

Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller

7. Legal review required:

KL  District Attorney

8. Reviewed by:

Department Head Department Name:
County Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[1 Approved

[ Approved with Modifications
[1] Denied [

Continued

L




RESOLUTION NO. 18-506

RESOLUTION Authorizing Grant of Money to NEVADA RURAL COUNTIES
RSVP PROGRAM INC. for the purpose of providing essential
programs for Storey County seniors, veterans, adults with
disabilities and caregivers.

WHEREAS, NRS 244.1505 authorizes a Board of County Commissioners to grant
money to a nonprofit organization created for religious, charitable or educational purposes to be

expended for an authorized purpose; and

WHEREAS, a grant to a non-profit organization must be made by a resolution of the
board of county commissioners which must specify the purpose of the grant and any conditions

imposed upon the expenditure of the granted moneys; and,

WHEREAS, an organization qualifies as an organization for charitable purposes if the
sole or primary purpose of the organization is to advance a public purpose or provide services
that are otherwise required to be provided by a local government and the organization is

operating in this state, See NRS 372.3261; and,

WHEREAS, an organization that qualifies as an organization for charitable purposes

must also meet the requirements that:

(a) No part of the net earnings of any such organization inures to the benefit of a private
shareholder, individual or entity;

{(b) The business of the organization is not conducted for profit;

(c) No substantial part of the business of the organization is devoted to the advocacy of

any political principle or the defeat or passage of any state or federal legislation;




(d) The organization does not participate or intervene in any political campaign on behalf
of or in opposition to any candidate for public office; and,

(e) Any property sold to the organization for which an exemption is claimed is used by
the organization in this State in furtherance of the religious, charitable or educational

purposes of the organization.
See NRS 372.3261(5); and,

WHEREAS, the NEVADA RURAL COUNTIES RSVP PROGRAM INC. is a Nevada
domestic non-profit corporation operating in the State of Nevada which otherwise qualifies as a

charitable organization authorized to receive grants from the County for a public purpose; and,

WHEREAS, NEVADA RURAL COUNTIES RSVP PROGRAM INC. desires to
obtain a grant from Storey County in the amount of SEVEN THOUSAND FIFTY DOLLARS
($7,050.00) for the purpose of providing essential programs for Storey County seniors, veterans,

adults with disabilities and caregivers; and,

WHEREAS, the use of the money for the purposes identified does serve a public

purpose; and,

WHEREAS, the Board of County Commissioners of Storey County has previously

appropriated funds for the requested grant by approval of the County budget;




NOW THEREFORE IS IT HEREBY RESOLVED AS FOLLOWS;

The Board of County Commissioners of Storey County does hereby grant to NEVADA RURAL
COUNTIES RSVP PROGRAM INC. a sum not to exceed SEVEN THOUSAND AND FIFTY
DOLLARS ($7,050.00) for the specific purpose of providing essential programs for Storey

County seniors, veterans, adults with disabilities and caregivers.

ADOPTED this 18th day of SEPTEMBER, 2018.

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF STOREY COUNTY

By:

MARSHALL Mc¢BRIDE, Chairman

ATTEST:

VANESSA STEPHENS
Storey County Clerk/Treasurer




APPLICATION FOR GRANT FUNDS

Pursuant to NRS 244.1505, a board of county commissioners is authorized to
provide money to non-profit organizations created for religious, charitable or
educational purposes. The organizations requesting grant funds must meet the
requirements set forth below.

1. REQUIREMENTS FOR ALL ORGANIZATIONS

In order to qualify as a religious, charitable or educational organization
authorized to receive moneys from the boards of county commissioners, the organization
must meet all of the following requirements:

| (a) No part of the net earnings of any such organization
| inures to the benefit of a private shareholder, individual or entity;

(b) The business of the organization is not conducted for
profit;

(c) No substantial part of the business of the organization is
devoted to the advocacy of any pelitical principle or the defeat or
passage of any state or federal legislation;

(d) The organization does not participate or intervene in
any political campaign on behalf of or in opposition to any
candidate for public office; and

{(e) Any property sold to the organization for which an
exemption is claimed is used by the organization in this State in
furtherance of the religious, charitable or educational purposes of
the organization. See NRS 372.3261(5).

2. CHARITABLE ORGANIZATIONS
A qualifying charitable organization is one for which:
(a) The sole or primary purpose of the organization is to:

(1) Advance a public purpose, donate or render
gratuitously or at a reduced rate a substantial portion of its services
| to the persons who are the subjects of its charitable services, and
benefit a substantial and indefinite class of persons who are the
legitimate subjects of charity;




(2) Provide services that are otherwise required to
be provided by a local government, this State or the Federal
Government; or

(3) Operate a hospital or medical facility licensed
pursuant to chapter 449 or 450 of NRS; and

(c) The organization is operating in this State.
3. EDUCATIONAL ORGANIZATIONS
A qualifying educational organization is one for which:
(a) The sole or primary purpose of the organization is to:

(1) Provide athletic, cultural or social activities for
children;

(2) Provide displays or performances of the visual
or performing arts to members of the general public;

(3) Provide instruction and disseminate information
on subjects beneficial to the community;

(4) Operate a school, college or university located
in this State that conducts regular classes and provides courses of
study required for accreditation or licensing by the State Board of
Education or the Commission on Postsecondary Education, or for
membership in the Northwest Association of Schools and of
Colleges and Universities;

(5) Serve as a local or state apprenticeship
committee to advance programs of apprenticeship in this State; or

(6) Sponsor programs of apprenticeship in this State
through a trust created pursuant to 29 U.S.C. § 186.

4. RELIGIOUS ORGANIZATIONS.
A qualifying religious organization is one for which:

(a) The sole or primary purpose of the organization is the operation of a
church, synagogue or other place of religious worship at which nonprofit
religious services and activities are regularly conducted. Such an
organization includes, without limitation, an integrated auxiliary or
affiliate of the organization, men's, women's or youth groups established




by the organization, a school or mission society operated by the
organization, an organization of local units of a church and a convention
or association of churches.

APPLICANT INFORMATION:

Name of Organization: Nevada Rural Counties RSVP Program, fne. = - =

Place of Incorporation: Carson City, Nevada - = -

conipliance with requiréments. applicable to all organizations.

Explain the purpose of your organization and how it mests the requiremerits for a
charitable, ¢ducational or religious purpose.

The Nevada Rural Counties RSVP Program, Inc. (RSVP) is a self-sponsared 501(c)(3)
organization with a volunteer Board of Directors that has been serving rural Nevada
counties for over 43 years. RSVP has a demonstrated record of outstanding service
which has improved the lives of seniors and strengthened communities through service
and volunteering; and helped Nevada’s elders remain independent at home where they
can age in place, maintain a healthy quality of life, and remain a vital part of their
communities.

RSVP*s Mission is to help frail, homebound, and low-income seniors remain
independent by providing high quality programs which allow them to stay in their
homes with dignity. Additionally, RSV coordinates a volunteer network of seniors who
use their skills and talents to provide support to community agencies and address
community needs through service.

RSVP’s direct service programs are part of a care-partnership with the care recipient at
- the center of the relationship. The family, volunteers, healthcare professionals and the
community all work together to provide for one another in the partnership.

RSVP volunteers are carefully cultivated and supported, and well prepared for their
assignments with orientation and ongoing trainings. Services for care recipients include
assistance with everyday needs such as escorted door-to-door transportation for
medical/dental visits, to pick up prescriptions, socialization activities, or grocery
shopping; respite care; companionship; pro-bono legal services; homemakers; access to
food pantries, commodity food distribution, and farmet’s market coupons; personal
emergency response Systems; resistance exercise training; veterans assistance; and
providing volunteers to assist agencies to achieve their goals.

Identify the amount of grant funds you are requesting. ($_7,050 ).




Explain the purposes for which you will use the grant funds if awarded.

Our funding request of $7,050 will support the continuation and initiation of essential
programs for Storey County seniors, Veterans, adults with disabilities and caregivers
who come to us for help.

With the addition of our new Field Rep. in Lockwood/River District we will work to
identify and recruit volunteers to assist more elders utilizing the full complement of our
available programs.

The Project is a3 comprehensive and collaborative approach for Storey County
seniors which offers essential and life-saving activities, as follows:

(1) Independent Living Programs:

» Home Companion Program provides essential daily services such as talking to and
spending time with seniors. Volunteers provide the emotional support,
socialization, and human contact that is necessary for the homebound elderly

» Lifeline emergency response system — provides an emergency response system that
gives immediate access to emergency services.

o Homemaker Services — provides frail homebound seniors assistance with
housekeeping such as dusting, kitchen and bathroom cleaning, floor maintenance,
laundry and linen changing,

e Respite Care Program - provides 24/7 caregivers who are exhausted, overwhelmed
and stressed with regular breaks to provide relief and help them continue the care of
their loved ones who are elderly as well as care for adults with a disability.
Volunteers provide breaks 2 to 4 hours or more per week.

o Transportation Program - provides escorted door-to-door safe transportation for
seniors and disabled persons giving them access to critical services including
medical appointments, prescription/pharmacy pick up, grocery shopping, and
socialization or wellness events.

e CARE Law Program - provides pro bono legal services for eligible seniors. Areas
include estate planning, durable power of attorney, wills, guardianships, Medicare,
Medicaid, help with debt problems, probate issues and elder abuse issues.

¢ Veterans “Volunteers in Partnership” - provides veterans with access to services,
RSVP’s Independent Living programs, and works with the NV Office of Suicide
Prevention for suicide awareness.

» Resistance Exercise Program - provides light weights training; helping to keep
seniors active and healthy, improving mobility, cognitive ability, and muscle
strength.

e Farmer’s Market Nutrition Program - provides free coupons each summer for fresh
fruits and vegetables, serving as a nutritional supplement for eligible seniors.




(2) Volunteer Stations:

Community volunteer stations — RSVP volunteers provide a variety of services to
Federal, State, and local government agencies; non-profits; and health care
facilities.

New volunteers receive orientation and training from Program staff before being
placed at a volunteer station. Volunteers attend annual elder abuse and driver's
education and safety training. Annual and quarterly training events provide
volunteers with engaging speakers and information about how to work with elderly
clients on a wide variety of topics ranging from elder abuse, Alzheimer's disease,
communication skills, COPD, diabetes, dealing with different personality types,
CPR training, legal issues relating to senior citizens, and much more so that
volunteers can continue to provide high quality in-home companionship, Respite
care, escorted transportation, and Lifeline emergency response telephone system
installations and maintenance services to frail, homebound seniors.

RSVP’s Independent Living programs assist care recipients (clients) to remain self-
sufficient and in their own homes with dignity where they are happiest and healthiest,
thus avoiding costly and premature institutionalization. These services contribute to their
overall wellbeing and provide access to services that they would otherwise not have
access to because of no family supports, and lack of funds to pay for the additional help
needed to remain self-sufficient.

An award of grant funds must be by the adoption of a resolution of the boards of county
commissioners. NRS 244.1505 Attached is a form of such a resolution. Please prepare a
resolution in accordance with the attached form which grants the funds requested and
submit the resolution along with this application.




' _ Attachment 2

et EL
ATHEQFFICEQFIHE -
JECRETARY OF 8TATEIOF THE

. : T T
JUL 1819 NEVADA RURAL COUNTIEE RSVP PROGRAM, INC.

JBYLAJLAY  SECRETARY OF GTATE

gw:é ‘ - : .
ﬁggé?éqa_ OW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS: That .we, the undersigned, all
residents of the State of Nevada, havse

oF whowm are citizens and
iated ourselves together for the purpess

this day voluntarily assoc
of arganlzing a corporation, not formed for pec niary profit, and

without capital stook, undexr the 1aws of the State of Nevada, that
is, Sactlons 82.006 to 82.690, incluslve,-Nevad Revised Statutes,

being desirous of becoming thk sponsor required
1led ACTION to assume tThe adminigtration
da Rural Counties RSVP Program now based

AND FURTHER,
by the federal agency oa
and financing of the Nava
in carson Clty, Nevada,

AND FURTHER, being desirous of coming under the provisions of

iﬂﬁﬁhfgggﬂéhgm301 (c)..{3) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1954 (or the
=R Sorrddponging: provision® of any futﬁrer'"’Lfni-f;éH*ﬁﬁ@fﬁ%e"s"——iﬁfé’rh&-}—’fm‘??‘ﬂ?

e REE TR LW T O Pr-federal taxexenpt-statugymr e

WE DO HEREBY ASSOCIATE QURSELVES, and make, subscribe and

agree to the following:

ARTICLE I

a. THE NAME OF THE CORPORATION. The name of the Corporation
shall be the Nevada Rural Counties RSVP Program, Inc.

b. PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS. The principal place of

pusiness shall be leocated in Garson city, Nevada.

RTICLE II

The name of the nhatural person OX

4 as the corporation’s resident agent, and the
s an office for

RESIDENT AGENT.

corporation designate
residant agent’s street address where it maintain

service of process, are as feollows:

Janlce R, Ayres
801 N. Divislon S5t. .
carson City, NV. 89703




! \ ARTICTR IIX

TYPE OF CORPORATIO

N. That this corpeoration is a non-profit
coxrporation, . '

ARTICLE IV

. &, GENERAL PURPOSES OF THE COREORATION, The nature of the
business, or objects or purposes propased .to be transacted,
promoted or carried on by the corporation, are:

1, To provide the SPONSORING AGENCY authorized and regqulred
.under PITLE IT of the DOMESTIC VOLUNTEER SERVICES ACT OF 1873, AS
AMENDED (PUBLIC LaW 93-113), for the benefit of the Nevada Rural
Countles RSVP Program, based in Carson City, Nevada,

That the corporation may engage in gny lawful activity,
subject to any expressed limitations expressed herein, within the
objects or purposes of this corporation, and as allowed under the
Nopprofit Corporation Law of the State of Navada.

Fatigarpid LR St R R L L AT e i TR R T T e R e e R RO ey et e

AT Y PP ER AT HACTROH REQUEREMENTS S tdcorporationshali-DBavewsewr—r—
all the powers and responsibilities established by the federal
agency ACTION, shall assume administration of, and manage the

Nevada Rural Counties RSVP Program in a way that ensures .fiscal and

programpatic guality controls, compliance with ACTION policles and
procedures, and accomplishment of stated goals. This corporation
may not delegate or contract.thig responsibility to ancther entity

without the prior approval of ACTION.

c. FEDERAL INTERNAL REVENUE REQUIREMENTS. Said corporation is
organized exclusively for charitable purposas, including, for such
purposas, the making of distributions to organizations that guallfy
as exempt organizatilans under Section 501 (o) (3) of the Internal
Revenue Code of 1954 (or the. corresponding provision of any future

United States Internal Revenue Law).

No part of the net earnings of the corporation shall lnure to
the benafit of, or be distributable to lts members, trustees,
officers, or other private persons, except that the corporation
shall ke authorized and empowerad to pay reasdnable ,compensation
for services rendered and to make payments and distributions in
furtherance of the- purposes .set forth in dits Articlea of
Inogrporation. . No substantial part of the activities of the
corporation shall be the carrying on.of propaganda, or otherwise
attempting to influence legislation, and the corporation shall not
participate imn, or intervene in (including the publishing ox

'distribution of statements) any 'political campaign on behalf of any

candidats for public office.

“Fe




Notwithstanding any other provision of these articles, the
corporation shall not carry on any other activities not permitted
to be carried on (a) by a corporation exempt from Federal Income
max under Sectlon 501 (e) {3) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1984
(or the corresponding provision of any future United States

Internal Revenua Law}.

RTICLE_V

GOVERNING BOARD, ' The mewbers of this corporation shall be the
officers and members of the Board of Directors, and the business
affairs of the corporation shall be managed by the Board of

Directors, who . shall have the responsibility of establishing
q:mrm"policiESnfor“tbe-corporation. The Board of .Directors shall-cppq@sﬁnxJEz:r?

mﬂﬁ—-&-—-ﬂm o = e

_ The numker, hames and post office addresses, residence oOr
business of the first hoard- of directors, are the followilngs:

430 amn o et ey R L SR

1. Xatherine MacDopnald
1521 Pinto Ct. .
carson City, NV. 89701

2. Jerry Thurman
208 N. curxy, #105
carson City, NV, 88703

3, Frank Sharp
P.O. Box 2023
carson City, NV. 89702

4. John Barlow
1182 Kenny Way
carson City, NV. 89701

B, ¢chariles Danlels
2898 Hwy. 50 East
carson City, Nv. 83701




ARTICLE VI

all have the power to adopt by-

laws prescribing the duties of the officers and agents of the
corporation, detalled organization and. procedures of the
corporation, the #ime and manner of its meetings, and any and all
details Incident to its organlzation and the efficient conduct and
' management of its affalrs. oSuch by-laws of the corporation shall,
thereafter, be amended only by an affirmative vote of the majority

of the members of the board of directors.

BYrIAWS; The corporation sh

ARTICLE VIT

. 7, ~ LNCORPORATORS The names and post.office:addrgsges,,;pﬁidénca
or.buainess, of each of thgﬂégggrporq&gggﬂgigging +he axticles of

incorporation are as follows:

e Attt

" 4. Katherine MacDonald

" 1521 Pinte Ct.
carson City, NV. 89702

2. Jerry Thurman
308 N. curry, #1085
carson City, NV. 88703

3. Frank Shaxrp
) P.0. Box 2023
carson Clty, NV. 89702

4. John Barlow

1182 Xenny Way
Carson.City, NV. 83701

5. Chafles baniels
2898 Hwy. 50 East
Ccarson, City, NV. . 89701

- ff 1




ARTICLE VIIT

EERPETUAL‘EXISTENCE. The corporation is to hav
existence. :

TN WITNESS '~ WHEREOF, Wwe have hereunto set our hands as
Tncorporators, this date! \'EJLL;I IG‘! ;::I.‘.z?‘t/ . .

- —~ | .

KE&-D\UL&M m& o &ﬂL _Yothewma MAS poredd,
CTf?hff??ﬂf?f? = - . Turndy THUMAR

: x_-l‘;bf.lm JA JB/;):;'

A tssded Aasng

o—

e a perpetual

M‘Lﬁl-rf ToWa [BamLO®D

ahanies Danols
F,e.puu- SHARP

e

T
- - STATE OF NEVADA )
s et mdton epd e A wp e du i 88 . e e me m————
CARSON CITY )
on this date! 154 2~ , before me,

. the undersigned, a Notary Publio; personally appeared-

1. Katherine MacbDonald
2. Jexry Thurman

3. Frahk Sharp

4, John Barlow

§. . Charles Daniels

¥nown to me to ba the persons described in and who executed the
foregoing ARTICLES OF TNCORPORATION, and who acknowledgad to me
that they sxecuted the.same freely and voluntarily and for the uses

and purposes therein mentioned..

WITNESS MY HAND AND OFFICIAL SEAL. .

NOTARY PUBLIC . . .

=5 JOARSON'CITY ¢ [
My Appi. Bxpires Gct, b1, 15834y

I LT A

]
L
4

e . N vaoppm e




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: October 16,2018 Estimate of time required: 15
minutes

Agenda: Consent [ ]| Regular agenda [ X ] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: Discussion/Possible Action regarding Resolution No. 18-507 granting the Storey
County Senior Citizens Center the sum of $135,000.00 for the purpose of maintaining the
Storey County Senior Center and for providing programs and services to seniors to promote
independent and healthy lifestyles

2. Recommended motion: [ move to approve Resolution 18-507 granting the Storey County
Senior Citizens Center the sum of $135,000.00 for the purpose of maintaining the Storey
County Senior Center and for providing programs and services to seniors to promote
independent and healthy lifestyles

3. Prepared by: Keith Loomis
Department: District Attorney’s Office Telephone: 847-0964
4. Staff summary: Under NRS 244.1505 a grant of money to a non-profit organization must be
made by resolution of the Board of County Commissioners which specifies the purpose of
the grant and any conditions imposed on the expenditure of the granted money. The

proposed Resolution meets the requirements of the statute

3. 5. Supporting materials: Grant Application of Storey County Senior Citizens Center.;
Resolution No. 18-506; NRS 244.1505 NRS 372.3261

6. Fiscal impact:

Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller

7. Legal review required:

KL  District Attorney

8. Reviewed by:

Department Head Department Name:
County Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
] Approved [] Approved with Modifications
[] Denied [] Continued

b IK




RESOLUTION NO. 18-507

RESOLUTION Authorizing Grant of Money to the STOREY COUNTY SENIOR
CITIZEN’S CENTER for the purpose of maintaining the Storey
County Sentor Center, a county owned building, while providing
programs and services to seniors to promote independent and
healthy lifestyles.

WHEREAS, NRS 244.1505 authorizes a Board of County Commissioners to grant
money to a nonprofit organization created for religious, charitable or educational purposes to be

expended for an authorized purpose; and

WHEREAS, a grant to a non-profit organization must be made by a resolution of the
board of county commissioners which must specify the purpose of the grant and any conditions

imposed upon the expenditure of the granted moneys; and,

WHEREAS, an organization qualifies as an organization for charitable purposes if the
sole or primary purpose of the organization is to advance a public purpose or provide services
that are otherwise required to be provided by a local government and the organization is

operating in this state, See NRS 372.3261; and,

WHEREAS, an organization that qualifies as an organization for charitable purposes

must also meet the requirements that:

{a) No part of the net earnings of any such organization inures to the benefit of a private
shareholder, individual or entity;

(b) The business of the organization is not conducted for profit;

(c¢) No substantial part of the business of the organization is devoted to the advocacy of
any political principle or the defeat or passage of any state or federal legislation;

1




(d) The organization does not participate or intervene in any political campaign on behalf
of or in opposition to any candidate for public office; and,

(e} Any property sold to the organization for which an exemption is claimed is used by
the organization in this State in furtherance of the religious, charitable or educational

purposes of the organization.
See NRS 372.3261(5); and,

WHEREAS, the STOREY COUNTY SENIOR CITIZEN’S CENTER is a Nevada
domestic non-profit corporation operating in the State of Nevada which otherwise qualifies as a

charitable organization authorized to receive grants from the County for a public purpose; and,

WHEREAS, STOREY COUNTY SENIOR CITIZEN’S CENTER desires to obtain a
grant from Storey County in the amount of ONE HUNDRED THIRTY-FIVE THOUSAND
DOLLARS {$135,000.00) for the purpose of maintaining the Storey County Senior Center, a
county owned building, while providing programs and services to seniors to promote

independent and healthy lifestyles; and,

WHEREAS, the use of the money for the purposes identified does serve a public

purpose; and,

WHEREAS, the Board of County Commissioners of Storey County has previously

appropriated funds for the requested grant by approval of the County budget;




NOW THEREFORE IS IT HEREBY RESOLVED AS FOLLOWS;

The Board of County Commissioners of Storey County does hereby grant to STOREY
COUNTY SENIOR CITIZEN’S CENTER a sum not to exceed ONE HUNDRED THIRTY-
FIVE THOUSAND DOLLARS ($135,000.00) for the specific purpose of maintaining the Storey
County Senior Center, while providing programs and services to seniors to promote independent

and healthy lifestyles.

ADOPTED this 18th day of SEPTEMBER, 2018.

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF STOREY COUNTY

By:

MARSHALL McBRIDE, Chairman

ATTEST:

VANESSA STEPHENS
Storey County Clerk/Treasurer




STOREY COUNTY SENIOR CENTER

APPLICATION FOR GRANT FUNDS

Pursuant to NRS 244.15085, a board of county commissioners is authorized to
provide money to non-profit organizations created for religious, charitable or
educational purposes. The organizations requesting grant funds must meet the
requirements sct forth below.

1. REQUIREMENTS FOR ALL ORGANIZATIONS

In order to qualify as a religious, charitable or educational organization
authorized to receive moneys from the boards of county commissioners, the organization
must meet all of the following requirements:

{a) No part of the net earnings of any such organization
inures to the benefit of a private shareholder, individual or entity;

(b) The business of the organization is not conducted for
profit;

(c) No substantial part of the business of the organization is
devoted to the advocacy of any political principle or the defeat or
passage of any state or federal legislation;

(d) The organization does not participate or intervene in
any political campaign on behalf of or in opposition to any
candidate for public office; and

(e) Any property sold to the organization for which an
exemption is claimed is used by the organization in this State in
furtherance of the religious, charitable or educational purposes of
the organization. See NRS 372.3261(5).

2. CHARITABLE ORGANIZATIONS
A qualifying charitable organization is one for which:
(a) The sole or primary purpose of the organization is to:

(1) Advance a public purpose, donate or render
gratuitously or at a reduced rate a substantial portion of its services
to the persons who are the subjects of its charitable services, and
benefit a substantial and indefinite class of persons who are the
legitimate subjects of charity;




(2) Provide services that are otherwise required to
be provided by a local government, this State or the Federal
Government; or

(3) Operate a hospital or medical facility licensed
pursuant to chapter 449 or 450 of NRS; and

(c} The organization is operating in this State.
3. EDUCATIONAL ORGANIZATIONS
A qualifying educational organization is one for which:
(a) The sole or primary purpose of the organization is to:

(1) Provide athletic, cultural or social activities for
children;

(2) Provide displays or performances of the visual
or performing arts to members of the general public;

(3) Provide instruction and disseminate information
on subjects beneficial to the community;

(4) Operate a school, college or university located
in this State that conducts regular classes and provides courses of
study required for accreditation or licensing by the State Board of
Education or the Commission on Postsecondary Education, or for
membership in the Northwest Association of Schools and of
Colleges and Universities;

(5) Serve as a local or state apprenticeship
committee to advance programs of apprenticeship in this State; or

(6) Sponsor programs of apprenticeship in this State
through a trust created pursuant to 29 U.S.C. § 186.

4. RELIGIOUS ORGANIZATIONS.
A qualifying religious organization is one for which:

{a) The sole or primary purpose of the organization is the operation of a
church, synagogue or other place of religious worship at which nonprofit
religious services and activities are regularly conducted. Such an
organization includes, without limitation, an integrated auxiliary or
affiliate of the organization, men's, women's or youth groups established




by the organization, a school or mission society operated by the
organization, an organization of local units of a church and a convention
or association of churches.

APPLICANT INFORMATION:

Name of Organization: _Storey County Senigr Center

Place of Incorporation: ___ Virginia City, Nevada

Attach a copy of your Articles of Incorporation or other document demonstrating
compliance with requirements applicable to all organizations.

Explain the purpose of your organization and how it meets the requirements for a
charitable, educational or religious purpose.

The Storey County Senior Center supports and enriches the lives of Storey

County seniors by providing programs and services that promote independent and
healthy lifestyles. The nutrition program is the only program of its kind in the area.

Identify the amount of grant funds you are requesting. $135,000.00

Explain the purposes for which you will use the grant funds if awarded.

Any grant funding that is provided will go to things that are needed in the senior
center and range from kitcher equipment, vehicles, updating out of date supplies.

An award of grant funds must be by the adoption of a resolution of the boards of county
commissioners. NRS 244.1505 Attached is a form of such a resolution. Please prepare a
resolution in accordance with the attached form which grants the funds requested and
submit the resolution along with this application.




LB - - B I - .U ¥ D U P - R

o B o T 1 T o B I o T o L e T P
L U T o N — B = - . B R A O T = o

h

ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION
OF
STOREY COUNTY SENIOR CITIZENS CENTER
A COOPERATIVE ASSOCIATION

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS:

That we, the undersigned, being all of lawful age and citizens of the United States and of the
State of Nevada, do hereby associate ourselves together for the purpose of forming a cooperative
association, to conduct, maintain and operate a Senior Citizens Center in the County of Storey, State
of Nevada, under and pursuant to Sections 81.170 through 81.270 inclusive, of the Nevada Revised
Statutes and do hereby certify:

ARTICLE 1: The name of the association shall be:

STOREY COUNTY SENIOR CITIZEN CENTER

ARTICLE 2: The association shall not have or issue any capital stock and is formed for the
purpose of promoting association of its members for their mutual welfare and for business,
education, industrial, benevolent, or social purposes, although not conducted for profit.

ARTICLE 3: The private property of the members of this association shall not be liable for
its debts or any judgments entered against the association.

ARTICLE 4: The business of the association shall be conducted at its principal office at the
Senior Citizens Center in Virginia City, Storey County, Nevada.

ARTICLE 5: The existence of this association is to be for a term of fifty (50) years, unless
sooner dissolved according to the law. In the event of dissolution of this association, existing funds
shall be returned to Storey County and/or Division of Aging Services.

ARTICLE 6: The governing body of this association shall be styled Directors and shall be
seven (7) in number. The names and residences of those selected for the first year shall be as
follows: '

Kathryn W, Douglass, Resident Agent, 424 South B Street, #D, Virginia City, Nevada 89440

Barbara Smith, Chairman of the Board, 28 Stewart Street, Virginia City, Nevada 89440




MG s N B N e

[ N R o o N o R = T o e O T N S T o S g VA
L - e o T = B - < B L - O N S T

Janet Perry, Secretary, 53 Stewart Street, Virginia City, Nevada 89440

Doreen Bacus, Treasurer, 99 Toll Road, Virginia City, Nevada 89440

Dorothy Crider, 61 North B Street, Virginia City, Nevada 89440

Doris J. Jones, 3250 Cartwright Road, Virginia City Highlands, NV 89521

Janice Kincaide, 220 South P Street, Virginia City, Nevada 89440

Rose Hessemer, 21655 Palomino Road, Virginia City Highlands, Nevada 89521

ARTICLE 7: The amount which each member shall pay upon admission as a membership
fee is the sum of ONE DOLLAR ($1.00) and each member signing the articles has actually paid such
sum.

ARTICLE 8: The interest and right of each member in this association shall be equal.

ARTICLE 9: The bylaws of this association shall be adopted by the Directors named in the
articles of association and by the membership of the association and may thereafter be amended or
repealed by any means provided in the bylaws,

In witness whereof those persons forming this association have hereunto set their hands, this

2 “day of M Wy , 2005.

KATI-IR% W, DOUGLASS d

%ﬁ?ﬂw i

EN BACUS
Mor virv iy

Abr AveiLATLE
ROSIE HESSEMER




O N S R W By

MO RN BN RO RN e e e e e e e b e e
0 ~m & L B W R = S W o - ook B R =D

STATE OF NEVADA )
COUNTY OF STOREY ; _

On this_{2% dayof MM , 2005, before me, the undersigned, a notary
public in and for the County of Storey, State of Nevada, duly commissioned and swomn, personally
appeared Kathryn W. Douglass, Barbara Smith, Janet Perry, Doreen Bacus, Dorothy Crider, Doris

s5,

J. Jones, and Janice Kincaide, and Rosie Hessemer known to me (or proved to me) to be the persons
whose names are subscribed to the within instrument, and acknowledged that they executed the
same.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed my official seal in the
County of Storey, State of Nevada, the day and year of this certificate first written above.

gﬂf !

NOTARY PUBLIC

f

b e e .
SR EILEEN F. HERRING T,

Y Appt. Recordeq in STOREY :
My ASEL. Exp. May 15, 2005

N




CORPORATE CHARTER

I, DEAN HELLER, the duly elected and qualified Nevada Secretary of State, do hereby certify that
STOREY COUNTY SENIOR CITIZENS CENTER, did on December 6, 2005, file in this

office the original Articles of Incorporation; that said Articles of Incorporation are now on file and
of record in the office of the Secretary of State of the State of Nevada, and further, that said
Articles contain all the provisions required by the law of said State of Nevada.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my
hand and affixed the Great Seal of State, at my office

on December 15, 2005.

Dol

DEAN HELLER

AdE PR




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: October 16, 2018 Estimate of time reguired: 5 minutes

Agenda: Consent [ ] Regular agenda [ X ] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: Discussion/Possible Action regarding Resolution No. 18-508 granting the St. Mary’s
Art Center, a non-profit entity, a sum not to exceed $60,000.00 for the purpose of preserving
the St. Mary’s Art Center, a County-owned building and supporting arts and culture through
education and cultural offerings

2. Recommended motion: I move to approve Resolution 18-508 granting the St. Mary’s Art
Center Inc. a sum not top exceed $60,000.00 for the purpose of preserving the St. Mary’s Art
Center, a County-owned building and supporting arts and culture through education and
cultural offerings

3. Prepared by: Keith Loomis
Department: District Attorney’s Office Telephone: 847-0964

4. Staff summayy: Under NRS 244.1505 a grant of money to a non-profit organization must be
made by resolution of the Board of County Commissioners which specifies the purpose of
the grant and any conditions imposed on the expenditure of the granted money. The
proposed Resolution meets the requirements of the statute

3. 5. Supporting materials: Grant Application of St. Mary’s Art Center Inc.; Resolution
No. 18-508; NRS 244,1505 NRS 372.3261

6. Fiscal impact:
Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller

7. Legal review required:

KL  District Attorney

. Reviewed by:

Department Head Department Name:
County Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[ ] Approved (] Approved with Modifications
| Denied (1 Continued

(K-




RESOLUTION NO. 18-508

RESOLUTION Authorizing Grant of Money to ST. MARY'S ART CENTER for
the purpose of preserving the St. Mary’s Art Center, a county
owned building, and supporting arts and culture through education
and cultural offerings.

WHEREAS, NRS 244.1505 authorizes a Board of County Commissioners to grant
money to a nonprofit organization created for religious, charitable or educational purposes to be

expended for an authorized purpose; and

WHEREAS, a grant to a non-profit organization must be made by a resolution of the
board of county commissioners which must specify the purpose of the grant and any conditions

imposed upon the expenditure of the granted moneys; and,

WHEREAS, an organization qualifies as an organization for charitable purposes if the
sole or primary purpose of the organization is to advance a public purpose or provide services
that are otherwise required to be provided by a local government and the organization is

operating in this state, See NRS 372.3261; and,

WHEREAS, an organization that qualifies as an organization for charitable purposes

must also meet the requirements that:

{(a) No part of the net earnings of any such organization inures to the benefit of a private
shareholder, individual or entity;

(b) The business of the organization is not conducted for profit;

(c) No substantial part of the business of the organization is devoted to the advocacy of

any political principle or the defeat or passage of any state or federal legislation;




(d) The organization does not participate or intervene in any political campaign on behalf
of or in opposition to any candidate for public office; and,

(e) Any property sold to the organization for which an exemption is claimed is used by
the organization in this State in furtherance of the religious, charitable or educational

purposes of the organization.
NRS 372.3261(5); and,

WHEREAS, the ST. MARY’S ART CENTER is a Nevada domestic non-profit
corporation operating in the State of Nevada which otherwise qualifies as a charitable

organization authorized to receive grants from the County for a public purpose; and,

WHEREAS, ST. MARY’S ART CENTER desires to obtain a grant from Storey County
in the amount of SIXTY THOUSAND DOLLARS ($60,000.00) for the purpose of preserving
the St. Mary’s Art Center, a county owned building, and supporting arts and culture through

education and cultural offerings; and,

WHEREAS, the use of the money for the purposes identified does serve a public

purpose; and,

WHEREAS, the Board of County Commissioners of Storey County has previously

appropriated funds for the requested grant by approval of the County budget;




NOW THEREFORE IS IT HEREBY RESOLVED AS FOLLOWS;

The Board of County Commissioners of Storey County does hereby grant to ST. MARY’S ART
CENTER a sum not to exceed SIXTY THOUSAND DOLLARS ($60,000.00) for the specific
purposes of preserving the St. Mary’s Art Center, and supporting arts and culture through

education and cultural offerings.

ADOPTED this 18 day of SEPTEMBER, 2018.

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF STOREY COUNTY

By:

MARSHALL McBRIDE, Chairman

ATTEST:

VANESSA STEPHENS
Storey County Clerk/Treasurer




APPLICATION FOR GRANT FUNDS

Pursuant to NRS 244.1505, a board of county commissioners is authorized to
provide money to non-profit organizations created for religious, charitable or
educational purposes. The organizations requesting grant funds must meet the
requirements set forth below.

1. REQUIREMENTS FOR ALL ORGANIZATIONS

In order to qualify as a religious, charitable or educational organization
authorized to receive moneys from the boards of county commissioners, the organization
must meet all of the following requirements:

(a) No part of the net earnings of any such organization
inures to the benefit of a private shareholder, individual or entity;

(b) The business of the organization is not conducted for
profit;

(¢) No substantial part of the business of the organization is
devoted to the advocacy of any political principle or the defeat or
passage of any state or federal legislation;

(d) The organization does not participate or intetvene in
any political campaign on behalf of or in opposition to any
candidate for public office; and

(e) Any property sold to the organization for which an
exemption is claimed is used by the organization in this State in
furtherance of the religious, charitable or educational purposes of
the organization. See NRS 372.3261(5).

2. CHARITABLE ORGANIZATIONS
A qualifying charitable organization is one for which:
(a) The sole or primary purpose of the organization is to:

(1) Advance a public purpose, donate or render
gratuitously or at a reduced rate a substantial portion of its services
to the persons who are the subjects of its charitable services, and
benefit a substantial and indefinite class of persons who are the
legitimate subjects of charity;




(2) Provide services that are otherwise required to
be provided by a local government, this State or the Federal
Government; or

(3) Operate a hospital or medical facility licensed
pursuant to chapter 449 or 450 of NRS; and

(c) The organization is operating in this State.
3. EDUCATIONAL ORGANIZATIONS
A qualifying educational organization is one for which:
(a) The sole or primary purpose of the organization is to:

(1) Provide athletic, cultural or social activities for
children;

(2) Provide displays or performances of the visual
or performing arts to members of the general public;

(3) Provide instruction and disseminate information
on subjects beneficial to the community;

(4) Operate a school, college or university located
in this State that conducts regular classes and provides courses of
study required for accreditation or licensing by the State Board of
Education or the Commission on Postsecondary Education, or for
membership in the Northwest Association of Schools and of
Colleges and Universities;

(5) Serve as a local or state apprenticeship
committee to advance programs of apprenticeship in this State; or

(6) Sponsor programs of apprenticeship in this State
through a trust created pursuant to 29 U.S.C. § 186.

4. RELIGIOUS ORGANIZATIONS.
A qualifying religious organization is one for which:

(a) The sole or primary purpose of the organization is the operation of a
church, synagogue or other place of religious worship at which nonprofit
religious services and activities are regularly conducted. Such an
organization includes, without limitation, an integrated auxiliary or
affiliate of the organization, men's, women's or youth groups established




by the organization, a school or mission society operated by the
organization, an organization of local units of a church and a convention
or association of churches.

APPLICANT INFORMATION:
Name of Organization:  St. Mary’s Art Center
Place of Incorporation:  Storey County

Attach a copy of your Articles of Incorporation or other document demonstrating
compliance with requirements applicable to all organizations.

Explain the purpose of your organization and how it meets the requirements for a
charitable, educational or religious purpose.

St. Mary’s Art Center is a 501-c3 non-profit with a primary mission to Support arts and
culture through education and cultural offerings. We are funded through Storey
County’s consistent and critical annual support, grants, donations, fundraisers, art sales
and property rentals for creative groups and special events.

We are proud to have partnered with other local non-profits such as the Historic Fourth
Ward School Museum, Senior Center, Cemetery Foundation, Community Chest and
Piper’s Opera House, among others, to work toward a common goal of collaborating,
expanding and expanding our services and programs to the communities and visitors.

We offer creative spaces for children, professional and novice artists to come, stay,
learn and create through individual creation, classes, workshops, residencies or
retreats. Our facilities include seven art galleries, one historical exhibition (coming in
April 2018), sixteen guest rooms, two kitchens, five and a half baths, an art studio, print
room and photography dark room.

- Imaginations Children’s Art Programs

- Professional Art Classes, Workshops and Retreats

- Art Galleries with Three Rotating Exhibitions per Year

- Permanent Historical Exhibition/Museum Exhibit (opening April 2018)
- Historical and Art Tours

- Art Receptions, Art Talks, Holiday Faire

- Artist Residency Programs




- Community Events & Classes (Easter Fgg Hunt, Halloween Trick or Treat with
Crafis, Canvas & Cocktails, Culinary Classes with Chef Pete, etc.)

OUR MISSION:

“To build upon our art and cultural achievement by nurturing and supporting

artists, strengthening existing cultural programs throughout the region and introducing
new ventures that will enable us to continue as a vibrant arts destination with strong
links to our unique history.”

Identify the amount of grant funds you are requesting. Sixty Thousand Dollars
($60,000.00).

Explain the purposes for which you will use the grant funds if awarded.

Our organization is located within the former St. Mary Louise Hospital and Storey
County Hospital, owned by Storey County. This four story, 1876 historical building
requires a significant amount of ongoing maintenance and restoration to preserve the

property.

Additionally, our programs provide a myriad of ways for the community and tourists 1o
enjoy the art center at minimal cost to ensure it is accessible. Our 2018 and onward
goals include expanding the programs we offer lo those that may need financial support
or relief Art, culture and history are cornerstones in Virginia City and the Comstock
and we aim to expand our Imaginations Children’s Programs and Artist Residency
Program offerings and make them even more accessible.

We request Storey County funding support for the following items:

1) Support operational expenses such as utilities, insurance, building and property
maintenance, repairs and other expenses required to keep open, care Jfor and protect
this important historical property.

2) Allow us to focus more of our program and donation revenue on program
expansions, opening additional opportunities to the community and artists to enjoy the
programs mentioned above as well as personnel employment expenses, rather than
primarily applying our limited program revenues lo repairs and restoration of the
building which is owned by Storey County.

2) Address items that will be defined and prioritized through the Limited Structure
Report to be generated by Melvin Green & Associates as part of the 2017-2018
SHPO/Storey County Grant.




Examples of Anticipated Items on the Limited Structures Report (not included in
the current 2017-2018 SHPO Grant and Storey County Scope of Work), but
which will also need to be addressed, even if not included in the Report:

a) Window Repair and Restoration. Several of the windows have broken panes
and the frames are deteriorating badly. Significant work needs to be done to
ensure these windows are salvaged and in proper working order.

b} Patch and paint the exterior woodwork such as the 4" floor clapboard siding,
doors and windows.

¢) Re-point weak brick and mortar sections of the building exterior, including
brick chimney deterioration and crumbling which has recently begun to come
down onto the ground during high winds.

d) Replace and/or repair the original wood kitchen floors (or worst boards)
which are no longer able to be refinished and are at extreme risk of breaking
through when walked upon. Two boards have broken recently from walking

traffic.

e) Repair and improve two of the original bathrooms which have significant
plumbing challenges such as unstable fixtures, leaks and exposed piping.

) Consider additional security equipment measures for specific and regulated
card access. This is important as we have valuable assels, multiple guests and
visitors throughout the year and for Storey County IT whom is currently
occupying space on the 4" floor and has considerable and valuable assets in the
building.

3) Address any other critical emergencies or repairs within the building that may not be
included in the Limited Structures Historical Report (some mentioned above in #2)

We truly appreciate Storey County’s ongoing support of our organization and this
incredible historical property.

We thank you in advance for your consideration of conlinuing this support and allowing
us to be stewards of this gemstone in the community. The last year has seen remarkable
changes within the property such as the newly paved driveway and landscape
improvements and we look forward to continuing with this momentum to bring this
treasure to a level that not only emphasizes the beauty and purpose of the property, but
allows us to preserve and proactively protect it moving forward.

An award of grant funds must be by the adoption of a resolution of the boards of county
commissioners. NRS 244.1505 Attached is a form of such a resolution. Please prepare a




resolution in accordance with the attached form which grants the funds requested and
submit the resolution aleng with this application.




PR £ mog

R PR e R e R, L R R R O RO O e SO AR et
Lndag _ aM_,
................................................................................. hm | w.u.f ,

21018 o Xip1423g

................................................... =

o C G e B ) .
) \\u\\\\ AT
TELT61 AW IR SRBRT ™30 Kepr TR

SAY} ‘epBAIN ‘A1) UOSIED) UL 20O AW 3@ 91 3§ JO [B9§ 1eaIn) 2}

paxiye pue puey AU 195 olunazey eAeq I ‘I HTUTHM SSENLIM NI

"1)peAaN JO 211§ PiES JO

me] a3 Aq poarnbar sjoe] Jo sjuowleIs HY) [[B UIRJUOD SIPOIIY
pies 1Byl ‘Isin pue ‘eprasN JO LIS I JO AMS Jo Liejas

-09g 91} JO 2DIYO IY) UI PIOOL JO PUBR J[ij UO MOU 31u SIPNLY Pres ey} ‘wonjerodIoou] JO sIpINY [eulSuo oy

P0j0 S Ut SYLLTHI T WATHARON """ JO Rpprr e T ST UoY) WO PIp
....................................... ”.‘--..........c..u....-..:f:-... th_.Hz”&U..H.g..m.”ﬁ%ﬁ.ﬂﬂ:::.-.v----n...-..c.:..n.:..-.-';.---.-.--..-.....--.

1oy Ajn1so AGooy O “epeadN] Jo SNEIS U Jo ANEIS Jo Axeieiss YHNVHIOVMS ‘A TAM ‘I

T T

WAE T PRy LA T
mHWa.HWM\W. ‘HH‘\N vv.., - I.f..-.wﬂ«#&.a..». L MW*JY E \_W .,.._h_ am s, . \C. |
K

-

S Rt RS R0 SURIAR) B0N 611B3 R0 9 ot R L RR U D T D
; ‘



- W IYEY AWM

NUY 6 - 1973 -
ARTICLES OF INCORPORATION .\ suscrvamre.socevasy or s
ot 4§ﬁ:iL
ST. MARY'S ART CENTER o, =2 =23

KNOW ALL MFN Y THESE PRESENTS: That we, the under-
signed, have this day voluntarily associated ourselves together
for the purpose of forming a non-profit corporation under the
provisions of NRS 81,290 to 81.340, inclusive, AND WE DO HEREBY
CERTIFY:

FIRST: The name of this corporation will be the

ST. MARY'S ART CENTER

-

SECOND: The corporation's principal office for the imﬁ*'i
transaction of businecss is St. Mary's in the Mountains, virginia |
¢city, Storey Ccounty, Nevada, which is located at the corner of
E and Taylor Streets, Virginia City, Storey County, Revada, '
THIRD: The purposes of this corporation are:
. {¢) This art center shall he a non-profit corporation,
organized for educational and charitable activities, No officer,
trustee or member shall receive any pecuniary gain or profit from
the corporation.
{e) The corporation may conduct lehoolluand clasnes for
instruction and training in all of the Arts including, but not
limited to, painting, sculpture and any other related activities,
(c} To cultivate harmonivus area development in the
Arts, to collect ani1 preserve artistic productions, particularly
those relating to the VYirginia Ccity and Comstock area.
{8) This art center is a non-profit corporation
organized solely for educational or general charitable purpoaes.
It Coes not contemplate pecuniary gain or profit to the members

therevf., Upon the winding up and dissolution of this corporation, -

amay. BROONT AND WERLLA pPaan 1.

- .




. ey —— ——e ——— I pevraveny swe st Wekwe UMW WHALYGLLWID,
the remaining asscts shall be disttibﬁted to a non-profit fund,
foundation or corporation, which is organized and cperated exclu-
sively for charital:le and educational pﬁrpo-es and which has estab-
lished ite tax cxempt statur under the applicable provisions of
the Internal Revenue code, reing Section 501{c) (3), and Section
501{a), us now enforced or afterwards ame -ded. If thim corporation
holds any ramets in trust, such aszs ts sa 11 be disposed of in
such a manier as may be directed by Decree of the Diatrict Court
of the county in which this corporation's prineipal office is
located, upon petition therefcr by the Attorney General or by any
person concerned in the liquidation,

FOURTH: This corporation shall have perpetual existence
unless dissolved as lLereinafter provided.

FIFTH: The Board of Trustees may in the By-Lawa of the
corporation provide for membership in the corporation and for dues
and for selection of the trustees. '

SIXTH: The affairs cf the corporation shall be conducted
by a Board of Trustees consisting of not less than f£five (5) members
as providcd by the Bv-Lawe, who shall hoid office for one year or
until the election of their succeesors, The First Roard of Trustees
shall consiat of five (5) perscas, all of whom shall be membera of
the corporation and reasidents or prope. ty owners in Storey County,
Nevada,

SEVENTH: The Board of Trustees may adopt By-Laws con-

~#istent with these Articles for the government of the corporation,
and may alter, amend or repeal the same at any regular or special

meeting of the Board; except that in the event of amendment of the

By~Laws anc¢ expansion of the membership, the procedure by the

SAAY. SRODKE AND WELLS
FINBT MATIOWAL BANK SURDING Page 2.
ONE EAST FIRSY STREST
ARG, WEVADA

e .

N R LI O 3 R
. e - —~ . -

F e R vy

]
e e

X

e 4

Cd
— e @ - e Al

e I T

-

n

Ty

i




EIGHTI: The names and places of residence of each of

the incorporators and first poard of Trustees are as follows:

NAMES
Al:ce Byrne

Louise Curran

w=lt .0 Gray

June Page

Paul Meinecke

ADDRESSES »

North C Street :
virginia city, Nevada

S 43

W & N Streets ’%
virginia ¢’ ty, Nevada

145 North B Street
virginia (ity, Nevada

Hickey Street .
virginia Ccity, Nevada

gt. Mary's in the Mountains

Box 328, Virginia City, Nevada

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, we have hereunto subscribed our

names this -3C‘k day of _ October » 1973,

GAAY SROORE ANO WELLA
FIRST NATIONAL BANK BUILDING
oNE SABT FIRET BTRERT
NENG NEVADA

Page 3.

- W Rl

P s - Sant R

ca e . e

T




COUNTY OF )

on (Mlalyy 10 . 1973, personally appeared before

me, a Notary Public, ALICE BYRNE, LOUISE CURRAN, ALLETA GRAY, JUNE
PAGE and PAUL MEINECKE, known to me to be the persons who subscribed
to the within instrument, who acknowledged that they executed the

above instrument,

SRAY. BROONE AND WELLS - Page 4.
PIRGT NATIONAL BANK SUILDING - :
OME EAST PIRST L IRERY
AENO. NEVADA

W ams mmm e v memem e vne o e iy Sl v I e i e g i o i i . S W& < T b, e M 8 W 4




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: October 16, 2018 Estimate of time required: 30 minutes

Agenda: Consent [ | Regular agenda [X] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: Approval of Resolution 18-513 approving Notice of Completion and Acceptance of the
Virginia City Sewer Improvement Project.

2. Recommended motion: [ move to approve Resolution 18-513 Notice of Completion and
Acceptance of the Virginia City Sewer Improvement Project.

3. Prepared by: Cherie Nevin
Department: Community Relations Telephone: 847-0986

4. Staff summary: In August of 2017, you (County Commission) awarded a bid to Ames
Construction Inc. for the construction of the Virginia City Sewer Improvement.
Construction on this project began around September 11, 2017. This project is funded with
a Loan of $4,058,000 and a grant for $8,987,000 from the USDA Rural Development
Utilities Program. As of this date, our Farr West Engineering is recommending issuance of
acceptance of work and notice of completion for this project.

5. Supporting materials: Resolution 18-513
Notice of Acceptability of Work
Certificate of Substantial Completion
USDA Final Inspection Checklist

6. Fiscal impact:

Funds Available: YES Fund: USDA Comptrolier
7. Legal review required: \Lk’
" District Attorney
8. Reviewgdby:
Department Head Department Name: Commissioner’s Office
County Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[] Approved

[ Approved with Modifications
[1 Denied [

Continued

—t —

Agenda Item No. q



Ames Construction

3737 W 2100 South
Waest Valley City, UT 84120
T 801-977-8012  F 801-977-8059
Nevada Contactors License # 0023719

October 10%, 2018

Farr West Engineering 172911-AC-FWE-L002
5510 Longley Lane
Reno, Nevada 89511

Attn: Jennifer Heeran

Re:  Virginia City Wastewater Improvement Project
Ames Project #172911
Request for Certificate of Substantial Completion

Dear Mrs. Heeran:

This letter is to inform Farr West Engineering and Storey County that Ames Construction
considers the work performed for the above referenced project ready for its intended use and is
substantially complete, Ames Construction requests that Farr West Engineering issue a certificate
of Substantial Completion.

If you have any questions, please contact the undersigned at (801) 910-6040 or Seth Alexander at
(775) 384-3941.

Respectfully,
s YA
Kaleb Dale

Project Manager
Enclosures: Nene

Cc: Project File
Seth Alexander

An Equal Opportunity Employer .
Burnsville MN = Scottsdale AZ « Corona CA = Aurora CO » West Valley City UT « Carlin NV




EJCDC=

ENGINEERS JOINT CONTRACT
DOGUMENTS COMMITTEE

NOTICE OF ACCEPTABILITY OF WORK

PROJECT: Virginia City and Gold Hill Wastewater Improvement Project
OWNER: Storey County
CONTRACTOR: Ames Construction, Inc.

OWNER’S CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT IDENTIFICATION: Virginia City and Geld Hill Wastewater
Improvement Project

EFFECTIVE DATE OF THE CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT: August 11,2017
ENGINEER: Farr West Engineering

NOTICE DATE: October 16,2018

To: Storey County
Owner

And To: Ames Construction, Inc.
Contractor

From: Farr West Engineering
Engineer

The Engineer hereby gives notice to the above Owner and Contractor that Engineer has recommended final
payment of Contractor, and that the Work furnished and performed by Contractor under the above Construction
Contract is acceptable, expressly subject to the provisions of the related Contract Documents, the Agreement
between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services dated August 11, 2017, and the following terms and

conditions of this Notice:
CONDITIONS OF NOTICE OF ACCEPTABILITY OF WORK

The Notice of Acceptability of Work (“Notice™) is expressly made subject to the following terms and
conditions to which all those who receive said Notice and rely thereon agree:

1. This Notice is given with the skill and care ordinarily used by members of the engineering
profession practicing under similar conditions at the same time and in the same locality.

2. This Notice reflects and is an expression of the Engineet’s professional opinion.

3. This Notice is given as to the best of Engineer’s knowledge, information, and belief as of the
Notice Date.

EJCDC® C-626, Notice of Acceptability of Work
Copyright © 2013 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,
and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved.

Page1lof2




EICDC=

ENGINEERS JOINT CONTRACT
DOCUMENTS COMMITTEE

4.

7.

This Notice is based entirely on and expressly limited by the scope of services Engineer has
been employed by Owner to perform or furnish during construction of the Project (including
observation of the Contractor’s work)} under Engineer’s Agreement with Owner, and applies
only to facts that are within Engineer’s knowledge or could reasonably have been ascertained
by Engineer as a result of carrying out the responsibilities specifically assigned to Engineer
under such Agreement.

This Notice is not a guarantee or warranty of Contractor’s performance under the
Construction Contract, an acceptance of Work that is not in accordance with the related
Contract Documents, including but not limited to defective Work discovered after final
inspection, nor an assumption of responsibility for any failure of Contractor to furnish and
perform the Work thercunder in accordance with the Construction Contract Documents, or to
otherwise comply with the Construction Contract Documents or the terms of any special
guarantees specified therein.

This Notice does not relieve Contractor of any surviving obligations under the Construction
Contract, and is subject to Owner’s reservations of rights with respect to completion and final

payment.

By: \;Q(\M)\Mu
O

Title: Project Engineer

Dated: 10/16/2018

EJCDC® C-626, Notice of Acceptability of Work
Copyright © 2013 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,
and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved.

Page 2 of 2




EJCDC=

ENGINEERS JOINT CONTRACT
OOCUMENTS COMMITTEE

CERTIFICATE OF SUBSTANTIAL COMPLETION

Owner: Storey County Owner's Contract No.: ST-2017-051

Contractor: Ames Construction, Inc, Contractor’s Project No.:

Engineer:  Farr West Engineering Engineer's Project No.: 983

Project: Virginia City and Gold Hill Wastewater Contract Name: Virginia City and
Improvement Project Gold Hill Wastewater

Improvement Project

This [preliminary] [final] Certificate of Substantial Completion applies to:

D Alwork [[] The following specified portions of the Work:

10/16/2018
Date of Substantial Completion

The Work to which this Certificate applies has been inspected by authorized representatives of Owner, Contractor, and
Engineer, and found to be substantially complete. The Date of Substantial Completion of the Work or portion thereof
designated above is hereby established, subject to the provisions of the Contract pertaining to Substantial Completion.
The date of Substantial Completion in the final Certificate of Substantial Completion marks the commencement of the
contractual correction period and applicable warranties required by the Contract.

A punch list of items to be completed or corrected is attached to this Certificate. This list may not be all-inclusive, and
the failure to include any items on such list does not alter the responsibility of the Contractor to complete all Work in
accordance with the Contract,

The responsibilities between Owner and Contractor for security, operation, safety, maintenance, heat, utilities,
insurance, and warranties upon Owner's use or occupancy of the Work shall be as provided in the Contract, except as
amended as follows: {Note: Amendments of contractual responsibilities recorded in this Certificate should be the product
of mutual agreement of Owner and Contractor; see Paragraph 15.03.D of the General Conditions.]

Amendments to Owner's
responsibilities: IZl None

[JAs follows

Amendments to
Contractor's responsibilities:  [X] None

|:|As follows
The following documents are attached to and made a part of this Certificate: None.

This Certificate does not constitute an acceptance of Work not in accordance with the Contract Documents, nor is it a
release of Contractor's obligation to complete the Work in accordance with the Contract.

EXECYTED BY ENGINEER: RECEIVED: RECEIVED:
By: By: By: i

(@hcrized signature) Owner {Authorized Signature) Contractor (Authorized Signature)
Title: _Project Engineer Title: Community Relations Title: _Project Manager
Date: 10116118 Date: _10/16/18 Date: _10/16/18

EICDC" C-625, Certificate of Substantial Completion.
Prepared and published 2013 by the Engineers joint Contract Documents Committee.
Page1of1




Final Inspection

When all construction has been completed in accordance with the approved plans and specifications and the project is
operating as designed, the final inspection and owner’s acceptance of the project can occur. The following project
representatives (as appropriate) should attend the final inspection: Owner, Engineer, Contractor, Funding Agencies,
Utilities (such as county and State agencies), and any other project related parties. At this inspection the items to be
submitted/completed include but are not limited to the following:

il

Certification from owner’s representative all equipment operation & maintenance
manuals have been delivered to the owner. All required maintenance bonds, warranties,
guaranties, parts catalogs, etc have been delivered to the owner.

Copy of Engineer’s certification that the project has been completed in accordance
with the plans and specifications and recommendation for the Owner’s acceptance.

Certificate of Substantial Completion (EJCDC C-625), signed and dated by the owner,
contractor and engineer.

Resolution of Acceptance by the owner. A copy of the resolution or minutes showing
the applicant’s acceptance of the project.

Establish tentative warranty/operability inspection date. This date should occur
between the beginning of the 10t and end of 11t month after the date of Substantial
Completion.

Certificate of Occupancy for the building (if applicable)

Letter of acceptance by any appropriate county or state agencies regarding permits, etc.
NDEP — NDOT, etc.

FINAL PAYMENT (CONSTRUCTION) see article 14.07 of

Standard General Conditions for Final Payment

Final Change order, and amendments to professional services agreements must be Approved.

Need pre-final and final inspections completed.

14.07
Final Payment

A.  Application for Payment:

1. After Contractor has, in the opinion of Engineer, satisfactorily completed all corrections
identified during the final inspection and has delivered, in accordance with the Contract
Documents, all maintenance and operating instructions, schedules, guarantees, bonds,
certificates or other evidence of insurance, certificates of inspection, marked-up record
documents (as provided in Paragraph 6.12*), and other documents, Contractor may make
application for final payment following the procedure for progress payments.

2. The final Application for Payment shall be accompanied (except as previously delivered)

by:

a) all documentation called for in the Contract Documents, including but not limited to
the evidence of insurance required by Paragraph 5.04.B.6*;

b) consent of the surety, if any, to final payment;

¢) alist of all Claims against Owner that Contractor believes are unsettled; and

d) complete and legally effective releases or waivers (satisfactory to Owner) of all Lien
rights arising out of or Liens filed in connection with the Work.




FINAL PAYMENT (CONSTRUCTION CONTINUED)

| 3. Inlieu of the releases or waivers of Liens specified in Paragraph 14.07.A.2* and as
approved by Owner, Contractor may furnish receipts or releases in full and an affidavit of
Contractor that: (i) the releases and receipts include all labor, services, material, and
equipment for which a Lien could be filed; and (ii) all payrolls, material and equipment
bills, and other indebtedness connected with the Work for which Owner might in any
way be responsible, or which might in any way result in liens or other burdens on
Owner's property, have been paid or otherwise satisfied. If any Subcontractor or Supplier
fails to furnish such a release or receipt in full, Contractor may furnish a bond or other

| collateral satisfactory to Owner to indemnify Owner against any Lien.

B. Engineer’s Review of Application and Acceptance:

1. If, on the basis of Engineer’s observation of the Work during construction and final
inspection, and Engineer’s review of the final Application for Payment and
accompanying documentation as required by the Contract Documents, Engineer is
satisfied that the Work has been completed and Contractor’s other obligations under the
Contract Documents have been fulfilled, Engineer will, within ten days after receipt of
the final Application for Payment, indicate in writing Engineer’s recommendation of
payment and present the Application for Payment to Owner for payment. At the same
time Engineer will also give written notice to Owner and Contractor that the Work is
acceptable subject to the provisions of Paragraph 14.09*. Otherwise, Engineer will return
the Application for Payment to Contractor, indicating in writing the reasons for refusing
to recommend final payment, in which case Contractor shall make the necessary
corrections and resubmit the Application for Payment.

C. Payment Becomes Due:

1. Thirty days after the presentation to Owner of the Application for Payment and
accompanying documentation, the amount recommended by Engineer, less any sum
Owner is entitled to set off against Engineer’s recommendation, including but not limited
to liquidated damages, will become due and will be paid by Owner to Contractor.

OR Refer to NRS 108 Statutory Liens (108.225 and 108.226) — USDA RD will require the
Owner’s Attorney to provide a statement that the period to file liens has passed, that the
owner is not at risk, and the Owner’s Attorney concurs that final payment may be made to
the prime contractor.

Final Payment to Engineer — Provide Complete Set of “As Built” or “Record” plans in pdf or

as a hard copy (Each sheet must be stamped accordingly and the title sheet must also be
signed and dated in either format submitted.)

*These provisions are referencing the Articles in the General Conditions of the Construction Contract.

SACOMMUNITY PROGRAMS\Cover Processing Sheets and Checklists\Pre-final and Final Inspection and Payment Information
10/5/2018




RESOLUTION NO. 18-513
OF THE BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA

A RESOLUTION APPROVING NOTICE OF COMPLETION AND ACCEPTANCE OF THE
VIRGINIA CITY SEWER IMPROVEMENT PROJECT

WHEREAS, the County of Storey has entered into a Public Works Contract with Ames Construction
through Resolution No.18-513 for the project known as the Virginia City Sewer Improvement Project,
and

WHEREAS, Farr West Engineering has recommended Final Acceptance of the improvements made to
the Virginia City Sewer System and certified that everything has been installed to the best of their
knowledge, per the approved plans and specifications.

BE IT HEREBY RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONER, STOREY
COUNTY, NEVADA.

1. That the project is accepted as complete and the Chairman of the Storey County Board of
County Commissioners is directed to record a “Notice of Completion” for the work done on
the Virginia City Sewer Improvement Project; and,

2. That the County of Storey is the owner of the Virginia City Sewer Improvement Project

located in Virginia City, Nevada

Storey County has accepted the project as complete on October 4, 2018; and,

4. That the contractor for the public work is :

a. Ames Construction
3737 West 2100 South
West Valley, Utah 84120

he

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT the Comptroller is authorized and directed to release and pay
the final amounts due under the contract 40 days after the Notice of Completion has been recorded
assuring that there are no Notices of Lien filed against the project.

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Board of County Commissioners at a regular meeting of said Board,
held on the 16 day of October, 2018

THOSE VOTING AYE

THOSE VOTING NAY




ADOPTED this 16 day of October, 2018

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF STOREY COUNTY

Marshall McBride, Chairman

Attest:

| Vanessa Stephens, Clerk and Treasurer




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: October 16, 2018 Estimate of time required: 15 min.

Agenda: Consent [ | Regular agenda [ | Public hearing required [X]

1. Title: Discussion and possible action on Bill No. 102, the second reading of Ordinance No. 18-
293, an ordinance amending chapter 15.04 Buildings and Construction to adopt the 2018
International Codes for Building, Residential, Existing Building, Energy Conservation, Fuel Gas,
Mechanical, the 2018 Uniform Codes for Mechanical and Plumbing, and the 2017 National Electric
Code, the 2018 International Fire Code, the 2018 International Wildland Urban Interface Code, the
2017 National Fire Protection Association Standards (NFPA) and the 2018 Northern Nevada
Amendments, and providing for other properly related matters.

2. Recommended motion: I move to approve the second reading of Ordinance No. 18-293.

3. Prepared by: Robert Morris, outside counsel
Gary Hames, Community Development Director

Department: District Attorney’s Office Telephone: 847-0964

4. Staff summary:

The 2018 editions of the International Codes are ready for adoption by the County. Participating
organizations in northern Nevada have reviewed the new codes and have approved the 2018
Northern Nevada Amendments (to those codes) published by the Northern Nevada Chapter of the
International Code Counsel. Staff recommends approval of the attached ordinance.

(Continued on next page)

5. Supporting materials: Ordinance 18-293 and 2018 Northern Nevada Amendments for codes
inciuded in this ordinance.

6. Fiscal impact: No change on the fiscal impact on local government.

7. Legal review required: Yef m District Attorney
§

8. Reviejrved by:

A
i Department Head \}S&«—k\_‘\, <~ Department Name: Community Development

County Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
{1 Approved
[] Denied

Approved with Modifications
Continued

|l e |
eyl ettt

Agenda Item No. , O




4. Staff summary continued:

The changes are generally described as follows:

1. Chapter 15.04 Buildings and Construction is being amended to adopt the 2018
International Codes for Building, Residential, Existing Building, Energy Conservation, Fuel Gas,
Mechanical, the 2018 Uniform Codes tor Mechanical and Plumbing, and the 2017 National
Electric Code, the 2018 International Fire Code, the 2018 International Wildland Urban Interface
Code, the 2017 National Fire Protection Association Standards (NFPA) and the 2018 Northern
Nevada Amendments to those codes.

2. The existing specific building construction standards for Storey County in Storey
County Code section 15.04.060 remain in place and supersede any less restrictive or conflicting
language in the new codes.

3. The ordinance deletes most of Storey County Code chapter 15.04.080 Fire district
requirements that essentially are the 2012 Northern Nevada Amendments that were copied into the
code. Now the fire protection district will rely on the language in the 2018 International Fire Code
and the 2018 Northern Nevada Amendment language.



Ordinance No. 18- 293

Summary

An ordinance amending chapter 15.04 Buildings and Construction, to adept the 2018
International Codes for Building, Residential, Existing Building, Energy Conservation, Fuel Gas,
Mechanical, the 2018 Uniform Codes for Mechanical and Plumbing, and the 2017 National
Electric Code, the 2018 International Fire Code, the 2018 International Wildland Urban Interface
Code, the 2017 National Fire Protection Association Standards (NFPA) and the 2018 Northern
Nevada Amendments and amending chapter 15.08.060 Appeal from decisions.

Title

An ordinance amending Storey County Code chapter 15.04 Buildings and Construction, to
adopt the 2018 International Codes for Building, Residential, Existing Building, Energy
Conservation, Fuel Gas, Mechanical, the 2018 Uniform Codes for Mechanical and
Plumbing, and the 2017 National Electric Code, the 2018 International Fire Code, the 2018
International Wildland Urban Interface Code, the 2017 National Fire Protection
Association Standards (NFPA) and the 2018 Northern Nevada Amendments, amending
chapter 15.08.060 Appeal from decisions. and providing for other properly related matters.

Preambie

The Storey County Board of County Commissioners and the Storey County Board of Fire
Commissioners desire to update the uniform codes that regulate the building of structures and
fire protection within the county. There is a concern that the new codes be implemented quickly
and effectively so that the public will benefit from their use and that there is be a clear transition
for the new codes to apply to proposed projects. The 2018 codes will be effective from the
effective date of this ordinance and all projects will be required to be use the 2018 codes after
that date. Projects that are initiated under the 2012 codes may be completed under the 2012
codes. The building official will have the discretion to determine the appropriate code for a
project within the first 6 months after the effective day of this ordinance. Any project initiated
under the 2012 codes may agree to have the 2018 codes apply.

The Board of County Commissioners of the County of Storey, State of Nevada, does ordain:

Section I: Chapter 15.04 is amended as follows:

15.04.010 Adoption of International and Uniform codes.
In order to regulate all matters relating to the construction, maintenance and safety of
buildings structures and property within the county, the board, pursuant to NRS 244.3675 and

Draft 10-16-18




NRS 278 580 adopts the foliowing codes 10 bc in fm'gg:

B. 7 7{:{(,{)2__();’ c‘s’ [.';[gr mmg}gg_[ ﬁe,srcfgnr.’af C ‘(_che / !'f{( )

(. The 2018 International Existing Building Code (1EBC)

D. The 2018 hernational Energy Conservation Code (1ECC)

f' The 2018 nternatinnad Fuel Gas Code (1FGC)

he 2018 ffrfw Hmmmn’ Mechanical

The 2tH7 N ric Code (NFC )

] [ The 2018 L fm;‘m Fi 11’& hcmfcm’ Code (UMC)

L The 2018 Uniform P{’umbwg Code (LPC)

S The 20018 International Swimming Pool and Spa Code (ISPSC)

K. The 2018 Northern Nevada Amendmeins published by Northern Nevada Chaprer of ihe
lniermmm’:u(’ Clode € uunu[

[ The 201 7__fnref mmmzu[ Fne C (:de fH( I}

‘Q‘cuum (() Resm’ennaffm Spr mﬁJm wgz;j_‘
N, The 2017 National Fire Protection Association Sh:mdaf s (INFPA)
. The 2018 Northern Nevadu Fire Code Amevidments
A Phe 204 2 aterationat Lire L ode- (A Land: Appendices-B-Crand br-with-the
amesdPapisH-seetian-HS 0408
B-bre-42 ofthe-Intemmantona- Baldine Codo M- -chapters-Hhrovs 3 5-and
Appeneices (-be bapd-howith-theamendment st cetron-35-04 068-and-5-08-060-
{—r?:#ifhcr2!4)4?-134'&!t\rmtﬂ'mnﬂ Restdentiattode-4H 0 camprers-b-threugh-dhmd-Appendiees
A B 3 A b ppd Mewiribthe- amendise rts ~eetten-H5 AL G6B-and- 1508 060;
Pr-Fhe 2042 haerpationab-bamsdng - Bui laing Code (HEBCehapters - through - 1o
boHae- 2o bterantonrh-brerey - Comserviabion Lade G0k chapters-Hthroueh-6:
Foobhe-2H-2 dternatenabe ) Gas-Code-EH GU ) ~ebaptess - trrough-7-and-Appendices:
G Hire 2032 Hpttorm-MechagieabCode MO ehaptess 2throuph o apd-Appeadiees-Ac
B
Hefhe 2642 hnterpadonal-Mechanieah-Cnde-tir 10 -chapters-Hhbroush -5 and-Appendix-A
bt he-d0-RN e Pumbi-Code-tL e ol apiers 2-Wraueh-Heand-AppendieesA-B-
I R e
Fethe 20H-Nuhioa- Blectteab-Codet N 5 '\“?tﬁ"iﬂi”*—l throngh-
{\ Fhe- 200 2dwternationat- Swhrming-Hool aiel Spadoede-SPSEchapterss - throgeh - H
”‘-. 1997 Unilorm Code tor the Abaiement of Dangerons Buiidings (UCADB).
~Hre 20 ptermatiens] - Waldhand Vb e o siee-Uode-amendsientin-section
-%—5:-{#—#—1}54-}:
Ne-Fhe 2412 Nortbrern-Nevadn-Amteadincats-po blished-be the-Nerthesr Nevada-Ehapter-of
the daterpationah-Code-Conneth-Copres-aval biblo-ab soonv it e.ors:
A 2040 - Novthene-Nevada-Doeros-Code Avendmentspabhished-byv-theNorthems
Nevadahapter-ol the-dntermtional - Code Uoumeh

Draft 10-16-18




Where conflicts occur between the codes «nd ymendments referenced above and 1/1is
chapter if this chapter is more restrictive. this chapier will apph the Totlmsag-amendraents: the

aresnbimnents-wilbappiy.  (Ord. No. 14-255, § 11, 5-19-2014; Ord. 172 § 1(part), 2000)

15.04.020 Adoption authority.

The board of county commissioners may, by ordinance, adopt later editions of the applicable
codes identified in section 15.04.010 of this chapter, and must include in the ordinance all the
uniform codes in force. (Ord. No. 14-255, § I1. 5-19-2014; Ord. 172 § 1(part), 2000)

15.04.030 Modification.

The board may modify the uniform codes enumerated in section 15.04.010 of this chapter so
that the codes specifically apply to the county, provided the changes are in conformance with
applicable state laws. (Ord. No. 14-255, § II. 5-19-2014; Ord. 172 § 1(part), 2000}

15.04.040 Copies on file,

Copies of the latest adopted codes in section 15.04.010 and "Standard Details and
Specifications for Public Works Construction" must be kept in the offices of the public works or
building department. The latest editions of the International Fire Code, International Building
Code, the International Wildland Urban Interface Code, and NFPA Standards must be kept at the
communiiv developmenr five-district offices. (Ord. No. 14-255, § 11, 5-19-2014; Ord. 172 §
1(part), 2000)

15.04.050 Construction standards adopted.

"Standard Specifications for Public Works Construction," sponsored by the regional
transportation commission of Washoe County, city of Sparks, city of Reno, Carson City, and the
city of Yerington, is adopted as the construction standard for all public works and development
construction projects. Any updated issue of "Standard Specification for Public Works
Construction” will be automatically adopted by Storey County per this section. Other standards
and specifications may be adopted by the board by ordinance specifying and identifying the
standards. (Ord. No. 14-255, § 11, 5-19-2014: Ord. 172 § 1(part), 2000)

15.04.060 Storey County building construction standards.
The following construction standards are required for all structures regulated by code within

Storey County:

A. Snow load requirements.
All building construction must have a snow load capacity as follows:

Site Elevation (feet above sea level) Ground Snow load, (Pounds Per Square Foot)
9500 and above 142
9000 - 9499 114

Draft 10-16-18




6500 — 8999 90

6000 — 6499 70
5500 - 5999 50
Below 5500 20

B. Seismic zone design requirements.

1. I.B.C. for commercial and industrial construction: The seismic design site class for
structures must be based on the Risk Category, and the spectral response acceleration parameters
in accordance with Chapter 16 of 1.B.C and Chapter 20 of ASCE 7.

2. LR.C. for single-family residential structures: The seismic design site class for single-
family residential structures and structures accessory to residential use 1s D2.

C. Wind speed design requirements. I’c=the soopiod-2042-Nerthera-Nevada-Amendments:

Ultimate design wind speed for risk category [ structures is 135 mph Vuie.

Ultimate design wind speed for risk category II structures is 115 mph Vui.

Ultimate design wind speed for category Il and IV structures is 120 mph Vulr.

Exposure Category is C. An altitude density reduction may not be taken.

The minimum basic wind speed (3-second gust) for Group R-2 and R-3 structures is

100 mph, Exposure Category C.

D. Foundations.

1. The foundation frost depth requirement for all foundations is 24” from bottom of
footing to level of finish grade.

2. Foundations exposed more than 2” above the grade level must be finished in natural
wood, native rock, brick, cultured stone, or split face block.

3. The minimum foundation anchor bolt requirement is 5/8” diameter by 10” length or
as required to obtain at least 7 of embedment in the concrete. Anchor bolts must be spaced no
more than 48" on center. All anchor bolts are to be equipped with 37 square x 4" thick plate
washers.

E. Roofing requirements.

Fire retardant roofing material is required per NRS 472.100. All roofing materials used
must be listed by a nationally recognized testing agency with a Class A rating, unless otherwise
approved for industrial or commercial use by the building official. All roofing materials must be
installed per manufacturers’ specifications. No wood shakes or shingles are allowed.

F. Storage on unimproved lot.

No storage of any kind is allowed on any unimproved lot. Building materials and
construction equipment may be located on a lot that has an active building permit for a single-
family dwelling. No automobiles or RV type vehicles may be stored on a lot until a certificate of
occupancy or safety seal has been issued for the single-family dwelling.

G. Temporary quarters during construction.

Draft 10-16-18



A temporary trailer permit may be issued at the discretion of the building official for one
travel trailer or motor home connected to a permanent water source and sewer or septic system,
as the owner’s living quarters during construction of a single-family residence. The permit is
initially valid for no more than 180 days. If substantial progress is completed on the permanent
residence, the building official may renew the permit for an additional 180 days.

H. Water wells.

Newly constructed water wells for domestic residential use are required to flow at a rate of
not less than 2 g.p.m. during the initial 1-hour flow test to meet the requirements for issuance of
a residential dwelling building permit. A water quality test report displaying that the water is
safe for drinking is required prior to issuance of a residential dwelling building permit.

1. Drainage.

1. Roof drainage or surface storm-water drainage from a structure or developed lot must
be controlled through measures approved by the building official, and must not cause adverse
impacts on neighboring or adjacent properties.

2. For development of commercial or industrial lots or parcels of 5 acres or larger, or
development of residential subdivisions where the aggregate sum of lots or parcels is 5 acres or
larger, an engineered hydraulic analysis is required that displays that post development run-off
during a 100 year storm event will not exceed pre-development run-off.

J. Retaining walls.

Retaining walls constructed for slope stabilization that are greater than 4 feet in height
require engineered design and a building permit.

K. No Duplication of Buildings.

Zoning classifications (E-1-VCH), (E-10-HR), and (E-40-VR), of the Storey County zoning
ordinance, Chapter 17.40, shall not permit the same architectural elevation design (regardless of
exterior treatment and/or reversal of layout) be approved within two thousand five hundred feet
in all directions of the proposed building lot.

(Ord. No. 14-255, § II, 5-19-2014; Ord. 172 § 1(part), 2000)

15.04.070 Electrical wiring in commercial buildings.
The electrical wiring in all commercial buildings in Storey County must be installed in
conduit approved by the applicable code. (Ord. 172 § 1(part), 2000}

15.04.080 Fire district requirements.
A. The following amendments in adidition 1o the 200N Northern Nevada Amendments 1o the
2018 Iniernationgl Fire Code apply to the International Fire Code:

J=-HH A pterranona-iare Coade-Nimnendinomis

NoterAr-tnderseoredsymed-to-indieste s o rephtevmont-braiane 1o the eoder Aestethe-

trougzhe o indieate-g-deteted-om,

201 2-Tnteenationa- Fire Codewmmendment
Nt bt pdesrsonre- s pved o fndicere s crerepiacenie i-hnaioge do-Hie-eede

(o gry R S P v U Iy R R
A ke SRR A Itredicetto-irledvpeed i s

Draft 10-16-18




HeC-Seetion 102 Apphicability:

R an se-af-tse-or-seenpaiey-Peoe-chang o shatl- bemde 4 et e o eeupaney—paHy
stttk praee-Hie st b e d T cogidivisios-ol Hhe SaHe 2RoUD-om 0CeHpPRRey o
ferapb—group—sH—-vegppaaciess ks susir—shrente-s—hnde-to-comph——aith—the
iieseseth Laiteline Lade —Subilecttothe-waprencabobthe-fre
e ereupae - of g eyt aretireshalb-beaHoved-te-bevhansed-and-the
apabns-wibout- conlerming to-at-the

stFreinre-tebew edbe-be atespied-tor purposeHa -aihers
Feduireren-ob-ins-code-nnd-the-Femspdemd- ik dbs Codfe5

sr-profosed-rne-iz lesrhavardons- based op-difenod-fire risk-thnp- the existing use:

R obeon —Hi:'i-‘-i-ﬁi 2o - the—bathding ~balb-reg pee- the--but dimeAocome-upto-currentCode
5 lntjf{lw- e AL T ed-adepled-by-the Ncesada-bre Ilaeddid

HiZ 7 Reterepesd-Codes- ad-Standuars, -4 m Crbden dl?t}%{-%}&ﬂd‘r%ﬁ%&ﬁ enced-mrthis code-shal
e taose thed-are-Hated - i-Chapter Mmh ‘ frthonath-recoeiized
standards i fess-otherahicdegipr _ e ik st h-eodes it st dasds-shah-be
gersidetodpart-od tho-spcHFontets- di %i+1~\ it hee twt preseribed-2xtent-of-euch-such-reforence
feerd-as-tartier repudated 0 seetion RS and- Lo S

HE-Seetion-108 - Peruuits:
5 Permits- Regatrede A areperteoy aer segtthorbed-aeentwho-intend-teeonduetan
S iﬁ_ﬂ;—}e A h it%%\«iaw%egizﬂiﬁﬂf#—la sHhicodes

Pperalie or-Businessor s ta-orarediiv syeten

SH R CHUH O S ARG %\414 h@-rlw»-‘ %

oblalirthe reguived-peppi

o

Ceanted 'ﬂe by _\ 2 tlon h‘ﬂf*h;

W - Seetion 108, Bowrd-ol-Appeals:
idelete the-entiseveetiont- LOB 4 Reaseeion 45 4

HC-Seetion-109 - Vielationws:
H%A-MioltionPern Iti-e-s‘—-- —--%« Mless

IV ok for- o {hl*—uwuw»w’ AR A
codeper-or-eertifeste used-under provisions
vl thiscods: se-gitrpeaf - P RECHY - O NS - panishable
brvs e o ot mare %wiv—‘ﬂ (ii)h» efr#m it pbton-ar-Be aprianment-notoseoet s 30-davs
= v o da e -goii ites-af e edue- notree has-been

i i
S il B s ESEh

bt - fing-and baprisonment- Ht!‘ ¥
served-shat-bedeemed-ayearate o

EC-Beetion H - Step-Work-Orders
i- }i A Enibrre- o Complve-Agpepered whve-alb g sptiiessmr-work-afer-havne-beep-served
o ideri-drotl gt e o sHch- e vrerk o i person-is—directed-to-perforgi-o-resrove
- L wh—m»murimﬂ it H—{---hv ditbbetsr g renb-net-tes than-femeunt-detars-or-rere

Draft 10-16-18




HC-Seetion-202 General-Definitions:
HHGH-RAS E-BEH DANGL Achuiios
FHO-AO-T 64 ns-abwavet

sevigadedh ooy loeatee e Al

i by he e

YA R RO

------ Oecupancy-Classification.
bttt tonsh-Grogp- - libeoecupanes-ibabtb-snd pde-darddings struciures ar-paststherea bl
FeFE-Hi o s s wRorostde o
erpstonlintonre— e pesens revtviing :
Hie gt i Werineh beedipisd e vtie Siate-Bodrd-o b beatees
topore-3 febped-as-nab being ab . e ittt -w e B has-arrocea pa

sobmoret - residents el Bedeaan- - peripney chassibiention—Hssroupshal

metgde-butnot-be-lerited- to e 4ol o

aspervised-e e onmientandrecee
Afie e el nresepation- AH-porens it enne

=

sy e ehobsesDationis

S L

R Sl At

b

Aeehobarmd-ding-centors
Avspsisioeh-ba
Eonzregabe-oare-iaetiiey
Cenvaleseent-dicHitles
Crreniphones

Faeirbhes

kv lates
Reasidontial-bourd-ainl etstadiaborre Freios
Sacil-rebabitaton—faciblities

bl 3

Five-or-fewer persons-receiving-cires - ooy Bove-aeith-five op-tRvees-pepsons

regerg-stes eareeshat-be-elassdfed an Groap [-tor shatbeomplyssdiihediermertioiad

PoSpagegile HidaHed wy areordanes with-Seetion
b AR

Rewidetitiof d-enfe-provd ded-aisteden
QO3 3 B3 arfaiternatiosl-faidosii

-~

NP HESIN FeR-POESHBIS FOCeving enres- Sotiotii sl as ahboveshonsing-asleastsia-and-potmore

P pedions Feee ¥ s she R -Gie, o bbb Clami led as et -Reds

srenppeshintl nedude buiidings dud-shselire,
pefgrne -2
bl - iarsaee o adoptions ad-n

Tastitubona-Loroup-d-d-duy eare-Freilitiess 4 i
et hed-bre-the et s e rviaod o
Vi

L i

ebdbors Fleswrans shab-include-batnol-be-thmited

e saeeive Custodial eppe-t

Fertrrorbve-pporse e b pHpE Qo ettt
d-place-ather thanthe-hame-ob dheposon

te—the-falaudtng:

At b-chpv-ciie
b dav-care

lassifiention-as-Group e Achiiddo« duseare-tor snerethetrHresis- bt
Ao b O-childpen2

wppilbakare docatrd eiade

L avhore Hiessems-ieahich lHre-chibddeen-are

Draft 10-16-18




Withi-a-plase-obreligions worships Rooms and-cpiveswithi plaeesof rehatousworsinp

ey st e e -de-vebisieiseFepes rensads di-be-ehasoied-s-part-ofthe- pehivare

£

P A

Five-nrfewer-ogecupipds-recehving eaver A

ertodial eorashall-be-glistited wrpase-ol e

Hit-havine-fvesi-or-fowe - persons reeeiving

(3 | BB
et s i s e o R 1)

Five-or-fewer ocenpants-reeeivins-eare i-n-dw el ingamite - et ibesechas - the-ghove wetthin-g
diwe v ri-d-red - Hvesd o feses pepsoo Fegeranpcustodiabesreshat-be-classed-ay
Grronp-ReS-oegupines ot commphesitythe A ermo o

repd flesiehe i Clerdde:

Residential- Group R-1x-Residential-oecoponetos comaining sleeping-units-wiiere-tae-oceupaits
are-priarapb e s et dn e drchad s

Fescapefivne Depsos Lhearste e i R-mrese-toa - g ity

Heathaly

Esprprecate-lvisgfoeibHes-Hrapsheibvwibemore shan-Hl-ocetpants
Hete ki-{Hratstest)

MetebeHrmnsient)

Hesideptint Group-R-3-Restdental6o8 nippie oew hepe -1 he -Heeh P -AR0-PRRIFHY- PEFFFHES -
Pt sebessifed asCreppr B 382 Beed o dededudings

Conpraapte-Hvbnp- e ibibes Do aransie s - Oear-fewer-oee it

Creteregsie-ndng Saethiies bersientd v te-bo oo fesvorateupaits
Madermte-hasmrd-storaee Growp -S4 ot dinrrocenpied-fordovage uses tad-are-het
ehasnted-an-Cranp- St aehading Ser-fot it dbeeserase o e debbesings

Areriasobsbevels-Land-3
Adrersti-hamar(rtermgeand-rapited

Brapus cloti-huthepeand-paper

Rivpbogsaad sattai

Basteors

Baiphpecanvis-niddenthay

Bealond papei th-rod ior-piehes:
Baos-nrd-hoes

Bottensmetuding elatbooversds popeb o -bone
¢

dbasred-nad-enrd boned-oxes
Clathiing s wenler-wegring doparel
o

Bre-beatsiasnae oo
Prritaee

Draft 10-16-18




brs
Crbirese e 4 Ko P ksl d e
it
Blespepa bk €oftr-o e s than-eoibions
bronther
Fdreloins
| Jrtimrher

Merterpvaltiv e fopatr-cirg

srtbersls Hvboddredah kS Es

foas b i e od-hiard o
Ry ILEVENHETE) FUNYSINE Y [ SNRS PP RIETL GURVEIN
Pl et it bg

Heasibattraerp

Serfenrd ey
SitHhes

S

N

e bebeostoisise ol
Forbaeeoschairsoelvarotios and- st
Loplahadosy wrebaraiirgsyes

Metpee 4 ifu%ﬂi-»:-%

Forwvdpvaried- stornges-brronp-me2 0 bnet whnidines tbseck-bor the-storape-ef

nencantbustiblesaste

fonr M

bt -Preehic by o peebprHoseor T prporeartons ek wa o

srpbe PRdeken sy IS HR SOt e S B s e el B be-tee
cebitr -G Pl stk e b

tehide s bri-aek-balsrBeddioe stergge o

eible-an Pl srapprbing - Siarese—ier i |

bygay oy

Brevepagoy btk ipehedbip-] 6o mepe i Fustatibosliss or ormpie -Coataiters

Cleirient 4 aieey
Chathoand cravaps

B prodietisrenon Seadodesiiedpatee b sottktsens

Pirv-hodt-stopane Gadeai)

P ek bableries

$reeirivad-coils

| b Bt o
Fapte-ca s
Fere prosdiets
Fooidu-db-soncanbo i Bu-corine o
Frosh-fesits-nnd-ve s alables rraon plaste raoor conla e
e S T O
Lk
Glass-hatteirompbeordithed withorsessdwenble Haaids
Grysunr-beard
M b

‘ Mg
Peleral-cabties

Draft 10-16-18




Mot dosdoavot
S tirh s
Moterts

Adbrperts

sistietops and i

BilAted- and-othesrpes et disteibitionCapsfisasry

Porlarepar ses botapen-and-erelesed

Fereelain-and-notiery
ereas
bathe At s

Mipmhers-and-dreers

HeC-Seetion 308 dunitton Sonrees:
HEA-Clenrapee-trom igmHon-sourees:
netterie-dmo-producingJevices—md combustible

Leapanee-bete-eern bontHonsonreessuchas-humingies
citeriphashal-be-po-degs-than - L0--feet-and

<hrrH - Do RO AR D P PN R e
A Seetion4i-Generak

FH - Seape Repartng o b et Feeid les, Boaeng Lor-w i Hh-eteFSeRey Feapense-forees,
veplaittemidproodires-far e agbng o respendinge o emerseseiesshitHcompheawith
P - rresdabo P or bt b et o,

t:.]q.:}_x.i..u B3y

vepprisms - matbaveapproved o
comphnnee-with-approved procedures-tor e

Hre-fiphtne-orpanteationsand-thatare4n
ARSI EE

LFE-Seetion- 303 Fire Apparatus Aevess Hands:
203.2.4 Toraing Radins e vegrisdtnmmeg
Aeterined-bydie-deecode-ofbeisl e orstdy "'ri'tl'."i-l""-'l-"-l-
st o b Portyed breeed A e renside

sth-ofa-fire-apparstus-aecess-rond shatl-be
PR R PR aueaﬁteafi—ﬁa:% be~a
P - - s h

33K i’-}v%_\fc\-ﬂk vi - Dipbveveps -l ptend-oe fom L re-a ppa ratts- 40 €:-‘-v&w*-'ﬁknl'ﬁi—l‘k"%k.hfﬁ-‘{%@{}éﬁ-*ﬂ‘hﬁﬁ--ﬁﬂ}_‘

TEC-Seetion 305 Premises Jdentifiention:
SRR Address prmbers. Newe-—a e os ek Dndidinseadudi-have-approced-addross-nunvbers:
Brdinu-nisters {—wwam—)rﬁverﬂrlw,—:-'rie}mg; ey i eeb-Hi—-pesitter-that - platrb—lesible
i st hese-ambers-shaH-contast e ith-their

* _1.|;|;,_.'.. g Y R T
st -addresenembere-shat-be—previded—n

Draft 10-16-18

i



D L e
Seek atd b bve- (13

senberae alphabeb-lelie tfif___{}'—;_i j&‘v'-i%'r-';

ULHH“ R *-Liﬂﬂ—h—ﬁifﬂl-t\, :

mu *El(‘kcuﬂf——tH!Hﬂlt“x,-fdl
b swhiib-oh e p-ndeie s or

SOHE I B |mH i E;—-‘

*vi-r-*-'rt:‘{E}Ft’“i'-‘-t?-\:t.‘-t:‘ctl-i-fi: AN -0 - '—'"'r'l’rj"E""‘*:"'@@*\ ~hitH-
Auibes-eg4-4). : e R e e D et brodk g - Db and or
sethers hbe-ba-at. ST RR A sy et - Baibere sha-be g
- e hes- h;wh—-w +H» A R - e 4 P A S PR BRI
el g pPbvatte poddb-ged-the bribdi - cosios beovtewv el Bros-dio-puble s e e ontiens-pele-or

eheb- st e - s shad-be rned po de s e e siicTes Audibes bt e sk b Be-Bra it atied

HHE Sechon M7 A0ee-ProtecHon-Water-Sourees:
SUT-5:4-2-Fire-Hyvdraat-Stendardsc -5 o o ep Breetiront e deedsiebe s Igp-rroetdhe
s Pooipetiour-bibstrret - Pobices

redjitreaiett atb st ditvds b the Rrores e b

Heg -?.\'ee-t-if}uv--’i{ )8—--!!414&-(?—“1)1 nﬂmﬂd-{ 't‘*u{wﬂ

"j ‘.?tI_L“.‘irt;‘. HI ":.'{"h'f }}'}%‘I’e"’}" ‘é' :v”,\ :4‘ -3 }}t‘
dhe providedand shalb compheaathe seetens

ot ke -Protoction -t ,«Iu,, et oxe
o umm»ui S "1! ‘--w—km ‘%«;H*H ety
ek Pt e b Hi e SR st -Feet v wekreg sive-sriay

:“:

el et 3 00 gware-heet-ang

ey b o sbed-awiihien thoesteth

SRt

sowttiei-sereod ipos-herw et o P Qi s ddovedons e

%A 2-Sepuration:

Fhre-Heo-CorHHHR b e Tt

b e -baesrieseonsiobebed e cr g e s -Sest e AR e trhe binernatiesal-Bubdiep
co v it Sonroared b beod e ntesaatio g

oD geprcebfes e roiiit der o the buaddaae br-aobdess-than

Eattepr R b s D GO R LR [ 150

Babdhig-Cederos-baoth:

Ni}S 3 -Sive,
- Prre—commitand- eemrer-s bl e nam o il st

{eret

st HR A R RS L B

SUR LA Requnved deatares, Fhie fivecomneed cotiershall comply acideNd e Z2and-slald
cortrthe folow o fomtres:

F- e eife s ge v How s HHE A S ORI 1 Pordier e osr o]
2ot Tz Fipe-chey
Fodire ot e Hon AR RIS e SO R e e
4 ARREReer e B pdbentige e eation of theobevarorsandwihtherthey are

iy

SO Ca L i

s

PRl

So-etatiey thcHoater-g

O Fhedrre-Huhior’ s eoivol paaci-reogtived-ba Secn o004 H-bar smoke-contrs b sostoms-nsiathed
W—H—‘x Bl

FotCantpels esntoesostpoed eorsdoey s st

s -Combrabetem g b sieba e s ot

G2k

Draft 10-16-18
Il



~PRITes:

Qe-Foprerpaner- afesard e poveees bt ondieat
(e tolpedicag -Foife-depastirepit-dse- abgot i solledeessstothe publictelephote-systent
[ty rath H—-%— aehte ators;

:«'—’cftf—i§-‘-‘H-i-€i-f%—:i-s‘-?i—i~~1th‘---dP{-}HHG}HH-}HK'E'&GF&—%:-—(?'PH-i

N =i st e Peetor e and-smok e-partibens:
~‘i~4 PR Bwnhﬂ” Hr*mmzﬂvwﬂ SR s Br-shetHredtothe-following
P A

Winde s prepere-namteddressothe-number-of
ke bt savid-aceupanev-ehssiteation o mixed uses:
ne e b Heork-estinated-buidhig-sopulation-e—days

OTTLYNE YRS
vy Wl AR

; byt Bodding e
phoresamber—celbpone-numberand-
L3 s ponsd e tion Hll‘ﬂ[_n“-!-i-fﬂf-i Hisd-peltesithe-tvpe-a-butding vorstraetion

~HE O S

g ~i P

RO -p ey e b

; the-butHdin g -eaeh-ovit
st b it -Froatsseived- e R ¢ HHPOS - e
spdevia i privvided-witbops ergeni Hebingceach-enit s that-allevs-reppirv- ot
Saetens e e vtk -:i‘r‘r::l’t'rf‘a‘z"‘rhii-i;-- el -rrber-ad-elovator-banks:
sehrespective- oot thar they-servertecationof

elevitorachine reonta-tecation-abso-laol saties ot dreteht-ehacaror bankss

FRA- Pt bt e pviegsind-sesten Htoppi b that-ee ldess-docation-odm e{-‘-himi eat
soams-tocatii-ebbuidines s geman-Gostenn loestion-andenpastiy-ofall-duet-otba
toeabia-ahc e geney-perera oo ak et i i pas sepviee:

I lf"‘r?"(v‘.‘-r“i*z"%’r«‘ svibsrebremiation s eib-bacdudes e oas o standpipes-focation-of
st Fi depaptoisti-¢onhectery Feors- proteched-bse aatometie spripkers:
Froerent beposalaitf oo g winidle s it s ed-ferg e dinew el Pre-geten;

i foi-diset

[rress
SRS PP

st otk destonabion -elevator-Car-rarbe

FRPEEHT M

bergsebbod
e
13 I e rdonsmateriab-inlormsiion-the tnelagdessdosstionolhasardensmmaterk
epebtbe-ad Bneapdor e mistoriad
o Wegkiprdade
a6 }fe Prosi] o R ot dhen e H b i -t feaiares.
el syasteis-w brereespoctoatberesuiiod - by-othersectans-o M thiseade.

A»e\ atoe Fire seeatsucitehrin-seeorannee w it ARMb-A L
e fhehifesds

Eere-priergency-of-stand—power

b b
e tUHH&H }eﬁm}im *Hw

f“:—*ﬁ'ﬁﬂﬁﬁ’r;ﬁ
g ft}}—ﬁewev; gk any-aHernate-pewer
ehes-shet b be-covered-to-preve rt-aeviderat

Draft 10-16-18

12



stvbet SvetetiesStad R rerrapt the pebiic i, povor-feeds i anv-aHe Frdbe-pera e 5o es
Petereeitor Rp-the-Bii o Adbes ' :
Tegds-w Hlttlld.«»f»@uwe—‘ shalt remsiteone
"+—~M<H+L4 Fre-Adurm-tentrok- Pane b
Schpr{ b wdHa
e {1{}&—-&%—@;\;
H—bipe-Boparimari- orhection.
2Pt Hd?i e+'1»r-<4rr¥ﬂl>ve—
léff}ui ; L
Fo-loee tﬂ"mn 4e~r—“-s-a-\z+lef tha-

A i -H--“-r--l--"-}‘r FilEOG s rromby gogtoetily
P +
b oo Bistien ok LH?—;;}&_&H#_ .1—\4+4{ah%e wi#ﬁe
et e eoiiral comim

wnelizdihpthe-emersaie e o

s ekl Bre egaipinen s eache-rone shit-be provided

every-Sstoties i stcked-asspocitioes sy ehedepartiite st futsdietton b
: shH-he- provided-and-stock ed- per-Store v -Cotnb b sedreduen b feebutdis-orpeeupanetesashere

Hdeerred-tecessupe-bitsed o spectd Sazarda o sgiiane Hestee

HCSeetion- 9005 Kire Protection-Svstems:
SO b pections tes g npd- P e mires- b re-detetons alarmibeaRd e X aish e s s
iteehiitietl-sirohe - exdimb v steiand s rreke-sing Deabvents mtdbeonsierond M iehen-hoad
ventHatton-sestemsshat-bednantained - a-anemise-conditionalai-Hies-ams el be
| rapliced-or-epaired-where-deleciive. Molieegitired fioe praiootion-sosteny-aid ecipmernt-shurt-be
| ipeetedriestochaitd bR ed v fensaves

‘ 01T Sastems-ontodservive- Ndiere d ropsited dreprdectios-srivtem—t-otbod-sepviee s Hie ire
| depariment - the-fie-cade-sfliz
conden e dfiedode the-buding shallothes

Febdibe getiiodapediatebeandendrererugrired-by-thefire

hewovagused o vensored - Hiew ated shal b be provided
{or-dt-oectpmiss-teti-unprsioied Byt sittedouen anlih tho phieparerceion s ste -y -Heei
Feried to-serv e b te-eve Rt gt e servioe/ B e oy ConBactior - e protecton

it bl Bigpati

b
I

seslui-regsecled-orpotresewed- e |
SEPVASEAR R RS- EOR e T

b —‘(-)\. "'Tl ﬂ“

Wehere-itlbed-Fre watehos-shll be proseod il deattaie comproved mepts or- porHieg tor
abddieLire-deparhnesi—ard-thal o beduin shatl bedapettarnteonstank-pasals-of-the-proy eehiaeh
pretres-and-keepovitoh-for - es.

HC - Seefton-903 - Automatic- Sprinkler-Sy
9032 Whereregmived:—heroved

s
ctesszeibenpinlop ooy e arew -Dididintgs b st lire s

e

i

siteH-he-sredded m-the-tecations deserilod dp-Se Ol S Birogady 203, 240

Faception: Spacesorgieasiideleemiiios o bdbrgbipeapan bese b Brebe dor
LIEC ORI OO P R4
Srerrehy R e - PRV IG e - s |
sHighe-detec Honvsten-iacenrdance s it Seetion 907

e putlding-bvomst-degs thapd-hour-fom i lor s cothbe

pesoerstod-slecrtoal e diseeth o st ipieste-Battertesand

SRS APPSR PG AU RO Wk ORI
hpdre sepdtates Prati-the-reratides
sod-rpeesrdance-andirSeetes ol

thieApriorn b ferreet i s e b0 L - b ettty B g stedeted-in

SR
Aottt Soetion- ol e e :

b e PR CVESE L

Ei AL 1

Draft 10-16-18




Table 903.2 1°
_Reqguired Antomatic Sprinklers by Fire Area, Response Time and Height
For A,B.E.F.H L M, S and U Occupancies
Sprinklers are required when any one of the listed conditions is met.

Fire Jurisdiction Fire Area™* Height® Response Time

Fas

Carson City Fire %30GL square Teer™ '
East Fork Fiye Protection Diswict
{Douglas County

Mortk Lake Tahice Fire Protection Dismict

stories Of greatey -

1l square feet 3 storles or greater -

e NS mh and a basement or
T osquare feer® B
stories Qr greater

o2

North Lvon Fire Protection District square Teet 3 stories or greater -
Reno Fire Department >30040 sqnare feeth 3 soties or preater -
Truckee Meadows Fire Protestion Diztrict
and 2RI spuare Teet 3 srories of Freater -
Sierra Fize Protection Dismict
Sparks Fire Deparmaent o zguare feet I stories or oreater Qver & minutes

Stor ey Fire Department 2000 square feet

2sroresangdabaseneEnror
3 stories or greater

Tahce Diouzglas Fire Protection Diszict
Demglas County:
a. This 1ablz is in addition to anv other automatic spr‘lmd—’r r2Quaremants 11 thiscode,
b. Fir2 areas mav be separated according to IBC 707 3140
¢ Anv additionor remodel that iners asesthe fire areawill b2 included in the caleulation for the tatal square footage.
d Adrportiowsers and open parking garages complhiing vwith IBC 406 3 are exemprizomithis tablz
a

Al - -

S-1 and 8- cocupancias are sxemy from: this 1akls
. A one-time jncrease in the fire area is parmitted providad said increase is
pernntred fire atea «quar; footage.
g A one-tims increase of 360 square feet of fire area is permitted
h Auremaic ftrz detectien svitem instailad threushour and commectad 1o a c2niral s1ation fire alarnm comipany canbe
substitred for awtonats soretkler svstam

= 3(0% orthe stracture’s existing

BO3:2 3-Covoup ARt spriokierars mshaiboeprovidedHor Group-t- oecupancies s
ferHhoses:

pod-dwesphiomt-ir-Ceratp-l oo gienter- tia e R 000 -sguereteet-(d3-LSand nareer

: f'Hwalmw -SLREY PP [%‘H—\H--r.‘d—'ﬂ i onab-bibol pesheleve-the deveesi-levod ofodti-olive g
seavipa-tharperbon-of Jre-bihdie:

=

Eong e A P optiei et el i Bepa veetifed-H-aay-aret-beloesetho-Jewest
ferped-pten i fttipe serving-Hintbared o herpevery-classronirthronghont-the-butding
gt heAs sy SR w.‘--qm-» igiol rd-deveb- -l gh-schesis-whers-aulomate-thee
spriticer-svestem s e providedo the auterath-fre-sprinkler sy stems- forthe-ntemotive
sl wooduprkipnshops-nust b r.'—f/f.w;;;h—: cf-ter rdinaeytHazard—Graup attormatie-fee
speirkderste e piberi:

HoC-Seetion 91 -Smokevnd- Heat-emornl:

Draft 10-16-18
14




GHLE22 Spenldered-Puildinps e W e mtatbed-sa-buidines-eompped it a approsed

sEdOREbe

cori e e B ks, e -t el

R E SR e e s

.--—\4.*M~rH shithted-Hareds of

SHE3 22 Centeed mode sprinklersasteun f‘\m\a«— i
bbbt v b g anbio b-irede sp o e
Fevtpergture-slassifeation thme e gt s sie Fy

"-—elcm- e skt hea-Rio ke

\,'*.r RS

SR eR - BN A A

93 2. 22 Voarly suppression-tast-respiiso-tES I spriplder-systenr-Sarehe and-beat vents
TSI prereiond | Ee vy + ‘\ﬁ%‘H‘{v%t‘PH bt l‘t‘
i g 'H"M-H PP G SRR RG- P TEreeth

b

H Hm-k}u i st ey 41HH«:L|'1~’H W e P P e

PR PRy

R privische s witleheweeis

rdudiets

HeC-Seetion- 913, Fire Pumps:
S1dA A nbvesapervisions W bese pras dod
arek-Lhe-lsobntor-vabves-or-Hhe buck o waventap
e ara-ae-ta o vasniethds:

b Crerbiny hnmlnh——nmf}m|&H O Fobrbrb e b i e

i P d st

R

1 . : ‘.-'. 3 i i - 1o H - [ . . sy
. ‘sl‘;‘-""-i-ﬁ-ﬂ“ 'l""""\"‘}-l-\-f:‘ et bR b o A B POV \,‘qi".*'H‘t?.‘t’\f%ﬁfl*‘r"»’vnt’%c'“‘r‘d !"m:‘ﬁ'%H*:..’—]-Hbcl-Ec‘r‘ ------ - H A
+

CERME ORI PR e e

Draft 10-16-18

15




HE-Seeton-HHO Bt Aceess-Fravel Dhstapec:

TABLE 115.2
EXIT ACCESS TRAVEL DISTANCE:

S ! ! F i the "*‘-‘t
De Ju:\n-lu-l & Forthe distance
Section 407 4 Forthe distance |

]

OCCUPANCY SPRINKLER SYSTEM (feet) msrfﬁgﬁ"ffiﬁﬂ

AEFTIAR S-1 200 250¢

i1 Mot Permitted 250+

= 260 300:

F2 52U Kby 400

-1 Mot Faemitted 73

H-2 Mot Fermitted 100¢

H-3 Not Permitted 15837

H-4 bot Famutted 175°

H-2 Mot Fermittzd 200

| I & S 1 MotPemitted 200

Fars! 1 foot= 384 g mm

a Sasthe LI SEstn

!smiatrm trrough an alnum space
hmuation in Group 2.
Sections 408 6 1 and 4058 § 1 For the distance imdations in Group |-3

Secticnd11 4 For the distance mtaton in 3penal Smusement Buldings
Sectizn 10134 Forthe dlataﬂ‘v brmutatton o refrgeration machnery nyams.
e Ltl“ﬁ 10153 5 For the distance imitatien in rufnq-_- ratzd rooms and Spaces
Section 10156 4 For increaged limitation in Groups F-% and -1

Section 1021 2 For buildings with one exit

Section W28 7 Fooingreased hmitation o assembiy seating

Section 1028 7 Formoreasad imitation for assevniy open-air 52ating
Section 2193 4 Furtenpua Cstruttures

Section 3104 9 For pedestnan walkvavs

b EL.iid ﬂ:;: equnpped throy gnout

5"733’ 3

Draft 10-16-18

2 See Section B3 foroccupantiss

vith an avtomatic sprnkter system in accordance w

1 2 are permited

with & automatis spanker system m o acoardanoe

'vt\I lnm - {h«*t_eﬂﬂl*’ oF “H-*lﬁ"

b Er

16

ith Section
where automatic sprnkler systems m

vl Section 303 314

fﬂwﬂisﬁ:ﬁ

stttenpatic-tiresortkder system-n- —aecordance



H-€ - Chapterd b-Consiruetion Reguivernents- for Poaistne-Buildines:
Bofte eptive-efaphes-d-4.,

WG Neerion2804 Lo sterior Storsge-of Fudshed-Lumber Produaetss

IR0 Lrenernd: Youte tlor Siwnoe oG hed -l

Fpeadiiet s a0 ehitpsshogeed

Pzt ek d B prodiis i destb ook

HEE - Section 3604 Explosivesard Flreoworks:
SpiHdA-Freeworks dhe-postiossorc ol isce—ler e ol
aFe-probded.

g fiedaeed e ks

Exeeptions:

Aerams-and-Rardiing ob-tireveerios o ov e Dechio) Sink.
i e e e amse duns ue Dt ien
St S0,

oA e on vk o e s o] e adiseec e b s o] }-i‘.ﬁ~\-='<-n-1----+--‘»(—-%--—ﬁ-%‘r‘—r\wm--s

Zo-Ma R R e

3 hreseal !H

weheee-rhowad-baganticable s s-on
T AR PNV P R K P AN EPS T L W
R 4T

-.-',-vi-tm\s' g\ww we«# seneh e workescomply

RO CORSEHRY

TECaeetion 6L Liguetied Petvoieum (;&lw o
6L -Seape. St ‘
P abitieol g
N A A B Praiar
I PSR- Hy Ho-even

R IR

: g.?f Y I-mi'.’ .%—J—h—-f
ik _'l'--;m&—! hereutibtliors-ot

i

b1 oo -odd e 10 wi—-’:..‘?!«'."h“:ﬂ‘:%—i it b

PreCeteive:

Ao Phidolewing-baerpabomat-FreCedes are aranondeds

Appendic-B—FEre FHow Requirements

Sectiop- BHSFive-low-Reguivements Yor - Burldings:
BHEL- Baddings other-Jm-ote- aund-poeo-Fiiv dvve Hiags:
Fag-miimus-ireTiowe na-Dowduraion Sor buddiinge s omer Stheomo csnd by oDty o e it
sl Boeir speeified-ne Fabe BH5

F-\-f-epﬁ&n;-f\-ifn‘:-fl-ie--fixm--in--wa—uh‘-fe-:i----ﬁ-r--~ i Guithestse g eovesde e ot og
webre b e e s provic Iﬂf* b -
goesrdurce wbeSee ok

e S i P M e

bbb
p-eveosaatio ool be-dess-He

el -babie 3405

5 Coafod
s R,

EHLERE S o S50

-

BoOndvethedotonvipe sectiots and anondisentsbe she 2H B dsternabional Widband-Girban

Draft 10-16-18

17




Fterlnee-todeare-adopted:

Wi -dection 1012 -Seope-and-General-Regpuivements:
1 2-Reapes H!e |}' B Ha Fe-ceatle Fhirhas-taerfacefradeshal-naph—tothe
a3 a ey At use-ad ame butidime-simetuee-or

PR RS S

k5

et it

Faileh
et

oo o H s te R g this Tste - i he-adeption-of thiscode-are-alowedto-have
GEPCRIENENC é-)%’%%iﬁ prech- Hostieh :'TW-'J-L*-- iR ReCuPey s er sk st -HheHime-obthe
sehepror-of Hilscode-provided-sieh cosbae da e adass-pot-coastitle a-distnet-danper-te-lite-or
Preferie:;

Brenldinememsruohresrtioved-ata-ar s - it be pireshietiorn-shalcomphe with the pravisronsof
g ok Foneve bur bl orstitetinges

W -SeetHon-Hio, Appeals:
Hib: b Grenerdl-fa-determipe the-seibb i be-od
forp-rensomale D pterpreiplions ol the-provision o
h{-\em-!--i -3 H‘ cott ‘.1%3*;3 o!'f'f.:c»-tai\ﬂ-

srmpptheenaterkeand-methedsando-provide

le i«hereﬁlmﬂ he- aml Iw%-ﬁ—t H»erd—&

: t%-ﬁ-i"—}v--é}?;ﬂ-‘t‘:'éw [?ﬁi’i—ﬁ'l—.—-[—-{%*- at-'fam-m'--m:};eeﬁks
ke iree wtthebshseretion—dhe-beard-shaH
=i Heeestiaations- and-shalbrender-decistons
byl Tit"*h{'t.‘-'t"‘.ﬁt’,fv%"ti‘ the-applieant:

st et e-itrthor ere bt e o
sade-andshat-not-fer e aotharietewaive
Fegritienteris o this codes{ SeeSeether 50 ERE 0

WL Seetion-302 Wildland-Hrbandaterface Aecn-designations:
; 3-idey l{‘H—'-H-f-- W Hd }aﬂd-m—{rmn frtecfuce n e Phe code o lieinh shal reevaluateand
prrech e CenRiY:
AR SRF BRSO HTOPe

~hodv-as-deemed-necesstre by-the-code-offietal:

crvesnls T . N e b AR
‘.‘.t‘.ru,! Hi1h U\. R &" B R ST r 7 T"f*"rﬁﬁ‘_‘g‘ﬁ_

s

¥ ~
.\ \,\l‘.jﬂl] [ Aol i ety

gt n+|\—— B dwnﬁe&ue& s ape- et de otk

W ESection 502 Fire - Havard-Severiby:
S -Creperal -Fhe-tre-hapnsdenvortaad B 3n

s Hheeb o redoeiied-Hkoee

L v

2L Hood coverig-Rooirs
prediealionsaspree-boincetrthe r "‘;‘7:::: :
shat-bo-bie-doppedepreetinde o a—'rhv'--- et -t

HitTa

el -perd "sd HAE: —z»};t*ﬁﬁ—n:cw}%—ﬂ*efﬁw t‘ﬁ(—)ﬁ
|

5 OEeETREAF P et e -7 2 petad- G 24
et o b et et AR 30080 steted aver-the

s Rgess SR peF e

Draft 10-16-18

18



L . ‘ .
Censr sl deckine doelcavers

S vasbs ot any Ol e

i\_;iiw o,

AMECHET Vet doea ok

<kl
i
i

U Vs e R R e

STV R

ST AT e e B e

R R e R i o R

fonetodd e Closeto oogde Pk

Foxception: &
!

sverba-ts e,

bty

WL P Seetion 305, Class 2 I_ﬂ"liiii!)%’i"'f-'-t'*‘ii'“-d25ii-i 7 mt e
SHAHES- Y eaedoousinns, Aivv o

O T B U S PO B ety ina e
ARRIE U TR LEOl b S Rt ARSI £ it J SR RS T SR W A

Exeeptions Vo desivtad

¥
Okl ene mi

e IR PR

i.n';;_-.-' P pE

Yo H

SIS ETRTF

g e the By

s Wit [ VIR
N BRI AT N PR R RN

oS b Adree st lund. Proy
Binhding

SRR TEIELT AR AT AN Ve

Pt RPN PR R

[EHEEEA T TREE NUT ST ST E T AE SRR T

AL L R L S

e B e e

e 44

D322 Frees [rut*\,,r

!

AT A J R e

i s

s o e e -t

il s e

AL Seetion - Maintemamee-of Defepsible Spage:

Draft 10-16-18
19



C. The board of county commissioners must appoint three members to the budtte board of
appeals, one of whom must be an architect, engineer, or a general contractor licensed by the
State of Nevada, one of whom must be a person with experience as a fire protection professional,
and one of whom must represent the public at large.

The terms for all board members are for a period of two years. If a position becomes vacant for
any reason, the vacancy must be filled for the duration of the unexpired term of the member by a
majority vote of the board.

D. Any individual may appeal an order, decision or determination made by the building
official vr rire marshal, except as limited by section B above, to the board of appeals by filing a
written notification of appeal with the secretary to the board of appeals within 10 working days
of the decision. The board of appeals must hold a hearing within 30 days from the receipt of the
written notice of appeal unless the appellant agrees to an extension of the time limit. If the
applicant has not submitted written notification of appeal within the time frame, the action of the
building official or 7ire mursiai! is final.

E. All hearings on appeal pursuant to this section are open to the public. All written
materials introduced must be identified for the record, and the board may request the production
of records and the appearance of persons necessary for their deliberations. The technical rules of
evidence do not apply. Any evidence presented to the board of appeals must be relevant to the
issue before the board.

F. At the conclusion of the hearing the board of appeals must rule within 20 days from the
date of the hearing and state its findings and recommendations on the appeal. (Ord. No. 14-255,
§ 11, 5-19-2014; Ord. 172 § L(part), 2000)

Section Il: Section 15.12.020 is amended is follows:

15.12.020 Application contents and fee.
A. The application for a building permit must be made on forms provided by the building
otficial, and must contain the following information:

1. Name and address of applicant;

2. ldentify and describe the work to be covered by the permit;

3. Primary contractor’s name, address and Nevada State license number;

4. If submitted under NAC 624 as an owner-builder. A written acknowledgment of the
owner-builder restriction statement per NRS 278.573;

5. A description of the land on which the proposed work is to be done by legal
description, street address, or similar description that will readily identify and definitely locate
the proposed work.

6. The intended use and occupancy of the proposed work.

7. Any construction documents or other information required by code.

&. Subcontractor’s name, address and Nevada State license number;

9. Residential designer, address and Nevada State license number;

10. Architect’s name, address and Nevada State license number;

Draft 10-16-18
22



11. Engineer’s name, address and Nevada State license number;
12. Cost of work, based on the retail price or a contractor’s price for such work;
13. Date the work is to commence and the estimaied date of completion.
B. Permir fees. Applications for building permits must be accompanied by the fees
established by resolution of the board, which resolutions are on file in the county building

department.

C. Dlun review fees. In addition to iy other fee required i conpection ywith wn application

or permie, vihen submitial documents are reguived a plan review fee must he paid ai the time of
submitting the construction documents_for plui review,  The plan revicw fee is 63 percent of the
building permit fee unless the tee is ser by resolurion or tie dourd. (Ord. No. 14-255, § 11, 5-
19-2014: Ord. 172 § I{part), 2000)

Proposed on , 2018.

by Comimissioner

Passed on , 2018,
Vote: Ayes: Commissioners
Nays: Commissioners
Absent: Commissioners

Marshall Mc¢Bride, Chair
Storey County Board of County Commissioners

Attest;

Vanessa Stephens
Clerk & Treasurer, Storey County

Draft 10-16-18
23




This ordinance will become effective on ,2018

Draft 10-16-18
24



2018 NORTHERN NEVADA AMENDMENTS TO THE

2018 International Building Code

2018 International Residential Code

2018 International Existing Building Code
2018 International Energy Conservation Code

2018 International Fuel Gas Code

2018 International Mechanical Code
2018 Uniform Mechanical Code

2018 Uniform Plumbing Code
2017 National Electric Code

Published by the Northern Nevada Chapter of the International Code Council on September 1, 2018

2018 Northern Nevada Code Amendments 9-1-18




Participating organizations in the production of this document are:

Associated Builders and Contractars

BANN

Charles Abbott Associates

Farr West Engineering

IME

Lumos and Associates

Nevada Builders Alliance

Peerless Construction

Ranglen System Balance

Sierra Green Builders

University of Nevada - Reno

ACG

CDS Nev

Frame Architecture

JE Engineering

Manhard Consulting

NV Bell

Premier Inspection Services

RHP Mechanical Systems

Strongtie

Versagrade Inc

2018 Northern Nevada Code Amendments 2-1-18

AM Smith Electric

Construction Materials
Engineers

Home CSl

Lepori Construction

McEihaney Structural

NV Energy

QD Construction

Savage and Sons

The Builders Association

Waestern Pacific Electric



Participating agencies in the production to this document are:

Carson City
108 E. Proctor St.

Carson City, NV 89701

City of Sparks
431 Prater Way

Sparks, NV 89431

Pershing County
398 Main St.

Lovelock, NV 89419

City of Fernley
595 Silver Lace Blvd.

Fernley, NV 89408

Douglas County
1594 Esmeralda Ave

Minden, NV 89423

Washoe County
1001 E. Ninth St.

Reno, NV 89512

2018 Northern Nevada Code Amendments 9-1-18

City of Reno
1 E. First St.

Reno, NV 89501

Lyon County
27 S. Main

Yerington, NV 89447

Storey County

110 Toll Rd.

Virginia City, NV 89440




Preface

This document comprises proposed amendments to the following codes as published by the
International Code Council, Inc, amended by the Participating Agencies listed above, with the support of
the Northern Nevada Chapter of the International Code Council:

2018 Edition of the International Building Code

2018 edition of the International Existing Building Code
2018 £dition of the International Energy Conservation Code
2018 tdition of the International Fuel Gas Code

2018 Edition of the International Mechanical Code

2018 Edition of the International Residential Code

2017 Edition of the National Electrical Code

2018 Edition of the Uniform Mechanical Code

2018 Edition of the Uniform Plumbing Code

This document is hereafter referenced as the 2018 Northern Nevada Code Amendment and is prepared
to be adopted by reference by the local Authority Having Jurisdiction. These provisions are not
considered to be or enacted as the code unless the provisions are adopted and codified by the local
Authority Having Jurisdiction.

The purpose of the document is to provide a consist area-wide application to the enforcement of the
fire and life safety code sections noted in the International Fire Code, while stili acknowledging
necessary modifications to the nationally recognized fire and life safety document based upon the local
needs of the community.

Notes: Deleted language in the base code has bee stricken-through-
Added language to the code section has been underlined.

The entire section amended has been shown for context.

2018 Northern Nevada Code Amendments 9-1-18




Section

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Amendments to the 2018 iInternational Building Code

Chapter 1
202

305.2
308.2
308.5
310.2
311.2
4035.4
906

910.2
1010.1.10
1209.4
1503.6
1608.2
Table 1608.2.1
1609.1.1
1609.1.1.1
1609.3
Table 1609.2
17042
1803.2
18036
1807.2.1.1
1808.6.1
1809.5

29011

Scope and Administration (If adopted by local AHJ)
Definitions

Group E, day care facilities

Institutionai Group I-1

Institutional Group |-4, day care facilities
Residential Group R-1

Moderate-hazard storage, Group 5-1

Smokeproof enclosures

Portable fire extinguishers

Where required

Panic and fire exit hardware

Baby changing tables

Snow shedding and impact areas

Ground snow loads

Ground Snow Loads P, For Northern Nevada Locations
Determination of wind loads

Applicability

Basic design wind speed

Special Wind Region Defined: Minimum Basic Wind Speeds
Special inspections and tests

Investigations required

Reporting

Rockery retaining walls

Foundations

Frost protection

Scope

2018 Northern Nevada Code Amendments 9-1-18

Page
11
11
11
11
12
12
13
13
15
15
15
15
16
16
17
18
18
19
19
20
20
21
21
22
23
23

23




2902.1
Table 2902.1
3102.7

1105.2

Minimum number of fixtures
Minimum Number of Required Fixtures
Engineering design

Footings

Amendments to the 2018 international Existing Building Code

301.6

802.1

Baby changing tables

High-rise building

Amendments to the 2018 International Energy Conservation Code

C102.1.1
C201.3
202
C402.5.3
C402.5.9
C403.2.2
C403.6.1
€403.6.6
C403.7.1
C€403.7.2
C403.7.34
C403.7.7
C403.11.2
C€403.11.2.1
€403.11.2.2
C406.6
5014
Chapter 6

R102.1.1

Above code program

Terms defined in other codes

General definitions

Rooms containing fuel-burning appliances

Air curtains

Ventilation {(Mandatory)

Variable air volume and multiple-zone systems
Multiple-zane VAV system ventilation optimization control
Demand controf ventilation (Mandatory)

Enclosed parking garage ventilation controls {(Mandatory)
Energy recovery ventilation systems (Mandatory)

Shutoff dampers (Mandatory)

Duct and plenum insulation and sealing {Mandatory)
Low-pressure duct systems {Mandatory)
Medium-pressure duct systems (Mandatory)

Dedicated outdoor air systems

Compliance

Referencing Standards

Above code programs

2018 Northern Nevada Code Amendments 9-1-18

24
25
27

27

28
28

28

28
28
29
29
29
30
30
30
31
31
32
32
33
34
34
35
35
35
35

36




R401.3 Certificate (Mandatory) 4 36

R402.4.1.2 Testing a7
R403.3.4 Duct leakage (prescriptive} 37
R403.6 Mechanical ventilation (Mandatary) 38
Amendments to the 2018 International Fuel Gas Code 38
| 301.1.2 LP-Gas installations 38
‘ 301.16 Snow hazard 38
406.4.1 Test pressure 38
406.4.2 Test duration 38
406.6.2 Before turning gas on 39
Amendments to the 2018 international Mechanical Code 39
401.2 Ventilation required 39
505.4 Makeup air required 40
508.1 Makeup air 40
603.2 Duct sizing 40
Amendments to the 2018 International Residential Code 41
Chapter 1 Scape and Administration {if adopted by the local AHI) 41
| R202 Definitions 41
‘ Table R3012(1) Climatic and Geographic Design Criteria 41
R313.1 Townhouse automatic fire sprinkler systems 42
R313.2 One- and Two-family dwellings automatic fire sprinkler systems 43
| N1102.4.1.2  Testing 43
‘ M1503.6 Makeup air required 44
% G2402.1.1  LP-Gas installations a4
G2402.12 Snow hazard 44
G2417.4.1 Test pressure : 45

| 2018 Northern Nevada Code Amendments 9-1-18




G2417.4.2
G2417.6.2
G2417.6.2.1
G2417.6.2.2
G2417.6.2.3
P2503.5.1
P2603.5.1
P3002.2.2
E3601.6.2
E3705.6.1
E3901.2.2
E3902.2

E3902.17

AH105.2

Test duration

Before turning gas on

For medium pressure gas systems
For appliances or equipment requiring pounds of pressure
Manometer testing

Rough plumbing

Sewer depth

Building sewer

Service disconnect location
Edison fuses

Wall space

Garage and accessory building receptacles

Arc-fault circuit-interrupter protection for branch circuit extensions

ar modifications

Footings

Amendments to the 2017 National Electrical Code

210.52(A)(2)
225.32
230.70(A)(1)
240.51(8)
250.118(4)
250.120
314.17(C)
358,12
700.10(D)

700.12

Wall spacing

Locations

Readily accessible location

Replacement only

Types of equipment grounding conductors
Eguipment grounding conductor installation
Nonmetallic boxes and conduit bodies

Uses not permitted

Fire protection

General requirements

Amendments to the 2018 Uniform Mechanical Code

2018 Northern Nevada Code Amendments 9-1-18

45
45
45
46
46
46
46
47
47
47
47

48

48

48

49
49
49
50
50
50
51
51
51
52

52

53




304.3 Access to appliances on roofs 53

403.7.2 Enclosed parking garages 53
504421 Length limitations 54
505.10 Makeup air 54
508.3.5.4 Evaporative cooling systems used as makeup air systems 54
511.2.2.2 Capture and containment test 55
604.1 General 55
608.1 Air-moving systems and smoke detectors 56
609.0 Performance test for avtomatic shutoffs 56
939.0 Sauna heaters 57
1301.1 Applicability 57
1313.3 Test pressure 57
1313.5.1 Turning gas on 58
Amendments to the 2018 Uniform Plumbing Code 58
216.0 Definitions 58
218.0 Definition Penetration Firestop System 59
222.0 Definitions “T" rating 59
312.7 Fire-resistant construction 59
422.0 Minimum number of required fixtures 59
Table 4221 Minimum Plumbing Facilities 59
609.1 tnstallation 60
7121 Media 60
717.1 General (size of building sewers) 60
7231 General {building sewer test} 60
1107.2 Method of testing storm drainage systems 61
1201.1 Installation 61
1208.6.1.3 Snow hazard 61
12133 Test pressure 61

2018 Northern Nevada Code Amendments 9-1-18




121351 Turning gas on

Chapter 14 Firestop Protection

2018 Northern Nevada Amendments Appendix

Appendix Table R301.2{1}

2018 Northern Nevada Code Amendments 9-1-18

62

62

63

63

10



Amendments to the 2018 Edition of the International Building Code

Section 202 Definitions
Amend Section 202 te read as follows:

HIGH-RISE BUILDING. A building with an occupied floor located more than 25 55 feet (22-860 16 764
mmy} above the lowest leve| of fire department vehicle access.

International Electrical Code. The Electrical Code, whether the National Electrical Code or the
International Electrical Code, as amended and adopted by the jocal jurisdiction.

international Mechanical Code. The Mechanical Code, whether the Uniform Mechanical Code or the
International Mechanical Cade as amended and adopted by the local jurisdiction,

International Plumbing Code. The Plumhing Code, whether the Unifarm Plumbing Code or the
International Plumbing Code, as amended and adopted by the local jurisdiction.

International Fuel Gas Code. The Fuel Gas Code, whether NFPA 54 or the international Fuel Gas Code,
as amended and adapted by the local jurisdiction.

Surcharge. A vertical load imposed on the retained soil that may impose a lateral force in addition to the
lateral earth pressure of the retained soil. Examples include:

* Sioped retained soil.
*  Structure footings supported by the retained soil.
*  Adjacent vehicle loads supported by the retained soil.

Section 305.2 Group E, day care facilities
Amend Section 305.2 to read as follows:

305.2 Group E, day care facilities. This group includes buildings and structures, or portions thereof
occupied by more than five six children older than 2 ¥ years of age who receive educational, supervision
or personaf care services for fewer than 24 hours per day.

305.2.1 Within Places of religious worship. Rooms and spaces within places of religious worship
providing such day care during religious functions shall be classified as part of the primary occupancy.

305.2.2 Five Six or fewer children. A facility having five six or fewer children receiving such day care
shall be classified as part of the primary occupancy.

305.2.3 Kive Six or fewer children in a dwelling unit. A facility such as the above within a dwelling unit
and having five six or fewer children receiving such day care shalt be classified as a Group R-3 occupancy
or shall comply with the International Residentiaf Code

11

2018 Northern Nevada Code Amendments 9-1-18




Section 308.2 Institutional Group I-1
Amend Section 308.2 to read as follows:

308.2 Institutional Group I-1. Institutional Group {-1 occupancy shall include buildings, structures or
portions thereof for more than 16 persons, excluding staff, who reside on a 24-hour basisin a
supervised environment and receive custodial care. Buildings of Group I-1 shall be classified as one of
the occupancy conditions specified in Section 308.2.1 or 308.2.2. This group shall include, but not be
limited to, the following.

Alcohol and drug centers

Assisted living facilities

Congregate care facilities

Group homes

Halfway houses

Residential board and care facilities
Socia!l rehabilitation facilities

308.2.1 Condition 1. This occupancy condition shall include buildings in which all persons receiving
custodial care who, without any assistance, are capable of responding to an emergency situation to
complete building evacuation.

308.2.2 Condition 2. This occupancy condition shall include buildings in which there are any persons
receiving custodia} care who require limited verbal or physical assistance while responding to an
emergency situation to comgplete building evacuation.

308.2.3 Six to 16 persons receiving custodial care. A facility housing not fewer than six and not more
than 16 persons receiving custodial care shall be classified as Group R-4.

308.2.4 Five or fewer persons receiving custodial care. A facility with five or fewer persons receiving
custodial care shall be classified as Group R-3 or shall comply with the international Residential Code
provided an aqutomatic sprinkler system is installed in accordance with Section 903.3.1.3 or Section
P2904 of the international Residential Code.

308.2.5 Board of Health. All portions of a care facility which houses patients or residents which is
classified by the State Board of Health as ‘Category 2,” and which has an occupant load of more than 10
residents, is classified as an ‘I-1’ occupancy classification.

Section 308.5 Institutional Group I-4, day care facilities
Amend Section 308.5 to read as follows:

308.5 Institutional Group I-4, day care facilities. Institutional Group I-4 occupancy shall include
buildings and structures occupied by more than five six persons of any age who receive custodial care
for fewer than 24 hours per day by persons other than parents or guardians, relatives by blood,

12
2018 Northern Nevada Code Amendments 9-1-18



marriage or adoption, and in a place other than the home of the person cared for. This group shall
include, but not be limited to, the following:

Adult day care
Child day care

308.5.1 Classification as Group E. A child day care facility that provides care for more than five six but
not more than 100 children 2 % years or less of age, where the rooms in which the children are cared for
are located on a leve! of exit discharge serving such rooms and each of these child care rooms has an exit
door directly to the exterior, shall be classified as Group E.

308.5.2 Within a place of religious worship. Roomns and spaces within places of religious worship
providing such care during religious functions shall be classified as part of the primary occupancy.

308.5.3 Five Six or fewer persons receiving care. A facility having five six or fewer persons receiving
custodial care shall be classified as part of the primary occupancy.

308.5.4 kive Six or fewer persons receiving care in a dwelling unit. A facility such as the above within a
dwelling unit and having five six or fewer persons receiving custodial care shall be classified as a Group
R-3 occupancy or shall comply with the International Residential Code.

Section 310.2 Residential Group R-1
Amend Section 310.2 to read as foflows:

310.2 Residential Group R-1. Residential Group R-1 occupancies containing sleeping units where the
occupants are primarily transient in nature, including:

Boarding houses (transient) with more than 10 occupants

Brothels

Congregate living facilities (transient) with more than 10 occupants
Hotels (transient)

Motels (transient)

Group 311.2 Moderate-hazard storage, Group 5-1
Amend Section 311.2 to read as foliows:

311.2 Moderate-hazard storage, Group S-1. Storage Group S-1 occupancies are buildings occupied for
storage uses that are not classified as Group S-2, including, but not limited to, storage of the following:

Aerosol products, Levels 2 and 3

Aircraft hangar (storage and repair)

13

2018 Northern Nevada Code Amendments 9-1-18




Bags: cloth, burlap and paper
Bamboos and rattan

Baskets

Belting: canvas and leather

Books and paper in rolls or packs
Boots and shoes

Buttons, including cloth covered, pearl or bone
Cardboard and cardboard boxes
Clothing, woolen wearing apparet
Cordage

Dpy-beatsterage-findoor

Furniture

Furs

Glues, mucilage, pastes and size
Grains

Horns and combs, other than celluloid
Leather

Linoleum

Lumber

Motor vehicie repair garages complying with the maximum allowable quantities of hazardous
materials listed in Table 307.1(1) (see Section 406.8)

Photo engravings

Resilient flooring

Self-service storage facitity (mini-storage)
Silks

Soaps

Sugar

Tires, bulk storage of

Tobacco, cigars, cigarettes and snuff

14

2018 Northern Nevada Code Amendments 9-1-18




Upholstery and mattresses

Wax candles

Section 403.5.4 Smokeproof enclosures
Amend Section 403.5.4 to read as follows:

403.5.4 Smokeproof enclosures. Every required interior exit stairway serving floors more than 25 55
feet (22-860 16 764 mm) above the lowest level of fire department vehicle access shall be a smokeproof
enclosure in accordance with Sections 909.20 and 1023.11

Section 906 Portable Fire Extinguishers
Amend to Section 906 to read as follows:

Refer to the 2018 Editions of the International Fire Code-and the 2018 Northern Nevada Fire
Amendments.

Section 910.2 Where required

Amend Section 910.2 to read os follows:

910.2 Where required. Smoke and heat vents or a mechanical smoke removal system shall be installed
as required by Sections 910.2.1 and 910.2.2.

Exceptions:

1. Frozen food warehouses used solely for storage of Class | and 1l commodities where
protected by an approved automatic spnnk!er system

suppFesgeﬂ-iast—Fespense{-ESFR-)—sp;mHe#s- Automatic smoke and heat vents are not

required within areas of buildings equipped with early suppression fast-response {ESFR)
sprinklers unless the area of Group F-1 or §-1 occupancy protected with the ESFR sprinklers
has an exit access trave! distance of more than 250 feet (76 200mmn]).

3. Smoke and heat removal shall not be required in areas of buildings equipped with control
mode special application sprinklers with a response time index of 50 {(m x 5)*2 or less that are
listed to control a fire in stored commaodities with 12 or fewer sprinklers.

1010.1.10 Panic and fire exit hardware
Amend Section 1010.1.10 to read.

1010.1.10 Panic and fire exit hardware. Swinging doors serving a Group H occupancy and swinging
doors serving rooms or spaces with an occupant load of 50 or more in a Group A or E occupancy shall
not be provided with a latch or lock other than panic hardware or fire exit hardware.

15

2018 Northern Nevada Code Amendments 9-1-18




Exceptions:

1. A main exit of a Group A occupancy shall be permitted to have locking devices in accordance
with Section 1010.1.9.4, Item 2. '

2. Doors provided with panic hardware or fire exit hardware and serving a Group A or E occupancy
shall be permitted to be electrically locked in accordance with Section 1010.1.9.9 or
1010.1.9.10.

Electrical rooms with equipment rated 3,206 800 amperes or more and over 6 feet {1829 mm} wide, and
that contain overcurrent devices, switching devices or control devices with exit or exit access doors,
shall be equipped with panic hardware or fire exit hardware. The doors shal! swing in the direction of
egress travel.

Section 1209.4 Baby Changing Tables
Amend Section 1209 by adding Section 1209.4 as follows:

1209.4 Baby Changing Tables. Diaper changing tables are required to be installed in both male, female
and other restrooms, in permanent buildings that contain public restrooms as defined in chapter 29 of
the 2018 IBC. Changing tables are required when any of the following occur: new buildings, tenant
improvements, new restrooms, alteration of existing restrooms, new additions, change of uses that
require updating existing restrooms with additions to those facilities. Shall meet the guidelines of 603.5,
309 and 902 of ANSI/ICC A117.1-2009,

Exceptions: A building or facility that does not have public restrooms or has been issued a permit or
license which restricts the admission of children on the basis of age, shall be exempt from this

reguirement.

Section 1503.6 Snow shedding and impact areas
Amend Section 1503 by adding Section 1503.6 as follows:

1503.6 Snow shedding and impact areas. Snow shedding onto adjacent properties is prohibited. Snow
shed impact areas shall be designed to contain shedding snow from structures and prevent snow from
encroaching onto adjacent properties when ground snow loads exceed 154 p, when located in Washoe
County or Carson City, or exceeds 69 p, when located in Storey County. The roof and eaves of all
structures shall be designed so that snow shed impact areas will not occur in or on required exits,
parking areas, driveways, LPG storage tanks, walkways, and public areas.

Exception: The snow shed impact area may be reduced provided an engineered snow restraint system,
designed in accordance with this code, is incorporated into the roof design and the roof drainage

system.

16

2018 Northern Nevada Code Amendments 9-1-18




Section 1608.2 Ground snow loads
Amend Section 1608.2 to read as follows:

1608.2 GROUND SNOW LOADS. THE GROUND SNOW LOADS TO BE USED IN DETERMINING THE DESIGN SNOW LOADS FOR
ROOFS SHALL BE DETERMINED IN ACCORDANCE WITH TABLE 1608.2.1 ASCE 7 OR FIGURE 1608.2 FOR THE CONTIGUOUS
UNITED STATES AND TABLE 1608.2 FOR ALASKA. SITE-SPECIFIC CASE STUDIES SHALL BE MADE IN AREAS DESIGNATED “CS”
IN FIGURE 1608.2. GROUND SNOW LOADS FOR SITES AT ELEVATIONS ABOVE THE LIMITS INDICATED IN FIGURE 1608.2 AND
FOR ALL SITES WITHIN THE CS AREAS SHALL BE APPROVED. GROUND SNOW L.OAD DETERMINATION FOR SUCH SITES SHALL BE
BASED ON AN EXTREME VALUE STATISTICAL ANALYSIS OF DATA AVAILABLE IN THE VICINITY OF THE SITE USING A VALUE WiTH
A 2-PERCENT ANNUAL PROBABILITY OF BEING EXCEEDED {50-YEAR MEAN RECURRENCE INTERVAL). SNOW LOADS ARE ZERQ
FOR Hawal, EXCEPT N MOUNTAINOUS REGIONS AS APPROVED BY THME BUILDING OFFICIAL, THE SNOW LOADS FOR
ELEVATIONS ABOVE 4500 FEET SHALL BE TAKEN FROM TABLE 1608.2.1.

17

2018 Northern Nevada Code Amendments 9-1-18




Table 1608.2.1 GROUND SNOW LOADS P;, FOR NORTHER NEVADA LOCATIONS

Add Table 1608.2.1 to read as follows:

TABLE 1608.2.1
GROUND SNOW LOADS Pg, FOR NOTHERN NEVADA LOCATIONS

Elevation West of U.S. Hwy East of U.S. Lyon County Storey County All Nevada
In Feet 395 Sierra Slope Hwy 395 Counties, Lake
Carson, Carson, Pg {Pounds Per | Ps{Pounds Per Tahoe Basin
Douglas, Douglas, Square Foot) Square Foot)
Washoe Counties, Washoe Pg (Pounds Per
Reno Counties, Reno Square Foot)
Pg {Pounds Per & Sparks
Square Foot) Pg (Pounds Per
Square Foot)

4500 30 30 10 10

5000 30 30 30 10

5100 41 31 31 10

5200 52 33 31 10

5300 64 34 34 10

5400 75 35 35 10

5500 86 37 37 50

6000 142 43 43 70 220
6500 171 43 43 90 235
7000 200 57 57 90 250
7500 215 57 57 90 265
8000 229 86 86 90 280
8500 243 86 86 20 295
9000 271 114 114 114 330
9500 300 142 142 120 390
10000 357 142 142 142 420

Section 1609.1.1 Determination of wind loads

Amend Section 1609.1.1 to read as follows:

1609.1.1 Determination of wind loads. Wind loads on every building or structure shall be determined in
accordance with Chapter 26 to 30 of ASCE 7. The type of opening protection required, the basic design
wind speed, V, and the exposure category for a site is permitted to be determined in accardance with
section 1609 or ASCE 7. The wind speed in the City of Reno, the City of Sparks, Douglas, Pershing and
Washoe Counties shal| be per the Special Wind Region Table 1609.3.2 Wind shall be assumed to come

fram any horizontal direction and wind pressures shall be assumed to act normal to the surface

considered.

2018 Northern Nevada Code Amendments 9-1-18

18




Exceptions:

1. Subject to limitations of section 1609.1.1.1, the provisions of iCC 600 shall be permitted for
applicable Group R-2 and R-3 buildings.
2. Subject to the limitations of Section 1609.1.1.1, residential structures using the provisions of
AWC WFCM.
3. Subject to the limitations of Section 1609.1.1.1 residential structures using the provisions of AlS!
5230.
4. Designs using NAAMM FP 1001.
5. Designs using TIA-222 for antenna-supporting structures and antennas, provided that the
horizontal extent of Topographic Category 2 escarpments in Section 2.6.6.2 of TIA-222 shall be
16 times the height of the escarpment.
6. Wind tunnel tests in accordance with ASCE 49 and Sections 31.4 and 31.5 of ASCE 7.
The wind speeds in Figures 1609.3(1) through 1609.3(8) are basic design wind speeds, V, and shall be
converted in accordance with Section 1609.3.1 to allowable stress design wind speeds, Vaq, when the
provisions of the standards referenced in Exceptions 4 and 5 are used. The wind speed in the City of
Reno, the City of Sparks, Douglas Pershing and Washoe Counties shall be per the Special Wind Region
Table 1609.3.2

Section 1609.1.1.1 Applicability
Amend Section 1609.1.1.1 to read as follows:

1609.1.1.1 Applicability. The provisions of ICC 600 are applicable only to buildings located within
Exposure B or C as defined in section 1609.4. The wind speed in the Carson City, City of Reno, the City of
Sparks, Douglas, Pershing and Washoe Counties shall be per the Special Wind Region Table 1609.3.2.
The provisions of ICC 600, AWC WFCM and AISI 5230 shatl not apply to buildings sited on the upper haif
of an isolated hili, ridge, or escarpment meeting all of the following conditions:

1. The hill, ridge or escarpment is 60 feet (18288 mm) or higher if located in Exposure B or 30 feet (9144
mm) or higher if located in Exposure C.

2. The maximum average slope of the hill exceeds 10 percent.

3. The hili, ridge or escarpment is unobstructed upwind by other such topographic features for a
distance from the high point of 50 times the height of the hill or 2 miles (3.22 km), whichever is greater.

Section 1609.3 Basic design wind speed
Amend Section 1609.3 to read as follows:

1609.3 Basic design wind speed. The basic design wind speed, V, in mph, for the determination of the
wind loads shall be determined by figures 1609.3(1) through (8}. The basic design wind speed, V, for use
in the design of Risk Category Il buildings and structures shall be obtained from Figures 1609.3(1) and
1609.3(5). The basic design wind speed, V, for use in the design of Risk Category Il buildings and
structures shall be obtained from Figures 1609.3(2) and 1609.3(6). The basic design wind speed, V, for
use in the design of Risk Category IV buildings and structures shall be obtained from Figures 1609.3(3)

19

2018 Northern Nevada Code Amendments 9-1-18




and 1609.3(7). The basic design wind speed, V, for use in the design of Risk Category | buildings and
structures shall be obtained from Figures 1609.3{4) and 1609.3(8)}. No altitude density reduction shall be
taken.

The basic design wind speed, V, for the special wind regions indicated near mountainous terrain and
near gorges shall be in accordance with |ocal jurisdiction requirements. The basic design wind speeds, V,
determined by the local jurisdiction shall be in accordance with Chapter 26 of ASCE 7. Utilizing Special
wind region Table 1609.3.2,

TABLE 1609.2 SPECIAL WIND REGION DEFINED: MINIMUM BASIC WIND SPEEDS
Add Table 1609.3.2 to read as follows:
TABLE 1602.3.2

SPECIAL WIND REGION DEFINED:

MINIMUM BASIC WIND SPEEDS

For Carson City, City of Reno, City of Sparks, Douglas, Lyon, Pershing, Storey and Washoe Counties the
design wind speed values shall be:

Risk Category Ultimate Wind Speed Vg Wind Speed
Vur (mph) 3-sec gust (mph)
| 110 85
I & 2018 IRC 120 93
i 130 101
v 135 104
Table notes:

a) Air density corrections to design wind pressures are prohibited.
The conversions from Vult to Vasd are based on Table 1609.3.1

Section 1704.2 Special inspections and tests
_Amend Section 1704.2 to read as follows:

1704.2 Special inspections and tests. Where application is made to the building official for construction
as specified in Section 105, the owner or the owner’s authorized agent, other than the contractor, shall
employ one or more approved agencies to provide special inspections and tests during construction on
the types of work specified in Section 1705 and identify the approved agencies to the building official.
These special inspections and test are in addition to the inspections by the buifding official that are
identified in Section 110. ‘

20
2018 Northern Nevada Code Amendments 9-1-18



Exceptions:

1. Special inspections and tests are not required for construction of a minor nature or as
warranted by conditions in the jurisdiction as approved by the building official.

2. Unless otherwise required by the building official, special inspections and test are not
required for Group R-3 occupancies as applicable in section 101.2 and Group U occupancies
that are accessory 10 a residential occupancy including, but not limited to, those listed in
Section 312.1,

3. Special inspections and test are not required for portions of structures designed and
canstructed in accordance with the cold-formed steel light-frame construction provisions of
Section 2211.1.2 or the conventional light-frame constructions provisions of Section 2308.

4. The contractor is permitted to employ the opproved agencies where the contractor is also
the owner,

Section 1803.2 Investigations required
Amend Section 1803.2 to read as follows:

1803.2 investigations required. Geotechnical investigations shall be conducted in accordance with
Sections 1803.3 through 1803.5.

Exception: The building official shailbe-permitted-to-waive-therequirement-for need not require a
geotechnical investigation where satisfactory data from agjacent areas is provided by a licensed design
professional available that demanstrates an investigation is not necessary for any of the conditions in
Sections 1803.5.1 through 1803.5.6 and Sections 1803.5.10 and 1803.5.11.

Section 1803.6 Reporting
Amend Section 1803.6 to read as follows:

1803.6 Reporting. Where geotechnical investigations are required, a written report of the investigations
shall be submitted to the building official by the permit applicant at the time of permit application. This
geotechnical report shall inciude, but need not be limited to, the following information:

A plot showing the location of the soil investigations

A complete record of the soil boring and penetration test logs and soil samples.

A record of the s0il profile.

Efevation of the water table, if encountered.

Recommendations for foundation type and design criteria, including but not limited to:

bearing capacity of natural or compacted soil; provisions to mitigate the effects of

expansive soils; mitigation of the effects of liquefaction, differential settlement, and

varying soil strength; and the effects of adjacent loads

6. Expected total and differential settlement.

Deep foundation information in accordance with Section 1803.5.5,

8. Special design and construction provisions for foundations of structures founded on
expansive soils, as necessary.

9. Compacted fill material properties and testing in accordance with Section 1803.5.8.

LAl

~

21

2018 Northern Nevada Code Amendments 9-1-18




10. Controlied low-strength material properties and testing in accordance with Section
1803.5.9.

11. Where required by 1803.5.11, investigation of liquefaction hazards shall be performed
in accordance with “Guidelines for Evaluating Liquefaction Hazards in Nevada;”
investigation of hazards associated with surface displacement due to faulting or
seismically induced lateral spreading or lateral flow shall be performed in accordance
with “Guidelines for Evaluating Potential Surface Fault Rupture/Land Subsidence
Hazards in Nevada.”

Section 1807 2.1.1 Rockery retaining walls
Amend Section 1807.2 adding Section 1807.2.1.1 as follows:

1807.2.1.1 Rockery retaining walls.

Rockery retaining walls or rockery soil stabilization walls shall not be subject to surcharges, such as
building foundations, adjacent retaining structures, siopes or vehicle surcharge. Rockery walls over four
feet in height shall be engineered and shall have special inspection. The special inspection shall verify all
of the specified items listed below. Wall height is determined from the bottom of the footing to the
adjacent grade at the top of the wall. Structures adjacent to rockery wall shall be set back a minimum
distance equal to the height of the wall. As described above, drainage shall be provided behind ali
engineered rockery walls. A global stability analysis shall be performed for all rockery walls that are
terraced. No single tier shall exceed 8 feet in height. The Engineer shall specify on the construction
documents: :

1. Type and quality of rock.

2. Unit weight, if design exceeds 155 pcf.

3. Rock size in approximate diameter.

4. Rock placement.

5. Voids greater than 3” shall be filied.

6. Drainage swale and system.

7. Embedment.

8. Wall face siope {batter 6v:1H recommended).

9. Mechanically stabilized earth, if specified.

A Global Stability Analysis shall include the foliowing:
1. Shall be stamped by a licensed geotechnical engineer.
2. Shallinclude a seismic evaluation representative of the location.
3. All results of the analysis shall be included in the report.

22
2018 Northern Nevada Code Amendments 9-1-18



1808.6.1 Foundations
Amend Section 1808.6.1 to read as follows:

1808.6.1 Foundations, Foundations placed on or within the active zone of expansive soils shall be
designed to resist differential volume changes and to prevent structural damage to the supported
structure. Deflection and racking of the supported structure shalf be limited to that which will not
interfere with the usability and serviceability of the structure.

Foundation piaced below where volume change occur or below expansive soil shall comply with the
following provisions:

1. Foundations extending into or penetrating expansive soils shall be designed to prevent upiift of
the supported structure.

2. Foundations penetrating expansive soils shall be designed to resist forces exerted on the
foundation due to soil volume changes or shall be isolated from the expansive sail.
Post-tensigned slabs shall not be utilized in place of frost depth footing design unless super structure
deflection and differential movement calculations are provided. The deflection calculations would need
to show that the maximum combined frost and expansive soil heaving, as localized at slab edges, with
resultant non-uniformly distributed deflections, as well as whole slab deflections would not result in
super structure racking or excessive truss, roof or wall frame movement.

Section 1809.5 Frost protection
Amend Section 1809.5(1) to read as follows:

1809.5 Frost protection. Except where otherwise protected from frost, foundations and other
permanent supports of buildings and structures shall be protected from frost by one or more of the
following methods:
1. Extending below the frost line of the locality. Refer to 2018 Northern Nevada Amendments Appendix
Table R201.2{1]) for requirements of local Authorities Having Jurisdiction.
2. Constructing in accordance with ASCE 32,
3. Erecting on solid rock.
Exception: Free-standing buildings meeting all of the following conditions shal not be required to be
protected:

1. Assigned to Risk Category I.

2. Area of 600 square feet (56 m?) or less for light-frame construction or 400 square feet {37 m®) or

less for other than light-frame construction.
3. Eave height of 10 feet (3048 mm) or less.

Shallow foundations shall not bear on frozen soil unless such frozen condition is of a permanent
character,

Section 2901.1 Scope

Amend Section 2901.5 to read as follows:

23

2018 Northern Nevada Code Amendments 9-1-18




2901.1 Scope. The provisions of this chapter and the interretionalRlumbing-Cade Uniform Plumbing
Code shall govern the design, construction, erection and installation of plumbing components,
appliances, equipment and systems used in huildings and structures coverad by this code. Toilet and
bathlng rooms shali be constructed in accordance wuth Section 1209. Private-sewage-disposalsysterms

: : gde- The International Fire Code, the
!nternat:ona! Property Mamtenance Code and the international Plumbing Code shall govern the use and
maintenance of plumbing components, appliances, equipment and systems. The International Existing
Building code and the Internationol Plumbing Code shall govern the alteration, repair, relocation,
replacement and addition of plumbing components, appliances, equipment and systems.

Section 2902.1 Minimum number of fixtures

Amend Section 2902.1 to read as follows:

2902.1 Minimum number of fixtures. Plumbing fixtures shall be provided in the minimum number as
shown in Table 2802.1 based on the actual use of the building or space. Uses not shown in Table 2902.1
shail be considered individually by the code official. The number of occupants shall be determined by
this code. Suitable toilet facilities shall be provided and maintained in a sanitary condition for the use of
workers during construction.

24
2018 Northern Nevada Code Amendments 9-1-18



TABLE 2902.1 MINIMUM NUMBER OF REQUIRED PLUMBING FIXTURES

Amend Table 2902.1 to read as follows:

MINIMUM NUMBER OF REQUIRED PLUMBING FIXTURES 2@

WATER CLOSETS P DRINKING
SEE
lééwg FQU NTAINS
»
1N ERNA T 2INAL
6 ion
b P HM G L e
LAVATORIES .1 OF THE
:}“T”TUB INTERNATI
ONAL
RLUMBING .
OTHER
No. [CLASS ac MALE FEMALE [MALE [FEMALE SHOWER CODE)
C S
DESCRIPTIO
N
Buildings for the 1 per 25 for the first 50 [1 per 40 for the first 1 per 100 1 service
transaction of nd 1per 50 for the 8C and 1 per 80 for sink
1 g [business, professional ‘:emainder exceeding 50the -
Business services, other remainder
services xceeding 80
involving merchandise,
office buildings, banks,
light industrial and
similar uses
W Educational E Educational facilities 1 per 50 1 per 50 _ 1 per 100 1 service
sink
) Factory and [Structures in which 1 per 100 1 per 100 Ree-Section 1 per 400 1 service
industrial loccupants are 1 ofthe sink
F-1lengaged in work paterrationsd
land|
F-2
fabricating, assembly : Plumbing
or processing of Code
products or materials
Residential care 1 per 10 1 per 10 1 per8 1 per 100 1 service
4 lnstitutional | sink
. Hospitals, 1 per room’ Lperroom 1 per 15 1 per 100 1 service
‘ambulatory sink
nursing
hore patients e
Employees, other 1per25 1 per 35 — 1 per 100 _
than residential care
1]
Visitors, other 1per75 1 per 100 —_ 1 per 500 —_
than residential
care
| i-3 [Prisons 1. per cell 1 per cell 1 per 15 1 per 100 1 service
Isink
|-3 [Reformatories, 1perl5s 1 per 15 1 perl15 1 per 100 1 service
detention centers lsink
and
correctional centers "

25

2018 Northern Nevada Code Amendments 9-1-18




2018 Northern Nevada Code Amendments 9-1-18

Employees” 1 per 25 1 per 35 - 1 per 100 1 se.jr\.lr(ice
5in

I-4iadult day care 1 per 15 1peri5 - 1 per 100 1 service
and child care sink

5 Mercantile M Retail stores, 1 per 500 1 per 750 - 1 per 1,000 1 service
service statlons, sink
shops, salesrooms,
markets
land shopping centers

R-1Hotels, motels, per sleeping unit 1 per sleeping unit 1 per - 1 service

6 Residential boarding sleeping Isink
houses unit
(transient}

R-2[Darmitories, 1per10 1 per 10 1 per 8 1 per 100 1 service
fraternities, sink
kororities and
hoarding house (not
transient)

1 kitchen

R-2|Apartment house 1 per dwelling unit 1 per dwelling unit |1 per — sink per

dwelling unit kwelling
unit; 1
1 kitchen
7 [Residential |R-30ne- and two- 1 per dweiling unit 1 per 10 1 per — sink per
family dwellings dwelling unit dwelling
unit; 1
automatic
clothes
washer
connectic
n per20
dwelling
units
Congregate living 1lperl0 1 per 10 lper8 1 per 100 1
R-3ffacilities with 16 service
or fewer parsons sink
Residential 1
R-4ycare/assisted 1 per 10 1 per 10 1per8 1 per 100 service
iving facilities sink
26




Structures for the Bea Section 1
8 |[Storage 5-1ktorage of goods, 1 per 100 1 per 100 411-of the 1 per 1,000 service
>-2\varehouses, ntarnatione sink
storehouses and Rivmbing
freight depots, low Code
and moderate
hazard

a. The fixtures shown are based on one fixture being the minimum required for the
number of persons indicated or any fraction of the number of persons indicated. The
number of occupants shall be determined by this code.
b. Toilet facilities for employees shall be separate from facilities for inmates or patients.
c. A single-occupant toilet raom with one water closet and one
lavatory serving not more than two adjacent patient rooms shall be
permitted where such room is provided with direct access from each
patient room and with provisions for privacy.
d. The occupant load for seasonal outdoor seating and
entertainment areas shall be included when determining the
minimum number of facilities required.
e. The minimum number of required drinking fountains shall comply with Table 2902.1
and Chapter 11,
f. Drinking fountains are not required for an occupant load of 15 30 or fewer.
g. For business and mercantile occupancies with an accupant load of
15 30 or fewer, service sinks shall not be required.
h. in each bathroom or toilet room, urinals shall not be substituted for
more than 67 percent of the required water closets in assembly and
educational eccupancies. Urinals shall not be substituted for more
than 50 percent of the required water closets in all other gccupancies.

Section 3102.7 Engineering design
Amend Section 3102.7 to read as follows:

3102.7 Engineering design. The structure shall be designed and constructed to sustain dead loads; loads
due to tension or inflation; live loads including wind, snow, flood and seismic loads and in accordance
with Chapter 16.

Exception: Memhbrane structures intended to be in place for 30 days or less may be engineered to risk
category | loads provided the installation and use are per the manufacturer’s recommendations.

Section 1105.2 Footings

Amend Section 1105.2 to read as follows:

1105.2 Footings. {nareas-with-a-frost-depth-ofzere-a An unenclosed patio cover that projects 14 feet or

less from the main structure shall be permitted to be supported on @ concrete slab on grade without
footing, provided that the slab conforms to the provisions of Chapter 19 of this code and is not less than

27

2018 Northern Nevada Code Amendments 9-1-18




3% inches {89 mm) thick, and the columns do not support loads in excess of 750 pounds (3.36 kN) per
column,

Amendments to the 2018 Edition of the International Existing Building Code

Section 301.6 Baby changing tables

Amend Section 301 by adding Section 301.6 to read as follows:

301.6 Baby Changing Tahles. Diaper changing tabies are reguired to be instalied in both male, female
and other restrooms, in permanent buildings that contain public restrooms as defined in chapter 29 of
the 2018 IBC. Changing tables are required when any of the following occur: new buildings, tenant
improvements, new restrooms, alteration of existing restrooms, new additions, change of uses that
require updating existing restrooms with additions to those facilities. Shalt meet the guidelines of 603.5,
309 and 902 of ANSI/ICC A117.1-2009.

Exceptions: A building or facility that does not have public restrooms or has been issued a permit or
license which restricts the admission of children on the basis of age, shall be exempt from this

requirement,

Section 902.1 High-rise buildings

Amend Section 802.1 to read as follows:

902.1 High-rise buildings. Any building having occupied floors more than 25 55 feet (22-868 16 764 mm)
above the lowest leve! of fire department vehicle access shall comply with the requirements of Sections
902.1.1 and 902.1.2,

Amendments to the 2018 Edition of the international Energy Conservation
Code

COMMERCIAL PROVISIONS

Section C102.1.1 Above code program
Amend Section C102.1.1 to read os follows:

C102.1.1 Above code programs. The code official or other authority having jurisdiction shall be
permitted to deem a national, state or local energy efficiency program to exceed the energy efficiency
required by this code. Programs seeking approval must submit all requested supporting documentation,
including program guidelines, protocois, calculations and program simulation performance software, if
applicable, to the NNICC and/or jurisdiction for review for use as acceptable software. Buildings
approved in writing by such an energy efficiency shall be considered to be in compliance with this code.
The requirements identified as “mandatory” in Chapter 4 shall be met.

Section C201.3 Terms defined in other codes

28

2018 Northern Nevada Code Amendments 9-1-18




Amend Section C201.3 to read s folfows:

C201.3 Terms defined in other codes. Terms that are defined in this code but are defined in the
International Building Code, International Fire Code, International Fuel Gas Code, International
Mechanical Code, Uniform Mechanical Code, International Plumbing Code, Uniform Plumbing Code, or
the International Residential Code shall have the meanings ascribed to them in those codes.

Section C202 General Definitions
Amend Section €202 by adding the following definitions to read as follows:
C202 General Definitions

CASINO. A structure that houses a business with a Non-Restricted Gaming License from the
Nevada Gaming Commission and State Gaming Control Board. It includes the gaming area(s}

as well as the adjacent area(s) within the building envelope.

CASIND GAMING AREA. The space within a casine wherein gaming is conducted. The

gaming area shall also include accessory uses within the same room(s) as, or substantially open
to the gaming floor(s}. Such areas shall include, but not be limited to lohbies, balconies, public
circulation areas, assembly areas, restaurants, bars, lounges, food courts, retail spaces,
mezzanines, convention pre-function areas, cashiers’ cages, players' clubs, customer support,
conservatories and promenades that share the same atmosphere, spillover lighting and theme
lighting with the adjacent gaming floor area.

For accessory areas situated on the perimeter of the gaming flogr to be considered substantially
open, the walls(s) or partitions{s} separating an accessory space from the gaming area must be
a minimum of 50% open, as measured from the interior side of the accessory space, with no
doors, windows and other obstructions, other than rolt up security grills, installed within the

gpening.

Section C402.5.3 Rooms containing fuel-burning appliances
Amend Section C402.5.3 to read as follows:

C402.5.3 Rooms containing fuel-burning appliances. In Climate Zones 3 through 8, where combustion
air is supplied through openings in an exterior wall to a room or space containing a space-conditioning
fuei-burning appliance, one of the following shall apply:

1. The room or space containing the appliance shall be located outside of the building thermal
envelope. :

2. The room or space containing the appliance shall be enciosed and isclated from conditioned
spaces inside of the building thermal envelope. Such rooms shall comply with all of the
following:

2.1. The walls, floors and ceilings that separate the enclosed room or space from conditioned
spaces shall be insulated to be not |ess than equivalent to the insulation requirement of
below-grade walls as specified in Table C402.1.3 or C402.1.4,

29

2018 Northern Nevada Code Amendments 9-1-18




2.2.The walls, fioors and ceilings that separate the enclosed room or space from conditioned
spaces shall be sealed in accordance with Section C402.5.1.1.

2.3.The doors into the enclosed room or space shall be fully gasketed.

2.4.Water lines and ducts in the enclosed room or space shall be insulated in accordance with
Section 403.

2.5.Where an air duct supplying combustion air to the enclosed room or space passes through
conditioned space, the duct shall be insulated to an R-value not less than R-8.

Exception: Fireplaces and stoves complying with Sections 901 through 905 of the International
Mechanical Code, Section 911, 912, 913 of the Uniform Mechanical Code, and Section 2111.14 of the
international Building Code.

Section 402.5.9 Air curtains
Amend Section 402.5 by adding 402.5.9 to read as follows:

C402.5.9 Air curtains. Where doorway, passageway or pass-thru openings in the building

thermal envelope area intended to be normally opened to the exterior environment, an approved air
curtain tested in accordance with ANSI/AMCA 220 shall be used to separate conditioned air from the
exterior.

Section 403.2.2 Ventilation {Mandatory)
Amend Section €403.2.2 Ventilation (Mandatory) to read as follows:

€403.2.2 Ventilation {Mandatory}. Ventilation, either natural or mechanical, shall be provided in
accordance with Chapter 4 of the international Mechanical Code and Uniform Mechonical Code. Where
mechanical ventilation is provided, the system shall provide the capability to reduce the outdoor air
supply to the minimum required by Chapter 4 of the Internationol Mechanical Code and Uniform
Mechanicol Code.

Section €403.6.1 Variable air volume and multiple-zone systems
Amend Section C403.6.1 to read as follows:

€403.6.1 Variabie air volume and multiple-zone systems. Supply air systems serving multiple zones
shall be variable air volume (VAV} systems that have zone controls configured to reduce the volume of
air that is reheated, re-cooled or mixed in each zone to one of the following:

1. Twenty percent of the zone design peak supply for systems with DDC and 30 percent for other
systems.

2. Systems with DDC where al! of the following apply:
The outdoor airflow rate required to meet the minimum ventilation requirements of Chapter 4
of the International Mechanical Code and Uniform Mechanical Code.

30

2018 Northern Nevada Code Amendments 9-1-18




4. Any higher rate that can be demonstrated to reduce overall system annual energy use by
offsetting reheat/re-cool energy losses through reduction in outdoor air intake for the system as
approved by the code official.

5. The airflow rate required to comply with applicable codes or accreditation standards such as
pressure relationships or minimum air change rates.

Exception: The following individual zones or entire air distribution systems are exempted are from the
requirement for VAV control:

1. Zones or supply air systems where not less than 75 percent of the energy for reheating or for
providing warm air in mixing systems is provided from a site-recovered, including condenser
heat, or site-solar energy source.

2. Systems that prevent reheating, re-cooling, mixing or simultaneous supply of air that has been
previously coaled, either mechanically or through the use of economizer systems, and air that
has been previously mechanically heated.

Section €403.6.6 Multiple-zone VAV system ventilation optimization control
Amend Section C403.6.6 to read as folfows:

C403.6.6 Multiple-zone VAV system ventilation optimization control. Multiple-zone VAV systems with
direct digital control of individual zone boxes reporting to a central control panel shall have automatic
controls configured to reduce outdoor air intake flow below design rates in response to changes in
system ventilation efficiency (E,) as defined by the international Mechanical Code and Uniform
Mechanical Code.

Exception:

1. VAV systems with zonal transfer fans that recirculate air from other zones without directly
mixing it with outdoor air, duai-duct dual-fan VAV systems, and VAV systems with fan-powered
terminal units.

2. Systems where total design exhaust airflow is more than 70 percent of the total design outdoor
air intake flow requirements.

Section 403.7.1 Demand control ventilation (Mandatory)
Amend Section €403.7.1 to read as follows:

€403.7.1 Demand control ventilation (Mandatory). Demand control ventilation (DCV) shall be provided
for spaces larger than 500 square feet (46.5m*) and with an average occupant load of 25 people or
greater per 1,000 square feet (33m?) of floor area, as established in Table 403.3.1.1 of the Internationa!
Mechanical Code and Table 402.1 Uniform Mechanical Code, and served by systems with one or more of
the following:

1. An air-sided economizer.
2. Automatic modulating control of the outdoor air damper.

31

2018 Northern Nevada Code Amendments 9-1-18




3. A design outdoor airflow greater than 3,000 cfm (1416 L/s).
Exceptions:

1. Systems with energy recovery complying with Section C403.7.4.
Multiple-zone systems without direct digital control of individual zones communicating with a
central control panel.

3. Systems with a design outdoor airflow less than 1,200 c¢fm (566 L/s).

4. Spaces where the supply airflow rate minus any makeup or outgeing transfer air requirements is
tess than 1,200 cfm (566 L/s).

5. Ventilation provided only for process loads.

Section C403.7.2 Enclosed parking garage ventilation controls (Mandatory)
Amend Section C403.7.2 to read as follows:

C403.7.2 Enclosed parking garage ventilation controls (Mandatory). Enclosed parking garages used for
sorting or handling automobiles operating under their own power shall employ contamination-sensing
devices and automatic controls configured to stage fans or modulate fan average airflow rates to 50
percent or less of design capacity, or intermittently operate fans less than 20 percent of the occupied
time or as required to maintain acceptable contaminant levels in accordance with International
Mechanical Code and Uniform Mechanical Code provisions. Failure of contamination-sensing devices
shall cause the exhaust fans to operate continucusly at design airflow.

Exceptions:

1. Garages with a total exhaust capacity less than 22,500 c¢fm (10 620 L/s) with ventilation systems
that do not utilize heating or mechanical cooling.

2. Garages that have a garage area to ventilation system motor nameplate power ratio that
exceeds 1125 cfm/hp (710 L/kW) and do not utilize heating or mechanical cooling.

Section C403.7.4 Energy recovery ventilation systems (Mandatory)
Amend Section C403.7.4 to read as follows

C403.7.4 Energy recovery ventilation systems {(Mandatory). Where the supply airflow rate of a fan
system exceeds the values specified in Tables C403.7.4(1) and C403.7.4(2), the system shall include an
energy recovery system. The energy recovery system shall be configured to provide a change in the
enthalpy of the outdoor air supply of nat less than 50 percent of the difference between the outdoor air
and return air enthalpies, at design conditions. Where an air economizer is required, the energy
recovery system shali include a bypass or controls that permit operation of the economizer as required
by Section C403.5.

Exception: An energy recovery ventilation system shall not be required in any of the following
conditions:

32

2018 Northern Nevada Code Amendments 9-1-18




1. Where energy recovery systems are prohibited by the International Mechanical Code and
Uniform Mechanical Code.

2. Laboratory fume hood systems that include not fewer than one of the following features:

2.1 Variable-air-volume hood exhaust and room supply systems configured to reduce
exhaust and makeup air volume to 50 percent or less of design value.

2.2, Direct makeup (auxiliary} air supply equal to or greater than 75 percent of the exhaust
rate, heated not warmer than 2°F (1.1°C) below room setpoint, with no humidification
added, and no simultaneous heating and cooling used for dehumidification control.

Systems serving spaces that are heated to less than 60°F {15.5 °C) and that are not cooled.

Where more than 60 percent of the outdoor heating energy is provided from site-recovered or

site-solar energy.

Heating energy recovery in Climate Zones 1 and 2.

Cooling energy recovery in Climate Zones 3C, 4C, 58, 5C, 6B, 7, and *.

Systems requiring dehumidification that employ energy recovery in series with the cooling coil.

Where the largest source of air exhausted at a single location at the building exterior is less than

75 percent of the design outdoor air flow rate.

9, Systems expecied {o operate less than 20 hours per week at an outdoor percentage covered by

Table C403.7.4(1).
10. Systems exhausting toxic, flammable, paint or corrosive fumes or ducts.
11. Commercial kitchen hoods used for collecting and removing grease vapors and smoke.

Rl

0 N oo

Section C403.7.7 Shutoff dampers (Mandatory)

Amend Section C403.7.7 to read as follows:

€403.7.7 Shutoff dampers (Mandatory). Outdoor air intake and exhaust openings and stairway and
shafts vents shall be provided with Class | motorized dampers. The dampers shall have an air leakage
rate not greater than 4 ¢fm/ft®

{20.3 L/s * m?) of damper surface area at 1.0inch water gauge (249 Pa) and shall be labeled by an
approved agency when tested in accordance with AMCA 500D for such purpose.

Qutdoor air intake and exhaust dampers shall be installed in automatic cantrols configured to close
when the systems or spaces served are not in use or during unoccupied period warm-up and setback
operation, unless the systems served require outdoor or exhaust air in accordance with the
International Mechanical Code and Uniform Mechanicaf Code, or the dampers are opened to provide
intentional economizer cooling.

Stairway and shaft vent dampers shall be installed with automatic controls configured to open upon the
activation of any fire alarm initiating device of the building’s fire alarm system or the interruption of
power to the damper,

Exception: Nonmotorized gravity dampers shall be an alternative to motorized dampers for exhaust and
relief openings as follows:

1. In buildings less than three stories in height above grade plane.
2. in buildings of nay height located in Climate Zones 1,20r 3,
3. Where the design exhaust capacity is not greater than 300 c¢fm (142 L/s).

33

2018 Northern Nevada Code Amendments 9-1-18




Nonmotorized gravity dampers shall have an air leakage rate not greater than 20 cfm/ft* (101 L/s*m?)
where not less than 24 inches {610 mm]} in either dimension and 40 cfm/ft* (203.2 L/s*m?%) where less
than 24 inches (610 mm) in either dimension. The rate of air ieakage shall be determined at 1.0 inch
water gauge (249 Pa) when tested in accordance with AMCA 500D for such purpose. The dampers shall
be labeled by an approved agency.

Section €403.11.1 Duct and plenum insuiation and sealing (Mandatory)

Amend Section C403.11.1 to read as follows:

C403.11.1 Duct and plenum insulation and sealing (Mandatory). Supply and return air ducts and
plenums shall be insulated with not less than R-6 insulation where located in unconditioned spaces and
where located outside of the building with not less than R-8 insulation in Climate Zones 1 through 4 and
not less than R-12 insulation in Climate Zones 5 through 8. Where located within a building envelope
assembly, the duct or plenum shall be separated from the building exterior or unconditioned or exempt
spaces by not less thanR-8 insulation in Climate Zones 1 through 4 and not less than R-12 insulation in
Climate Zones 5 through 8

Exceptions:

1. Where located within equipment.
2. Where the design temperature difference between the interior and exterior of the duct or
plenum is not greater than 15°F (8°C).
Ducts, air handlers and filter boxes shall be sealed. Joints and seams shall comply with Section 603.9 of
the International Mechanical Code and Section 603.10, 603.11 of the Uniform Mechanical Code.

Section €403.11.2.1 Low-pressure duct systems {Mandatory)
Amend Section C403.11.2.1 to read as follows:

C403.11.2.1 Low-pressure duct systems (Mandatory). Longitudinal and transverse joints, seams and
connections of supply and return ducts operating at a static pressure less than or equal to 2 inches
water gauge {w.g.) (498 Pa} shall be securely fastened and sealed with welds, gaskets, mastics,
(adhesives), mastic-plus-embedded-fabric systems or tapes installed in accordance with the
manufacturer’s instructions. Pressure classifications specific to the duct system shall be clearly indicated
on the construction documents in accordance with the International Mechanical Code and Uniform
Mechanicaf Code.

Exception: Locking-type longitudinal joints and seams, other than the snap-lock and button-tock types,
need not be sealed as specified in this section.

34
2018 Northern Nevada Code Amendments 9-1-18



Section €403.11.2.2 Medium-pressure duct systems (Mandatory)
Amend Section C403.11.2.2 to read as follows:

€403.11.2.2 Medium-pressure duct systems (Mandatory). Ducts and plenums designed to operate at a
static pressure greater than 2 inches water gauge (w.g.} (498 Pa) but less than 3 inches w.g. {747 Pa)
shall be insulated and sealed in accordance with Section C403.11.1. Pressure classifications specific to
the duct system shall be clearly indicated on the construction documents in accardance with the
international Mechanical Code and Uniform Mechanical Code.

Section C406.6 Dedicated outdoor air systems
Amend Section C406.6 to read as follows:

€406.6 Dedicated outdoor air system. Buildings containing equipment or systems regulated by Section
C403.3.4,C403.4.3, C403.4.4, C403.4.5, C403.6, C403.8.4, C403.8.5, C403.8.5.1, C403.9.1, C403.9.2,
€403.9.3, C403.9.4 shall be equipped with an independent ventilation system designed to provide not
less than the minimum 100-percent outdoor air to each individual occupied space, as specified by the
International Mechanical Code and Uniform Mechanicol Code.

Section C501.4 Compliance
Amend Section C501.4 to read as follows:

C501.4 Compliance. Alterations, repairs, additions and changes of occupancy to, or relocation of,
existing buifdings and structures shall comply with the provisions for afterations, repairs, additions and
changes of occupancy or relocation, respectively, in this code and in the International Building Code,
International Existing Building Code, International Fire Code, Internationaf Fuef Gas Code, International
Mechanical Code, Uniform Mechanical Code, international Plumbing Code, Uniform Plumbing Code,
International Property Maintenance Code, international Private Sewage Disposal Code and NFPA 70.

Chapter 6 Referencing Standards

Amend Chapter 6 by adding the following to read as follows:
AMCA

205-12: Energy Efficiency Classification for Fans C403.8.3

220-08(R2012): laboratory Methods for Testing Air Curtain Units for Aerodynamic Performance Rating
C482-5-6 C402.5.7

500D-12: Laboratary Methods for Testing Dampers for Rating C403.7.7

35

2018 Northern Nevada Code Amendments 9-1-18




IAPMO

UMC-18: Uniform Mechanical Code C201.3, C403.2.2, C403.6, C406.6.6, C403.7.1, C403.7.2, C403.7.4,
C403.7.5, C403.7.7, C403.11.1, C403.11.2.1, C403.11.2.2, C406.6, C501.4

UPC-18: Uniform Plumbing Code C201.3, C501.4

IcC
1BC-18: international Building Code C201.3, C303.1.1, C303.2, C402.5.3, £402.5.4, C501.4,
IFC-18: international Fire Code C201.3, C501.4

IFGC-18: international Fuel Gas Code C201.3, C501.4

RESIDENTIAL PROVISIONS
Section R102.1.1 Above code programs

Amend R102.1.1 to read as follows:

R102.1.1 Above code programs. The code official or other authority having jurisdiction shall

be permitted to deem a national, state or local energy efficiency program to exceed the energy
efficiency required by this code. Programs seeking approval must submit afl requested supporting
documentation, including program guidelines, protocols, calculations and program

simulation performance software, if applicable, to the NNICC and/or jurisdictions for review for use as
acceptable software. Buildings opproved in writing by such an energy efficiency program shall be
considered in compliance with this code. The requirements identified as

“mandatory” in Chapter 4 shall be met.

Section R401.3 Certificate {Mandatory)

Amend Section R401.3 to read as follows:

R401.3 Certificate (Mandatory). Apermarent The Builder shall provide a final certificate to the owner. a

eemﬁeate o - orothe B roLUad = nel nackad an
h o OO N Onnrovas mincida tha b =

GH-ah-ale H-panelthe-ced ate-saali-ng
4

. The certificate shall indicate the predominant R-
values of insulation installed in or on ceilings, roofs, walls, foundation components such as slabs,
basement walls, crawi space walls and floors and ducts outside conditioned spaces; U-factors of

fenestration and the-selerhegtgaincocfficient{SHoCoffenestration—and the results from any

required duct system and building envelope air leakage testing performed on the building. Where there
is more than one value for each component, the certificate shall indicate the value covering the largest
area. The certificate shall indicate the types and efficiencies of heating, cooling and service water
heating equipment. Where-a-gas-fired-unvented-room-heater-electricfurnace-o i

36

2018 Northern Nevada Code Amendments 9-1-18




Section R402.4.1.2 Testing

Amend Section R402.4.1.2 to read as folfows:

R402.4.1.2 Testing. The building or dwelling unit shall be tested and verified as having an air leakage
rate of not exceeding 5 air changes per hour, inClimate Zenesiand-2and-3-air-changesperheurin
Clirmate-Zores-3-through-8. Testing shall be conducted with a blower door at a pressure of 0.2 inches
w.g. (50 Pascal’s). Where required by the Code Official, testing shall be conducted by an approved third
party. A written report of the results of the test shall be signed by the party conducting the test and
provided to the Code Official. Testing shali be performed at any time after creation of all penetrations of
the building thermal envelope.

During testing:

1. Exterior windows and doaors, fireplace and stove doors shall be closed, but not sealed, beyond
the intended weather-stripping or other infiltration control measures;

2. Dampers including exhaust, intake, makeup air, backdraft and flue dampers shall be closed, bhut
not sealed beyond intended infiltration controi measures;

3. Interior doors, if installed at the time of test, shall be open;

4. Exterior doors for continuous ventilation systems and heat recovery ventilators shall be closed
and sealed;

5. Heating and cooling systems, if installed at the time of testing, shail be fully open.

6. Supply and return registers, where instalied at the time of the test, shall be fully open.

Section R403.3.4 Duct leakage (prescriptive)
Amend section R403.3.2 to read as follows:

R403.3.4 Duct Leakage (prescriptive}. The total leakage of the ducts, where measured in accordance
with Section R403.3.4, shall be as follows:

1. Rough-in test: The total leakage shall be less than or equal to 4 cubic feet per minute (113.3
L/min) per 100 square feet (9.29 m?) of conditional floor area where the air handler is installed
at the time of the test. Where the air handler is not installed at the time of the test, the total
teakage shall be less than or equal to 3 cubic feet per minute (85 L/min) per 100 square feet
(9.29 m?) of conditioned floor area.

2. Postconstruction test: Total leakage shall be tess than or equal to 4cubicfeet-perminute{113.3
Heaind 5 cubic feet per minute (cfm} (141.6 L/min} or total leakage to outside shall be less than
or equal to 3.5 ¢fm {99.1 L/min) 100 square feet (9.29 m?) of conditioned floor area.

37

2018 Northern Nevada Code Amendments 9-1-18




Section R403.6 Mechanical ventilation (Mandatory)
Amend Section R403.6 to read as follows:

R403.6 Mechanical ventilation {Mandatory). The building shall be provided with ventilation that
complies with the requirements of the Internatjonal Residential Code or International Mechanical Code,
as applicable, or with other approved means of ventilation. The mechanical system shall have a readily
accessible on-off control switch allowing control of the mechanical system. Utilization of outside air
temperature sensars, carbon dioxide sensors, humidity sensors or similar intermittent controls to
activate the outside air mechanical equipment is permitted, Outdoor air intakes and exhausts shall have
automatic or gravity dampers that close when the ventilation system is not operating.

Amendments to the 2018 Edition of the International Fuel Gas Code
Section 301.1.2 LP-Gas Installations
Add new subsection 301.1.2 to section 301.1:
301.1.2 LP-Gas Installations. Whenever there is a conflict between this code and NFPA 54 and

NFPA 58 as adopted by the Nevada LP-Gas Board for LP-Gas installations, the adopted codes of
the Nevada L.P-Gas Beard shall govern. ‘

Section 301.16 Snow Hazard
Add new section 301.16 to 301;

301.16 Snow hazard. Protection of utilities shall be per requirements of the local utility.

Section 406.4.1 Test Pressure
Amend section 406.4.1 to read as follows:

406.4.1 Test pressure, The test pressure to be used shall be no less than 1-1/2 times the proposed
maximum working pressure, but not less than 2 25 psig (20 172.4 kPa gauge), irrespective of
design pressure. Where the test pressure exceeds 125 psig (862 kPa gauge), the test pressure shali
not exceed a value that produces a hoop stress in the piping greater than 50 percent of the
specified minimum vyield strength of the pipe. This test shall be made before any fixtures,
appliances or shut-off valves have been attached and before being concealed.

Section 406.4.2 Test Duration

Amend section 406.4.2 ta read as follows:

406.4.2 Test duration. Test dur

atio

n shall be

not less than 30 minutes. Lf2-heurforeach-500cubicfeet

38
2018 Northern Nevada Code Amendments 9-1-18



Section 406.6.2 Before Turning Gas On

Amend Section 406.6.2 to read os follows and add new subsections 405.6.2.1 thru 405.6.2.3:

406.6.2 Before turning gas on. During the process of turning gas on into a system of new gas
piping or into a system or portion of a gas system that has heen restored after an interruption of
service, the entire system shall be inspected to determine that there are no open fittings or ends
and that all valves at unused outlets are closed and plugged or capped. In the City of Fernley, City
of Reno, City of Sparks, Storey County and Washoe County, a manometer test shall be made

after all valves, unions, connectors and piping to the appliances are complete. A pressure test
shal be made with the use of a manometer gauge measuring inches of water column. With all
valves including gas cock and gas control valves in the open position, a pressure of at least eleven
{11) to fifteen (15) inches of water column shall be measured for at least fifteen {15) minutes, with
no perceptible drop in pressure.

405.6.2.1 For medium pressure gas systems: Where the appliance is rated for seven (7) to

eleven (11) inches of water column, a manometer test of eleven (11) to fifteen (15) inches of
water column will be conducted between the pressure regulating valve and the appliance and shall

be measured for at least fifteen (15) minutes with no perceptible drop in pressure.

406.2.2 For appliances or equipment requiring pounds of gas pressure: A pressure test using
a pressure gauge measuring in one tenth {1/10} increments shalt be conducted on the gas train of
that appliance or equipment. The pressure shall be equal to the appliance’s normal operating
pressure for a perigd of thirty (20) minutes with no perceptible drop in pressure.

406.2.3 Manometer testing. Manometer testing shall be performed by a person holding a valid
Washoe County manometer tester card for which the number is to be provided at the time of
request for inspection. A visual mangmeter test to be witnessed by the authority having
jurisdiction may be allowed by the Building Official. A manometer test does not need to be
reported when the serving gas utility performs a manometer or clock test prior te providing
service.

Amendments to the 2018 Edition of the International Mechanical Code
Section 401.2 Ventilation Required
Amend Section 401.2 to read as follows:

401.2 Ventilation required. Every occupied space shall be ventilated by natural means in
accordance with Section 402 or by mechanical means in accordance with Section 403. Where-the

2018 Northern Nevada Code Amendments 9-1-18

39




Section 505.4 Makeup Air Required
Amend Section 505.2 to read as follows:

505.4 Makeup air required. Exhaust hood systems capable of exhausting in excess of 408 600
cfm {818 0.28 m3/s) shall be provided with makeup air at a rate approximately equail to the
exhaust air rate. Such makeup air systems shall be equipped with a means of closure and shall be
automatically controlied to start and operate simuitaneously with the exhaust system.

Section 508.1.3 Evaporative Cooling Systems Used as Makeup Air
Add new subsection 508.1.3 to 508.1:

508.1 Makeup air. Mokeup air shall be supplied during the operation of commercial kitchen

exhaust systems that are provided for commercial cooking appliances. The amount of makeup air
supplied to the building from all sources shall be approximately egual to the amount of exhoust

air for all exhaust systems for the building. The makeup air shall not reduce the effectiveness of

the exhaust system. Makeup air shall be provided by gravity or mechanical means or both.
Mechanical makeup air systems shall be automatically controlled to start and operate

simultaneously with the exhaust system. Makeup air intake opening locations shall comply with
Section 401.4.

508.1.1 Makeup air temperature. The temperature differential between makeup air and the air

in the conditioned space shall not exceed 1092F {62C) except where the added heating and cooling
loads of the makeup air do not exceed the capacity of the HVAC system.

508.1.2 Air balance. Design plans for a facility with a commercial kitchen ventilation system shali include
a schedule or diagram indicating the design outdoor air balance. The design outdoor air balance shall
indicate all exhaust and replacement air for the facility, plus the net exfiltration if applicable. The total
replacement air airflow rate shall equal the total exhaust airflow rate plus the net exfiltration.

508.1.3 Evaporative Cooling Systems Used as Makeup Air. Evaporative coolers shall not be

used for make-up air units on commercial kitchen hoods and kitchen ventilation systems.

Exception: Evaporative cooling systems that are a listed assembly with tempered air for

kitchen make-up air systems.

Section 603.2 Duct Sizing
Amend Section 603.2 to read os follows:

603.2 Duct sizing. Ducts instalied within a single dwelling unit shall be sized in accordance with
ACCA Manual B S based on huilding loads calculated in accardance with ACCA Manual J or

other approved heating and cooling calculations methodologies or other approved methods. Ducts
installed within all other buildings shall be sized in accordance with the ASHRAE Handbook of
Fundamentals or other equivalent computation procedure.

40

2018 Northern Nevada Code Amendments 9-1-18




Amendments to the 2018 Edition of the International Residential Code
R202 Definitions
Amend Section R202 adding the following definitions, to read as:
Section R202 Definitions.

International Electrical Code, The Electrical Code, whether the National Electrical Code or the

internationai Electrical Code, as amended and adopted by the local jurisdiction.

International Mechanical Code. The Mechanical Code, whether the Uniform Mechanical Code or the
international Mechanical Code as amended and adopted by the local jurisdiction.

International Plumbing Code. The Plumbing Code, whether the Uniform Plumbing Code or the
International Plumbing Code, as amended and adopted by the local jurisdiction.

International Fuel Gas Code. The Fuel Gas Code, whether NFPA 54 or the International Fuel Gas Code,
as amended and adopted by the local jurisdiction.

Surcharge. A vertical load imposed on the retained soil that may impose a lateral force in addition to the
lateral earth pressure of the retained soil. Examples include:

* Sloped retained soil.
* Structure footings supported by the retained soil.
* Adjacent vehicle loads supported by the retained soil.

Table R301.2 {1) Climatic and Geographic Design Criteria

Amend Table R301.2 (1} to read as follows:

TABLE R301.21)
L B CLIMATIC AN D GEQGHAPHIC DEMIGH CRITERA o
Sy WD DESHGN ey WEIEC FO DAMAGEFAON | waiER | 1o oanen | e
PR L T onmace s e o } o m,“,..._
Loar J WM tu::‘“m‘ 99:;;‘“ Pudriaainlyed AT e xmg et ¢ e | e Maosene iumuus e ‘
sce see see sex
HO res wo see ' 5= wopERATE  SEF
TALE apheratx appenoty SEYERE  oornnix TOMEAWY APRERDU  APPENDIX ABFENDIx  APBENDIX  APEENDIX
A

For Sl: 1 pound per square foot = 0.0479 kPa, 1 mile per hour = 0.447 m/s

a.Where weathering reguires a higher strength concrete or grade of
masonry than necessary to satisfy the structural requirements of this
code, the frost line depth strength required for weathering shall govern.
The weathering column shall be filled in with the weathering index,

"neghgible”, “moderate” or “severe” for concrete as determined from

Figure R301.2(4). The grade of masonry units shall be determined from
ASTM C 34,C55,£62,C73,C90,C129,C145, C216 or £ 652.

b.Where the frost line depth requires deeper footings than indicated in
Figure R403.1(1), the frost line depth strength required for weathering
shall govern. The jurisdiction shall fill in the frost line depth column with
the minimum depth of footing below finish grade.

41

2018 Northern Nevada Code Amendments 3-1-18




c. The jurisdiction shall fill in this part of the table to indicate the need for
protection depending on whether there has been a history of local
subterranean termite damage.

d.The jurisdiction shall fill in this part of the table with the wind speed
from the basic wind speed map [Figure R301.2(5)A]. Wind exposure
category shall be determined on a site-specific basis in accordance with
Section R301.2.1.4.

e.The outdoor design dry-bulb temperature shali be selected from the
columns of 971/2-percent values for winter from Appendix D of the
International Plumbing Code. Deviations from the Appendix D temperatures
shall be permitted to reflect local climates or local weather experience as
determined by the building official. [Also see Figure R301.2(1).]

f. The jurisdiction shall fill in this part of the table with the seismic

design category determined from Section R301.2.2.1.
g. The jurisdiction shall fill in this part of the table with {a) the date of the jurisdiction’s entry
nto the National Fiood Insurance Program (date of adoption of the first code or ordinance
for management of flood hazarg areas), {b) the date(s) of the Flood Insurance Study and (c)
the panel numbers and dates of all currently effective FIRMs and FBFMs or other flood
hazard map adopted by the authority having jurisdiction, as amended.

h. In accordance with Sections R905.1.2, R905.4.3.1, R905.5.3.1, R805.6.3.1, R905.7.3.1
and R905.8.3.1, where there has been a history of local damage from the effects of ice
damming, the jurisdiction shall fill in this part of the table with “YES.” Otherwise, the
jurisdiction shall fill in this part of the table with “NO.”

i.  The jurisdiction shall fill in this part of the table with the 100-year return period air
freezing index (BF-days) from Figure R403.3(2) or from the 100-year (99 percent)
value on the National Climatic Data Center data table “Air Freezing index-USA
Method (Base 32°F)."

j-  The jurisdiction shall fill in this part of the table with the mean annual temperature
from the National Climatic Data Center data table “Air Freezing Index-USA Method
{Base 32°F)".

k. In accordance with Section R301.2.1.5, where there is Jocal historical data
documenting structural damage to buildings due to topographic wind speed-up
effects, the jurisdiction shall fill in this part of the table with “YES.” Otherwise, the
jurisdiction shall indicate “NQ” in this part of the table.

I. Inaccordance with Figure R301.2(5)A, where there is iocal historical data
documenting unusual wind conditions, the jurisdiction shall fill in this part of the
table with “YES” and identify any special requirements. Otherwise, the
jurisdiction shall indicate “NO” in this part of the table.

m. In accordance with Section R301.2.1.2 the jurisdiction shall indicate the wind-

borne debris wind zone(s}. Otherwise, the jurisdiction shall indicate “NO” in this
part of the table.

itesia-wsing Table 1 e ACCA M | Nhod critori
0. The jurisdiction shall fifl in this section using the Ground Snow Loads in Figure
R301.2(6}.

R313.1 Townhouse automatic fire sprinkier systems
Amend Section R313.1 to read as follows:
R313.1 Townhouse automatic fire sprinkler systems. An automatic residential fire sprinkler system shall

be instalied in townhouses.

42

2018 Northern Nevada Code Amendments 9-1-18




Exceptions:

1. An automatic residential fire sprinkler system shail not be required when additions or afterations are
made to existing townhouses that do not have an automatic residential fire sprinkler system installed.

2. An automatic residential fire sprinkler system shall not be required in townhouses less than 5,000 sq.
ft. of living space unless the AHJ has amended the International Fire Code to include provisions
pertaining to townhouses in accordance with NRS 278.586.

R313.2 One- and two-family dwellings automatic fire sprinkler systems
Amend Section R313.2 to read as follows:

R313.2 One- and two-family dwellings automatic fire sprinkler systems. An automatic residential fire
sprinkler system shall be installed in one- and two-family dwellings.

Exceptions:

1. An automatic residential sire sprinkler system shall not be required when additions or olterations are
made to existing building that do not have an automatic residential fire sprinkler system installed.

2. An automatic residential fire sprinkler system shall not he required in gne- and two-family dwellings
less than 5,000 sq. ft. of living space unless the AHJ has amended the International Fire Code to include
provisions pertaining to one- and twao- family dwellings in accordance with NRS 278.586.

N1102.4.1.2 (R402.4.1.2) Testing
Amend Section N1102.4.1.2 (R402.4.1.2) to read as follows:

N1102.4.1.2 (R402.4.1.2) Testing. The building or dwelling unit shall be tested and verified as having an
air leakage rate of not exceeding 5 air changes per hour in-Climete-Zoresl-and-Land-3-ai-changesper

hour inClimate-Lones-3-through-8. Testing shall be conducted with a blower door at a pressure of 0.2
inches w.g. (50 Pascals). Where required by the Code Officiol, testing shall be conducted by an approved

third party. A written report of the results of the test shall be signed by the party conducting the test
and provided to the Code Official.

Testing shall be performed at any time after the creation of all penetrations of the building thermal
envelope.

During testing:

1. Exterior windows and doors, fireplace and stove doors shalt be closed, but not sealed, beyond the
intended weather-stripping or other infiltration control measures.

2. Dampers including exhaust, intake, makeup air, backdraft and flue dampers shall be ciosed, but not
sealed beyond intended infiltration control measures.

3. Interior doors, where installed at the time of the test, shall be open.

43

2018 Northern Nevada Code Amendments 9-1-18




4. Exterior or interior terminations for continuous ventilation systems shall be sealed.

5. Heating and cooling systems, where installed at the time of the test, shall be turned off.

M1503.6 Makeup air required
Amend Section M1503.6 to read as follows:

M1503.6 Makeup air required. Exhaust hood systems capable of exhaust in excess of 488 600 cubic feet
per minute {8-18 0.28 m>/s) shall be provided with makeup air at a rate approximately equal to the
exhaust air rate. Such makeup air systems shall be equipped with 2 means of closure and shall be
automatically controlled to start and operate simultaneously with the exhaust system.

Exception: Makeup air is not required for exhaust systems instailed for the exclusive purpose of space
cooling and intended to be operated only when windows or other air inlets are open.

G2404.1.1 (301.1.2) LP-Gas installations
Add Section G2404.1,1(301.1,2) to Section G2404.1 (303.1) Scope, to read gs follows:

G2404.1 (301.1) Scope. This section shall govern the approval and installation of ali equipment and
appliances that comprise parts of the installations regulated by this code in accordance with Section
G2401.

G2404.1.1 (301.1.2) LP-Gas Installations. Whenever there is a conflict between this code and NFPA 54
and NFPA 58 as adopted by the Nevada LP-Gas Board for LP-Gas installations, the adopted codes of the
Nevada LP-Gas Board shall govern. )

G2404.12 {301.17) Snow hazard
Add Section 2404.12 (301.17) to Section G2404 {301) General, to read as:

G2404.12 {301.17) Snow hazard. On any new gas installation or reconnecting the gas service of an
existing installation, gas meters above 5,800 feet in elevation in Carson City, Storey County and Washoe
County must be protected from falling, sliding and accumulating of snow, uniess the gas meter is
installed in a protected location such as under an engineered deck, roof or shed. Engineered decks,
roofs, or sheds shall be enclosed on all sides when used to protect gas meters on the snow shedding
sides of a structure as approved by the gas utility.

44
2018 Northern Nevada Code Amendments 9-1-18



G2417.4.1 (406.4.1) Test pressure
Amend Section G2417.4.1 {406.4.1) to read:

G2417.4.1 {406.4.1) Test pressure. The test pressure to be used shall be no less than 1-1/2 tirnes the
proposed maximum working pressure, but not less than 3 25 psig (20 172.4 kPa gauge), irrespective of
design pressure. Where the test pressure exceeds 125 psig (862 kPa gauge), the test pressure shalil not
exceed a value that produces a hoop stress in the piping greater than 50 percent of the specified
minimum yield strength of the pipe. This test shall be made before any fixtures, appliances or shut-off
valves have been attached and before being concealed.

G2417.4.2 (406.4.2) Test duration
Amend Section G2417.2 (406.4.2) to read:

G2417.4.2 (406.4.2 Test duration). Test duration shall be not less than 10-minutes 30 minutes.

G2417.6.2 (406.6.2) Before turning gas on
Amend Section G2417.6.2 (406.6.2) to read:

G2417.6.2 (406.6.2) Before turning gas on. During the process of turning gas on into a system of new
gas piping gr into a system or portion of a gas system that has been restored after an interruption of
service, the entire system shall be inspected tc determine that there are no open fittings or ends and
that all vatves at unused outlets are closed and plugged or capped. In the City of Fernley, City of Reno,
City of Sparks, Storey County and Washoe County, a manometer test shall be made after all valves,
unicns, connectors and piping 1o the appliances are complete. A pressure test shall be made with the
use of a manometer gauge measuring inches of water column. With all valves including gas cock and gas
control valves in the apen position, a pressure of at least eleven (11) to fifteen (15) inches of water
column shall be measured for at least fifteen (15) minutes, with no perceptible drop in pressure.

G2417.6.2.1 (406.6.2.1) For medium pressure gas systems
Add Section G2417.6.2.1 (406.6.2.1) to Section G2417.6.2 (406.6.2) Before turning gas on, to read as:

G2417.6.2.1 [406.6.2.1} For medium pressure gas systems: Where the appliance is rated for seven (7)
to eleven (11) inches of water column, a manometer test of eleven {11} to fifteen (15) inches of water
column will be conducted between the pressure regulating valve and the appliance and shall be
measured for at least fifteen (15} minutes with no perceptible drop in pressure.

45

2018 Northern Nevada Code Amendments 9-1-18




G2417.6.2.2 {406.2.2) For appliances or equipment requiring pounds of gas pressure.
Add Section G2417.6.2.2 (406.6.2.2) to Section G2416.6.2 (406.6.2) Before turning gas on, to read:

G2417.6.2.2 {406.2.2) For appliances or equipment requiring pounds of gas pressure: A pressure test
using a pressure gauge measuring in one tenth (1/10] increments shall be conducted on the gas train of
that appliance or equipment. The pressure shall be equal to the appliance’s normal operating pressure
for a period of thirty {30) minutes with no perceptible drop in pressure.

G2417.6.2.3 (406.2.3) Manometer testing
Add Section G2417.6.2.3 {406.2.3) to Section G2416.6.2 (406.6.2] Before turning gas on, to read:

G2417.6.2.3 (406.2.3) Manometer testing. Manometer testing shall be performed by a person holding a
valid Washoe County manometer tester card for which the number is to be provided at the time of
reguest for inspection. A visual manometer test to be witnessed by the authority having jurisdiction may
be allowed by the Building Official. A manometer test does not need to be reported when the serving
gas utility performs a manometer or clock test prior to providing service.

P2503.5.1 Rough plumbing
Amend Section P2503.5.1 to read:

P2503.5.1 Rough plumbing. DWV systems shall be tested on completion of the rough piping installation
by water erforpipingsystems-otherthan-plastic; by air with no evidence of leakage. Either test shall be

applied to the drainage system in its entirety or in sections after rough piping has been instailed, as
foliows:

1. Water test. Each section shali be filled with water to a point not less than 10 feet (1524 mm) above
the highest fitting connection in that section, or to the highest point in the completed system. Water
shali be held in the section under test for a period of 15 minutes. The system shall prove leak free by

visual inspection.

2. Air test. The portion under test shall be maintained at a gauge pressure of 5 pounds per square inch
{psi) {34 kPa) or 10 inches of mercury column {34 kPa). This pressure shall be held without introduction
of additional air for a period of 15 minutes.

P2603.5.1 Sewer depth
Amend Section P2603.5.1 to read:

P2603.5.1 Sewer depth. Building sewers that connect to private sewage disposal systems shall be a not
less than twelve (12) inches (305 mm} below finished grade at the point of septic tank connection.
Building sewers shall be not less than twelve (12} inches (305 mm} below grade.

46
2018 Northern Nevada Code Amendments 9-1-18



P3002.2.2 Building sewer
Add Section P3002.2.2 to Section P3002.2 Building sewer, to read:

P3002.2.2 Building sewer, In no event shall building sewer be less than four {4) inches in diameter.

E3601.6.2 Service disconnect location
Amend Section £3601.6.2 to read as:

E3601.6.2 Service disconnect location. The service disconnecting means shall be installed at a readily
accessible location e+t—her—outs:de ofa bunldmg or structure msnde nearest the pomt of entrance of the
service conductors. Se dicconn means-shallre : 60 par

have WM%M%%M#MWMMW The d:scon necting means

may be located independent of the building or structure served, in direct line of sight, but not to exceed

thirty (30) feet.

Exception: The service disconnecting means may be installed within a building when an external remote
shunt trip switch is provided. All shunt trip switches shall be located at seven feet (7°) above finish grade
at a location approved by the fire depariment. All shunt trip switches shall be located within twelve
inches {12"} equilateral triangle, red in color.

E3705.6.1 Edison fuses
Add Section E3705.6.1 to Section E3705.6 Fuses and fixed trip circuit breakers, to read:

E3705.6.1 Edison Fuses. Plug fuses of the Edison-based shall be used only for replacement in existing
installations where there is no evidence of overfusing or tampering. In any existing building where
alterations or additions are made to any of the premises wiring, all fuse holders shall be made to comply
with the requirements for a Type S fuse holder through the installation of a tamper proof {rejection

type) base.

E3901.2.2 Wall space
Section £E3901.2.2 is amended to read:
£3901.2.2 Wall Space,

(1) Any space 2 ft. (610mm) or more in width, including space measured around corners, and
that is unbroken along the floor line by doorways and similar opening, fireplaces, and fixed
cabinets that do not have countertops or similar work surfaces.

(2) The space occupied by fixed panels in exterior walls, excluding sliding panels.

(3) The space created by fixed room dividers such as railings and freestanding bar-type
counters.

47

2018 Northern Nevada Code Amendments 9-1-18




Exception No. 1: The space behind operable doors.

Exception No. 2: Vestibules, hallways, and similar areas less than 5 ft wide in bedrooms.

E3902.2 Garage and accessory building receptacles
Amend Section E3902.2 to read:

Section E3902.2 Garage and accessory building receptacles. 125-volt, single-phase, 15 or 20 ampere
receptacles installed in garages and grade-level portions of unfinished accessory buildings used for
storage or work areas shall have ground-fault circuit-interrupter protections for personnel. [210.8{A)(2)

Exception: Single receptacle for a fixed in place heating appliance only {(example: fuel-fired FAU, heat
pump or water heater) when lgcated within an attached garage.

E3902.17 Arc-fault circuit-interrupter protection for branch circuit extensions or
modifications

Section £3902.17 is deleted:

AH105.2 Footings
Amend Section AH105.2 to read:
AH105.2 Footings. ir-areas-with-a-frostdepth-ofzerc-asspecified-inTFable R304-2{1); For patio covers

supported on a concrete slab-on-grade without footings, the slab shall conform to the provisions of
Section R506, shall be not less than 3.5 inches {89 mm} thick and the columns shali not support live or
dead loads in excess of 750 pounds {3.34 kN) per column.

48
2018 Northern Nevada Code Amendments 9-1-18



Amendments to the 2017 Edition of the National Electrical Code
210.52(A){2) Wail Spacing

Amend Section 210.52(A)(2) of Section 210.52(A) General Provisions to read as follows:

210.52(A)(2) Wall Spacing. As used in this section, a wall space shall include any of the following:

{1) Any space 600 mm (2 ft) or more in width (including space measured around corners) and unbroken
along the floor line by doorways and similar openings, fireplaces, and fixed cabinets that do not have
countertops or similar work surfaces.

(2} The space accupied by fixed panels in walls, excluding sliding panels.
(3} The space afforded by fixed room dividers, such as free-standing bar-type counters or railings.

Exception No. 1: The space behind operable doors.

Exception No. 2. Vestibules, hallways, and simifar areas less than 5 ft wide in bedrooms.

225.32 Locations

Amend Section 225.32 to read as follows:

225.32 Location. The disconnecting means shall be installed eitherinside-erattached to the outside of
the building or structure served or where the conductors pass through the building or structure. The
disconnecting means shall be at a readily accessible location nearest the point of entrance of the
conductors, For the purposes of this section, the requirements in 203.6 shali be utilized.

Exception 1: For installations under single manogement, where documented safe switching procedures
are established and maintained for disconnection, and where the installation is monitored by qualified
individuals, the disconnecting means shall be permitted to be located elsewhere on the premises.

Exception 2: For buildings or other structures qualifying under the provisions of Article 685, the
disconnecting means shall be permitted to be located elsewhere on the premises.

Exception 3: For towers or poles used as lighting standards, the
disconnecting means shall be permitted to be located elsewhere on the premises.

Exception 4: For poles or simifar structures used only for support of signs installed in accordance with
Article 600, the disconnecting means shall be permitted to be focated elsewhere on the premises.

Exception No. 5. The disconnecting means shall be located independent of the building or structure
served, in direct line of sight, but not to exceed thirty feet (30°).

Exception No. 6: The service disconnecting means may be instafled within a building when an externo!
remote shunt switch is provided. All shunt trip switches shall be located at seven feet (7') above finish

49

2018 Northern Nevada Code Amendments 9-1-18



grade ot o location approved by the fire department. All shunt trip switches shall be located within a
twelve inch {12”) equilateral triangle, red in color.

230.70(A){1) Readily Accessible Location

Amend Section 230.70{A)(1) of Section 230.70 General to read as follows:

230.70 (A)(1) Readily Accessible Location. The service disconnecting means shall be installed at a readily
accessible location either cutside of a building or structure erinside nearest the point of entrance of the
service conductors. The disconnecting means may be located independent of the building or structure
servaed, in direct line of sight, but not to exceed thirty feet {30').

Exception: The service disconnecting means may be instatled within g building when an externgl remote
shunt switch is provided. All shunt trip switches shall be located at seven feet (7°} above finish grade gt a
location approved by the fire department. All shunt trip switches shall be lacated within g twelve inch
{12”) equilateral triangle, red in color.

240.51(B) Replacement Only
Amend Section 240.51({B) of Section 240.51 Edison-Base Fuses to read:

240.51(B) Replacement Only. Plug fuses of the Edison-base type shall be used only for replacements in
existing installations where there is no evidence of overfusing or tampering. In any existing building
where alterations or additions are made to aby of the premises wiring, all fuse holders shall comply with
Article 240.54.

250.118(4) Types of Equipment Grounding Conductors

Amend Section 250.118(4) of Section 250.118 Types of Equipment Grounding Conductors to read as
follows:

250.118 Types of Equipment Grounding Conductors

(4) Electrical metallic tubing with the exception of where the metallic raceway is subject to either
damage or likely to be disturbed in the future under normal operating conditions, this determination
shall be made by the Authority Having Jurisdiction,

EPN: An example of “subject to damage” is a surface installed conduit running alang a traffic path. An
example of “likely to be disturbed” is a surface installed conduit running across a rooftop, where future
re-roofing operations will require the conduit to shifted, damaged, removed or relocated.

50

2018 Northern Nevada Code Amendments 9-1-18




250.120 Equipment Grounding Conductor Installation

Amend Section 250.120 to read as follows:

250.120 Equipment Grounding Conductor Installation. Ar-equipment-gronnding copductorshal-be
stalled-ir-accordanca-with-250-120{A}-{B}-and-{C})- All raceways installed on roofs shall contain an

equipment grounding conductor sized per Table 250.122 installed with the circuit conductors.

Exception: Low voltage, communication and similar type systems unless required elsewhere in the Code.,

314.17(C) Nonmetallic Boxes and Conduit Bodies

Amend Section 314.17{C} of Section 314.17 Conductors entering Boxes, Condult Bodies, or Fittings to
read os follows:

314.17(C) Nonmetallic Boxes and Conduit Badies. Nonmetallic boxes and conduit bodies shall be
suitable for the lowest temperature-rated conductor entering the box. Where nonmetallic boxes and
conduit bodies are used with messenger-supported wiring, open wiring on insulators, or concealed
knob-and-tube wiring, the conductors shall enter the box through individual holes, Where flexible tubing
is used to enclose the conductors, the tubing shall extend from the last insulating support to not less
than 6 mm (1/4 in.) inside the box and beyond any cable clamp. Where non-metallic sheathed cable or
multiconductor Type UF cable is used, the sheath shall extend not less than 6 mm (1/4 in.) inside the box
and beyond any cable clamp. In all instances, all permitted wiring methods shall be secured to the

boxes.

Exception: where non-metallic sheathed cable or multiconductor Type UF cable is used with single-gang

boxes retiorgerthen-a-pominalsize 57-mm-xl00-mm-{2-Y-inx-d-ri3-mounted in walls or ceilings, and

where the cable is fastened within 200 mm (8 in.) of the box measured along the sheath and where the
sheath extends through a cable knockout not less than 6 mm (1/4 in.), securing the cable to the box shall
not be required. Multiple cable entries shall be permitted in a single cable knockout opening.

358.12 Uses Not Permitted

Amend Section 358.12 to read as follows:

358.12 Uses Not Permitted. EMT shall not be used under the following conditions:
(1) Where subject to severe physical damage.

{2) For the support of luminaires or other equipment except conduit bodies no larger than the largest
trade size of the tubing.

(3} In direct contact with earth.

51

2018 Northern Nevada Code Amendments 9-1-18




700.10(D) Fire Protection

Amend Section 700.10(D) of Section 700.10 Wiring, Emergency System to read as follows:

700.10{D) Fire Protection. Emergency systems shall meet the additional requirements in (D}(1} through
(D){3) in the following occupancies:

(1) Assembly occupancies for not less than 1000 persons

{2} Buildings above 23-w{75-f3} 55 ft in height
(3} Health care occupancies where persons are not capable of self-preservation.

(4) Educational occupancies with more than 300 occupants
700.12 General Requirements

Amend Section 700,12 to read as follows:

700.12 General Reguirements. Current supply shali be such that, in the event of failure of the normal
supply to, or within, the building or group of buildings concerned, emergency lighting, emergency
power, or both shall be available within the time required for the application but not to exceed 10
seconds. The supply system for emergency purposes, in addition to the normal services to the building
and meeting the general requirements of this section, shall be one or more of the types of systems
described in 700.12{A} through (E). Unit equipment in accordance with 700.12(F) shall satisfy the
applicable requirements of this article.

in selecting an emergency source of power, consideration shall be given to the occupancy and the type
of service to be rendered, whether of minimum duration, as for evacuation of a theater, or longer
duration, as for supplying emergency power and lighting due to an indefinite period of current failure
from trouble either inside or outside the building.

Equipment shall be designed and located so as to minimize the hazards that might cause complete
failure due to flooding, fires, icing, and vandalism.

Equipment for sources of power as described in 700.12(A) through (E) shall be installed either in spaces
fully protected by approved automatic fire suppression systems {sprinklers, carbon dioxide systems, and
so forth) or in spaces with a 3-hew 2-hour fire rating where located within the following:

(1} Assembly occupancies for more than 1000 persons.

(2) Buildings above 23-m-{F5-8} 55 feet in height with any of the following occupancy classes-
assembly, educational, residential, detention and correctional, business, and mercantile

{3) Health care occupancies where persons are not capable of self-preservation :

{4} Educational occupancies with more than 300 occupants

52

2018 Northern Nevada Code Amendments 9-1-18




Amendments to the 2018 Edition of the Uniform Mechanical Code

Section 304.3 Access to Appliances on Roofs
Amend Section 304.3 to read as follows:

Section 304.3 Access to Appliances on Roofs. Appliances located on roofs or other elevated locations
above 30 inches shall be accessible. [NFPA 54:9.4.3.11]

304.3.1 Access, Buildings exceeding 15 feet {4572 mm) in height shall have an inside means of access to
the roof unless other means acceptable to the Authority Having Jurisdiction are used [NFPA 54:9.4.3.2)
3-4.3.1.1 Access Type. The inside means of access shall be a permanent, or foldable inside stairway or
ladder, terminating in an enciosure, scuttle, or trap door. such scuttles or trap doors shall be not less
than 22 inches by 24 inches {559 mm by 610 mm)} in size, shall open easily and safely under all
conditions, especially snow; and shall be constructed so as to permit access from the roof side unless
deliberately locked on the inside.

Not less than 810 feet (38283048 mm) of clearance shall be between the access opening and the edge
of the roof or similar hazard or rigidly fixed rails or guards not less than 42 inches (1067 mm) in height
shall be provided on structures are utilized in lieu of guards or rails, they shall be not less than 42 inches
{1067 mm) in height. {NFPA 54:9.4.3.1]

Section 403.7.2 Enclosed Parking Garages

Amend Section 403.7.2 to read as foffows:

403.7.2 Enclosed Parking Garages. Mechanical ventilation systems for enclesed parking garages shall
operate continuously,

w P s Ta¥aVu 0-0) = a¥ W e o a 0 &

eccupants-by-approvadautematicdetection-devices: Mechanical ventilation systems for enclosed
parking garages shall be permitted to operate intermittently where the system is designed to operate
automatically upon detection of vehicle operation or presence of occupants by approved automatic
detection devices.

Automatic carbon monoxide sensing devices shall be permitted to be employed to modulate the
ventilation system to maintain a maximum average concentration of carbon monoxide of 50 parts per
million during an eight-hour period, with a concentration of not more than 200 parts per million for a
period not exceeding one hour. Automatic carbon monoxide sensing devices installed to modulated
parking garages ventilation systems shall be approved.

53

2018 Northern Nevada Code Amendments 9-1-18




Section 504.4.2.1 Length Limitation

Amend Section 504.4.2.1 to reod as follows:

504.4.2.1 Length Limitation. Unless otherwise permitted or required by the dryer manufacturer’s
instructions and approved by the Authority Having Jurisdiction, domestic dryer moisture exhaust ducts
shall not exceed a total combined horizontal and vertical [ength of 14 feet (4267 mm), including two 90-
degree (1.57 rad} elbows. A : degree
albew--exeass-oftwe-Two (2] feet (610 mm) shall be deducted for each 90- degree {1, 57 rad) e!bow in
excess of two. The maximum length of a clothes dryer exhaust duct shall not exceed 35 feet (10 668
mm) from the dryer location to the wall or roof termination. The maximum length of the duct shall be
reduced 2.5 (762 mm) for each 45-degree (0.8 rad) bend and 5 feet (1524 mm) for each 90-degree (1.6
rad} bend. The maximum length of the exhaust duct does not include the transition duct.

Exceptions:

1, Where the make and model of the clothes dryer to be installed is known and the manufacture’s
installation instructions for the clothes dryer are provided to the Authority Having Jurisdiction, the
maximum length of the exhaust duct, including any transition duct, shall be permitted to be in
accordance with the dryer manufacture’s installation instructions.

2. Where large-radius 45-degree (0.8 rad) and 90-degree (1.6 rad) bends are installed, determination of
the equivalent length of clothes dryer exhaust duct for each bend by engineering calculation in
accordance with ASHRAE Fundamentals Handbook shall be permitted.

Section 505.10 Makeup Air

Amend Section 505.10 to read os follows:

505.10 Makeup Air. Makeup air shall be provided to replenish air exhausted by the ventilator system.
Exhaust hood systems capable of exhausting in excess of 600 cfm {0.28 m3/s) shall be provided with
makeup gir at a rate approximately equal to the exhaust gir rate, Such makeup air systems shall be
equipped with a means of closure and shall be automatically controlled to start and operate
simultaneously with the exhaust system. Makeup air intakes shall be located so as to avoid recirculation
of contaminated air within enclosures.

Section 508.3.5.4 Evaporative Cooling Systems Used as Make Up Air Systems

Add Section 508.3.5.4 to read as follows:

508.3.5.4.1 Evaporative Cooling Systems.

508.3.5.4.1 Evaporative Cooling Systems. Evaporative cooling systems will comply with this chapter,
Evaporative coolers shall not be used for makeup air units on commercial kitchen hoods and kitchen
ventilation systems.

54

2018 Northern Nevada Code Amendments 9-1-18




Exception; Evaporative cooling systems that are part of a listed heating air system for kitchen make up
air systems. The temperature differential between the makeup air and the air in the conditioned space
shall not exceed 10°F {6°C) except where the added heating and cooling load of makeup air do not
exceed the capacity if the HVAC system.

Section 511.2,2.2 Capture and Containment Test
Amend Section 511.2.2.2 to read as follows:

Section 511.2.2.2 Capture and Containment Test, The permit holder shall verify the capture and
containment performance of $he-Type | hoaods. A field test shall be conducted with the-all appliances
under the hood at operatmg temperatures vat-h—the—eu&dea#m&preméng—makeup—a&-ﬁe% all the hoods
operating and onditionin ; "
aperatingin-locatedat des:gn all‘f|0WS and W|th ali saources of replacement air operatlng at de5|gn
airflows for the restaurant. Capture and containment shall be verified by observing smoke or steam
produced by actual ersimulated cooking operation or by simulating cooking using devices such as
smoke candles ar smoke puffers. Smoke bombs shall not be used [ASHRAE 154:4-2.24.7 .2}

Exception: Capture and containment test not reguired if hood is UL and NFPA listed and manufacturers
data lists the individual equipment below hood.

Section 604.1 General

Amend Section 604.1 to read os folfows:

; da che andare 33 : .Supply-alr ducts
return air-ducts, and plenum of a heatlng or cooling system shall be msulated to achieve the minimum
thermal (R} value in accordance with the 2009 International Energy Conservation Code Section 403.2.1
for residential and 503.2.7 for commercial,

55
2018 Northern Nevada Code Amendments 9-1-18




Section 608.1 Air-Moving Systems and Smoke Detectors

Add Section 608.1 to read as follows:

608.1 Air-Moving Systems and Smoke Detectors. Air-moving systems supplying air in excess of 2000
cubic feet per minute (ft 3 /min) (0.9439 m 2 /s) to enclosed spaces within buildings shall be equipped
with an automatic shutoff. Automatic shutoff shall be accomplished by interrupting the power source of
the air-moving equipment upon detection of smoke in the main sappby return-air duct or plenum
upstream of any filters, exhaust air connections, outdoor air connections, or decontamination
equipment and appliances ai-duet served by such equipment. Duct smoke detectors shall comply with
UL 268A and shall be installed in accordance with the manufacturer’s installation instructions. Such
devices shall be compatible with the operating velocities, pressures, temperatures, and humidities of
the system. Where fire-detection or alarm systems are provided for the building, the smoke detectors
shall be supervised by such systems in an approved manner.

Exceptions:

(1) Where the space supplied by the air-moving eguipment is served by a total coverage smoke-
detection system in accordance with the fire code, interconnection to such system shall be permitted to
he used to accomplish the required shutoff.

(2) Automatic shutoff is not required where occupied rooms served by the air-handling equipment have
direct exit to the exterior and the travel distance does not exceed 100 feet {30 480 mm).

(3) Automatic shutoff is not required for Group R, Division 3 and Group U Occupancies.

{4) Automatic shutoff is not reguired for approved smoke control systems or where analysis
demonstrates shutoff would create a greater hazard, such as shall be permitted to be encountered in
air-moving equipment supplying specialized portions of Group H QOccupancies. Such equipment shall be
required to have smoke detection with remote indication and manual shutoff capability at an approved
location. {5} Smake detectors that are factory installed in listed air moving eguipment shall be permitted
to be used in lieu of smoke detectors installed in the main supply-air duct served by such equipment.

Section 609.0 Performance Test for Automatic Shutoffs

Add Section 605.0 to read as follows:

609.0 Performance Test for Automatic Shutoffs. Upon completion and before final approval of the air-
moving system, provide with the required smoke detectors, a performance test shall be performed to
verify compliance of detector installation to manufacturer’s instructions and system compatibility as
specified in this chapter. The permittee shall furnish the necessary test equipment and devices required

56

2018 Northern Nevada Code Amendments 9-1-18




to perform the tests and shall provide the jurisdiction with an accurate, completed, and signed test
report. The report shall provide the jurisdiction a form containing equivalent information, At the
discretion of the Authority Having Jurisdiction, the performance test may be required to be witnessed by
the Authority Having Jurisdiction or performed by an approved third-party testing agency.

Section 939.0 Sauna Heaters
Add Section 935.1 to Section 939.0 Sauna Heaters to read as folfows:

939.0 Sauna Heaters.

939.1 General. Sauna heaters shall be listed and installed in accordance with the manufacturer’s
installation instructions. Approved guards or barriers shall be installed to prevent accidental contact
with the sauna heater. Ventilation shall be provided in accordance with its listing and combustion air for
gas-fired sauna heaters shall comply with chapter 7.

Section 1301.1 Applicability

Amend Section 1301.1 to read as follows:

1301.1 Applicability. The regulations of this chapter shall govern the installation of fuel gas piping in or
in connection with a building, structure or within the property lines of premises up to 5 pounds-force

per square inch {psi) (34 kPa) fornatural-gas-and-L0psi(60 kRalforundiluted-propane, other than

service pipe.

Fuel oil piping systems shall be installed in accordance with NFPA 31. Whenever there is a conflict
between this code and NFPA 54 and NFPA 58 as adopted by the Nevada LP-Gas Beoard for LP-Gas
installations, the adopted codes of the Nevada LP-Gas Board shali govern.

Section 1313.3 Test Pressure

Amend Section 1313.3 to read as follows:

1313.3 Test Pressure, This inspection shall include an air, CO2, or nitrogen pressure test, at which time
the gas piping shall stand a pressure of not less than 38 25 psi (68 172.4 kPa) gauge pressure. Test
pressures shall be held for a length of time satisfactory to the Authority Having Jurisdiction but in no
case less than 15 30 minutes with no perceptible drop in pressure. For welded piping, and for piping
carrying gas at pressures in excess of 14 inches water column (3.5 kPa) pressure, the test pressure shall
be not less than 60 psi (414 kPa} and shall be continued for a length of time satisfactory to the Authority
Havmg Jurisdiction, but in no case for less than 30 minutes. Fe#GSSI—eaﬁwﬂg-gaa—ax—-wessuFem-e*eess

These tests shall be made using air, C0O2, or nitrogen pressure and shall be made in the presence of the
Autherity Maving Jurisdiction. Necessary apparatus for conducting tests shall be furnished by the permit

- 57

2018 Northern Nevada Code Amendments 9-1-18




holder. Test gauges used in conducting test shall be in accordance with Section $383-3-31-through
Section1303-3.2.4 318.0.

Section 1313.5.1 Turning Gas On

Amend Section 1313.5.1 to read as follows:

1313.5.1 Turning Gas On. During the process of turning gas on into a system of new gas piping or
portion of a gas system that has been restored after an interruption of service, the entire system shall
be inspected to determine that there are no open fittings or ends and that all valves at unused outlets
are clpsed and plugged or capped. [NFPA 54:8.2.2]

1313.5.1.1 During the process of turning gas on into a system of new gas piping or into a system or
portion of a gas system that has been restored after an interruption of service; in the City of Fernley,
City of Reno, City of Sparks, Storey County and Washoe County a manometer test shall be made after all
valves, unions, connectors and piping to the appliances are complete. A pressure test shall be made with
the use of a manometer gauge measuring inches of water column. With all valves including gas cock and
gas control valves in the open position, a pressure of at least eleven {11) to fifteen (15} inches of water
column shall be measured for at least fifteen (15) minutes, with no perceptible drop in pressure.

1313.5.1.2 For medium pressure gas systems: Where the appliance is rated for seven (7) to eleven (11]
inches of water column, a manometer test of eleven {11) to fifteen (15) inches of water column will be
conducted between the pressure regulating valve and the appliance and shall be measured for at least
fifteen {(15) minutes with no perceptible drop in pressure.

1313.5.1.3 For appliances or equipment requiring pounds of gas pressure: A pressure test using a
pressure gauge measuring in one tenth (1/10) increments shall be conducted on the gas train of that
appliance or equipment, The pressure shall be equal to the appliance’s normal operating pressure for a
period of thirty (30) minutes with no perceptible drop in pressure.

1313.5.1.4 Manometer testing. Manometer testing shall be performed by a person holding a valid
Washoe County manometer tester card for which the number js to be provided at the time of request
for inspection. A visual manometer test to be witnessed by the authority having jurisdiction may be
allowed by the Building Official. A manometer test does not need to be reporied when the serving gas
utility performs a manometer or clock test prior to providing service.

Amendments to the 2018 Edition of the Uniform Plumbing Code
Section 216.0 Definition Non-Combustible Material
Amend Section 216.0 to read as follows:

Section 216.0 Definitions. Non-Combustible Material: Materials that, when tested in accordance with
ASTM E136, have at least three of four specimens tested meeting all of the following criteria:

1. The recorded temperature of the surface and interior thermocouples shall not at any time during the
test rise more than 549F (302C) above the furnace temperature at the beginning of the test,

58
2018 Northern Nevada Code Amendments 9-1-18



2. There shall not be flaming from the specimen after the first 30 seconds.

3. if the weigh{ loss of the specimen during testing exceeds 50 percent, the recorded temperature of the
surface and interior thermocouples shall not at any time during the test rise above the furnace air
temperature at the beginning of the test, and there shall not be ftaming of the specimen.

Section 218.0 Definition Penetration Firestop System
Delete Section 218.0 as follows:

218.0 Definitions. Pene

Section 222.0 Definitions “T” Rating

Delete Section 222.0 as follows:

Section 312.7 Fire-Resistant Construction
Amend Section 312.7 to read as folfows:

312.7 Fire-Resistant Construction. Piping penetrations of fire-resistance-rated walls, partitions, floors,
floor/ceiling assemblies, roof/ceiling assemblies, or shaft enclosures shall be protected in accordance

with the requirements of the building code. and-Chapteri5"Firestop-Protection”
Section 422.0 Minimum Number of Required Fixtures

Delete Section 422.0 to read:

Table 422.1 Minimum Plumbing Facilities

Delete Table 422.1 os follows:

Table422.1 Mini RlumbingFaciliti

59

2018 Northern Nevada Code Amendments 9-1-18




Section 609.1 Installation
Amend Section 609.1 to read as follows:

609.1 Instaliation. Water piping shall be adequately supported in accordance with Table 313.3. Burred
ends shall be reamed to the full bore of the pipe or tube. Changes in direction shall be made by the
appropriate use of fittings, except that changes in direction in copper or copper alloy tubing shall be
permitted to be made with bends, provided that such bends are made with bending equipment that
does not deform or create a loss in the cross-sectional area of the tubing. Changes in direction are
allowed with flexible pipe and tubing without fittings in accordance with the manufacturer’s
instructions. Provisions shall be made for expansion in hot-water piping. Piping, equipment,
appurtenances, and devices shall be installed in a workmanlike manner in accordance with the
provisions and intent of the code. Building supply yard piping shall be not less than 32 6 inches (365
152mm) below the average local frost depth. The cover shall be not less than 12 inches (305 mm) below
finish grade.

Section 712.1 Media
Amend Section 712.1 to read as follows:

712.1 Media. The piping of the plumbing, drainage and venting systems shall be tested with water or air

exceptthat-plasticpipingshal-not-be-tested-with-air. The authority Having Jurisdiction shall be

permitted to require the removal of cleanouts, etc., to ascertain whether the pressure has reached all
parts of the system. After the plumbing fixtures have been set and their traps filled with water, they
shall be submitted to a final test.

Section 717.1 General (Size of Building Sewers}

Amend Section 717.1 to read as follows:

717.1 General. The minimum size of a building sewer shall be determined on the basis of the total
number of fixture units drained by such sewer, in accordance with Table 717.1. No building sewer shall

be smaller than the building drain- or less than four (4) inches in diameter. For alternate methods of
sizing building sewers, see Appendix C.

Section 723.1 General {Building Sewer Test}
Amend Section 723.1 to read os follows.

723.1 General. Building sewers shall be tested by plugging the end of the building sewer at its points of
connection with the public sewer or private sewage disposal system and completely filling the building
sewer with water from the lowest to highest point thereof, or by approved equivalent low-pressure air

test, Rlastic- WA piping-systams-shall-not-betested-by-the-airtestmethed: The building sewer shall be
watertight.

60

2018 Northern Nevada Code Amendments 9-1-18




Section 1107.2 Methods of Testing Storm Drainage Systems
Amend Section 1107.2 to read as follows:

1107.2 Methods of Testing Storm Drainage Systems. Except for outside leaders and perforated
or open-jointed drain tile, the piping of storm drain systems shall be tested upon completion of
the rough piping installation by water or air, except-thatplasticpipeshall-rot-be-tested-with-air
and proved tight. The Authority Having Jurisdiction shall be permitted to reqguire the removal of
cleanout plugs to ascertain whether the pressure has reached parts of the system. One of the
following test methods shall be used in accordance with Section 1109.2.1 through Section
1109.2.3.

Section 1201.1 installation
Amend Section 12001.1 to read as follows:

1201.1 Installation. The regulations of this chapter shall govern the installation of fuel gas piping in or in
connection with a building, structure or within the property lines of premises up toe 5 pounds-force per
square inch {34 kPa) fornaturalgas-and-10-psi{69-kPal-forundiuted-propane, other than service pipe.
Fuel oil piping systems shall be installed in accordance with NFPA31. Whenever there is a conflict
between this code and NFPA 54 and NFPA 58 as adopted by the Nevada LP-Gas Board for LP-Gas
installations, the adopted codes of the Nevada LP-Gas Board shall govern.

Section 1208.6.1.3 Snow Hazard
Add Section 1208.6.1.3 to 1208.6 to read o3 follows:

1208.6.1.3 Snow Hazard: Protection of utilities shall be per requirements of local utiiity.

Section 1213.3 Test Pressure
Amend Section 1213.3 to read as follows:

1213.3 Test Pressure. This inspection shall include an air, CO2, or nitrogen pressure test, at
which time the gas piping shall stand a pressure of not less than 30 25 psi (69 172.4 kPa) gauge
pressure. Test pressures shall be held for a length of time satisfactory to the Authority Having
Jurisdiction, but in no case fess than 35 30 minutes with no perceptible drop in pressure. For
welded piping, and for piping carrying gas at pressures in excess of 14 inches water column
pressure (3.5 kPa), the test pressure shall be not less than 60 psi {414 kPa) and shall be continued
for a length of time satisfactory to the Authority Having Jurisdiction, but in no case for less than
30 minutes. These tests shall be made using air, CO2, or nitrogen pressure and shall be made in
the presence of the Authority Having Jurisdiction. Necessary apparatus for conducting tests shall
be furnished by the permit holder. Test gauges used in conducting tests shall be in accordance
with Section 318.0.

61

2018 Northern Nevada Code Amendments 9-1-18




Section 1213.5.1 Turning Gas On
Amend Section 1213.5.1 to read os foffows:

1213.5.1 Turning Gas On. During the process of turning gas on into a system of new gas piping

orinto a system or portion of a gas system that has been restored after an interruption of service,

the entire system shall be inspected to determine that there are no open fittings or ends and that

the valves at unused outlets are closed and plugged or capped. [NFPA 54:8.2.2]

1213.5.1.1 During the process of turning gas on into a system of new gas piping or into a system or
portion of a gas system that has been restored after an interruption of service; in the City of Fernley,
City of Reng, City of Sparks, Storey County and Washoe County a manometer test shall be made after all
valves, unions, connectors and piping to the appliances are complete. A pressure test shall be made with
the use of a manometer gauge measuring inches of water column. With all valves including gas cock and
gas control valves in the open position, a pressure of at least eleven (11) to fifteen (15} inches of water
column shall be measured for at least fifteen {15) minutes, with no perceptible drop in pressure.
1213.5.1.2 For medium pressure gas systems: Where the appliance is rated for seven (7] to eleven (11)
inches of water column, a manometer test of eleven (11) to fifteen (15} inches of water calumn will be
conducted between the pressure regulating valve and the appliance and shall be measured for at least
fifteen {15) minutes with no perceptible drop in pressure.

1213.5.1.3 For appliances or equipment requiring pounds of gas pressure: A pressure test using a
pressure gauge measuring in one tenth (1/10} increments shall be conducted on the gas train of that
appliance or equipment. The pressure shall be equal to the appliance’s normal operating pressure for a
period of thirty (30) minutes with no perceptible drop in pressure.

1213.5.1.4 Manometer testing. Manometer testing shall be performed by a person holding a valid
Washoe County manometer tester card for which the number is to be provided at the time of request
for inspection. A visual manometer test to be witnessed by the authority having jurisdiction may be
allowed by the Building Official. A manometer test does not heed to be reported when the serving gas
utility performs a manometer or clock test prior to providing service.

Chapter 14 Firestop Protection

Delete Chapter 14 as follows:

Chateri4 Firaston Rrotects

62

2018 Northern Nevada Code Amendments 9-1-18




2018 Northern Nevada Amendments Appendix

Appendix Table R301.2(1)

Carson City
Groun | Wind Design Seismi | Subject to Damage From Wint | ice Barrier | Flood Air Mea
d Spe Topogra Speci | Windbou | ¢ Weather [ Fros | Termit er underfay Hazards Freezi { n
Snow | ed® | phic al rne Design | ing” t gt Desi | ment s ng Annu
Load © (MP | Effects” Wwin Debris Categ Line an Required " index al
H) d Zona " ary' Dep Tem ' Tem
| Regt th® p* !
‘ on'
See 120 Ne Yes Na D2 Severe 24” Mader | 9°F Yesabove | Varies. 444 50.2°
=10 ate 5500° See F
Table To Engineer
1608. Heavy ing
2.1 Dept
M I Design-Critari
City of Fernley
Groun | Wind Design Seismi | Subject to Damage from Wint | lce Barrier | Flood Air Mea
d Spe | Topogra | Spec | Windbou | ¢ Weathe | Fros | Termit { er Underlay Hazards ® freezi | n
Snow | ed® | phic ial rne Desig ! ring® t ef Desi | ment ng Ann
Load ® | (MP | Effects® | Win | Debris n Line gn Reguired ” index | uaf
H}) d Zone ™ Categ Dep Tem i Temn
Regi ory" th® p* p'
on'
See 115 No No No D1 Severe 18" Moder | 11°F | No (3)06/04/2 | 594 49.4°
iBC ate 003 F
Table To (b)11/20/
1608. Heavy 1958
2.1 Firm
M 1} DasignCriteri
City of Reno
Groun | Wind Design Sefsmi | Subject to Damage From Wint | Ice Barrier | Flood Air Mea
d Spee | Topogra | Speci | Windbou | ¢ Weather | Fros | Termit | er Underlay Hazards | Freezi [ n
Snow a? phic al rne Design | ing® t Ch Desi | ment £ ng Annu
} Load® | (MP | Effects* | Win | Debris Categ Line &n Required " index' | al
H) d Zone " ary' Dep Tem Tem
Regi th® p* p
on'
See 120 No Yes Na D2 Severe 24" Moder | 17F | Yesabove | See 594 49.4°
IBC ate 5300° RMC F
Table To 18.12.1
1608, Heavy 701
2.1
M I Design Criteri
63

2018 Northern Nevada Code Amendments 9-1-18




City of Sparks

Groun | Wind Design Seismi | Subject tc Damage From wint | lce Barrier | Flood | Air Mea
d Spee | Topograp | Sped | Windbou § ¢ Weather | Fros | Termit er Underlaym | Hazar | Freez | n
Snow | d° hic al rne Dasign | ing® t e Desig { ent ds ® ng | Annu
Load ® (MP Effects* Wind | Debris Catego Line n Required " Index' | al

H} Regi | Zone™ ry' Dep Tem Tem

on' th"® n € pJ

See 120 | No Yes | Ne D2 Severe | 24" | Moder | 17% | No See 594 49.4°
18C ate SMC F
Tahie To 15.11
1608. Heavy
2.1

Douglas County
Groun | Wind Design Seismi | Subject to Damage From wint | Ice Barrier Fiopd | Air Mea
d Spee | Topograp | Speci | windbou | ¢ Weather | Fros | Termit er Underlaym | Hazar | Freezi { n
Snow | d° hic al rne Design | ing® t et Desig | ent ds® ng Annu
Load © (MP Effects wind | Debris Catego Line n Required " Index' | al
H) Regi | Zone™ ry’ Dep Tem Tem
an' th® p* N
See 120 No Yes No D2 Severe 18"< | Moder | 4% Yes above Dougl | 647 48.8°
IBC 600 ate 5300° as F
Table o To Count
1608. 24"> | Heavy Y
2.1 600 Title
o 20
Chapt
er
20.50
M {4 DesignCriteri
Lyon County
Groun | Wind Design Seismi | Subject to Damage Fram wint | Ice Barrier Flood | Air Mea
d Spee | Topagrap | Spec | Windbou | ¢ Weather | Fros [ Termit er Underlaym | Hazar | Freezi | n
Snow | d° hic al rme Design | ing* t et Desig | ent ds® ng Annu
load® | (MP | Effects® | Wind | Debris Catego Line n Required " index ' | al
H) Regi | Zone™ ry’ Dep Tern Tem
on 1 th b p e pl
See 115 | No No No D1 Severe 18" | Moder | 11% | No Lyon | 445 51.2°
18C ate Co. F
Table To Title
1608. Heavy 12
2.1

64

2018 Northern Nevada Code Amendments 9-1-18




Pershing County

Groun | Wind Design Seismi | Subject to Damage From Wint | Ice Barrier | Flood | Air Mea
d Speed | Topograp | Speci | Windbou | ¢ Weather | Fros | Termi | er Underfaym | Hazar | Freezi | n
Snown a4 hic al rne Design | ing” t te © Desig | ent ds*® ng | Annu
Load {MPH) | Effects® | Wind | Debris Catego Line n Required " Index’ | al
Regi | Zone™ ry' Dep Tem Tem
on' th® P’ p’
See See D2 Severe 36" | Shght | 1°F Yesabove | June | 594 49.4°
IBC 1] To 5300 4, F
Table 1609, Nane 2003
1608. 3.2
2.1
Storey County
Groun ! Wind Design Seismi | Subject ta Damage From Wint | lce Barrier Flood | Air Mea
d Spee | Topograp | Speci | Windbou | ¢ Weather | Fras | Termit er Underlaym | Hazar | Freezi [ n
Snow0 d? hic al me Design | ing® t et Dasig | ent ds® ng | Annu
Load {MP | Effects” | Wind | Debris Catego Line n Required " index' | al
H} Regi | Zone ™ ry' Dep Tem Tem
on' th® pt ol
Sea 115 No Ne No D1 Severe 18" Moder 18°F | Yesabove See 594 49.4°
i8C ate 5500 SCC F
Tahie T 15.20
16508. Heavy
| 2.1
Washoe County
Grou Wind Design Seismi LSubject to Damage From Wint | lce Barrier Flood { Air Mea
nct Spee | Topograp | Speci { Windbou | ¢ Weather | Fros | Termite | er Underlaym | Hazar { Freezi | n
Snow | d° hic at e Design 1 g t ¢ Desig | ent ds® ng Annu
load | (MP | Effects® Wind | Debris Catego Line n Required " Index' | al
° H} Regi Zone ™ v’ Dep Tem Tem
on | th b p L] pJ
120 | No Yes | No D2 Severg 24" | Moder | 17°F | vesabove | See 594 49.4°
ate 5300 WCC F
To Chapt
Heavy er
110
For 81: 1 pound per square foot = 0.0479 kPa, 1 mile per hour = 0.447 m/s
a. Where weathering requires a higher strength concrete or grade of masonry than necessary to
satisfy the structural requirements of this code, the frost line depth strength required for
weathering shall govern. The weathering column shali be filled in with the weathering index,
“negligible,” “moderate,” or “severe” for concrete as determined from Figure R301.2(4). The
grade of masonry unit shall be determined from ASTM (34, C55, €62, C73, C90, €129, C145, C,
the urisidc216 or €652.
b. Where the frostline depth requires deeper footings than indicated in Figure R403.1(1), the

frostline depth strength required for weathering shall govern. The jurisdiction shall fill in the
frost line depth column with the minimum depth footing below finish grade.

65

2018 Northern Nevada Code Amendments 9-1-18




¢. The jurisdiction shall fill in this part of the table to indicate the need for protection depending on
whether there has been a history of iocal subterranean termite damage.

d. The jurisdiction shall fill in this part of the table with the wind speed from the basic wind speed
map [Figure R301.2(5)A]. wind exposure category shall be determined on a site-specific basis in
accordance with Section R301.2.1.4.

e. The outdoor design dry-bulb temperature shall be selected from the columns of 97 1/2 -percent
values for winter from Appendix D of the international Piumbing Code. Deviations from the
Appendix D temperatures shall be permitted to reflect local climates or local weather
experience as determined by the building official [Also see Figure R301.2(1).]

f. The jurisdiction shall fitl in this part of the table with the seismic design category determined
from Section R301.2.2.1.

g. The jurisdiction shall fill in this part of the table with (a) the date of the jurisdiction’s entry into
the National Flood Insurance Program [date of adoption of the first code or ordinance for
management of flood hazard areas), (b) the date(s) of the Flood Insurance Study and (c) the
panel numbers and dates of the currently effective FIRMS and FBFMs or other flood hazard amp
adopted by the authority having jurisdiction, as amended.

h. In accordance with Sections R905.1.2, R905.4.3.1, R90%.5.3.1, R905.6.3.1, R905.7.3.1, and
R905.8.3.1, where there has been a history of local damage from the effects of ice damming, the
jurisdiction shall fill in the part of this table with "Yes.” Otherwise, the jurisdiction shall indicate
“No.”

i. The jurisdiction shall fill in this part of the table with the 100-year return period air freezing
index {BF-days) from Figure R403.3(2) or from the 100-year {99 percent) vaiue on the National
Climatic Data Center data table “Air Freezing Index- USA Method {Base 32°F).”

j.  The jurisdiction shall fill in this part of the table with the mean annuai temperature form the
National Climatic Data Center data table “Air Freezing index- USA Method (Base 32°F.)

k. Inaccordance with Section R301.2.1.5, where there is local historic data documenting structural
damage to buildings due to topographic wind speed-up effects, the jurisdiction shall fill in this
part of the table with “yes.” Otherwise, the jurisdiction shall indicate “No” in this part of the
table.

|, Inaccordance with Figure R301.2.5{A), where there is [ocal historical data documenting unusual
wind conditions, the jurisdiction shall fill in this part of the table with “Yes” and identify any
specific requirements. Otherwise, the jurisdiction shall indicate “N¢” in this part of the table.

m. In accordance with Section R301.2.1.2 the jurisdiction shall indicate the wind-borne debris

zone(s). Otherwise, the jurisdiction shali indicate “No” in this part of the tabie.

o. The jurisdiction shall fill in this section of the table using the Ground Snow Loads in Figure
R301.2(6).

66

2018 Northern Nevada Code Amendments 9-1-18




2018 NORTHERN NEVADA AMENDMENTS TO THE 2018 INTERNATIONAL FIRE CODE

July 17, 2018

Published by the Authorities Having Jurisdiction listed below

Participating Agencies

Carson City Fire Department
777 South Stewart Street

Carson City, NV 89701

East Fork Fire Protection District
1694 County Road

Minden, NV 89423

North Lake Tahoe Fire Protection District
866 Qriole Way

Incline Village, NV 89451

Reno Fire Department
One East First Street, 4" Floor

Reno, NV 89501

Sparks Fire Department
1605 Victorian Avenue

Sparks, NV 89431

Tahoe Douglas Fire Protection District
193 Elks Point Road

Zephyr Cove, NV 89448

2018 Northern Nevada Fire Code Amendments

Central Lyon County Fire Protection District
246 Dayton Valley Road, Suite 106

Dayton, NV 89403

Elkoe City Fire Department
911 Waest Idaho Street

Elko, NV 89801

North Lyon County Fire Protection District
195 East Main Street

Fernley, NV 89408

Smith Valley Fire Protection District
1 Hardie Lane

Smith, NV 89430
Storey County Community Development
P.O. Box 526

Virginia City, NV 89440

Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District

1001 East Ninth Street, Building D, Second Floor

Reno, NV 89520




Preface

This document comprises proposed amendments to the 2018 Edition of the international Fire Code as
published by the International Code Council, Inc, amended by the Participating Agencies listed above,
with the support of the Northern Nevada Chapter of the international Code Council. This document is
hereafter referenced as the 2018 Northern Nevada Fire Code Amendment and is prepared to be
adopted by reference by the local authority having jurisdiction. These provisions are not considered to
be or enacted as the code unless the provisions are adopted and codified by the local Authority Having
Jurisdiction.

The purpose of the document is to provide a consist area-wide application to the enforcement of the
fire and life safety code sectians noted in the International Fire Code, while still acknowledging

necessary modifications to the nationally recognized fire and life safety document based upon the local
needs of the community.

; Notes: Deleted language in the base code has bee strieken-threugh:
Added language to the code section has been underlined.

The entire section amended has been shown for context.

2018 Northern Nevada Fire Code Amendments




The following participating agencies have reviewed the attached document referenced as the 2018
Northern Nevada Fire Code Amendments and agree with the amendments to the 2018 International Fire
Code as stated therein. It is noted that the code amendments must be approved and adepted and
codified by the local Authority Having Jurisdiction to become code.

Dave Ruben

Carson City Fire Department

Elizabeth Peto

Central Lyon County Fire Protection District

Steve Eisele

East Fork Fire Protection District

Mark Regan

North Lake Tahoe Fire Protection District

Tray Palmer

Reno Fire Department

Robert King

Sparks Fire Department

Eric Guevin

Tahoe Douglas Fire Protection District

2018 Northern Nevada Fire Code Amendments

John Holmes

Elko City Fire Departmeant

Scott Huntley

North Lyon County Fire Protection District

Robert Loveberg

Smith Valley Fire Protection District

Martin Azevedo

Storey County Community Development

Lisa Beaver

Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District




Section
102.7
105.6.51
105.7.26
202
30743
308.1.6.3
3194.1
403.12.3.2
505.1
505.3
507.3
507.55
508.1.6
510.1
510.2
510.3
704.3
901.4.6.2
901.6
901.6.2.3
901.11
903.2
903.2.1.2

Table 903.2.1

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Referenced codes and standards

Fire fighter air replenishment systems

Fire fighter air replenishment systems

General Definitions

Portable outdoor fireplaces
Sky lanterns

Fire protection for cooking equipment

Training

Address identification

Directory required

Fire flow

Clear space around hydrants

Required features

Emergency responder radio coverage in new buildings
Emergency responder radio coverage in existing building
Permit reguired

Wood-burning appliance enclosures and flue shafts
Marking on access door

Inspection, testing and maintenance

Fire fighter air replenishment system

Problematic unwanted Fire Alarms
Where required
Group A-2
Required Automatic Sprinklers by Fire Area, Response Time and

Height for A, B, E, F, H, I, M, § and U Occupancies

Table 903.2.2 Required Automatic Sprinklers by Fire Area, Response Time and Height

2018 Northern Nevada Fire Code Amendments

Page

11
11
11
12
12
12
12
12
13
15
15
16
16
16
16
17
17
17

13

19



for Structures Designed and Constructed with the International

Residential Code 21

903.2.3 Group £ 22
503.3.1.1 NFPA 13 sprinkler systems 23
903.3.1.3 NFPA 13D sprinkler systems 23
903 .4 Sprinkler system supervision and alarms 23
903.4.2 Alarms 24
903.4.3 Floor control valves 24
906.2 General requirements 24
907.2.9.4 Automatic smoke detection systems in Group R-4 25
907.2.9.5 Automatic smoke detection systems in Group R-3 25
807.2.10.2.1  Alternative to single- and multiple-station smoke alarms 26
907.5.2.1.1 Average sound pressure 26
910.2.2 High-piled combustible storage 26
| 912.5.1 Service area 26
‘ 913.4 Valve supervision 27
914.3.8 Fire fighter air replenishiment systems 27
10239.1 Signage requirements 27
Chapter 11 Construction Requirements for Existing Buildings ' 28
3903.2 Prohibited occupancies 28
39033 Location 28
39035 Use of flammable and combustible liquids 28
3903.5.1 Electrical components 29
3903.6 Liguified petroleum gas 29
3903.6.1 Exhaust 29
3903.6.1.1 Installation 29
3903.6.1.2 Processes 29
3903.6.2 Electrical bonding and grounding 30
39036.2.1 Classified areas 30

2018 Northern Nevada Fire Code Amendments




39036.2.2 Interlocks 30

3903.6.2.3 Emergency power 30
| 3903.6.2.4 Gas detection systems 30
|
3903.7 Carbon dioxide extraction 31
3903.7.1 Storage and handling _ 31
3903.7.2 CO; gas detection 31
3903.7.3 CO discharge 31
3503.8 Means of egress 31
| 3903.9 Sighage 32
|
3903.9.1 Safety data sheets 32
3903.9.2 Warning signage 32
3904.4 Site inspection 32
3904.5 Change of extraction medium 32
5601.1.3 Fireworks 33
|
i 5601.1.6 Exploding targets 33
6101.1 Scope 33
APPENDIX B FIRE-FLOW REQUIREMENTS FOR BUILDINGS 33
B102 Definitions 34
B103.3 Areas without water supply systems 34

Table B105.2  Buildings other than one- and two-family dwellings

2018 Northern Nevada Fire Code Amendments




Groups R-3 and R-4 buildings and townhouses

APPENDIX C FIRE HYDRANT LOCATIONS AND DISTRIBUTION

C102.2 Distance to a Fire Department Connection {FDC)

APPENDIX D FIRE APPARATUS ROADS

APPENDIX L REQUIREMENTS FOR FIRE FIGHTER AIR REPLENISHMENT SYSTEMS

2018 Northern Nevada Fire Code Amendments

34

35

35

35

35




2018 Northern Nevada Fire Code Amendments

Section 102.7 Referenced codes and standards:
Section 102.7 is amended to read:

102.7 Referenced codes and standards. The codes and standards referenced in this code shall be these
the most current that are listed in Chapter 80, and such codes and standards shall be considered to be
part of the requirements of this code to the prescribed extent of each such reference and as further
regulated in Section 102.7.1 and 102.7.2

Section 105.6.51 Fire Fighter Air Replenishment Systems:
Section 105.6.51 is added to Section 105.6 Required operational permits, to read:

Section 105.6.51 Fire Fighter Air Replenishment Systems. An operational permit is required to maintain
a Fire Fighter Air Replenishment System.

Section 105.6.52 Emargency responder radio coverage system
Section 105.6.51 is added to Section 105.6 Required operational permits, to read as follows:

Section 105.6.52 Emergency responder radio coverage system. An operational permit is required for
the operation and maintenance of an emergency radio coverage system and related eguipment, as
specified in Section 510.

Section 105.7.26 Fire fighter air replenishment systems:

Section 105.7.26 is added to Section 105.7 Reguired construction permits, to read:

Section 105.7.26 Fire Fighter Air Replenishment Systems. A construction permit is required for
installations of or modification to a Fire Fighter Air Replenjshment Svstem. The constructign permit
application shall include documentation of an acceptance and testing plan as specified in Section L103.2.

Section 202 General Definitions:
The following definitions are amended or added in Section 202 General definitions to read:

[BG] HIGH-RISE BUILDING, A buiiding with an occupied floor located more than 75 55 feet (22866 16
764 mm) above the lowest level of fire department vehicle access.

OCCUPANCY CLASSIFICATION [BG] institutional Group I-1. Institutional Group I-1 occupancy shall
include buildings, structures, or portions thereof for more than 16 persons, excluding staff, who reside
on a 24-hour basis in a supervised environment and receive custodial care. All portions of a care facility
which houses patients or residents which is classified by the State Board of Heaith as “Category 2,” and
which has an occupant load of more than 10 residents, is ¢lassified as @ “I-1” occupancy classification.
Buildings of Group I-1 shall be classified as one of the occupancy conditions listed below. This group
shall include, but not be timited to, the following:

Alcohol and Drug Centers

2018 Northern Nevada Fire Code Amendments




Assisted living facilities

Congregate care facilities

Group homes

Halfway houses

Residential board and care facilities
Residential board and custodial care facilities
Social rehabilitation facilities

IBG] Condition 1. This occupancy condition shall include buildings in which all persons receiving
custedial care who, without any assistance, are capable of responding to an emergency to
complete building evacuation.

[BG] Condition 2. This occupancy shall include buildings in which there are any persons
requiring custodial care who reguire limited verbal or physical assistance while responding to an
emergency situation to complete building evacuation.

[BG] Six to 16 persons receiving custodial care. A facility housing not fewer than six and not
more than 16 persons receiving custodial care shall be classified as group R-4.

[BG] Five or fewer persons receiving custodial car. A facility with five or fewer persons receiving
custodial care shall be classified as Group R-3 or shall comply with the International Residential
Code provided an automatic sprinkler system is installed in accordance with Section 203.3.1.3 or
Section P2904 of the International Residential Cade.

Occupational Classification [BG] Group {-4, day care facilities. Institutional Group i-4 shall include
buildings and structures occupied by more than five six persons of any age who receive custodial care
for less than 24 hours by persons ather than parents or guardians, relatives by blood, marriage, or
adoption, and in a place other than the home of the person cared for. This group shall include, but not
be limited to, the following:

Adult day care
Child day care.

[BG] Classification as Group E. A child day care facility that provides care for maore than five six
but no mare than 100 children 21/2 years or less of age, where the rooms in which the children
are cared for are located on a leve! of exit discharge serving such roams and each of these child
care rooms has an exit door directly to the exterior, shali be classified as Group E.

[BG] Within a place of religious worship. Rooms and spaces within places of religious worship
providing such care during religious functions shall be classified as part of the primary
occupancy.

2018 Northern Nevada Fire Code Amendments




| [BG] Five or fewer occupants receiving care. A facility having five six or fewer persons receiving
custodial care shall be classified as part of the primary occupancy.

[BG] Five or fewer occupants receiving care in a dwelling unit. A facility such as the above
within a dwelling unit and having five six or fewer persons receiving custodial care shall be
classified as a Group R-3 occupancy or shall comply with the International Residential Code.

Occupancy Classification [BG] Residential Group R-1. Residential Group R-1 occupancies containing
sleeping units where the occupants are primarily transient in nature, including:

Boarding houses (transient) with more than 10 occupants

Brothels

Congregate living facilities {transient) with more than 10 occupants
Hotels {transient)

Matels (transient)

OCCUPANCY CLASSIFICATION [BG] Residential Group R-3. Residential Group R-3 occupancies where the
gccupants are primarily permanent in nature and not classified as Group R-1, R-2, R-4 or |, Including:

Buildings that do not contain more than two dwelling units

Care facilities that provide accommodations for five 6 or fewer persons receiving care
Congregate living facilities (nontransient) with 16 or fewer occupants

Boarding houses (nontransient)

Convents

Dormitories

Fraternities and sororities

Monasteries

Congregate living facilities (transient) with 10 or fewer occupants

Bearding houses {transient)

Lodging houses {transient) with five or fewer guestroems and 10 or fewer occupants.

Unwanted alarm. Any alarm that occurs that is not the result of a potentially hazardous condition.

10

2018 Northern Nevada Fire Code Amendments




Section 307.4.3 Portable outdoor fireplaces

Section 307.4.3, of Section 307.4 Location, is amended to read.

307.4.3 Portable outdoor fireplaces. Portable outdoor fireplaces shall be used in accordance with
manufacturer’s instructions and shall not be operated within 15 feet (3048 mm) of s structure or
combustible material.

Section 308.1.6.3 Sky lanterns
Section 308.1.6.3, of Section 308.1.6 Open-flame devices, is amended to read:

308.1.6.3 Sky lanterns. A-pe
lanterns are prohibited.

Section 319.4.1 Fire protection for cooking equipment
Section 318.4.1, of Section 319.4 Fire protection, is omended to read:

319.4.1 Fire protection for cooking equipment. Cooking equipment shall be protected by automatic fire
extinguishing systems in accordance with Section Sections 607.2 and 904.12.

Section 320 Natural Gas Meter Protection
Section 320 Natural Gas Meter Protection and Section 320.1 General are added to read as follows:

320 Natural Gas Meter Protection

320.1 General. A protective cover shall be provided over natural gas meter assemblies serving
buildings, or portions thereof, located at an elevation of 5,800 feet {1767.48 m) or higher. The
protective cover shall be designed to be equal to or greater than the Building Design Load {as
determined by the Building Department having jurisdiction]. The cover shall be approved by the
natural gas supplier, shall be installed over the meter assembly, and securely supported to the
ground or diagonally to the building wall. When supported to the ground, the footing of the
supports shall extend a minimum of 6-inches (152.4 mm) below finished grade. Pre-cast

concrete piers may be used in lieu of poured footings, provided they are placed on stable soil.

11

2018 Northern Nevada Fire Code Amendments




Section 403.12.3.2 Training
Section 403.12.3.2, of Section 403.12.3 Crowd managers, is amended to read as follows:

403.12.3.2 Training. Training for crowd managers shall be in compliance with the latest International

Code Council or National Fire Protection Associations standards or guidelines approved.

Section 505.1 Address Identification
Section 505.1 is amended to read:

505.1 Address identification. New and existing buildings shall be provided with approved maintained
all-weather address identification. The address identification shall be legible and piaced in a position
that is visible from the street or road fronting the property. Address identification characters shall
contrast with their background. Address numbers shall be Arabic numbers or alphabetic letters.
Numbers shall not be spelled out. Each character shall be not less thas-d-inches-Li02-mml-high-with-a
FriniFrermstroke-width-oftiz-trek{12 7 mr-than a nominal height of 6-inches with a minimum ¥-inch
stroke for residential occupancies and 12-inches with a 1-inch stroke in commercial accupancies, unless
otherwise approved by the fire code official. Where required by fire code official, address identification
shall be provided in additional approved locations to facilitate emergency response. Where access is by
means of a private road and the building cannot be viewed from the public way, a manument, pole, or
other sign or means shall be used to identify the structure. Address identification shall be maintained.

Section 507.3 Fire flow
Section 507.3 is amended to read:

507.3 Fire flow. Fire flow requirements for buildings or portions of building and facilities shall be
determined by an approved method,

Subject to the approval of the fire authority, if the required fire flow is not available for adeguate firg
protection, an automatic fire sprinkler system shali be instalied throughout the building or buiidings. The
sprinkler system must meet the reguirements of the appropriate N.F.P.A. standard. The provisions of
this paragraph do not apply if a fire sprinkler system is otherwise reguired by this chapter or the
adopted codes.

Section 507.5.5 Clear space around hydrants
Section 507.5.5 in Section 507.5 Fire hydrants is amended to read:

507.5.5 Clear space around hydrants. A 3-foot (914 mm) clear space shall be maintained around the
circumference of fire hydrants, except as otherwise required or approved. In addition, a minimum clear

space of seven and ane-half feet (2286 mm) shall be maintained to both sides directly in front of the
front pumper connection. In the North Lake Tahoe Fire Protection District and Tahoe Douglas Fire

Protection District, a minimumn of four feet {1219 mm) shal) alsg be maintained clear 1g the rear of any

fire hydrant. These clearance requirements shall apply to any public or private property.

12

2018 Northern Nevada Fire Code Amendments




Section 508.1.6 Required features
Section 508.1.6 of Section 508.1 General is armended to read:

508.1.6 Required features. The fire command center shall comply with NFPA 72 and shall contain the
following features:

1. The emergency voice/alarm communication system control unit,
2. The fire department communications system.
3. Fire detection and alarm system annunciator,

4. Annunciator unit visually indicating the location of the elevators and whether they are
operational.

5. Status indicators and controls for the air distribution systems.

6. The fire fighter's control panel required by Section 909.16 for smoke control systems installed
in the building.

7. Controls for unlocking interior exit stairway doors simultaneously.

8. Sprinkler valve and water-flow detector display panels.

9. Emergency and standby power status indicators.

10. A telephane for fire department used with controlted access to the public telephone system.
11. Fire pump status indicators.

12. Schematic building plans indicating the typical floor plan and detailing the building core,
means of egress, fire protection systems, fire-fighter air-replenishment systems, fire-fighting
equipment and fire departrment access, and the location of fire walls, fire barriers, fire partitions,
smoke barriers and smoke partitions.

13. An approved Building Information Card that includes, but is not limited to, 2l of the
following information:

13.1. General building information that includes: the number of floors In the building
above and below grade, use, and occupancy ¢lassification (for mixed uses, identify the
different types of occupancies on each floor) and the estimated building population
during the day, night, and weekend;

13.2. Building emergency contact information that includes: a list of the building’s
emergency contacts including, but not limited to, building manager, building engineer
and their respective work phone number, cell phone number and e-mail address;

13.3. Building construction information that includes: type of building construction
including but not limited to floors, walls, columns and roof assembly;

13.4. Exit access stairway and exit stairway information that includes: number of exit
gccess stairways and exit stairways in building; each exit access stairway and exit

13

2018 Northern Nevada Fire Code Amendments




stairway designation and floors served; location where each exit access stairway and
exit stairway discharges, interior exit stairways that are pressurized; exit stairways that
are provided with emergency lighting; each exit stairway that allows reentry; exit
stairways providing roof access; elevator information that includes: number of elevator

~ banks, elevator bank designation, elevator car numbers and respective floors that they
serve; location of elevator machine rooms, control rooms, and control spaces; location
of sky lobby; and location of freight elevator banks;

13.5. Building Services and system information that includes: location of mechanical
rooms, location of building management system, location and capacity of all fuel oil
tanks, location of emergency generator and locations of natural gas service.

13.6. Fire protection system information that includes: location of standpipes, tocation
of fire pump room, location of fire department connections, floors protected by
automatic sprinkters and location of different types of gutomatic sprinkier systems
instatled including but not limited to dry, wet, and pre-action;

13.7. Hazardous material information that includes: location and quantity of hazardous
material;

14, Work table.

15. Generator supervision devices, manual start and transfer features.

16. Public address system, where specifically required by other sections of this code.
17. Elevator fire recall switch in accordance with ASME A17.1/CSA B44,

18. Elevator emergency or standby power selector switch(es), where emergency or standby
power is provided.

19. HVAC. The central control station shall be provided with heating, cooling, and ventilation
(HVAC) systems that are independent of any other building system or area. HVAC for the central

contro) station shall be connected to the emergency power system.

20. Lighting. Lighting shall provide adeguate illumination and shall be on emergency service with
additignal battery backup emergency lighting.

21. Inside Telephone Line. A telephone connected to the premise’s telephone exchange shall be

provided. A current premise’s telephone directory shall be placed next to this telephone.

22. Disconnect. The main switch for disconnecting the utility power and any alternate power

sources shall be in the fire command center. Switches shall be covered to prevent utility power
feeds and any alternate power sources before entering the building. After the switch is

operated, no live electrical panels, conductors, or feeds within the premises shall remain
energized excluding the emergency electrical circuits.

14

2018 Northern Nevada Fire Code Amendments




Section 510.1 Emergency responder radio coverage in new buildings
Section 510.1 is amended to read:

510.1 Emergency responder radio coverage in new burldmgs Newbu-ﬂdmg-s—shd#ha#e—a—ppreved—ra&e

systems—An emergency resgonder radio coverage systerm shall be prowded throuehout buﬂdm_gs when
any of the following apply:

1. High-rise buildings. Buildings with a floor used for human occupancy located more than 55
feet above the lowest leve| of fire department vehicle access.

2. Underground and below grade buildings. Buildings having a floor level below the finished
floor of the lowest |level of exit discharge of any level.

3. Other buildings. The fire code official is authorized to require a technical opinion and report,

in_accordance with Section 104.7.2, for buildings whose design, due to location, size
construction type, or other factors, could impede radio coverage as reguired by Section 510.4.1.

The report shall make a recommendation regarding the need for an emergency responder radio
coverage system.

Section 510.2 Emergency responder radio coverage in existing buildings
Section 510.2 is amended to read:
510 2 Emergency responder radio coverage in exlstlng bmldings Exlstmg buildings shal-be-provided

- other than Group R-3,

which do not have aggroved radio coverage for emergency responders in the building based on existing
coverage levels of the public safety communicaticns systems, shall be eguipped with such coverage
according to gne of the following conditions:

1. Existing buildings that do not have approved radio coverage, as determined by the Fire Chief,
in accordance with Section 510.4.1.

2. Where an existing wired communication system cannot be repaired or is being replaced.

15

2018 Northern Nevada Fire Code Amendments




3. Within a time frame established by the adopting authority.
Exception: Where it is determined by the fire code official that the radio coverage is not needed.

Section 510.3 Permit required
Section 510.3 is amended to read:

510.3 Permits Required. Permits shall be required to install, modify and operate an emergency radio
coverage system and related equipment, as foligws:

1. A canstruction permit for the installation of or modifications to emergency radio coverage
systems and related equipment is requirad as specified in Section 105.7.6. Maintenance
performed in accordance with this code is not considered a modification and does not require a
permit.

2. An operationai permit is for the operation and maintenance of an emergency radio coverage
system and related equipment as specified in Section 105.6.52.

Section 704.3 Wood-hurning appliance enclosures and fiue shafts
Section 704.3 is added to Section 704 JOINTS AND VOIDS, and reads:

704.3 Wood-burning appliance enclosures and flue shafts. in North Lake Tahoe Fire Protection District
and Tahoe Douglas Fire Protection District, the interior of any firewood-burning fireplace enclosure and
flue shaft constructed of combustible framing materials shall be completely lined with taped 5/8” type

"X’ drywall,

Section 901.4.6.2 Marking on access door
Section 901.4.6.2 is amended to read:

901.4.6.2 Marking on access door. Access doors for automatic sprinkler system riser rooms and fire
pump rooms shall be labeled with a maintained approved all-weather sign. The lettering shall be in
contrasting color ta the background. Letters shall have a minimum height of 2 inches (51 mm} with a
minimum stroke of 3/8 inch {10 mm).

Section 901.6 inspection, testing and maintenance
Section 901.6 is amended to read:

901.6 Inspection, testing and maintenance. Fire detection and alarm systems, emergency alarm
systems, gas detection systems, fire-extinguishing systems, mechanical smoke exhaust systems and
smoke and heat vents, and commercial kitchen hood ventitation systems shall be maintained in an

16
2018 Northern Nevada Fire Code Amendments



operative condition at all times and shall be reptaced or repaired where defective, Nonrequired fire
protection systems and equipment shall be inspected, tested and maintained or removed. Air systems
for fire-suppression breathing apparatus shall be maintained at the same frequency as other high-rise
life safety systemns.

Section 901.6.2.3 Fire fighter air replenishment system

Section 901.6.2.3 is added to Section 901.6.2 integrated testing, to read:

Section 901.6.2.3 Fire fighter air replenishment system. Fire suppression breathing apparatus air
system procedures, maintenance and report records shall be approved by the fire code official.

Inspection records shall be kept on-site.

Section 901.11 Problematic unwanted fire alarms

Section 901.11 is added to Section 901 GENERAL, to read:

901.11 Problematic unwanted fire alarms. Problematic unwanted fire alarms are a violation of this code.
When a fire alarm system is required by this code, it shall be the responsibility of the property owner or
owner's authorized agent to_maintain the system and properly educate occupants, tenants, and / or
employees in accepted behavioral practices that will minimize or eliminate false and / or nuisance alarms,
This includes nuisance activations in response to predictable envirenmental stimuli such as but notlimited
to coagking fumes, smoking, and construction activities. Where unwanted alarms became repetitive, the
fire code official is authorized to charge fees or issue administrative citations to the property owner in
accordance with the fee schedule or administrative code as established by the applicable governing
authority,

{Each jurisdiction may want to cite their exact section of administrative code. For example, Reno would be
in accordance with Section 1.05 of the Reno Municipal Cade.)

Section 903.2 Where required

Section 803.2 is agmended to read:

903.2 Where required. Approved automatic sprinkler systems in new buildings and structures shall be
provided in locations described in Sections 903.2.1 through 903.2, and Tables 903.2.1 and 903.2.2.

Exception: Spaces or areas in telecommunications buildings used exclusively for telecommunications
equipment, associated electrical power distribution equipment, batteries and standby engines, provided
those spaces or areas are equipped throughout with an automatic smoke detection system in
accordance with Section 907.2 and are separated from the remainder of the building by not less than 1-
hour fire barriers constructed in accordance with Section 707 of the International Building Code or not

17

2018 Northern Nevada Fire Code Amendments




less than 2-hour harizontal assemblies constructed in accordance with Section 711 of the /nternational
Building Code, or both.

Section 903.2.1.2 Group A-2

Section 903.2.1.2 is amended to read:

903.2.1.2 Group A-2. An automatic sprinkler system shall be provided for Group A-2 occupancies and
throughout all stories from the Group A-2 occupancy to and including the levels of exit discharge serving
that occupancy where one of the following conditions exists:

1. The fire area exceeds 5,000 square feet (464 m2).
2. The fire area has an occupant load of 100 or more.
3. The fire grea is located on a floor other than a level of exit discharge serving such occupancies.

Qceupancies containing a casino, regardless of occupancy ¢lassification, must be designed and built with
a sprinkler system classified as an Ordinary Hazard Group 2.

18

2018 Northern Nevada Fire Code Amendments



Table 903.2.1 Required Automatic Sprinklers by Fire Area, Response Time and Height for A, B,
E,F, H, I, M, S and U Occupancies

Add Table 903.2.1 to Section 903.2, to read:
TABLE 903.2.1%
Required Automatic Sprinklers by Fire Area, Response Time and Height
ForA,B,E, F, H, |, M, S and U Occupancies

Sprinklers are required when any one of the listed conditions are met, or when otherwise required by

this Code
Fire Authority Fire Area b« Height ¢ Response Time
In square feet (sf) In stories In minutes (min)
Carson City Fire >5,000° >2 NA
Department
Central Lyon County > 5000 >2 -
Fire Protection District
East Fork Fire >5,000 >2 NA
Protection District
Elko City Fire > 5,000 >2 -
Department
North Lake Tahoe Fire >5,0008 2 with basement or NA
Protection District
>2
North Lyon Fire ’ >5,000 >2 NA
Protection District
Reno Fire Department >5,000 >2 NA
Smith Valley Fire > 5,000 >2 NA
Protection District

19

2018 Northern Nevada Fire Code Amendments




Sparks Fire »5,000 »2 >6

Department
Storey County >5,600 2 with basement or NA
Community
Development District »2
Tahoe Douglas Fire All NA NA

Protection District

Truckee Meadows Fire >5,000 >2 NA
Protection District

a. This table is in addition to any other automatic sprinkler requirements in this code.

b. Fire areas may be separated according to [BC 707.3.10.

¢. Any addition or remodel! that increases the fire area will be included in the calculation for the total
square footage.

d. Airport towers and open parking garages complying with IBC 406.5 are exempt from this table.

&. A one-time increase in the fire area is permitted provided said increase is < 50% of the structure's
existing permitted fire area square footage.

g. A one-time increase of 360 square feet of fire area is permitted.

20

2018 Northern Nevada Fire Code Amendments




Table 903.2.2 Required Automatic Sprinklers by Fire Area, Response Time, and Height for
Structures Designed and Constructed with the International Residential Code

Add Table 803.2.2 te Section 903.2, to read as follows:
TABLE 903.2.2*
Required Autamatic Sprinkiers by Fire Area, Response Time and Height
Fot Structures Designed and Constructed with the Internationat Residential Code
Sprinklers are required when any one of the listed conditions are met,

or when otherwise required by this Code

Fire Authority Fire Area® Height Response Time
In square feet (sf) in stories In minutes (min}
Carson City Fire >5,000°¢ - -
Department
Central Lyon County 2> 5000 >2 -

Fire Protection District

East Fork Fire - - -
Protection District

; Elko City Fire > 5000 >2 -
} Department
North Lake Tahoe Fire >5,000° 2 with basement or -
Protection District
>3
{ North Lyon Fire 25,000 - -
Protection District
Reno Fire Department >5,000 - >5

21

2018 Northern Nevada Fire Code Amendments




Smith Valley Fire »5,000 »2 -
Protection District

Sparks Fire >5000 - >6
Department

Storey County - - .
Community
Development District

Tahoe Douglas Fire >3,6008 2 with basement or -
Protection District

Truckee Meadows Fire | New: >5,000 sf - -
Protection District

Existing: >7,000 sf'
a. This table is in addition to any other automatic sprinkler requirements in this code.

b. Any addition or remaode! that increases the fire area will be included in the calculation for the total
square footage. The use of fire walls and fire barriers shall not be allowed to be used to reduce the size
of fire areas. _

c. A one-time increase in the fire area is permitted provided said increase is < 50% of the structure's
existing permitted fire area square footage.

e. A one-time increase of 360 square feet of fire area is permitted.

f. See section 907.2.10.2.1 for alarm requirements for existing structures.

£. Accessory structures are exempt from this table.

Section 903.2.3 Group E

Section 803.2.3 is amended to read:

903.2.3 Group E. An automatic sprinkler system shall be provided for Group E occupancies as follows:
1. Throughout all Group E fire areas greater than 12,000 square feet {1115 m?) in area.

2. The Group E fire area is located on a floor other than a level of exit discharge serving such
occupancies.

Exception: In buildings where every classroom has not fewer than one exterior exit door at ground level,
an automatic sprinkler system is not required in any area below the lowest level of exit discharge serving
that area.

3.The Group E fire area has an occupant load of 300 or more.

22

2018 Northern Nevada Fire Code Amendments



4, Daycare facilities where there is occupancy from 12:00 am- 6:00 am and care for 7 or more
children.

In high schools where automatic fire sprinkler systems are provided, the automatic fire sprinkler systems
for automotive and woodworking shops must be designed to Ordinary Hazard, Group 1 automatic fire
sprinkler systems criteria, or as required by the Authority Having Jurisdiction.

Section 903.3.1.1 NFPA 13 sprinkler systems
Section 903.3.1.1 is amended to read:

903.3.1.1 NFPA 13 sprinkler systems, Where the provisions of this code require that a building or
portion thereof be equipped throughout with an automatic sprinkler system in accordance with this
section, sprinklers shall be installed throughout in accordance with NFPA 13 except as provided in
Section 903.3.1.1.1 and 903.1.1.2.

tn North Lake Tahoe Fire Protection District all Group R-3 occupancies larger than ten thousand (10,000}

square feet (3048 m?} in area or exceeding four (4) stories in height are reguired to have automatic
sprinklers installed throughout in accardance with NFPA 13,

Section 903.3.1.3 NFPA 13D sprinkler systems
Section 903.3.1.3 is amended to read:

903.3.1.3 NFPA 13D sprinkler systems. Automatic sprinkler systems installed in one and two-family
dwelings: Group R-3; Group R-4, Condition 1; and townhouses shall be permitted to be instalied
throughout in accordance with NFPA 13D. NFPA 13D systems are not permitted in North Lake Tahoe Fire
Protection District.

Section 903.4 Sprinkler system supervision and alarms
Section 803.4 is amended to read:

903.4 Sprinkler system supervision and alarms. Valves controlling the water supply for automatic
sprinkler systems, pumps, tanks, water levels and temperatures, critical air pressures and water-flow
switches on all sprinkler systems shall be electrically supervised by a fisted fire alarm control unit.

Exceptions:
1. Automatic sprinkler systems protecting one- and two-family dwellings.
2. Limited area systems in accordance with Section 903.3.8.

3. Automatic sprinkler systems installed In accordance with NFPA 13R where a commen supply main
is used to supply both domestic water and the gutomatic sprinkler system, and a separate shutoff
valve for the automatic sprinkler system is not provided.

23

2018 Northern Nevada Fire Code Amendments




4. Jockey pump control valves that are sealed or locked in open paositian.

5. Control valves to commercial kitchen hoods, paint spray booths or dip tanks that are sealed or
iocked in the open position. This exception will not apply to any of the above- mentioned
control valves if they are located in a building equipped with any fire alarm or protection system

that is required to be monitored by a centrai station fire alarm company.
6. Valves controlling the fuel supply to fire pump engines that are sealed or locked in the open

position.
7. Trim valves to pressure switches in dry, preaction and deluge sprinkler systems that are sealed
or locked in the open paosition.

Section 903.4.2 Alarms
Section 903.4.2 is amended to read:

903.4.2 Alarms. An approved audible alarm notification appliance deviceloeated-enthe-exteriorofthe
building-in-an-apprevediscationshall be connected to each automatic sprinkler system. Such sprinkler
water-flow alarm devices shali be activated by water flow equivalent to the flow of a single sprinkler of
the smaliest orifice size instalied in the system. Approved alarm notification appliances shall be provided
on the exterior of the building and within each tenant space on the interior of the building and in an
approved location. When residential (single family dwelling) automatic sprinkler systems are provided,
water flow activation shall provide occupant notification at all occupied levels and sleeping units, with

minimum audible notification level of 75 dba sound pressure at piliow height. Where a fire alarm system
is installed, actuation of the automatic sprinkfer systern shalt actuate the building fire alarm system.

Section 903.4.3 Floor cantrol valves
Amend Section 903.4.3 to read:

903.4.3 Floor control valves. Approved supervised indicating control valves shall be provided at the
point of connection to the riser on each floor in-high-rise-buildings in multi-story facilities.

Section 906.2 General requirements
Section 906.2 is amended to read:

906.2 General requirements. Portable fire extinguishers shall be selected, installed, and maintained in
accordance with this section and NFPA 10.

Exceptions:

1. Travel distance to reach an extinguisher shall not apply to the spectator seating portions of
Group A-5 occupancies.

2. Thirty-day inspections shall not be required, and maintenance shall be allowed to be ence-every
theeeyears annually for dry-chemical or halogenated agent portable fire extinguishers that are

24

2018 Narthern Nevada Fire Code Amendments




supervised by a listed and approved electronic monitoring device, provided that ail of the
following conditions are met:
2.1 Electronic monitoring shall confirm that extinguishers are properly positioned,
properly charged and unabstructed.
2.2 Loss of power or circuit continuity to the electronic monitoring device shall initiate a
trouble signal.
2.3 The extinguishers shall be installed inside of a building or cabinet in a noncorrosive
environment.
2.4 Electronic monitoring devices and supervisory circuits shall be tested everythree
years annually when extinguisher maintenance is performed.
2.5 A written log of required hydrostatic test dates for extinguishers shall be maintained
by the owner to verify that hydrostatic tests are conducted at the frequency
required by NFPA 10.
3. InGroup I-3, portable fire extinguishers shall be permitted to be located at staff locations.

Carbon dioxide, wet chemical, halogenated agent, AFFF and FFFP portable fire extinguishers shall be

shall be internally examined annually,

Section 907.2.9.4 Automatic smoke detection systems in Group R-4
Section 907.2.9.4 is added to Section 907.2.9 Group R-2, to read:

907.2.9.4 Automatic smoke detection system in Group R-4, An automatic smoke detection system that
activates the occupant natification system in accordance with Section 907.5 shall be installed in

corridors, waiting areas open to corridors and habitable spaces other than sleeping units and kitchens.
Exceptions:

1. Smoke detection in habitable spaces is not required where the facility is equipped throughout
with an gutomatic sprinkler system installed in accordance with Section 903.3.1.1.
2. An automatic smoke detection system is not required in buildings that do not have interior

corridors serving sleeping units and where each sleeping unit has a means of egress door
opening directly to an exit or to an exterior exit gccess that leads directly to an exit.

Section 907.2.10.2.1 Automatic smoke detection systems in Group R-3

Section 907.2.10.2.1 is added to Section 907.2.10.2 Groups R-2, R-3, R-4 and I-1, to read:

907.2.9.5 Automatic smoke detection system in Group R-3. In Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District

automatic smoke detection system installed throughout and connected to a central station fire alarm
company is required for additions that make the structure more than 5,000 square feet but less than

7,000 square feet.

25
2018 Northern Nevada Fire Code Amendments




Section 907.2.10.2.2 Alternative to single- and muitiple-station smoke alarms
Section 907.2.10.2.2 is added to 907.2.10.2 Groups R-2, R-3, R-4 and I-1, to read:

907.2.10.2.2 Alternative to singie- and multiple-station smoke alarms. Fire alarm in place of single and
multiple-station smoke alarms may be replaced by an NFPA 72 Household compliant fire alarm system.
Plans shall be submitted to the local fire authority and permit obtained prior to installation. All fire alarm

installation contractors shall be reguired to be licensed by both the Nevada State Contractors Board and
Nevada State Fire Marshal {F license),

Section 907.5.2.1.1 Average sound pressure
Section 907.5.2.1.1 is amended to read:

907.5.2.1.1 Average sound pressure. The audible alarm natification appliances shall provide a sound
pressure level of 15 decibels {dBA) above the average ambient sound level or 5 dBA above the maximum
sound level having a duration of at least 60 secands, whichever is greater, in every occupiable space
within the building. The minimum sound pressure levels shall be 90 dBA in mechanical equipment rooms

and 80 dBA in ali other occupancies.

Section 910.2.2 High-piled combustible storage
Section 910.2.2 is amended to read:

910.2.2 High-piled combustible storage. Smoke and heat removal required by Table 3206.2 for buildings
and portions thereof containing high-piles combustible storage shail be installed in accordance with
Section 910.3 in unsprinklered buildings. In buildings and portions thereof containing high-piled
combustible storage equipped throughout with an automatic sprinkler system in accordance with
Section 903.3.1.1, a smoke and heat remaoval system shall be installed in accardance with 910.3 or
910.4. Smoke and heat vents shall be activated by manual controls only per Section 910.4.4. In occupied
portions of a building equipped throughout with an automatic sprinkler system in accordance with
Section 903.3.1.1 where the upper surface of the story is not a roof assembly, a mechanical smoke
removal system in accordance with 910.4 shall be installed.

Section 912.5.1 Service area

Section 912.5.1 is added to Section 912.5 Signs, to read:

912.5.1 Connection sign. An approved all-weather sign indicating the buildings address or areas services .
by a sprinkler or standpipe system shall be permanently mounted and maintained on_all fire department

connections when required by the fire code official.

26

2018 Northern Nevada Fire Code Amendments




Section 913.4 Valve supervision
Section 913.4 is amended to read:

913.4 Valve supervision. Where provided, the fire pump suction, discharge and bypass valves, and
isolation valves on the backflow prevention device or assembly shall be supervised open by one of the
following methods.

1. Central-station, proprietary or remote-station signaling service.
2. Local signaling service that will cause the sounding of an audible signal at a constant attended
location,

Section 914.3.8 Fire fighter air replenishment systems
Section 914.3.8 is added to Section 914.3 High-rise buildings, to read:

914.3.8 Fire fighter air replenishment systems. A fire fighter air replenishment system shall be provided
in alt new high-rise buildings of ten {10) or more staries in height. The fire fighter breathing air system

installation and maintenance shall comply with Appendix L Fefthe Uniform-Plumbing-Code. Inspection

records shall be kept on site and shall be readily available to the fire code official,

Section {BE] 1023.9.1 Signage requirements
Section [BE]} 1023.9.1 is amended to read:

[BE] 1023.9.1 Signage requirements. Stairway identification signs shall comply with all of the following
requirements:

1. The signs shall be a minimum size of 18 inches (457 mm) by 12 inches (305 mm),

2. The letters designating the identification of the interior exit stairway and ramp shall be not less
than 1 ¥ inches {38 mm) in height.

3. The number designating the floor fevel shall be not |ess than 5 inches (127 mm) in height and
located in the center of the sign.

4, Qther lettering and numbers shall be not less than 1 inch (25 mm) in height.

5. Characters and their background shall have a non-glare finish. Characters shall contrast with
their background, with either light characters on a dark background or dark characters on a light
background.

6. Where signs required by Section 1023.9 are installed in the interior exit stairways and ramps of
buildings subject to Section 1025, the signs shall be made of the same materials as required by
Section 1025.4.

27

2018 Northern Nevada Fire Code Amendments




7. The background color of the sign shall be green if roof access is available from the signed
stairway. The background coior of the signs shall be red if roof access is not available from the

signed stairway.

CHAPTER 11 CONSTRUCTION REQUIREMENTS FOR EXISTING BUILDINGS
Chapter 11 is deleted.
CHMARTER-11-CONSTRUCHON-REQUIREMENTSFOR-EXISHMNGBULDINGS
Section 3903.2 Prohibited occupatcies

Section 3903.2 is amended to read:

3903.2 Prohibited occupancies. Extraction processes utilizing flammable gases or flammable erpegenic
fluids liguids shall not be located in a building containing a Group A, E, | or R occupancy.

Section 3903.3 Location

Section 3903.3 is amended to read:

3903.3 Location. The extraction equipment and extraction processes utilizing hydrocarbon solvents shall
be located in a room or area dedicated to extraction. For other than CO, and nonhazardous extraction

process, the marijuana extraction equipment and process shatl be located in a reom of noncombustible
construction dedicated to the extraction process and the room shall not be used for any other purpose.

Section 3903.5 Use of flammable and combustible liquids

‘ © Section 3803.5 is amended to read:

3 ' 3k 3 4 efla apors. Extraction and post oil
processing operations, including dispensing of flammable liguids between containers, shall be
performed in one of the following locations:

1. A chemical fume hood in accordance with Chapter of NFPA 45,

| 2. A room with an approved exhayst system installed in accordance with the international or
Uniform Mechanical Code.

Electrical equipment used within the hazardous exhaust fume hood shall be rated for use in flammable
atmospheres. Heating of flammable or combustible liquids over an open flame is prohibited.

28

2018 Northern Nevada Fire Code Amendments




Exception 1: The use of a heating element not rated for flammable atmospheres, where documentation
from the manufacture, or approved testing laboratory indicates the element is rated for heating of
flammable liguids.

Exception 2: Unheated processes at atmospheric pressure using less than 16 oz. (473 ml) of flammable
liquids shall not be reguired to comply with 3903.5(1) or 3903.5(2).

Section 3903.5.1 Electrical components

Section 3903.5.1is added to Section 3903.5 Use of flammable and combustible liquids, to read:

3903.5.1 Electrical components. All electrical components within the chemical fume hood or exhausted

enclosure shall be shall be approved permanent wiring, interlocked such that the exhaust system shall
be in operation for lighting and components to be used.

Section 3903.6 Liquified petroieum gas

Section 3903.6 is amended to read:

3903.6 Liquefied petroleum gas. Liguefied petroleum gases [LPG] shall not be released to the
atmosphere except where released in accordance with Section 7.3 of NFPA 58. LPG liguid piping systems
shall be in compliance with NFPA 58,

Sections 3903.6.1 Exhaust

Section 3803.6.1 is added to Section 3903.6 Liquefied petrofeum gas, to read:

3903.6.1 Exhaust, An approved exhauyst system shall be provided for LPG extractions.

Section 3903.6.1.1 Instaltation

Section 3903.6.1.1 is added to Section 3903.6 Liquefied petroleum gas, to read:

3903.6.1.1 installation. The exhaust systems shall be installed and maintained accordance with the
international or Uniform Mechanical Code as adopted by the Authority Having Jurisdiction.

Section 3903.6.1.2 Processes

Section 3903.6.1.2 is added to Section 3303.6 Liquefied petroleum gas, to read,;

29

2018 Northern Nevada Fire Code Amendments




3903.6.1.2 Processes. All LPG extraction operations, including processes for off- spent plant material

and oil retrieval, shall be conducted within a chemical fume hood, enclosure, or room in compliance
with the International or Uniform Mechanical Code as adopted by the Authority Having lurisdiction.

Section 3903.6.2 Electrical bonding and grounding

Section 3903.6.2 is added to Section 3903.6 Liquefied petroleum gas, to read:

3903.6.2 Electrical bonding and grounding. All conductive equipment and conductive objects within the

exhaust room shali be bonded and grounded with a resistance of less than 1.0 x 106 ghms in accordance
with NFPA 70.

Section 3903.6.2.1 Classified areas

Section 3903.6.2.1 is added to Section 3903.6.2 Electrical bonding and grounding, to read:

3903.6.2.1 Classified areas. The area within a hood or enclosure used of LPG extractions shall be
classified as 2 Class 1, Division 1 hazardous location in accordance with NEPA 70. Areas adjacent to Class
1. Division 1 locations shall be classified in accordance with NFPA 70,

Section 3903.6.2.2 Intertocks

Section 3903.6.2.2 is added to Section 3903.6.2 Electrical bonding and grounding, to read:

3903.6.2.2 Interlock. All electrical components within the extraction room shal| be interlocked with the

hazardous exhaust system such that room lighting and other extraction room electrical equipment will
only operate when the exhaust system_is in operation.

Section 3903.6.2.3 Emergency power

Section 3903.6.2.3 is added to Section 3903.6. Electrical bonding and grounding, to read:

3903.6.2.3 Emergency Power. An automatic emergency power system shall be provided for the
following items, when installed:

1.  Extraction room lighting
2. Extraction rogm ventilation system
3. Solvent pas detection system

Section 3903.6.2.4 Gas detection systems

Section 3903.6.2.4 is added to Section 3903.6.2 Electrical bonding and grounding, to read:

30

2018 Northern Nevada Fire Code Amendments




3903.6.2.4 Gas detection systems. Gas detection systems shall be provided with constant non-
interlocked power.

Section 3903.7 Carbon dioxide extraction

Section 3903.7 is added to Section 3903 PROCESSING AND EXTRACTION, to read:

3903.7 Carbon dioxide extraction. Carbon Dioxide extraction shall comply with sections 3903.7.1,
3903.7.2, and 3903.7.3

Section 3903.7.1 Storage and handling

Section 3903.7.1 is added to Section 3903.7 Carbon dioxide extraction, to read:

3903.7.1 Storage and handling. All CO2 compressed gas cylinders shall be secured in approved method

to prevent falling.

Section 3903.7.2 CO; gas detection

Section 3903.7.2 is added to Section 3903.7 Carbon dioxide extraction, to read:

3903.7.2 CO; Gas Detection. An approved, listed CO2 detection system complying with 5307.4.3 shall be
installed in the CO2 extraction room. Auto-calibrating and self-zeroing devices or detectors shall be
prohibited.

Section 3903.7.3 CO: discharge

Section 3903.7.3 is added to Section 3903.7 Carbon dioxide extraction, to read;

3903.7,3 CO; discharge. The extraction equipment pressure relief devices and blow-off valves shall be
piped to the exterior of the building.

Section 3903.8 Means of egress

Section 3903.8 is added to Section 3903 PROCESSING AND EXTRACTION, to read:

3903.8 Means of Egress. For extraction rooms using hazardous materials, each room_shall be provided

with at least one exit access doer complying with the following:

The door shall swing in the direction of egress travel.
The door shall be provided with a self-closing or automatic closing device.

The door shall be equipped with panic or fire exit hardware.
The exit access travel distance cahnot be increased as allowed in Section 1017.2.2 for

extraction/cultivation facilities,

oW

31

2018 Northern Nevada Fire Code Amendments



Section 3903.9 Signage

Section 3903.9 is added to Section 3903 PROCESSING AND EXTRACTION, to read:

3903.9. Signage. The NFPA 704 hazard rating diamond sign, minimum 10” in size, and no smoking signs
shall be posted gn the exterior of the extraction rgom dgor.

Section 3903.9.1 Safety data sheets

Section 3903.9.1 is added to Section 303.9 Signage, to read:
3903.9,1 Safety data sheets. All applicable safety data sheets ({SDS) shall be posted in the approved

location.
Section 3903.9.2 Warning signage

Section 3903.9.2 is added to Section 3903.9 Signage, to read:

3903.9.2 Warning signage. Applicable hazard warning signage shall be posted throughout the facility as
applicable for emergency equipment.

Section 3904.4 Site inspection
Section 3904.4 is amended to read:

3904.4 Site inspection. Prior to the operation of the extraction equipment, the engineer of record or
approved professional, as gpproved in Section 3904 .2, shall inspect the site of the extraction process
once equipment has been instalied for compliance with the technical report and the huilding analysis.
The engineer of record or gpproved professional shall provide a report of findings to the fire code official
prior to the approval of the extraction process. The field inspection report authored by the engineer of
record shall include the serial number of the equipment used in the process and shall confirm that the
equipment installed is the same model and type of equipment identified in the technical report.

Section 3904.5 Change of extraction medium
Section 3904.5 is added to Section 3904 SYSTEMS AND EQUIPMENT, to read:

3904.5 Change of Extraction Medium. Where the medium of extraction or solvent is changed from the
material indicated in the technical report or as required by the manufacturer, the technical report shall
be revised at the cost of the facility owner and submitted for review and approval by the Fire Code
Official prigr to the use of the equipment with the new medium or solvent.

32

2018 Northern Nevada Fire Code Amendments




Section 5601.1.3 Fireworks

Amend Section 5601.1.3 to read:

5601.1.3 Fireworks. The possession, manufacture, storage, sale, handling and use of fireworks are
prohibited.

Exceptions:
1. Storage and handling of firewaorks as allowed in Section 5604.

2. Manufacture, assembly and testing of fireworks as allowed in Section 5605.

3. The use of fireworks for fireworks displays as allowed in Section 5608.

-t e o = 7ot = - - Bt = 7]
[

100-185as-applicable-for

caRstRarfireweorks.
Section 5601.1.6 Exploding targets

Section 5601.1.6 is added to Section 5601.1 Scope, to read:

5601.1.6 Exploding targets. The possession, manufacture, sale, and use of exploding targets, including

binary exploding targets, are prohibited.

Section 6101.1 Scope

Section 6101.1 is amended to read:

6101.1 Scope. Storage, handling and transpartation of liquefied petroleumn gas (LP-gas) and the

instaltation of LP-gas equipment pertinent to systems for such uses shall comply with this chapter and
NFPA 58. Praperties of LP-gases shall be determined in accordance with Appendix B of NFPA 58. In the
event of a conflict between any provision in this chapter and the regulations of the Board for the
Regulation of Liguefied Petroleum Gas, the regulations of the Board take precedence.

APPENDIX B FIRE-FLOW REQUIREMENTS FOR BUILDINGS

Appendix B is adopted in whole in accordance with 2018 Edition of the International Fire Code Section
101.2.

33

2018 Northern Nevada Fire Code Amendments




Section B102 Definitions
The following definition is added in Section B102 Definitions to read:

Special Fire Protection Problem Facilities. Special Fire Protection Problem Facilities are thase facilities
that consist of uses similar to fires that may result in large size fires or fires with high heat release such
as bulk flammable liguid storage, bulk flammable gas storage, large varnish and paint factories, some
plastics manufacturing and storage, aircraft hangars, distilleries, refineries, lumbervards, grain elevators,
chemical ptants, coal mines, tunnels, subterranean structures, storage facilities, and warehouses using
high rack/piled storage for flammables or pressurized aergsols,

Section B103.3 Areas without water supply systems

Section B103.3 is amended to read;

B103.3 Areas without water supply systems. For information regarding water supplies for fire-fighting
purposes in rural and suburban areas in which adequate and reliable water supply systems do not exist,
the fire code official is authorized to utilize the International Witdland-Urban Interface Code or NFPA
1142 where the site is not considered as a “special fire protection problem” as defined as defined in
section 8102,

Table B105.2 Required Fire Flow for Buildings Other Than One- and Two-Family Dwellings,
Group R-3 and R-4 Buildings and Townhouses

Table B105.2 of Appendix B Fire-Flow Requirements for Buildings is amended to read as follows:
TABLE B105.2
REQUIRED FIRE FLOW FOR BUILDINGS OTHER THAN ONE- AND TWO-FAMILY

DWELLINGS, GROUP R-3 AND R-4 BUILDINGS AND TOWNHOUSES

AUTOMATIC SPRINKLER MINIMUM FIRE FLOW FLOW DURATION
SYSTEM

{galtons per minute} (hours)
{DESIGN STANDARD)

No auto sprinkler system Value in Table B105.1(2) Duration in Table B105.1(2)
Section 903.3.1.1 of the 25 50 % of the value in Tabie Duration in Table B105.1(2) at
International Fire Code B105.1(2)%® the reduced flow rate
34

2018 Northern Nevada Fire Code Amendments




—

Section 903.3.1.2 of the 25 50 % of the value in Table Duration in Table B105.1(2) at
International Fire Code B105.1{2)° the reduced flow rate

For Si: 1 gallon per minute = 3.785 L/m.

b. The reduced flow rate shall be not less than 1,500 gallons per minute,

APPENDIX C FIRE HYDRANT LOCATIONS AND DISTRIBUTION

Appendix C is adopted in whole in accordance with 2018 Edition of the International Fire Code Section
101.2.1,

Section C102.2 Distance ta a Fire Department Connection (FDC)

Section C102.2 is added to Section C102 Number of Fire Hydrants for a building to read:

€102.2 Distance to a Fire Department Connection {FDC}. The maximum distance from a fire hydrant to
a fire department connection (FDC) supplying fire sprinklers and/or standpipes shall not exceed 100

feet, or as determined by the fire code official.

APPENDIX D FIRE APPARATUS ROADS

Appendix D is adopted in whole in accordance with 2018 Edition of the international Fire Code Section
101.2.1.

APPENDIX L REQUIREMENTS FOR FIRE FIGHTER AIR REPLENISHMENT SYSTEMS

Appendix L is adopted in whole in accordance with 2018 Edition of the International Fire Code Section
101.2.1.

35

2018 Northern Nevada Fire Code Amendments




Storey County Board of Fire Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: October 16, 2018 Estimate of time required: 10 min.

Agenda: Consent [ ] Regular agenda [X] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: Discussion and possible action on Resolution 18-515 adopting regulations consistent with
Ordinance 18-293 amending chapter 15.04 Buildings and Construction, to adopt the 2018
International Fire Code, the 2018 International Wildland Urban Interface Code, the 2017 National
Fire Protection Association Standards (NFPA) and the 2018 Northern Nevada Amendments to the
International Fire Code.

2. Recommended motion: I move to approve Resolution No. 18-515 adopting the 2018
International Fire Code, the 2018 International Wildland Urban Interface Code, the 2017 National
Fire Protection Association Standards (NFPA) and the 2018 Northern Nevada Amendments to the
International Fire Code.

3. Prepared by: Robert Morris, outside counsel, Jeff Nevin, Fire Chief
Department: District Attorney’s Office Telephone: 847-0964

4. Staff summary:

The 2018 editions of the International Codes are ready for adoption by the County. In addition to
the adoption of the codes by the Board of County Commissioners to add the 2018 International
Codes to the Storey County Code, staff is requesting that the Board of Fire Commissioners review
and approve the new regulations as part of their duties. Although this was initially introduced as an
ordinance no.18-294, the Fire Board doesn’t have a process for codifying ordinances and so it is
easier to adopt the new regulations as a resolution. The sections adopted here by the Board of Fire
Commissioners are identical to the corresponding sections adopted by the Board of County
Commissioners. (Continued on next page)

5. Supporting materials: Resolution 18-515 and the 2018 Northern Nevada Amendments to the
International Fire Code. (Attached to previous item.)

6. Fiscal impact: No change on the fiscal impact on local government.
7. Legal review required: Yes ‘ﬁjjr District Attorney

8. Reviewed by:
Department Head Department Name:

County Manager Other agency review: Fire Protection Distri@

9. Board action:
[1] Approved
[ Denied

Approved with Modifications
Continued

—r—
[y

Agenda [tem No.

A



B s i B O CtE R G Rl

pirh 3

\i‘:ii\

P b Dl e AR RO R e

P viid itk e bR P e - { w&“ s AL

Where conﬂlcts occur between the codes ¢ cinendimenis referenced above and 14is
chapter. ov if this chapier is more restrictive, this chuprer will apply. vsetoilewing amendments:

F AR e s (Ord. No. 14-255, § 11, 5-19-2014; Ord. 172 § 1{part), 2000)

15.04.040 Copies on file.

Copies of the latest adopted codes in section 15.04.010 and "Standard Details and
Specifications for Public Works Construction”" must be kept in the offices of the public works or
building department. The latest editions of the International Fire Code, International Building
Code, the International Wlldland Urban Interface Code, and NFPA Standards must be kept at the

compnity developmen! Var - offices. (Ord. No. 14-255, § Ii, 5-19-2014; Ord. 172 §
1(part), 20(}0)

15.04.080 Fire district requirements.
A. The followmg amendments 77 wdditiing o 1ae 2018 Northern Nevada Amendments to the
20N Dreriational Fire (ode apply to the International Fire Code:

3+, All sections of the International Fire Code and the International Wildland Urban
Interface Code adopted in section 15.04.010 that refer to a board of appeals, including IFC109,
are amended and oo e bese --'siﬂ;--i",'t."r'?;x wouie ofi appeals of orders, decisions, or
determinations made by the fire pcsital shababe odwin st follow the process in SCC
NI LY VRN R YRR

2 lnebaeay phed Lo -t persed S ease

b dorreliof it ity day ot

S T ST TSGITCYPLT R FCORTEC N YRV L INL YR HCLEE R N P

e - il e tireehied

Draft 10-16-18



Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: October 16,2018 Estimate of time required: 15 minutes

Agenda: Consent [ ] Regular agenda [ X | Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: Consideration and possible approval of agreement issuing license to Switch Business
Solutions LLC (Switch) by which the County authorizes Switch to install a data
communications line in the County’s right of way within a portion of the Tahoe Reno
Industrial Center.

2. Recommended motion: I {Commissioner) move to approve the Rights of
Way License Agreement authorizing Switch Business Solutions LLC to install a data
communications line within a portion of the County’s right-of way within the Tahoe Reno
Industrial Center and authorize the Chairman to sign.

3. Prepared by: Keith Loomis

4. Department: District Attorney’s Office Telephone: 847-0964
5. Staff summary: Switch desires to install a data communications line within the County’s

right-of way on East Sydney Drive and Electric Avenue. The proposed license agreement
authorizes Switch to install the data communications line in the locations requested. The
license is good for an initial period of 20 years subject to automatic renewals for additional
five year periods. Switch will pay as annual rent the greater of the sum of $500.00 or $1.00
per lineal foot of right of way used.

6. Supporting materials: Proposed agreement with exhibits

7. Fiscal impact:
Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller

8. Legal review required:

X__ District Attorney

8. Reviewed by:




Department Head
County Manager

Board action:

L]
[]

Approved
Denied

Department Name:
Other agency review:

[] Approved with Modifications
[1 Continued

Agenda Item No.




STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA
RIGHTS-OF-WAY LICENSE AGREEMENT
FOR DATA COMMUNICATIONS LINE GRANTED TO
SWITCH BUSINESS SOLUTIONS, LL.C

THIS RIGHTS-OF-WAY LICENSE AGREEMENT (the “Agreement”) is granted this
day of October, 2018, by Storey County, Nevada, a political subdivision of the State of
Nevada (the “County™), acting by and through the Board of County Commissioners, its
governing body (the “Board™), and Switch Business Solutions, LLC (the “Licensee™), a
domestic limited liability company authorized to do business in the State of Nevada.

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, the Licensee, organized and existing under and by virtue of the laws
of the State of Nevada, has applied to the County for permission to construct, install,
operate, add to, modify, maintain, repair, relocate and remove an underground or
overhead data communications line and related facilities to provide lawful services within
the County’s rights-of-way; and with all proper licensing if providing subscription
services as that term is defined in the attached Exhibit 1 which exhibit is made a part of
this agreement by this reference, and

WHEREAS, the County is prepared to grant a non-cxclusive privilege to
construct, install, operate, add to, medify, maintain, repair, relocate and remove an
underground or overhead data communications line and related facilities in the County’s
rights-of-way including as depicted within the attached Exhibit 2.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises and of the performance by
Licensee of the requirements hereinafter set forth, and subject to the following terms and
conditions, the County hereby grants to the Licensee this License Agreement.

TERMS AND CONDITIONS:

1 Definitions

Definitions of terms in this Agreement shall be the same as those definitions listed in the
attached Exhibit 1.

2 Agreement Duration, Conditions and Extension

2.1 This Agreement shall be non-exclusive and revocable pursuant to Section 6 of this
Agreement, and shall be in force and effect from the date first written above. The
term of this Agreement, unless modified by the parties in accordance with the
terms of this Agreement, will be for twenty (20) years beginning on the
commencement date. The Agreement will automatically be renewed on the first
day following the twenty (20) year period for an additional (5) years, uniess
terminated by the parties in accordance with Section 15 of this Agreement. If not
terminated, the Agreement will automatically be renewed on the first day

RIGHT OF WAY AGREEMENT
STOREY COUNTY
SWITCH BUSINESS SOLUTIONS
PAGETOF 8




following each succeeding five {5) year period, unless terminated by either party in
accordance with Section 14 of this agreement.

2.2 All currently applicable provisions of County Code, if any, and all provisions of
this Agreement and Exhibit 1 shall be binding upon the Licensee, its successors,
or assignees. In the event of any conflict between any provisions in Storey County
Code, as amended from time to time, any provisions of this Agreement and/or any
provisions of Exhibit 1, the Agreement shall be grandfathered and control.

2.3 Licensee is hereby granted a non-exclusive, revocable license, during the term of
this Agreement, to construct, install, operate, add to, modify, maintain, repair,
relocate and remove an underground or overhead electrical or data communications
lines and related facilities in those right-of-ways owned by Storey County
including as depicted in the attached Exhibit 2 and pursuant to the requirements
of this Agreement. All installation of Licensees facilities may be above-ground
or underground. Licensee may apply to expand the license to include
additional rights-of-way by submitting in writing to the County Manager or
the County’s Manager’s designee, a request to amend the Agreement. The
County Manager may approve a request for expansion of license based on
rights-of-way availability, street cut limitations, and public improvements
planned in the rights-of-ways requested.

2.4 Licensee acknowledges that this Agreement is for installation of underground
or aboveground facilities in rights-of-way identified in Exhibit 2, and that
installation in, on, along, above or below other County property may be
permitted only through separate agreement and payment of rental fees.
Licensee further acknowledges that this License does not authorize Licensee,
or permit the use by other persons to provide any other services without first
amending this Agreement or applying for a franchise agreement and
complying with the provisions of NRS 709.050 through 709.170.

2.51In the event that the Licensee pursues and receives a franchise granted by the
Board to construct, maintain and operate its facilities in the rights-of-way of the
County, the provisions of this Agreement shall be superseded by the terms and
conditions of the franchise so granted.

2.6 Licensee is responsible for the maintenance and upkeep of any of Licensee’s
facilities.

3 Licensee’s Work in County Rights-of-Way

The Licensee shall, in the installation, construction, operation, maintenance,
reconstruction, removal, relocation or abandonment of its facilities in the County’s
rights-of-way, comply with all applicable provisions of Nevada Revised Statutes,
and County Code as it applies to such activities, as currently set forth and
hereafter amended.

RIGHT OF WAY AGREEMENT
STOREY COUNTY
SWITCH BUSINESS SOLUTIONS
PAGE2OF 8B




4 Rights-Of-Way License Payments and Fees

The Licensee shall pay to the County an annual rental fee of the greater of (i) $500
total or (ii) the sum of $1.00 for each linear foot of rights-of-way in, on, along, above
or below which Licensee has installed its facilities under this Agreement. Payment
may be paid on or before June 1* of each applicable year.

5 Rights-Of-Way License Reporting

Licensee shall submit by March 31* of each year a written report to the County Manager,
or the County’s designated recipient which shall be deemed strictly confidential, and
shall be made available only to County officers and employees in the performance of
their duties. The written report shall identify the number of linear feet of County rights-
of-way in, on, along, above or below which the Licensee has installed its facilities
during the previous 12-month period. The information shall include copies of
encroachment permits, as-built maps indicating stationing and actual lengths of
facilities installed, and any other relevant information necessary to verify the number
of linear feet claimed.

Upon verification, the County’s Comptroller’s Office shall issue an invoice to the
Licensee for annual rental of County rights-of-way in which Licensee has installed its
facilities, at the rate per linear foot specified in Section 4. The rental fee shall be
delivered to the County Comptroller and made payable to the County Treasurer within
thirty (30) days of date of invoice.

6 Revocation and Penalties

If the Board finds that the Licensee has failed to comply with the provisions of this
Agreement, Exhibit 1 or applicable provisions of the County Code, after providing
ninety (90) days’ written notice and an opportunity for the Licensee to be heard and
a reasonable opportunity to cure, the Board may impose fines or penalties upon the
Licensee in an amount deemed appropriate by the Board, but not to exceed the amount
of the security deposit established in Section 8 of this Agreement. Any such fines or
penalties shall be due within sixty (60) days of wrilten notification by County, made
payable to the County Treasurer, and delivered to the County's Comptroller at the
County's address indicated in Section 13 of this Agreement. A late charge of five percent
(5%) of the fine or penalty imposed shall be assessed if the fine or penalty is not
paid within sixty (60) days of the written notification. If a fine or penalty which has
been imposed by the Board is not paid within thirty (30) days from the date of written
notification, Licensee hereby grants the County authorization to deduct the amount of
the fine or penalty plus late charges, if any, from the security deposit provided for
such purposes, pursuant to Section 8 of this Agreement. If at any time the County has
drawn upon such security deposit, the Licensee shall within thirty (30) days of
notification from the Comptroller replenish such security deposit to the original
minimum amount established in Section 8§ of this Agreement.

In addition to the grounds for revocation set forth in Storey County Code, this
Agreement may be revoked if, after providing notice and an opportunity for the
Licensee to be heard, and a reasonable opportunity to cure, the Board finds that the

RIGHT OF WAY AGREEMENT
STOREY COUNTY
SWITCH BUSINESS SOLUTIONS
PAGE3OF 8




Licensee failed to make payment of fines or penalties due under this Agreement or to
comply with the provisions of this Agreement.

7 Transfers and Assignments

Licensee may only transfer the License granted by this Agreement or assign control of
this Agreement in accordance with County approval, or as a part of a merger, acquisition
or financing.

8 Security for Performance

The Licensee shall provide to the County’s Comptroller security for performance in
the amount of twenty-five thousand dollars ($25,000) within three (3) days following
execution of this Agreement. Licensee hereby grants the County authorization to
deduct assessed fines or penalties and late charges, if any, from such security deposit.

9 Severability

If any provision, section, paragraph, sentence, clause, or phrase of this Agreement or
Exhibit 1 is for any reason held to be invalid or unconstitutional, such invalidity or
unconstitutionality shall not affect the validity of the remaining portions of this
Agreement. It is the intent of the Licensee in requesting this Agreement and the Board
in approving this Agreement that no portion or provision thereof shall become
inoperative or fails by reason of any invalidify or unconstitutionality of any other portion
or provision, and to this end all provisions of this Agreement are declared to be
severable.

10 Indemnification

10.1 To the maximum extent permitted by Nevada law, the Licensee shall
indemnify, save harmless, and defend the county, its officers and
employees, individually and collectively, from all damages, fines, liens,
suits, claims, demands, actions, reasonable costs of investigation and
litigation, reasonable attorneys' fees and expenses, reasonable consultants'
fees and expenses, and reasonable expert witnesses' fees and expenses,
judgments or liability of any kind arising out of or in any way connected
with the installation, construction, operations, maintenance, or condition of
the system. The rights-of-way licensee is not required to indemnify or hold
harmless the county, its officers and employees as provided herein, to the
extent caused by, resulting from or arising out of the active negligence or
intentional actions of one or more officers or employees of the County.

10.2  The Licensee shall assume all risks in the operation of the system and shall
be solely responsible and answerable for any and all injuries to persons or
property arising out of the existence or performance of the franchise or
rights-of-way license agreement. The amounts and types of required
insurance coverage, as set forth in Section 1.01.100 (Insurance) of Exhibit 1,
shall in no way be construed as limiting the scope of indemnity set forth in
this section.

RIGHT OF WAY AGREEMENT
STOREY COUNTY
SWITCH BUSINESS SOLUTIONS
PAGE40OF 8




10.3

10.4

The Licensee shall have no recourse whatsoever against the county for any
loss, cost, expense, or damage arising out of the enforcement or lack of
enforcement of any provision or requirement of this rights-of-way license
agreement.

The Licensee shall indemnify, save harmless, and defend the county, its
officers and employees, individually and collectively, from damages which
are incurred by or attributed to the county, including but not limited to cosis,
expenses, fees, and the actual amount of damage, arising from delays of
such reconstruction, removal, or relocation work of the Licensee, beyond the
time period provided for completion of such work, except to the extent that
this provision is addressed otherwise in the rights-of-way license agreement.

11 Insurance

During the term of this Agreement, Licensee shall carry and maintain insurance coverage
as set forth in Exhibit 1.

12 Reconstruction, Removal or Relocation

Reconstruction, removal or relocation of Licensee's facilities to accommodate a public
improvement shall be provided for in the following manner (as also set forth in Exhibat

1):
12.1

122

The County or Tahoe Reno Industrial Center General Improvement District
(TRIGID) shall issue to the Licensee written notice of a need to reconstruct,
remove, or relocate any of Licensee’s facilities which may be in conflict
with an existing or proposed public improvement in order to accommodate
the installation, maintenance, or use of the public improvement. Such
written notice shall include project information equivalent in detail to fifty
percent or more of final design for the public improvement. The Licensee
shall, within thirty days after receiving such written notice from the County
or TRIGID as described in this paragraph, present to the director of public
works a notice of intent to reconstruct, remove, or relocate said facilities,
and shall, within six months after receipt of written notice from the County
or TRIGID or such shorter time period as may be reasonable, reconstruct,
remove, or relocate said facilities. Upon request from the Licensee
identifying a recommended location for its facilities, the director of public
works shall provide that Jocation or an alternate location within the right-of-
way for the Licensee, if space is available.

Within thirty days after receipt of such written notice from the County or
TRIGID as described in paragraph (1) of this subsection, the Licensee may
present a written application and supporting documentation to the director of
public works for an extension of time in which to complete reconstruction,
removal or relocation of its facilities. The director of public works may
grant additional time beyond the time period provided if the additional time
requested is due to service, equipment, or material delivery constraints
beyond the control and without the fault or negligence of the Licensee, or if

RIGHT OF WAY AGREEMENT
STOREY COUNTY
SWITCH BUSINESS SOLUTIONS
PAGES OF 8




12.3

12.4

12.5

12.6

12.7

13 Gifts

the project described in the written notice is of such a size that the work to
be performed by the Licensee cannot be completed within the allowable
time.

If, after the issuance of the initial written notice, the County or TRIGID as
described in paragraph (12.1) of this subsection, makes a substantial change
in the design of the public improvement project, including but not limited to
changes in elevation, changes affecting rights-of-way alignment and widths
of alignment, the County or TRIGID, as described in paragraph (1) of this
subsection, shall notify the Licensee of the details of the substantial change.
If the Licensee determines that such change would cause a delay in
reconstruction, removal or relocation of its facilities beyond the time period
provided, the Licensee may, within fourteen days from receipt of notice of
such change, petition the director of public works for an extension of time in
which to complete reconstruction, removal or relocation of facilities. If the
additional time is requested due to service, equipment, or material delivery
constraints beyond the control of the Licensee, or if the public improvement
design change is of such a scope that the work to be performed by the
Licensee cannot be completed within the time period allowed, the director
of public works may grant an extension of time. If the request for extension
of time is denied, the Licensee may appeal the denial to the county
commission within fourteen days from receipt of notice of denial. The
decision of the county commission shall be final.

The County or TRIGID as described in paragraph 12.1 of this subsection,
shall provide the Licensee with a final design of the public improvement as
soon as it becomes available.

If the Licensee fails to reconstruct, remove, or relocate its facilities as
required by this section within the time period agreed upon, the county may
reconsiruct, remove, or relocate said facilities and charge the cost of
reconstruction, removal, or relocation to the Licensee. The county will not
be held liable for any losses or damages due to reconstruction, removal, or
relocation of such facilities.

Whenever, in case of emergency, it becomes necessary to remove any of the
Licensee's facilities, no charge shall be made by the Licensee against the
county for loss, damage, restoration, and repair.

The Licensee shall maintain and provide to the county, upon request and at
no cost, as-built plans indicating the location of its facilities, which shall be
and remain strictly confidential, and shall be made available only to County
officers and employees in the performance of their duties. The Licensee may
provide, on a voluntary basis, electronic plans showing the general location
of its facilities in rights-of-way.

RIGHT OF WAY AGREEMENT
STOREY COUNTY
SWITCH BUSINESS SOLUTIONS
PAGEG OF 8




No officer or employee of Licensee shall offer to any officer or employee of the
County, either directly or indirectly, any rebate, contribution, gift, money, service without
charge, or other thing of value whatsoever, except where given for the use and benefit of the
County.

14 Notice

All notices shall be sent to the County or the Licensee at the addresses indicated below.
The Licensee shall notify the County Manager of any change of address within ten (10)
working days of such occurrence. Failure to provide notification, and any resulting delay in
receipt of notice, shall not excuse the Licensee from any obligation imposed by this Agreement,
nor shall it serve as cause for reduction or removal of any restriction, fine or penalty imposed
by the County.

LICENSEE:

Switch Business Solutions, LLC

c/o Switch, Ltd.

7135 S. Decatur Blvd.

Las Vegas, Nevada 89118

Attn: Office of the General Counsel
legal@switch.com

STOREY COUNTY:

Storey County Comptroller’s Office
P.O. Box 432

Virginia City, NV 89440

(775) 847-1006

15 Termination

At the end of the initial twenty-year period of this contract and, if renewed, at the end
of any subsequent renewal period, either party may terminate this contract by sending
a notice of termination to the other party at the address given for receipt of notice not
less than 90 days in advance of the renewal date that the party is terminating the
license given by this agreement.

16 Warranty of Authority to Sign

Both parties hereto warrant that the person signing this agreement on behalf of a
party is authorized to bind that party to the terms of this agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF the parties hereto have set their hands the day and year
first above written.

STOREY COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS

By

Chairman

RIGHT OF WAY AGREEMENT
STOREY COUNTY
SWITCH BUSINESS SOLUTIONS
PAGE7OF 8




B

ATTEST:

, Clerk

APPROVED AS TO FORM:
DISTRICT ATTORNEY

By:

Deputy District Attorney
SWITCH BUSINESS SOLUTIONS, LLC
| By: Switch, Ltd., its manager

By:

| Name:
Title:

RIGHT OF WAY AGREEMENT
STOREY COUNTY
SWITCH BUSINESS SOLUTIONS
PAGEBOF 8




TRIWAGE

CONSULTING UTILITY SOLUTIONS. ENGINEERED.

5418 Longley Lane, Suite A - Reno, NV 85511  Phone 775.336.1300 Fax 775.336.1306 www.trisage.com

EXHIBIT “A"
EASEMENT - LEGAL DESCRIPTION

East Sydney Drive
Storey County, Nevada

A portion of the East half of Section 11 and the West half Section 12, Township 19 North,
Range 22 East, M.D.M., Storey County, Nevada; situated within that Parcel of land described in
document 107605, recorded on September 17, 2007, Official Records of Storey County, Nevada.

A strip of land, 20 feet in width, lying 10 feet on each side of the following described centerline:

Commencing at the most Westerly corner of said parcel.

Thence along the Southwesterly boundary of said parcel South 27°22'45” East, 10.00 feet to a
point to the Point of Beginning, thence leaving said boundary along the following 3 courses:

1. North 62°37'15" East, 476.11 feet;

2. North 35°44'56" East, 2699.01 feet;

3. A tangent curve to the left along a 821.30 foot radius circle, an arc length of 124.24 feet with
an included angle 08°40'01" to the Southeasterly property line of the Grantor and the terminus
of this centerline.

The sidelines of said easement are to be extended or truncated as to terminate on the
boundary line of the Grantor.

Said Parcel containing 66,000 square feet more or less.

Basis of Bearings: The Southwesterly boundary of said Parcel further described as being the easterly
right of way of USA Parkway bearing South 27°22'45" East.

All as shown on Exhibit "B attached hereto, and by this reference, made & part thereof.

P?rod by: . )
e 77

Robert C. Fong, LS




- ~
- \\\

- Delta: §'40°01"
Radius; 821.30'
Arc length: 12424

EAST SYDNEY DRIVE

! Doc. 107605, 9—17-07

TR v ,
COI!JSULf:IE’E
SCALE: l1" = 400"

N 3544’56 €
2699.01"

(TIE)
S 2722'45" E

10.00'
' /
\ /

N 6Z37'15" E \ /

476.11' \\ /
Centerline of 20’ \ /

Easement \

N/
\\ /
v/

‘ 5418 LONGLEY LANE
AG E SUITE A

RENO, NV B9511
CONSULTING 775.336.1300

EXHIBIT MAP

Switch
Tesla Fiber

' - T — — — —




TRIACE

CONSULTING UTILITY SOLUTIONS. ENGINEERED.

5418 Longley Lane, Suite A - Reno, NV 89511  Phone 775.336.1300 Fax 775.336.1306 www.trisage.com

EXHIBIT "A"
EASEMENT - LEGAL DESCRIPTION

Electric Avenue
Storey County, Nevada

A portion of the South half of Section 35 and the South half of Section 36, Township 20 North,
Range 22 East and the North half of Section 1, Township 19 North, Range 22 East of, M.D.M., Storey
County, Nevada; situated within those Parcels of iand described as Parcel 2007-145 of Record of
Survey for Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center, recorded as File Number 108433 on February 14, 2008,
Official Records of Storey County, Nevada, and Parcel 2008-39 of the Dedication Map for EP
Minerals, LLC, recorded as File Number 110555 on January 22, 2009, Official Records of Storey
County, Nevada, and Parcel 2008-22 of the Record of Survey for Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center,
recorded as File Number 109145 on June 2, 2008, Official Records of Storey County, Nevada,.

A strip of land, 20 feet in width, lying 10 feet on each side of the following described centerline:

Commencing at the most Northerly corner of Parcel 2014-34 of the Record of Survey for
Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center, LL.C. Recorded as 0121588 on February 2, 2015;

Thence along the Northeasterly boundary of said parcel further described as the Southerly
Right of Way of Electric Avenue, South 54°17°28" East, 10.00 feet to the Point of Beginning, thence
leaving said boundary along the following 17 courses:

1. North 35°42'32" East, 9.91 feet;

North §63°48'04" West, 881.56 feet,

Along a tangent 1440.39' radius curve to the right along an arc length of 630.70° with a central

angle 25°05"17"

North 23°22'34" West, 543.20 feet;

Along a tangent 1358.83’ radius curve to the left along an arc length of 1581.42 with a central

angle 66°37'39"

North 89°59'50" West, 435.62 fest;

Along a tangent 1440.00" radius curve to the right along an arc length of 217.36 with a central

angle 8°38'55"

8. North §1°21'05" West, 200.94 feet;

8. North 03°31'11" East, 80.32 feset;

10. North 81°24°05" West, 76.15 feet;

11. Along a tangent 1440.00' radius curve to the left along an arc length of 135.28 with a central
angle 5°22'58”

12. North 86°44'04" West, 1248.03 feet;

13. Along a tangent 1440.00" radius curve to the left along an arc length of 427.66 with a centrai
angle 17°00'58" to the beginning of a reverse curve,

14. Along said reverse 2460.25' radius curve to the right along an arc length of 1736.06' with a
central angle 40°26'04";

15. North 63°18'568" West, 578.84 feet,

w N

oA

~ o




16. Along a tangent 1440.00" radius curve to the left along an arc length of 495.08" with a central
angle 19°41'54” to the beginning of a reverse curve

17. Along said reverse 70.01' radius curve to the right along an arc length of 78.51" with a central
angle 64°15°09” to the Easterly right of way of USA Parkway, the Westerly property line of the
Grantor and the terminus of this centerline.

The sidelines of said easement are to be extended or truncated as to terminate on the
boundary line of the Grantor.

Said Parcel containing 187,000 square feet more or less.
Basis of Bearings: The southwest boundary of Parcel 2014-34 of the Record of Survey for Tahoe-
Reno Industrial Center, LLC recorded as File Number 0121588 on February 2, 2015, Official Records
of Storey County, Nevada, bearing North 58°36'24" West.

All as shown on Exhibit “B-1" and “B-2" attached hereto, and by this reference, made a part thereof.

Todid Sy~
Robert C. Fdng.‘ y

UK

Date




\ 2 »
~ DBelta: 663739
Rodius: 1359.93

—"—

Arc: 1581.42'

A

TRIWAGE

CONSULTING
SCALE: 1" = 500'

N 2322'34" W
543.20'
Centerline of 20’

Easement

Delta: 25'05'17"
Rodius: 1440.39'
Arc: 630.70°

| ”‘B\” N 3542'32" E
~ ,?'91' .

A ~. Centerline of 20
Easement

CONSULTING
/P.0.B. CALE: 1"=20"
| |2614—34 / =2
21588 /

S/ TRIWAGE

5418 LONGLEY LANE
SUITE A

REND, NV 8951t

775.336.1300

EXHIBIT MAP
Switch
Teslo Fiber




I

[

| Doc 0110596 01-26-2009
I Parcel 2008—22 Map 109145

N 81°21°05" W

Delta: 17°00'58"
Radius: 1440.00°
Arc: 427.66'

Delta: 5°22°58" ,

Radius: 1440.00
Arc: 135.29°
TR! ACJE Centerline of 20 ~w
Easemsnt ~
scﬁfg.su1"ﬂf 500’ Delta: 838°'55" ""--..‘___
' Radius: 1440.00'
Arc: 217.38'

APN 004-093-26
Deed: 127579 4/17/18
Parcel 2008—-39 Map 110555

Detail "D”

"/ Isita: 64'15°09”

/ /| Radius: 70, o1’
. / Arc: 78.51'
M
4 Parcel 2007—145 Map 108433
i,
! .. o o APN 004—093-26
Iy 3871 &7 Deed: 127579 4/17/18
Iy 3§ Parcel 2008-39 Map 110555
[y 2=g
Py ogds!
F Foy 7/
F Foo Rodion:  206025"
/ ! | | TR'IvAC,E ‘Arc: 1736.06" _
'/ | | CONSULTING Centearline of 20
| I /' SCALE: 17 = 500" Easement
|
| __ 1 5418 LONGLEY LANE
L L ! T e——m— : AGE Egho NY 89511
=
- Electn — CONSULTING 775,336.1300
TS EXHBIT MAP
4N Switch
Tesla Fiber

k Dell \
iy . I’ \\\‘ N

,E:sement Qvery |ew { _

A3 &% \\ |

. r & \ ﬁ! SA PKWY  STOREY COUNTY NEVADA
\ M MY 4|




EXHIBIT 1

1.01.010 - Definitions.

For the

purpose of this Exhibit and the Storey County, Nevada Rights-Of-Way License

Agreement For Power Line Transmission Granted To Switch Business Solutions,LLC, (the
“Agreement”) to which this Exhibit is attached, the following definitions shall apply. Terms

phrases,

words, and their derivations shall have the meanings set forth herein, unless the context

clearly indicates that another meaning is intended. Words used in the present tense include the
future, words in the plural number include the singular number and words in the singular number
include the plural number. The words "shall" and "will" are mandatory and "may"” is permissive:

(a)

(b)

(©)

(d)

(e)
(0
(2)
(h)

()

"Abandoned” means the relinquishing of facilities owned by a public utility that no
longer has a business license, or franchise or rights-of-way license agreement, or
certificate of public convenience and necessity from the Public Utilities Commission, if
required by the laws of the state of Nevada, or of a facility which the public utility has
agreed to transfer to the County.

"Business license" means the written authorization required by the County for any
person who commences, carries on, engages in, or conducts a business, occupation,
trade, or employment, as delineated in Title 5 of the Storey County Code, within Storey
County, Nevada.

“ County Code" or "code" or "county code" means the titles chapters and sections of the
Storey County Code and ordinances referenced herein, or their successor titles, chapters
and sections, adopted by the county commission, and as amended from time to time.

"Commence construction” means that time and date when the first connection is
physically made to a utility pole for overhead facilities, when trenching is initiated for
underground facilities, or when foundations are excavated for transmission facilities,
provided all of these facilities are part of a public utility system, and the appropriate
permits are issued for such work.

"Commence operation" means that time and date, after construction completion, when
the public utility system is first used to provide subscription service.

"Construction completion” means that time and date when all facilities have been
installed and all public rights-of-way and properties have been restored to their former
appearance and condition in a manner acceptable to the county.

"County" or "county" means the county of Storey, Nevada.

"County commission” or “county commission” means the Board of County
Commissioners of Storey County.

"County manager” means the county manager appointed by county commission to
perform such administrative functions of the county government as may be required of
him by the county commission, or his’her designee.

Page 1




)

(k)
Wy

(m)

(n)

(0)

()

)

(r)

(s)

®

(u)

"Director of Community Development” or “director of community development” or
"director of public works" means the county departmental director specifically named,
or his’her designee.

"Easement" means the right to use the real property of another.

"Facility” or "facilities" means antennae, transmitters, poles, pipes, wires, cables,
conduits, amplifiers, instruments, equipment, and other appliances used in connection
therewith or appurtenant thereto to provide public utility service in the county.

"Franchise”" means the nonexclusive authorization granted by the county commission to
a public utility to construct, operate, and maintain its system in the rights-of-way within
the county for the provision of subscription services to persons, other than themselves,
and to use the rights-of-way for the installation, operation, and maintenance of its
facilities. The conditions and requirements of such authorization will be described
within a franchise agreement for such purpose.

"Franchise agreement" means an agreement granting use of public rights-of-way to
provide subscription services.

"Franchisee" means the person to whom a franchise is granted, and its agents, including
but not limited to contractors licensed by the State Contractors Board and providing
construction, installation, or maintenance services on facilities located in rights-of-way
on behalf of a franchisce.

"Person" means a natural person, any form of business or social organization and any
other nongovernmental legal entity, including but not limited to the estate of a natural
person, a corporation, partnership, association, trust, or unincorporated organization.
The term "person” does not include a government, governmental agency, or political
subdivision of a government.

"Public improvement” means new roadways and pavements, sidewalks, curbs and
gutters, landscaping, street lights, foundations, poles and traffic signal conduits, water
mains, sanitary and storm sewers, tunnels, subways, people movers, viaducts, bridges,
underpasses, and overpasses, or other public facilities across, along, over or under any
street or streets, or other such improvements which are to be used by the general public.

"Public Utilities Commission” means the Public Utilities Commission of the State of
Nevada, and its predecessors and successors.

"Public utility" means any person that provides electric energy or natural gas,
telecommunications services, interactive computer services, or sells or resells personal
wireless services, regardless of whether that person is subject to the regulations of, or
holds a certificate of public convenience and necessity from, the Public Utilities
Commission.

"Public utility service” means the provision of electric energy, natural gas,
telecommunications, interactive computer service, or personal wireless service over or
through facilities located in rights-of-way.

"Public utility system" or "system" means any facilities, in whole or in part, constructed
to provide public utility services and using rights-of-way to provide such service.

Page 2




(v) "Right-of-way" or "rights-of-way" means public property, including air space,
dedicated, granted, held, prescriptively used, or authorized by patent of the United
States of America, for county public strect, and public utility purposes, except as limited
by any underlying grant and except public streets predominantly used for public
freeway or expressway purposes

(w) "Rights-of-way license" means the nonexclusive authorization granted by the county
commission in exchange for a rental fee to a public utility to construct, operate, and
maintain its system in specific streets and rights-of-way as authorized routes for
nonsubscription service. The conditions and requirements of such authorization will be
described within a license agreement for such purpose.

(x) "Rights-of-way license agreement" means an agreement granting use of public rights-
of-way to provide nonsubscription public utility services.

(y) "Rights-of-way licensee" means the person to whom a rights-of-way license is granted
and its agents, including but not limited to contractors licensed by the State Contractors
Board and providing construction, installation, or maintenance services on facilities
located in rights-of-way on behalf of a rights-of-way licensee.

(z) "Street" means the surface, the air space above the surface and the area below the
surface of the full width of the right-of-way, including sidewalks and thoroughfares,
places or ways of any kind used by the public or open to the public as a matter of right
for the purpose of vehicular traffic or vehicular and pedestrian traffic.

(aa) "Subscription service" means any service provided by a public utility over or through
facilities located in rights-of-way to persons or governmental entities within Storey
County.

(bb) "Transfer or assign”" shall not include any mortgage, pledge, or other encumbrance of
the assets, stocks, or the franchise or rights-of-way license agreement of the franchisee
or right-of-way licensee as security for moneys borrowed.

1.01.020 - Business license required.

The rights-of-way licensee shall first obtain a business license issued by the director of
community development, after application and compliance with all applicable requirements of
Title 5 of the County Code. The application processing fee for a business license is as set forth in
Storey County Code Title 5. No rights-of-way license will be approved until the applicant has
first obtained a business license. In addition to the requirements of Title 5 of the County Code,
the application for a business license by the Licensee utilizing county rights-of-way shall
include:

(a) A statement setting forth all agreements and understandings existing between the
applicant and any person with respect to the applicant's acting as an agent or
representative of another person regarding use of rights-of-way;

(b) For a corporation, a list of officers and directors of the applicant;

(c) For a partnership, a list of all partners and their relative interests in the partnership;

Page 3




{d) A statement of whether any of the persons listed in subsections (a), (b) and (c) of this
section has had a franchise or rights-of-way license declined, suspended or revoked,
and, if so, the government agency issuing this decision, the date, time, place and reasons
given.

(e) A copy of the order and certificate of public convenience and necessity from the Public
Utilities Commission, if such certificate is required by the laws of the state of Nevada.

1.01.030 - Issuance of business license,

The director of community development shall issue a business license to a prospective right-of-
way licensee which has met the business licensing requirements of this Exhibit and Storey
County Code Title 5.

1.01.040 - Conditions of street occupancy and facilities installation.

(2)

(b)

(©)

(d)

(e)

®

The rights-of-way licensee shall comply with this Exhibit and the improvement standards
adopted in Title 15 of the Storey County Code, as adopted by the board of county
commissioners and in effect at time of construction completion, except where retroactive
application of new standards is required by federal or state law.

Prior to any work within the rights-of-way, the rights-of-way licensee shall obtain an
encroachment permit pursuant to applicable provisions of Chapter 2.18 of the Storey County
Code.

When the public improvement designs prepared by the rights-of-way licensee arc more
detailed than, or are not covered by, the improvement standards adopted in Storey County
Code Title 15, plans and specifications for construction, reconstruction, installations, and
repairs of public improvements shall be sealed by a Nevada registered professional engineer.

Except in the case of an emergency, the rights-of-way licensee, who is the initiator of a
project in a street or easement upon which residential yards are located and maintained, shall
notify residents who are located adjacent to the proposed project at least two days prior to
the date that the franchisee or rights-of-way licensee proposes to commence construction.
Such notice shall be by wriiten notice in person, by posted notice on the street where the
proposed project is scheduled to be built (which notice is to be large enough to be clearly
read by passing motorists), by door hanger, or by mail, with a description of the proposed
project and the name of the rights-of-way licensee together with its business phone number.

All public improvement work performed by the rights-of-way licensee in rights-of-way shall
be inspected, completed and accepted in accordance with this Exhibit and the improvement
standards adopted in Title 15 of the County code.

It is specifically declared that it is not intended by any of the provisions of any part of this
exhibit to create for the public, or any member thereof, a third party beneficiary hereunder,
or to authorize anyone to maintain a suit for personal injuries or property damage pursuant
to the provisions of this Exhibit. The duties, obligations, and responsibilities of the county
with respect to third parties shall remain as imposed by the general law of the state of
Nevada.

Page 4




(&

(h)

(1)

@

Any inspections or subsequent approvals undertaken by the county pursuant to this exhibit
are undertaken solely to ensure compliance with this exhibit and are not undertaken for the
safety or other benefit of any individual or group of individuals as members of the public.
Provisions in this Exhibit dealing with inspection or approval by the county de not expand
the county's general law duties.

In the case of damage caused by rights-of-way licensee to any rights-of-way, the rights-of-
way licensee shall at no cost or expense to the county repair, replace and restore the
damaged area in accordance with current improvement standards adopted in Title 15 of the
County code.

The rights-of-way licensee shall not acquire any vested right or interest in any particular
right-of-way location for any of its facilities constructed, operated, or maintained in any
existing or proposed rights-of-way, even though such location was approved by the county.

Reconstruction, removal or relocation of a rights-of-way licensee's facilities to accommodate
a public improvement shall be provided for in the following manner:

(1} The county, Tahoe Reno Industrial Center General Improvement District (TRIGID) or
Canyon General Improvement District (CGID) shall issue to the rights-of-way licensee
wrilten notice of a need to reconstruct, remove, or relocate any of rights-of-way
licensee's facilities which may be in conflict with an existing or proposed public
improvement in order to accommodate the installation, maintenance, or use of the
public improvement. Such written notice shall include project information equivalent in
detail to fifty percent or more of final design for the public improvement. The rights-of-
way licensee shall, within thirty days after receiving such written notice from the county
TRIGID or CGID as described in this paragraph, present to the director of public works
a notice of intent to reconstruct, remove, or relocate said facilities, and shall, within six
months after receipt of written notice from the county, TRIGID or CGID or such
shorter time period as may be reasonable, reconstruct, remove, or relocate said facilities.
Upon request from the rights-of-way licensee identifying a recommended location for
its facilities, the director of public works shall provide that location or an alternate
location within the right-of-way for the rights-of-way licensee, if space is available.

(2) Within thirty days after receipt of such written notice from the county, TRIGID or
CGID as described in paragraph (j)(1) of this subsection, the rights-of-way licensee may
present a written application and supporting documentation to the director of public
works for an extension of time in which to complete reconstruction, removal or
relocation of its facilities. The director of public works may grant additional time
beyond the time period provided if the additional time requested is due to service,
equipment, or material delivery constraints beyond the control and without the fault or
negligence of the rights-of-way licensee, or if the project described in the written notice
is of such a size that the work to be performed by the rights-of-way licensee cannot be
completed within the allowable time.

(3) If, after the issuance of the initial written notice, the county, TRIGID or CGID as
described in paragraph (j}(1) of this subsection, makes a substantial change in the
design of the public improvement project, including but not limited to changes in
elevation, changes affecting rights-of-way alignment and widths of alignment, the

Page 5




county, TRIGID or CGID, as described in paragraph (j}(1) of this subsection, shall
notify the rights-of-way licensee of the details of the substantial change. If the rights-
of-way licensee determines that such change would cause a delay in reconstruction,
removal or relocation of its facilities beyond the time period provided, the rnights-of-
way licensee may, within fourteen days from receipt of notice of such change, petition
the director of public works for an extension of time in which to complete
reconstruction, removal or relocation of facilities. If the additional time is requested due
to service, equipment, or material delivery constraints beyond the control of the rights-
of-way licensee, or if the public improvement design change is of such a scope that the
work to be performed by the rights-of-way licensee cannot be completed within the
time period allowed, the director of public works may grant an extension of time. If the
request for extension of time is denied, the rights-of-way licensee may appeal the denial
to the county commission within fourteen days from receipt of notice of denial. The
decision of the county commission shall be final.

(4) The county, TRIGID or CGID, as described in paragraph (j)(1) of this subsection, shall
provide the rights-of-way licensee with a final design of the public improvement as
soon as it becomes available.

(5) If the rights-of-way licensee fails to reconstruct, remove, or relocate its facilities as
required by this section within the time period agreed upon, the county may reconstruct,
remove, or relocate said facilities and charge the cost of reconstruction, removal, or
relocation to the rights-of-way licensee. The county will not be held liable for any
losses or damages due to reconstruction, removal, or relocation of such facilities.

(k) Whenever, in case of emergency, it becomes necessary to remove any of the rights-of-way
licensee's facilities, no charge shall be made by the rights-of-way licensee against the county
for loss, damage, restoration, and repair.

(1) The rights-of-way licensee shall maintain and provide to the county, upon request and at no
cost, as-built plans indicating the location of its facilities. The rights-of-way licensee may
provide, on a voluntary basis, clectronic plans showing the general location of its facilities in
rights-of-way.

1.01.050 - Construction and technical standards.

Construction practices shall be in accordance with the improvement standards adopted in Title
15 of the Storey County Code. Public utility systems shall be installed, maintained, and operated
in accordance with applicable standards defined by a state or federal governmental agency
charged with the regulation of such technology.

1.01.060 - Reserved.

1.01.070 - Removal of facilities.

(a) In the event the rights-of-way license has been revoked, terminated, has expired without
renewal, or in the event that any facilities have been installed in any rights-of-way without
complying with the requirements of this Exhibit or rights-of-way license agreement, or in the
event the rights-of-way licensee and the county agree that the facility has been abandoned, the

Page 6




rights-of-way licensee shall, within thirty days after receipt of notice by the county, commence
and thereafter diligently pursue and complete the removal of said facilities from the rights-of-
way within a reasonable time, except those facilities which:

(1) Are sold to the holder of an unrevoked and unexpired franchise or rights-of-way license,
or

(2) The director of public works finds may be abandoned in place without interference with
the use of existing or planned public improvement.

(b) The rights-of-way licensee shall promptly restore all rights-of-way from which facilities
have been removed to their former condition and appearance in accordance with the
improvement standards adopted in Title 15 of the Storey County code.

(¢) Any facilities to be abandoned in place shall be abandoned in such manner as prescribed by
the director of public works and approved by the county commission at a duly noticed public
hearing. Upon abandonment, the facilities shall become the property of the county and the
rights-of-way licensee shall submit to the director of public works an instrument in writing,
transferring to the county the ownership of such facilities.

1.01.080 - Transfers and assignments.

In addition to the requirements conditional to the holding of a valid business license per Title 5
of the Storey County code, the rights-of-way licensee may transfer or assign the rights-of-way
license in accordance with the terms set forth in the Agreement,

1.01.090 -Reserved.

1.01.100 - Insurance.

(a) Securing and maintaining all insurance coverages, or demonstrating the ability to self-insure,
for the minimum limits required herein is a condition of the rights-of-way license agreement,
and no rights-of-way licensee shall commence work in county rights-of-way until all
insurance requirements have been met.

(b) All primary and excess insurance obtained for meeting the requirements of this section must
be provided in compliance with Nevada Revised Statutes, Title 57, and any commercial
insurance carrier providing any required coverage must have an A.M. Best rating of A-VII;
and

(1) The rights-of-way licensee shall provide a certificate of insurance naming Storey
County, Nevada, as an additional insured, and stating that the policy will not be
canceled, terminated or altered by the insurer, nor will the insurer state an intention not
to renew until thirty days after providing written notification of such to the county
manager; and

(2) The rights-of-way licensee shall be solely responsible for payment of all premiums for
insurance policies required herein.

Page 7




(c)

(d)

(€)

H

(8)

Within ten days after approval of the rights-of-way license agreement by the county
commission, the rights-of-way licensee shall provide proof of insurance to the county
manager, and maintain in full force and effect through the term of the rights-of-way license
agreement the following insurance coverages, insuring against all damages arising out of or
resulting from the installation, construction, operation, and maintenance of the system:

(1) General liability insurance, with minimum limits of two million dollars ($2,000,000)
per occurrence, which includes coverage for products, completed operations, blanket
contractual liability, independent contractor hazard, broad form property damage,
including but not limited to coverage for explosion, collapse and underground hazard.

(2) Automobile liability insurance, with a minimum combined single limit per occurrence
of two million dollars ($2,000,000), and which includes coverage for non-owned and
hired automobile liability. Automobile liability insurance may be included as part of
general liability insurance.

(3) Workers' compensation insurance in accordance with Nevada Revised Statutes,
Chapters 616A, 616B, 616C, 616D and 617.

The minimum limits may be provided for through a single primary insurance policy
providing such coverage or through addition of an umbrella liability policy written in excess
of the general liability, and automobile liability policies.

If insurance coverage is obtained on a claims-made form, the rights-of-way licensee shall
provide proof of coverage for "prior acts" and proof of coverage for claims reported within
two years of any occurrence.

The required insurance may be provided in the form of conventional insurance, self-
insurance, or a combination of conventional insurance and self-insurance retention.

The county commission may approve a plan of self-insurance as meeting the requirements
of this section. The rights-of-way licensee may apply for such approval by written request to
the county manager, which shall include a detailed plan of self-insurance, including
retention limits, named excess insurance carrier, if any, and a copy of audited financial
statements. The county commission may impose conditions or requirements, including
posting of security. The county commission may, at any time during the term of the rights-
of-way license agreement, revoke approval of a plan of self-insurance, or impose
requirements or conditions for continued approval. Failure to comply with the conditions or
requirements imposed by the county commission shall be deemed as failure to meet the
requirement for insurance under this section, and as a violation of a condition of the
franchise or rights-of-way license agreement.

1.01.110 - Rights reserved to the county.

Without limitation upon the rights which the county might otherwise have, the county does
hereby expressly reserve the rights, powers, and authorities to exercise its governmental powers
now or hereafter to the full extent that such powers may be vested in or granted to the county;
and to grant multiple nonexclusive franchises or rights-of-way licenses within the county to other
persons for the operation of systems

Page 8




1.01.120 - Force majeure.

In the event the rights-of-way licensee's performance of any of the terms, conditions or
obligations required by the Right-of-way agreement or this Exhibit is prevented by a cause or
event beyond the control of the rights-of-way licensee, such inability to perform shall be deemed
excused and no penalties or sanctions shall be imposed as a result thereof.

Page 9




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: October 16, 2018 Estimate of time required: 15 min.
Agenda: Consent [] Regular agenda [x] Public hearing required [x]

1. Title: Discussion/Possible Action: 2018-036 Special Use Permit by applicant Dylan Li. The
applicant requests a Special Use Permit to operate an outdoor establishment promoting tourism and
local activities. The establishment will consist of a smal! movable stand that will act as a table and be
located within the front patio area of an existing commercial establishment (Firehouse Grill, BBQ &
Saloon). The property is located at 171 S. C Street, Virginia City, Nevada, Assessor’s Parcel
Number (APN) 001-073-28.

2. Recommended motion: In accordance with the recommendation by staff, and the Planning
Commission, the findings of fact under Section 3.A of this report, and other findings deemed
appropriate by the Board of County Commissioners, and in compliance with the conditions of
approval, I (county commissioner), move to approve Special Use Permit 2018-036 to operate an
outdoor establishment promoting tourism and local activities. The establishment consists of a small
movable stand that will act as a table and be located within the front patio area of an existing
commercial establishment (Firehouse Grill, BBQ & Saloon). The property is located at 171 8. C
Street, Virginia City, Nevada, Assessor’s Parcel Number (APN) 001-073-28.

3. Prepared by: Kathy Canfield

4. Department: Planning Telephone: 775.847.1144
5. Staff sammary: Sec enciosed Staff Report No. 2018-036

6. Supporting materials: Enclosed Staff Report No. 2018-036

7.  Fiscal impact: None on local government.

Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller
8. Legal review reguired: ____ District Attorney
9. R ed by:

nt Head Department Name: Planning
County Manager Other agency review:
10. Board action:
[1 Approved [1 Approved with Modifications
[] Denied M Continued

Agenda Item No. |65




26 South B Street, PO Box 176, Virginia City, Nevada 89440

Storey County

Planning Department
Storey County Courthouse

Phone 775-847-1144 — Fax 775-847-0949
planning@storeycounty.org

To:
From:

Meeting Date:

Meeting Location:

Staff Contact:
File:
Applicant:

Property Owner:

Property Location:

Request:

Storey County Board of County Commissioners

Storey County Planning Department

October 16, 2018 at 10:00 a.m.

26 5. B Street, Virginia City, Storey County, Nevada

Kathy Canfield

2018-036

Dylan Li

Richard Connell

171 S. C Street, Virginia City, Storey County, Nevada, APN 001-073-28

The applicant requests a Spec'ial Use Permit {2018-036) to operate an outdgor
establishment promoting tourism and local activities. The establishment will
consist of a smail movable stand that wili act as a table and be located within
the front patio area of an existing commercial establishment {Firehouse Grill,

BBQ & Saloon). The property is located at 171 S. C Street, Virginia City, Nevada,
Assessor's Parcel Number (APN) 001-073-28.

Summary of Planning Commission Meeting:

There were no public or planning commissioner comments regarding this
project. The Planning Commission voted 7-0 to recommend approval of the
proposed Special Use Permit.

1. Background & Analysis

A. Site Location and Characteristics: The property is located at 171 S, C Street in Virginia
City, Storey County, Nevada. The commercial property contains a restaurant, saloon,
outdoor BBQ and gold panning establishments. A large patio is located between the
building and the street walkway that contains picnic tables and a patio cover which
provides seating for the onsite businesses. The area of the patio is relatively flat and at
the grade level of the street and boardwalk (although the “boardwalk” in this location is




View fooking southeast




o

Zoning Code. Chapter 17.12.100 (General Provisions for all zones) Section C states the
following:

C. In zones where a commercial business is allowed. a special use permit is
required for the display, sale, barter, or trade of items outside of a permanent
building, except for permitted temporary uses and farmer's markets. A
business may not display items for sale or conduct any business on the public
nght-of-way (See Figure 12 .9.) or between the public traveled way and
building, such as on the boardwalk/sidewalk. Business including dining,
customer seating. and other uses, but not the display of merchandise and other
ttems for sale, barter, or trade, may occur in the front, side, and rear yards of
the business where such area exists. Recessed door openings and thresholds
may be used to display 1tems for sale, barter, or trade and to otherwise conduct
business.

© T e e pde e dhplaned or
1 viand wothan the shiwwa an theeudvobd

Ty
=it
plaves
- i
wally

‘
| Ewmgtered o haw

1

Figure 12.9: The diagram shows where merchandise and other items may and may not be
displayed. The diagram does not apply to signs and advertising devices which are regulated
pursuant to chapter 17.84 Signs and billboards.

The applicant proposes to utilize an area outside of the right-of-way and boardwalk on
private property. The proposed business provides information on tourism and activities
available in the surrounding areas, and does not include the display of merchandise for
sale. The Special Use Permit would allow for the business to operate outside of a
building, on designated private property and not on the public right-of-way, but would
not allow for display of merchandise for sale.

The property where the use is proposed is unique to the Virginia City downtown as it
has a relatively large patio area bordering the street/boardwaik area where most
properties have their buildings built to the property line. The building is setback
approximately 20 feet from the edge of the boardwalk and the area in between is




(2)

(3)

(4)

The proposal location, size, height, operations, and other significant features
will be compatible with and will not cause substantial negative impact on
adjacent land uses, or will perform a function or provide a service that is
essential to the surrounding land uses, community, and neighborhood.

The proposed husiness will be an outdoor venue, located adjacent to
commercial uses on the subject property and to the commercial businesses to
the west. The business will operate from a movable stand located on an existing
patio, sharing the patio with outdoor dining areas for the onsite restaurants. As
a condition of approval, the business must operate only on private property and
witl not be able to be set up or operate on the “boardwalk” area or within the
public right-of-way. The stand will be located so as to not impact existing
emergency access ways associated with the existing onsite businesses.

Will result in no substantial or undue adverse effect on adjacent property, the
character of the neighborhood, traffic conditions, parking, public
improvements, public sites or right-of-way, or other matters affecting the
public health, safety, and general welfare, either as they now exist or as they
may in the future be developed as a result of the implementation of the
provisions and policies of the county master plan, this title, and any other
plans, program, map or ordinance adopted or under consideration pursuant to
an offictal notice, by the county, or other governmental agency having
jurisdiction to guide growth and development.

The business will be located on an existing patio area and promote tourism
related activities. The activity will be located on private property and, as
conditioned, emergency access to existing business will be maintained at all
times.

The proposed use in the proposed area will be adequately served by and will
Impose no undue burden on any of the improvements, facilities, utilities, or
services provided by the county or ather governmental agency having
jurisdiction in the county.

The proposed use is not expected to require any additional governmental
services or impact existing facilities.

Conformance with the 2016 Storey County Master Plan. The property is located along

C Street within Virginia City, Storey County, Nevada and is identified as a Commercial-
Residential land use. The property is zoned Commercial-Residential. The Storey County
Master Plan identifies C Street as the main thoroughfare of Virginia City.

The Storey County Master Plan identifies the following goals:

Enhance and diversify the local economy by promoting commercial business in
Gold Hill, Virginia City, and the Divide that service the specific interests and
needs of tourists and local residents.

Continue to enhance diversification of economic opportunities with the county.

7




4,

{7) The conditions under the Special Use Permit do not conflict with the minimum
requirements in Storey County Code Sections 17.03.150, Special Use Permit and
Section 17.30, CR — Commercial Residential Zone.

Motion for denial. Should a motion be made to deny the Special Use Permit request,
the following findings with explanation why should be included in that motion.

(1) This denial is for Special Use (2018-036) to operate an outdoor establishment
promoting tourism and local activities. The establishment consists of a small
movable stand that witl act as a table and be located within the front patio area
of an existing commercial establishment (Firehouse Grill, BBQ & Saloon). The
property is located at 171 S. C Street, Virginia City, Nevada, Assessor's Parcel
Number {APN) 001-073-28.

(2) The conditions under the Special Use Permit conflict with the minimum
requirements in Storey County Code Sections 17.03.150, Special Use Permit and
Section 17.30, CR — Commercial Residential Zone.

(3) The conditions under the Special Use Permit do not adequately mitigate
potential adverse impacts on surrounding uses or protect against potential
safety hazards for surrounding use,

Recommended Conditions of Approval

A

Special Use Permit 2018-036 shali be to operate an outdoor establishment promoting
tourism and local activities. The establishment consists of a small movable stand that
will act as a table and be located within the front patio area of an existing commercial
establishment (Firehouse Grill, BEQ & Saloon). The property is located at 1715.C
Street, Virginia City, Nevada, Assessor’s Parcel Number (APN) 001-073-28.

Business Operations. This special use permit authorizes the business to promote
tourism and local activities. The business activities shatl be limited to distributing
pamphlets, leaflets, and other similar type literature and verbally interacting with the
interested public. Merchandise displays, sales or handouts of merchandise are not
permitted with this special use permit.

Requirements. The Applicant shall apply for all required permits and licenses, including
any applicable building and fire permits, for the project within 24 months from the date
of final approval of this SUP, and continuously maintain the validity of those
permits/licenses, or this approval shall be null and void. This Special Use Permit shall
remain valid as long as the Applicant remains in compliance with the terms of this
Special Use Permit and Storey County, State of Nevada, and federal regulations. No
activity shall commence prior to the Applicant securing rights to the Special Use Permit.

Compliance. The use on the subject property must comply with federal, state, and
county codes and regulations and the submitted plans and reponrts, as approved.




Proposed Motions

This section contains two motions from which to choose. The motion for approval is
recommended by staff and the Planning Commission in accordance with the findings under
Section 3.A of this report. Those findings should be made part of the approval motion. A
motion for denial may be made and that motion should cite one or more of the findings shown
in Section 3.B. Cther findings of fact determined appropriate by the Board of County
Commissioners should be made part of either motion.

A.

Recommended motion for approval

In accordance with the recommendation by staff, and the Planning Commission, the
findings of fact under Section 3.A of this report, and other findings deemed appropriate
by the Board of County Commissioners, and in compliance with the conditions of
approval, | (county commissioner), move to approve Special Use Permit 2018-036 to
operate an outdoor establishment promoting tourism and local activities. The
establishment consists of a small movable stand that will act as a table and be located
within the front patio area of an existing commercial establishment (Firehouse Grill,
BBQ & Saloon). The property is located at 171 S. C Street, Virginia City, Nevada,
Assessor’s Parcel Number (APN) 001-073-28.

Alternative motion for denial

Against the recommendation by staff and the Planning Commission, but in accordance
with the findings of fact under Section 3.B of this report, and other findings deemed
appropriate by the Board of County Commissioners, | {county commissioner), move to
deny Special Use Permit 2018-036 to operate an outdoor establishment promoting
tourism and local activities. The establishment consists of a small movable stand that
will act as a table and be located within the front patio area of an existing commercial
establishment (Firehouse Grill, BBQ & Saloon). The property is located at 1715.C
Street, Virginia City, Nevada, Assessor’s Parcel Number (APN} 001-073-28.

11




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: October 16, 2018 Estimate of time required: 15 min.

Agenda: Consent [ ] Regular agenda [x] Public hearing required [x]

1, Title: Discussion/Possible Action: Variance 2018-037 request to the front and side yard setbacks
for the construction of a detached garage, to allow for a front yard setback of 20-feet (versus the
required 30-feet) and side yard setback of §-feet (versus the required 15-feet). The property is located
at 1930 Applegate Road, Virginia City Highlands, Storey County, Nevada, Assessor’s Parcel Number
(APN) 003-101-05.

2. Recommended motion by the Planning Commission: In accordance with the recommendation by
the Planning Commission, but against the recommendation by staff, and with the Findings of Fact
under Section 3.A of this report, and other findings deemed appropriate by the Board of County
Commissioners, and in compliance with the conditions of approval, I (county commissioner), move to
approve a variance (Variance 2018-037) to the front and side yard setbacks for the construction of a
detached garage, to allow for a front yard setback of 20-feet (versus the required 30-feet) and side
yard setback of 8-feet (versus the required 15-feet). The property is located at 1930 Applegate Road,
Virginia City Highlands, Storey County, Nevada, Assessor’s Parcel Number (APN) 003-101-05.

3. Prepared by: Kathy Canfield

4. Department: Planning Telephone: 775.847.1144

5. Staff summary: Sce enclosed Staff Report No. 2018-037

6. Supporting materials: Enclosed Staff Report No. 2018-037
7. Fiscal impact: None on local government.
Funds Available: Fund: Comptrolier
8. Legal review required: ___ District Attomey
9. Reviewed by:
é Department Head Department Name: Planning
_County Manager ___Other agency review!
10. Board action:
[] Approved [] Approved with Modifications
[] Denied [] Continued

Agenda Item No. l(ﬁ




24 South B Street, PO Box 176, Virginia City, Nevada 89440

Storey County

Planning Depariment
Storey County Courthouse

Phone 775-847-1144 — Fax 775-847-0949
planning@storeycounty.org

Yo:
From:

Meeting Date:

Meeting Location:

Staff Contact:
File:
Applicant:

Property Owner:

Property Location:

Reguest:

Storey County Board of County Commissioners

Storey County Planning Department

QOctober 16, 2018

Storey County Courthouse, 26 S. B Street, Virginia City, Storey County, Nevada
Kathy Canfield

2018-037

Patrick and Beth Smith

Patrick and Beth Smith

1930 Applegate Road, Virginia City Highlands, Storey County, Nevada, APN 003-
101-05

The applicants request a variance (Variance 2018-037) to the front and side yard
setbacks for the construction of a detached two-car garage, to allow for a front
yard setback of 20-feet (versus the required 30-feet) and side yard setback of 8-
feet (versus the required 15-feet). The property is located at 1930 Applegate
Road, Virginia City Highlands, Storey County, Nevada, Assessor’s Parcel Number
{APN) 003-101-05.

Summary of Planning Commission Action:

The Planning Commission at its October 4, 2018 meeting heard testimony from
the applicant, county staff and the public regarding the proposed variance. A
lengthy discussion occurred regarding the setbacks for the proposed garage and
the findings that need to be made to approve a variance. The applicant provided
rationale as to how this property situation was unique, that the proposed
variance provided less of an impact to adjacent property owners than a location
that was consistent with required setbacks, and that the variance allowed the
proposed garage location to be similar to other development located in the
neighborhood. After discussions with the applicant and staff, and statements of




support from an adjacent property owner, the Planning Commission voted 6-1
that the findings for approval could made, and the Planning Commission made a
recommendation to the Board of County Commissioners for approval. Two
modifications were made at the meeting. The removal of the description “two-
car detached garage” to the wording “detached garage” in the recommendation
of approval to allow for more flexibility for the proposed development, and the
addition of “from a professional land surveyor” to Recornmended Condition of
Approval H.

1, Background & Analysis

A.

Site Location and Characteristics. The 1.01 acre residential parcel is located in the
Virginia City Highlands. The parcel contains an existing single family residence located
near the front of the parcel, a driveway/parking area along the south property line and a
shed located along the south property line. The rear of the property is relatively
undisturbed and consists of large pinon pines and juniper. The well is located along the
north property line behind the residence and the septic system is located along the north
property line in front of the residence. The residence is located within a residential
neighborhood, with residences constructed on the adjacent parcels. The subject
property is zoned E-1 VCH which has required 30 foot front yard, 40-foot rear yard and
15-foot side yard setbacks.

The property has a 50-foot roadway easement for Applegate Road. Setbacks are
required from the edge of the easement, not the property line or the roadway itself.

Vicinity Mop




!
1

. o

Location Map

L ’

Surrounding Properties




A Porfion of Sactioms
3l 832,THN, R2IE &
588, TI7N,R2IE,MOB.8M

FTOREY COUNTY, NEVADA

This map & prapered far e w10 of © " - -
kg 2 7ee N dd ki & st S Sty 1 6humed 18 s g ¢
oy iy e L EUMckiy or aorrac of s dacs defleueier! harei, STOREY COUNTY

Assessor's Parcel Map

Proposed Project. The applicants are proposing to construct a detached garage
approximately 20-feet by 45-feet in size. The garage is proposed in the existing parking
area location on the parcel.

The proposed location of the garage is based on the existing development of the site and
the proposed scheme of use of the property. This location is relatively flat, requires little
to no excavation and vegetation removal, and is located adjacent to the residence to
allow for easy access. The property slopes upward from the road and the existing
development is located on a relatively level area at the front of the property. The site is
rocky and the excavation for a portion of the residence foundation required a great deal
of rock to be removed which would also be expected for the garage foundation. Other
locations were considerad, however, because of the existing wellhead and the septic
system along the north property line, and the increasing slope of the rear of the site,
along with the existing mature vegetation that the applicants desire to remain, potential
locations near the residence and outside of the setbacks and well and septic systems are
limited.

The applicants have submitted a written statement regarding their methodology for
selecting the proposed garage site. Please see Appendix A of this staff report.




Existing residence

View looking west.




View looking east



o

[~]
-
QU
o
L

©“
2
2

: S




Proposed garage focation

Roadway Easement. The property has a 50-foot roadway easement for Applegate Road
along the east property line. Building setbacks are measured from roadway easements
when the roadway exists for the purposed of providing a public or private road. The
applicant’s property extends beyond the existing travelled way to the other side of the
roadway. The travelled way is typically assumed to be located in the center of the
easement, however, that isn’t always the case as the roads were constructed to consider
the topography as it exists and the easiest and most logical route possible.

Staff could not locate surveyed property corners to determine the exact location of the
property boundary and compare that to the travelled way. There is a rebar piece located
in the general area a property boundary is anticipated to be, however, this isn’t a survey
marker and staff is unsure if this is an official marker. If this is the location of the
property corner, then the travelled way is located closer to the east property line and not
centered within the S0-foot easement area. The significance of this is the proposed
garage location would be located further from the travelled way than it would be if the
travelled way was centered in the 50-foot easement which is assumed in the rationale for
the setbacks from roadway easements in the Zoning Code.

Based on the found rebar location and measurements at the site, it appears that there is
approximately 18-feet of undisturbed area between the edge of the roadway and
western boundary of the roadway easement. Applegate Road is approximately 24-feet
wide, and with the approximate 18-feet of undisturbed roadway easement area, the
proposed garage location would be approximately 38-feet from the edge of travelled




way. Location of the property corners is necessary to confirm the exact property line and
is included as a condition of approval.

Variance. The applicant has requested a variance to the rear and side yard setbacks. The
VCH-1 Estates zoning for this parcel states a 30-foot front yard setback (as measured
from the roadway easement line) and a 15-foot side yard setback is required. The
applicant has requested a 20-foot front yard setback and an 8-foot side yard setback.
Section 17.03.140 of the Storey County Code identifies the process for Variances. The
applicant and this report follow the requirements outlined in the Code.

2, Compatibility and Compliance

A.

Compatibility with surrounding uses and 2ones. The following table documents land
uses, zoning classification and master plan designations for the land at and surrounding
the proposed project. There are no evident conflicts between the proposed garage
addition and Storey County Title 17 Zoning or the 2016 Master Plan with the exception of
the setbacks which are addressed with the Variance application.

Land Use Master Plan Designation Zoning

Applicant’s Land Residential Single Family Estate E-1 VCH
Land ta the North | Residential Single Family Estate E-1VCH
Land to the East Residential Single Family Estate E-1 VCH
Land to the South | Residential Single Family Estate E-1VCH
Land to the West Residential Single Family Estate E-1 VCH

Variances. The SCC 17.03.140 Variances states that a Variance to the provisions of its
title may be granted by the Storey County Board of County Commissioners (the Board)
with action by the Storey County Planning Commission {the Planning Commission) where
by reason of exceptional narrowness, shallowness, or shape of a specific piece of
property at the time of enactment of the regulations, or by reason of exceptional
topographic conditions or other extraordinary and exceptional situation or condition of
the lot or parcel, the strict application of the regulations enacted under this title would
result in peculiar and exceptional practical difficulties to, or exceptional and undue
hardships upon the owner of property.

Within Section SCC 17.03.140 (F) it states: The Board's approval, approval with
conditions, or denial of a Variance must be based on Findings that indicate that the
proposed use is appropriate in the location for which it is approved. The Findings listed in
this subsection are the minimurmn to be cited in an approval; the body may include
additional Findings in their decision. The Board and Planning Commission must cite
Findings of fact in the motion for approval, approval with conditions, or denial.

At a minimum, an approval must be based on the following Findings. After each finding,
rationale for the Finding is provided. In addition to the following rationale, pliease see
Appendix A for the applicant’s statement of methodology for the garage placement.




(1)

{2)

(3)

That because of special circumstances applicable to the subject property,
including shape, size, topography or location of surroundings, the strict
application of the zoning ordinance would deprive the subject property of
privileges enjoyed by other properties in the vicinity or under identical zone
classification.

The proposed variance would allow for a detached garage to be constructed
adjacent to the existing residence. The parcel is 147 feet in width and the
existing residence is located near the front of the property. The applicants state
that other logical locations on the parcel for the garage with easy access to the
residence are hindered by the need to excavate into rocky terrain and require
removal of mature vegetation. The location of the wellhead and the septic J
system adjacent to the northern property line, which the applicants would like to
avoid impacting.

The side vard setback is requested to be 8-feet versus the required 15-feet. The
applicants state the proposed location would avoid the need to remave mature
vegetation in the front yard of the residence while still maintaining the mature
vegetation located along the south property line.

Although staff recognize the desire to retain existing mature vegetation and
minimize costly excavation in a rocky soil, it does not appear to staff that these
reasons alone are not a “special circumstance” the finding requires.

That the granting of the Variance is necessary for the preservation and
enjoyment of substantial property rights of the applicant.

The existing property does not contain a garage. The applicants desire a garage
that has easy access to the existing residence. Because of the existing
configuration of development at the site, the rocky terrain and the mature
vegetation on the site which the applicant would like to maintain, the feasible
iocations for the garage are limited in the applicants’ opinion.

Staff recognizes that a garage for the residential property would be necessary for
the preservation and enjoyment of substantial property rights, however, it does
not appear to staff that the variance of the garage setbacks meets the Finding.
As identified in Section B{1), above, although not as desirable by the applicants, a
garage could be located in other locations on the property.

That the granting of the Variance will not, under the circumstances of the
particular case, adversely affect to a material degree the health or safety of
persons residing or working in the neighborhood of the subject property and
will not be materially detrimental to the public welfare or materially injurious
to property or improvements in the neighborhood of the subject property.

The proposed garage will be located adjacent to the existing residence and will
be located on an existing relatively levelled area with surrounding mature
vegetation.

10




The location of the garage would not be readily visible to neighbors to the north,
south and west because of the vegetation and topography. The parce! across
Applegate Road is developed with the residence lacated further south and a
corral located directly across from the applicant’s property. The applicant has
contacted the surrounding property owners to the north, south and east {the
closest neighbors to the proposed garage} and states they have no ohjection to
the proposed garage location. The proposed garage is not expected to
detrimentally impact the surrounding properties or the general public,

Staff agree with the applicants that the evidence presented with the application
documents this Finding can be made.

C. Storey County Zoning Code. The property is lacated within E-1 VCH, Estates, Virginia City
Highlands, residential zoning. The Storey County Zoning Code states “The estates zone is
established for areas particularly suited for low density residential use, to further
enhance the guality of life for residents to prohibit the development of uses which are
incompatible and detrimental to a rural residential environment, and to allow for the
keeping of a limited number of large domestic animals for non-commercial purposes.”
Single family residences are an allowed use for the zoning and the proposed garage
addition is a permitted accessory use to the residence. The one acre parcel size is
consistent with the required minimum lot size and the proposed garage would be
required to be located 6 feet from the existing residence and shed which is consistent
with the Code reguirement of 6-foot setback between dwelling and accessory buildings
(Section 17.12.045). The proposed garage location will be located approximately 20-feet
from the roadway easement (approximately 38-feet from the edge of travelled way)
instead of the required 30-feet, and 8-feet from the side yard setback instead of the
required 15-feet with this Variance application. With the exception of the setbacks
which this Variance application addresses, the proposed garage addition will be
consistent with all other portions of the Zoning Code.

D. 2016 Storey County Master Plan. The 2016 Storey County Master Plan designates the
Virginia City Highlands as a Rural Residential community with parcels no less than one-
acre. Section 3.5.3 Goals and Objectives for land uses in the Highlands (p. 120} states in
Goal 1 that land use decisions, including the implementation of zoning and regulations in
and around the Highlands area must preserve the rural residential character and conform
to historic use patterns in the Highlands area.

The addition of an accessory garage to an existing residential property is consistent with
the rural residential characteristics of the Highlands area. A garage is proposed ona
property that is currently developed with a residence and parking currently occurs in an
open area of the parcel.

3. Findings of Fact
A, Motion for approval. Should a motion be made to approve the Variance request, the

following Findings should be included in that motion, along with the recommended
conditions of approval in Section 4, Recommended Conditions of Approval.

11




(1)

(2)

(3)

(4)

(5)

(6)

(7)

(8)

This approval is for a variance (Variance 2018-037) to the front and side yard
setbacks for the construction of a detached garage, to allow for a front yard
setback of 20-feet (versus the required 30-feet) and side yard setback of 8-feet
(versus the required 15-feet). The property is located at 1930 Applegate Road,
Virginia City Highlands, Storey County, Nevada, Assessor’s Parcel Number (APN)
003-101-05.

The subject property is located within E-1 VCH Estates zoning with an existing
residence as a primary use and the proposed garage as an allowed accessory use.

That because of special circumstances applicable to the subject property,
including shape, size, topography or location of surroundings, the strict
application of the zoning ordinance would deprive the subject property of
privileges enjoyed by other properties in the vicinity or under identical zone
classification.

That the granting of the Variance is necessary for the preservation and
enjoyment of substantial property rights of the applicant.

That the granting of the Variance will not, under the circumstances of the
particular case, adversely affect to a material degree the health or safety of
persons residing or working in the area of the subject property and will not be
materially detrimental to the public welfare or materially injurious to property or
improvements in the area of the subject property.

The proposed Variance is in compliance with all Federal, Nevada State, and
Storey County regulations.

The proposed Variance is in compliance with Storey County Code 17.03.140
Variances, 17.40 E Estates Zone and 17.12 General Provisions when all Conditions
of Approval are met,

The proposed Variance is in compliance with and supports the goals, objectives
and policies of the 2016 Storey County Master Plan,

Motion for denial. Should a motion be made to deny the Variance request, the following
Findings with explanation of why should be included in that mation.

(1)

(2)

This denial is for the applicants’ request for a variance (Variance 2018-037) to the
front and side yard setbacks for the construction of a detached garage, to allow
for a front yard setback of 20-feet {versus the required 30-feet} and side yard
setback of 8-feet (versus the required 15-feet). The property is located at 1930
Applegate Road, Virginia City Highlands, Storey County, Nevada, Assessor’s Parcel
Number (APN) 003-101-05.

There are no special circumstances applicable to the subject property, including
shape, size, topography or location of surroundings, the strict application of the

12




zoning ordinance that would deprive the subject property of privileges enjoyed
by other properties in the vicinity or under identical zone classification.

(3) The granting of the application is not necessary for the preservation and
enjoyment of substantial property rights of the applicant.

(4) That the granting of the application will, under the circumstances of the
particular case, adversely affect to a material degree the health or safety of
persons residing or working in the area of the subject property and will be
materially detrimental to the public welfare or materially injurious to property or
improvements in the area of the subject property.

{5) The proposed Variance is not in substantial compliance with all Federal, Nevada
State, and Storey County regulations.

{6) The proposed Variance is not in substantial compliance with and does not
support the goals, objectives and recommendations of the Storey County Master
Plan.

(7) The conditions of approval under the Variance do not adequately mitigate

potential adverse impacts on surrounding uses or protect against potential safety
hazards for the surrounding uses.

{8) No reasonable level of conditions of approval imposed on this Variance would be
sufficient to reasonably mitigate visual, safety or other potential impacts on
adjacent and surrounding residences and land uses.

4, Recommended Conditions of Approval

A,

Variance This approval is for a variance (Variance 2018-037) to the front and side yard
setbacks for the construction of a detached garage, to allow for a front yard setback of
20-feet (versus the required 30-feet) and side yard setback of 8-feet (versus the required
15-feet). The property is located at 1930 Applegate Road, Virginia City Highlands, Storey
County, Nevada, Assessor’s Parcel Number {APN) 003-101-05.

Compliance. The Variance must comply with Storey County Codes, and submitted plans
and reports, as approved. The Applicant must provide the Building Department site
plans drawn to scale prior to obtaining a Building Permit.

Null and Void. If the Variance is not exercised within 12 months of the date of approval,
unless additional time is granted by the Board with action by the Planning Commission,
based upon consideration of the specific circumstances of the project, then without
further action, the Variance will be null and void and no non-conforming development
activity may be made on the property except an the granting of a new Variance.

Hold Harmless. The Property Owners agree to hold Storey County, its Officers and
Representatives harmless from the costs and responsibilities associated with any damage

13




or liability, and any/all other claims now existing or which may occur as a resuit of this
Variance.

E. Permits and Expiration. The Permit Holder shall apply for all Building and Fire permits
for the structure within 12 months from the date of Board approval for this Variance, and
continuously maintain the validity of those perrmits, as appropriate, or this approval will
become null and void.

F. Taxes Paid. Before obtaining a Building Permit, the Permit Holder must show the
Planning Department evidence that all property taxes on the land are paid to-date.

G. Easement. The granting of this Variance must not affect any existing easements on the
subject property. No building may be constructed over an easement, ROW within a
building setback area not otherwise allowed by this Variance.

H. Boundary. The Permit Holder must provide the Planning and Building Departments valid
evidence from a Professional Land Surveyor indicating the proper location of the
property boundaries (property corners) and the structures on the property.

I Accessory Structures. All accessory structures shall comply with the requirements
identified in the Estates Zone, Chapter 17.40, and the General Provisions Chapter 17.12
of the Storey County Code.

). Property Owner Association. The Permit Holder must obtain approval from the Virginia
City Highlands Property Owners Association and submit a copy of the approval to the
Building Department prior to abtaining a building permit for the structure subject to the
variance.

Public Comment

As of October 9, 2018, staff has not received any comments from the public, other than the
discussion at the October 4, 2018, Planning Commission meeting.

Power of the Board
At the conclusion of the hearing, the Board of County Commissioners must take such action
thereon as it deems warranted under the circumstances and announce and record its action by

formal resolution, and such resolution must recite the Findings of the Board of County
Commissioners upan which it bases its decision.

14




Proposed Motions

This section contains two motions from which to choose. The motion for approval is
recommended by the Planning Commission with a vote of 6-1. This motion for approval may be
made and is in accordance with the findings under Section 3.A of this report. Those findings
should be made part of the approval motion. A motion for denial is recommended by staff and
that motion should cite one or more of the findings shown in Section 3.B. Other findings of fact
determined appropriate by the Board of County Commissioners should be made part of either
motion.

A Motion for approval

In accordance with the recommendation by the Planning Commission, but against the
recommendation by staff, and with the Findings of Fact under Section 3.A of this report,
and other findings deemed appropriate by the Board of County Commissioners, and in
compliance with the conditions of approval, | (county commissioner), move to approve a
variance (Variance 2018-037) ta the front and side yard setbacks for the construction of a
detached garage, to allow for a front yard setback of 20-feet (versus the required 30-
feet) and side yard setback of 8-feet (versus the required 15-feet). The property is
located at 1930 Applegate Road, Virginia City Highlands, Storey County, Nevada,
Assessor’s Parcel Number (APN) 003-101-05.

B. Motion for denial

In accordance with the recommendation by staff, but against the recommendation by
the Planning Commission, and with the Findings of Fact under Section 3.B of this report,
and other findings deemed appropriate by the Board of County Commissioners, | (county
commissioner), move to deny a variance (Variance 2018-037]} to the front and side yard
setbacks for the construction of a detached garage, to aliow for a front yard setback of
20-feet (versus the required 30-feet} and side yard setback of 8-feet (versus the required
15-feet}). The property is located at 1930 Applegate Road, Virginia City Highlands, Storey
County, Nevada, Assessor’s Parcel Number (APN) 003-101-05.

15




Appendix A

16




Methodology for the garage placement at 1930 Applegate Road

Our residence faces Applegate Road to the east. The front of the lot is 147 feet wide. There is 30 feet
from the north lot boundary the north side of the house, precluding placing a garage on the north side of
the house. The leach line and septic system is in front of the house, precluding placing the garage east of
our house. The east boundary facing Applegate is the most level, with about a 5 percent grade extending
to the rear elevation of the house. The house is minimally inset into the hillside along the rear elevation,
and a great deal of rock was removed for the foundation. Behind the hause, the slope increases
substantially, to about 15 percent grade. The well is located behind and up-slope of the house and to the
north.

Qur existing driveway is located at Applegate Road on the eastern lot line south of the house. The area is
already open to a point aligned with the rear and south side of the house, then begins to climb steeply
toward the back of the lot. The back {west) lot line is about 101 feet wide, narrowing considerably from
the front. The rear of the lot consists of old growth pinyon pine and some juniper. To construct a garage
to the rear of the lot without a variance would require removing about 25 oid growth trees on a 15 percent
slope. Based on construction activities at neighboring lots along Saddleback Road in the last 10 years,
excavation into the hillside would reguire a large trackhoe and rock hammer to excavate sufficiently to
construct and would likely be within 50 feet of our well. The resulting driveway would be steep, long and
hard to maintain in the winter, and visible at a greater distance.

if the variance is approved, the garage would be constructed at a lower, more level elevation, on an
already open portion of the lot, with minimal excavation. The generai character of the neighborhood
would be least affected by this option. The lots in our neighborhood along Applegate Road, Saddleback
Road and Pinenut Road are steep and rugged, and are overly narrow across to the front lot fines,
Consequently, the house on Applegate on our north lot line has been buiit facing north (and away from
us) at the top of a long driveway. Building toward the front of our lot on the south side or to the back of
our lot would not be visible to this address from any elevation.

The lot along Applegate Road directly across to the east of us is 1941 Saddleback. The house was
constructed facing Applegate instead of Saddleback, south of our southern property line with an attached
garage facing Applegate. The driveway is about 30 feet east of their western property line and blocks the
view in the direction of our lot. The back of their lot is directly facing our property and has a well-
maintained corral and outbuildings. Building toward the front of our lot on the south side would not be
visible to this address from any efevation, Building to the back of our lot would also not be visible from
any elevation.

The two lots directly south of us have been combined into a single lot, and a house has been constructed
uphill on the west end of both lots. The east and north portion of the lot cantains the septic system and
leach field, making it unlikely that any permanent structures would be built on that portion of the lots.
The house faces toward Saddleback, with several outbuildings to the northeast between their house and
our house. There is a steep elevation (downward) between the outbuildings and our proposed garage
location on Applegate and the south lot line. Building toward the front of our lot on the south side would
not be visible from the house. Building to the back would be visible from their rear elevation and would
necessitate removing many of the old growth trees that reduce visibility between the two iots.




We have given considerable thought to the placement of a garage. !f the variance is approved, we would
have the least amount of impact to the views of our adjacent neighbors. We would not have to remove
any old growth trees and would not be building near any wells, structures, or fences, including our own,
The driveway wouid be easy to maintain in the winter. We will still be outside of the Applegate Road
easement, and the road is already well developed and unlikely to expand in the future. We have spoken
with our neighbors at 1970 Applegate Road, 1941 Saddleback Road and 1945 Saddleback Road. All were
supportive of our praject and of the variance. If the garage is constructed within the requested variance,
it will also be in keeping with the character of other development in the neighborhood.




Figure 2 — Facing est toward Applegate Road - location of proposed garage.




Figure 3 —facing southwest from the proposed lacation towards the rear of Saddleback —
outbuildings and the hill obstruct the view of the residence.

Flgure 4 facmg north from the rear of the lot tomard 1970 Applegate Road.




Fgure 5- Iobking north downIAp"p!egaEe ﬁbad - 1930 is

tot

g 1714 L e T 5 ‘
Figure 6 — looking east from the front yard of 1930 Applegat
corral at the rear of the lot of 1941 Saddleback is center.

he left.

e, The road

isin tfo

P
reground, the




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: October 16, 2018 Estimate of time required: 15 min.

Agenda: Consent [ ] Regular agenda [x] Public hearing required [x]

1. Title: Discussion/Possible Action: Special Use Permit 2018-038 is a request by the applicant to allow
for an accessory dwelling unit on an existing developed residential property. The applicant requests an
accessory dwelling unit be approved within a previously constructed garage. The subject property is
located at 1931 Lousetown Road, Virginia City Highlands, Storey County, Nevada, Assessor’s Parcel
Number (APN) 003-123-07.

2. Recommended motion by the Planning Commission: In accordance with the recommendation by

staff and the Planning Commission, the Findings of Fact under Section 3.A of this report, and other
findings deemed appropriate by the Board of County Commissioners, and in compliance with the
conditions of approval, I (county commissioner), move to approve Special Use Permit 2018-038, a
request by the applicant to allow for an accessory dwelling unit on an existing developed residential
property. The applicant desires an accessory dwelling unit within a previously approved garage with a
shop/office be legally established with the special use permit. The subject property is located at 1931
Lousetown Road, Virginia City Highlands, Storey County, Nevada, Assessor’s Parcel Number (APN)
003-123-07.

1. Pregaréd bv: Kathy Canfield

4. Department: Planning Telephone: 775.847.1144
5. Staff summary: See enclosed Staff Report No. 2018-038

6. Supporting materiais: Enclosed Staff Report No. 2018-038

7.  Fiscal impact: None on local government.
Funds Available: Fund: __ Comptroller
8. Legal review fgugﬂ' : __District Attorney
9. Reviewed by:
'Zi)e-?aftmenl Head __ Department Name: Planning
___ County Manager ____Other agency review:

10. Board action:
(1 Approved [1 Approved with Modifications
(] Denied [1 Continued
Agenda Item No. \"I




26 South B Street, PO Box 176, Virginia City, Nevada 89440

AR G -
R P -
v o !

N iah /
Storey County SR &:‘?54 .
Planning Department \‘\ i
Storey County Courthouse C 4

Phone 775-847-1144 — Fax 775-847-0949
planning@storeycounty.org

To:
From:

Meeting Date:

Meeting Location:

Staff Contact:
File:

Applicant:

Property Owner:

Property Location:

Request:

Storey County Board of County Commissioners

Storey County Planning Department

October 16, 2018

Storey County Courthouse, 26 South “B” Street, Virginia City, Nevada

Kathy Canfield

Special Lise Permit File 2018-038

Bryan Burlison

Amanda and Bryan Burlison

1931 Lousetown Road, Virginia City Highlands, Storey County, Nevada

Special Use Permit 2018-038 is a request by the applicant to allow for an
accessory dwelling unit on an existing developed residential property. The
applicant requests an accessory dwelling unit be approved within a previously
constructed garage. The subject property is located at 1931 Lousetown Road,

Virginia City Highlands, Storey County, Nevada, Assessor's Parcel Number (APN)
003-123-07.

Summary of the Planning Commission Action:

The Planning Commission at its October 4, 2018, meeting heard testimony from
the applicant, county staff and the public regarding the proposed special use
permit. There was discussion regarding the history of the parcel development
and accessory dwelling unit. A neighbor, Jeanne Gribbin, was concerned that
the accessory dwelling unit had been created without going through the permit
process. The Planning Commission voted 7-0 to recommend approval of the
special use permit with a modification to Condition G to correct a typographical
error (17.12.046.C.8 and add the wording “The submitted Affidavit of Family
shall be revised to be consistent with Section 17.12.046.C.7."

10f 14




: " s _'_: ,:.z..,a”. fw‘;:’f‘
s, a . -TITH,
w T T ) mnean

b
.y T e
LR 7 B
LT CI + b
L% . . e
oy S

¥ Vi _ea o el

b ! - Q“ o
- LW e ERT
- PR e

o ;‘5 “:.- Lﬁ‘- -~ -‘. .
~ e ¥ PR ®
. -

Virgrwe Cry Heghlonds, Unvt )

ITORFY COUNTY

Assessor’s Parcel Map

3of14

g - .
Lol
.
¥ e [ ™
. a -
w T
. PR
P -
e n ey Al
-y Y T LR R p—
® Aoy toy somibnl -t gt e
3 L e e - TR S g re of e i e}

pre

. ———
e
—




Based on the stated sizes for the building permits, the garage shop/office was approved
to be 828 square feet, which is a size that can be permitted for an accessory dwelling.

Zoning Ordinances. The 1993 Zoning Ordinance Estates zoning, Chapter 17.40 states
the following as a permitted use:

“One detached family guest home, defined as a structure occupying an
accessory position on a lot and used exclusively for housing members of a single
family, subject to a special use permit, shall contain its own sewer and water
source for that guest house.”

That same section goes on to identify that family guest homes meet the following
standards:

1. A family guest home shall be a complete dwelling and include a kitchen and
bathroom.

2. A family guest home may not be less than five-hundred (500) square feet in
area, nor greater than one-thousand (1,000) square feet in area.

3. If a family guest home is occupied on a permanent basis, a signed affidavit
must be filed with the county building official stating who is occupying the
guest home. Affidavits will be reviewed annually.

4, Septic regquirements shall be in accordance with Nevada Revised Statutes.

The 1999 Zoning Ordinance (Chapter 17.10) defines dwefling unit as “one or more
rooms and a singie kitchen in a dwelling or apartment hotel, designed as a unit for
occupancy by not more than one family for living or sleeping purposes, and not having
more than one kitchen or set of fixed cooking facilities.”

The 2015 Zoning Ordinance defines Accessory Dwelling Unit — detached as “a separate
and completely independent dwelling unit an the same ot as the principal single-family
dwelling or other principal building, but which is physically separated from the principal
building. A detached accessory dwelling unit includes, at a minimum, a permanent
kitchen and bathroom with bathtub or shower. it may also include habitable space for
living, sleeping, and eating.”

Chapter 17.12 of the 2015 Zoning Ordinance goes on to identify the following
regulations associated with a proposed accessory dwelling:

50f 14




Floor Plan

7of 14




General use allowances and restrictions. Storey County Code 17.03.150, Special Use
Permit, identifies the administration for the Board and Planning Commission for
allowing a special use permit. The approval, approval with conditions, or denial of the
Special Use Permit must be based on findings of fact that the proposed use is
appropriate or inappropriate in the location. The findings listed below are the minimum
to be cited in an approval.

(1) Complies with the generai purpose, goals, objectives, and standards of the
county master plan, this title, and any other plan, pragram, map, or ordinance
adopted, or under consideration pursuant to official notice by the county.

The proposed accessory dwelling will be consistent with the requirements of
Section 17.12.046 which identifies the regulations for accessory dwellings. The
accessory dwelling is permissible in according with the regulations for the
residential zoning and is consistent with the Zoning Ordinance as conditioned
and the Storey County Master Plan,

{2} The proposal location, size, height, operations, and other significant features
will be compatible with and will not cause substantial negative impact on
adjacent land uses, or will perform a function or provide a service that is
essential to the surrounding land uses, community, and neighborhood.

The accessory dwelling will be located within an existing structure that was
previously approved by Storey County. No exterior construction is proposed
with this Special Use Permit application.

(3) Will resuit in no substantial or undue adverse effect on adjacent property, the
character of the neighborhood, traffic conditions, parking, public
improvements, public sites or right-of-way, or other matters affecting the
public health, safety, and general welfare, either as they now exist or as they
may in the future be developed as a result of the implementation of the
provisions and policies of the county master plan, this title, and any other
plans, program, map or ordinance adopted or under consideration pursuant to
an official notice, by the county, or other governmental agency having
jurisdiction to guide growth and development.

The accessory dwelling will be located within an existing structure. The site
contains adequate parking area to allow for no impacts to parking on adjacent
roadways. The property is located within an existing residential neighborhoed
where accessory dwellings can be permitted. The accessory dwelling will be
utilized by family members of the primary residence owner. A signed affidavit
has been submitted documenting this requirement and a deed restriction will
be required in accordance with Chapter 17.12 requirements.

(4) The proposed use in the proposed area will be adequately served by and will
impose no undue burden on any of the improvements, facilities, utilities, or
services provided by the county or other governmental agency having
jurisdiction in the county.

9of14




(5)

(6)

affecting the public health, safety, and general welfare, either as they now exist
or as they may in the future be developed as a result of the implementation of
the provisions and policies of the county master plan, this title, and any other
plans, program, map or ordinance adopted or under consideration pursuant to
an official notice, by the county, or other governmental agency having ™
jurisdiction to guide growth and development.

The proposed use in the proposed area will be adequately served by and will
impose no undue burden on any of the improvements, facilities, utilities, or
services provided by the county or other governmental agency having
jurisdiction in the county.

The Special Use Permit, with the recommended conditions of approval,
complies with the requirements of Chapters 17.03.150 — Special Use Permit,
17.12.046 - Accessory Dwellings, Location and Placement, and 17.40 Estate
Zone.

Motion for denial. Should a motion be made to deny the Special Use Permit request,

the foltowing findings with explanation why should be included in that motion.

(1)

(2)

(3)

This denial is for Special Use Permit 2018-038, to allow for an accessory dwelling
unit on an existing developed residential property. This denial does not allow
for an accessory dwelling unit within a previously constructed garage. The .
subject property is located at 1931 Lousetown Road, Virginia City Highlands,
Storey County, Nevada, Assessor’s Parcel Number (APN) 003-123-07.

The conditions under the Special Use Permit conflict with the minimum
requirements/findings in the 2015 Storey County Zoning Ordinance Sections
17.03.150 -Special Use Permit, 17.12.046 - Accessory Dwellings, Location and
Placement and/or 17.40 Estate Zone.

The conditions under the Special Use Permit do not adequately mitigate
potential adverse impacts on surrounding uses or protect against potential
safety hazards for surrounding use. -

q, Recommended Conditions of Approval

A.

Special Use Permit. This approval is for Special Use Permit 2018-038 to allow for an
accessory dwelling unit an an existing developed residential property. This approval
aliows for an accessory dwelling unit within a previously constructed garage. The
subject property is located at 1931 Lousetown Road, Virginia City Highlands, Storey
County, Nevada, Assessor’s Parcel Number (APN) 003-123-07.

Requirements. The Permit Holder shali apply for any/all required permits and licenses,
including building and fire permits, for the project within 24 months from the date of
final approval of this Special Use Permit, and continuously maintain the validity of those
permits/licenses, or this approval shall be null and void. This permit shall remain valid

11 of 14




measurements from the meter must be submitted by the parce! owner to the Nevada
Division of Water Resources in accordance with their requirements.

K. Iransfer of Rights. The special use permit belongs exclusively to Bryan and Amanda
Burlison and the real property subject to this permit so long as the one or both owners
own and maintain primary residence at the subject property. This special use permit is
non-transferabie.

L. Property Owners Association Approval. The holder of the special use permit must

obtain approval from the Virginia City Highlands Property Owners Association and
submit a copy of the certificate to the planning department,.

Public Comment

Staff received an email inquiry regarding the project prior to the Planning Commission meeting.
As of October 9, 2018, Staff has not received any other comments from the public other than
the discussion at the October 4, Planning Commission meeting.

Power of the Board

At the canclusion of the hearing, the Board of County Commissioners must take such action
thereon as it deems warranted under the circumstances and announce and record its action by
formal resolution, and such resolution must recite the findings of the Board of County
Commissioners upon which it bases its decision.

Proposed Motions

This section contains two motions from which to choose. The motion for approval is
recommended by staff and the Planning Commission in accordance with the Findings of Fact
under Section 3.A of this report. Those findings should be made part of the approval motion. A
motion for denial may be made and that motion should cite ane or more of the findings shawn
in Section 3.B. Other findings of fact determined appropriate by the Board of County
Commissioners should be made part of either motion.

A. Recommended motion for approval

In accordance with the recommendation by staff and the Planning Commission, the
Findings of Fact under Section 3.A of this report, and other findings deemed appropriate
by the Board of County Commissioners, and in compliance with the conditions of
approval, | {county commissioner), move to approve Special Use Permit 2018-038, a
request by the applicant to allow for an accessory dwelling unit on an existing
developed residential property. The applicant desires an accessory dwelling unit within
a previously approved garage with a shop/office be legally established with the special
use permit. The subject property is located at 1931 Lousetown Road, Virginia City
Highlands, Storey County, Nevada, Assessor’s Parcel Number (APN) 003-123-07.

13 of 14




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: Estimate of time required: 0- 5
10-16-18

Agenda: Consent [ | Regular agenda [X] Public hearing required [ ]

I. Title: Business License Second Readings -- Approval

2. Recommended motion; Approval

1. Prepared by: Melissa Field

Pepartment: Community Development Telephone: 847-0966

4. Staff summary: Second readings of submitted business license applications are normally
approved unless, for various reasons, requested 1o be continued to the next meeting. A
follow-up letter noting those to be continued or approved will be submitted prior to the
Commission Meeting. The business licenses are then printed and mailed to the new
business license holder.

5. Supporting materials: Scc attached Agenda Letter

6. Fiscal impact:

Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller

Legal review required:
_ District Attomey

8. Runmn
Department Name:

__ County Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[1 Approved

[ Approved with Modifications
[1 Denied [

Continued

Agenda [tem No. ‘ q




Storey County Community Bebvelopment
Buginess

Ead Licensing

P O Box 526 + Virginia City NV 89440 - (775) 847-0966 + Fax (775) 847-0935 » mfield@storeycounty.org

To: Vanessa Stephens, Clerk’s Office October 3, 2018
Pat Whitten, County Manager

Fr: Melissa Field
Please add the following item(s) to the October 16, 2018 COMMISSIONERS Agenda:

Via email

Storey County Building Department has inspected and found that the following businesses meet code
requirements necessary to operate in the county:

LICENSING BOARD
SECOND READINGS

A. HERITAGE CONSTRUCTION & DEVELOPMENT - Contractor / 2351 Sunset Blvd ~ Rocklin, CA
B. UNITED HERITAGE FINANCIAL GROUP, INC - General/707 E. United Heritage Ct ~ Meridian, ID
C. AXINE USA INC - General / 108-2386 East Mall ~ Vancouver, Canada

D. LIBERTY INTERACTIVE CORP, dba: ZULILY - General / 2555 USA Pkwy ~ McCarran, NV

Ec: Community Development Planning Department Sheriff’s Office
Commissioners’ Office Comptroller’s Office




Vanessa Steehens

From: Pat Whitten

Sent: Thursday, October 4, 2018 4:34 PM

To: Vanessa Stephens

Cc: Anne Langer; Keith Loomis; Austin Osborne; Marshall McBride
Subject: Re: petition

Thank you Vanessa. Please inform the individual requesting this item that I have denied placement of item on
the Commission per policy. Thank you.

Pat Whitten

Storey County Manager
pwhitten@storeycounty.org
(775) 847-0968 - Office
(775) 721-7001 - Cell

On Oct 4, 2018, at 1:50 PM, Vanessa Stephens <ystephens(@storeycounty.org> wrote:

Attached is the petition language for the Agenda Request. She also sent several pictures of
signatures. Would you like me to forward those as well?

Vanessa

Verere /4 Staphons

Clerk & Treasurer
Storey County, Nevada

From: reflectionsdru@aol.com <reflectionsdru@aol.com>
Sent: Thursday, Gctober 4, 2018 1:30 PM

To: Vanessa Stephens <vstephens@storeycounty.org>
Subject: petition

<SUPPORT THE VIRGINIA CITY .doc>

KO




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: OC‘[" \o / Z0) 8 Estimate of time required:

Agenda: Consent [ ] Regular agenda D( Public hearing required [ ]

Title: Joft tim7o S wpporXt (i %m iA c,—{j /[/[Q/Zc;ét/n/t—é
2. Recommended motion

3. Prepared by: D/ddsd/ G 7Z j S5 21
Department: Telephone: 59 { / 7.0 T /

4, Staff summary:

. Supporting materials: /2@/; 74 M

[a—

h

Jrerexe. 373%%7[“/2"”/

6. Fiscal impact:

Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller
7. Legal review required:
District Attorney
8. Reviewed by:
Department Head Department Name: Commissioner’s Office
County Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
(] Approved
I] Denied

Approved with Modifications
Continued

N
| WY

Agenda Item No.

reflechonsdru@aol .com
BAT - 041 |




